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General Information

Corporate structure

The world’s leading system provider for fire protection
Rosenbauer is the world’s leading system provider for preventive fire-
fighting and disaster protection technology. The international group of
companies develops and produces vehicles; fire extinguishing systems;
fire and safety equipment and digital solutions for professional, indus-
trial, plant, and volunteer fire services; and systems for preventive fire
protection.

The listed company Rosenbauer International AG based in Leonding,
Austria, functions as the parent company of the Rosenbauer Group. It
is also the largest production company, the research and development
center, and is responsible for the management of the Group.

In 2022, the Rosenbauer Group generated revenues of € 972.2 million.
The individual product groups contributed to this as follows: Vehicles
74%, Fire & Safety Equipment 10%, Preventive Fire Protection 4%,
Customer Service 10%, and Other Revenues 3%. With a most recent
global market share of 11.6%', Rosenbauer is a leading manufacturer of
firefighting vehicles.

! Last available market data from 202 1. Own calculation based on figures from the World Bank
and the UN as well as annual reports and expert estimates.

Unique, global network

The Rosenbauer Group operates 15 production locations in ten countries
on three continents and meets all major world standards with products
manufactured in Europe, the US, and Asia. It also has its own sales
and service companies in 15 countries as well as approximately 236
independent trading partners around the world.

The sales organization is divided into five sales regions: CEEU (Central
and Eastern Europe), NISA (Northern Europe, Iberia, South America and
Africa), MENA (Middle East and North Africa), APAC (Asia-Pacific), and
NOMA (North and Middle America). The areas are responsible for all
business in their regions. They analyze market requirements, initiate
product developments, are in charge of sales and service, and run their
production plants. The area organization is intended to strengthen estab-
lished markets and to focus on cultivating these with lower penetration
to date. Country responsibility is being streamlined with effect from
January 1, 2023 in order to use synergies to simplify market develop-
ment. The NISA area is being dissolved and integrated into the newly
established Americas, Middle East & Africa, and Europe sales regions.
Detailed information about this can be found in the Forecast Report on
page 50. Preventive Fire Protection activities are also still presented in
a separate segment.

Revenues by product segment 2022

04

Overall, Rosenbauer is represented in around 120 countries and
therefore has an international network that is unique in the firefighting
industry.

Number one for innovations

With its innovative products, Rosenbauer wants to define state-of-the-art
technology in its industry and actively develop customer demand. As
such, research and development are of central importance to the Group.
The Rosenbauer innovation process systematically integrates indus-
try-relevant megatrends, findings from market observation, customers’
requirements, and employees’ suggestions. The Rosenbauer Group
holds around 228 patents in the various product areas.

In 2022, the Group invested € 31.6 million in research and development
(2021: € 24.3 million). This equates to 4.9% of the relevant net proceeds
of in-house production (2021: 3.8%). The capitalization rate was 19.9%
(2021: 36.7%) and related to developments in Austria and Germany.
A total of 41% (2021: 50%) of the company’s development costs amount-
ing to € 13.1 million (2021: € 12.2 million) were incurred by Rosenbauer
International AG, the Group-wide center of expertise for municipal and
specialty vehicles, firefighting systems, and fire and safety equipment.

Research and development/R&D ratio

10% Customer Service

10% Fire & Safety

Equipment

3% Others

4% Preventive Fire
Protection
74% Vehicles

R&D (in € million) R&D ratio

2020 19.9 2.6%
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Products and services

Vehicles

Firefighting vehicles can be broken down into the groups of municipal,
ARFF and industrial vehicles, and by primary function. Rosenbauer has
full series ranges in every category. The portfolio comprises firefighting
trucks, rescue and logistics vehicles, specialty vehicles and aerial lad-
ders as well as hydraulic firefighting and rescue platforms. Production
takes place in Austria, Germany, Italy, Spain, Singapore, and the US,
while final assembly is carried out in Switzerland, the UK, Saudi Arabia,
and partly in South Africa.

Rosenbauer is the only international firefighting technology provider to
produce all types of firefighting vehicle to both European (EN 1846) and
US standards (NFPA 1901). As a result, large parts of the firefighting
world are covered (Europe, North and South America, Africa, West Asia).
Vehicles for China (China Compulsory Certification), Japan (TRIAS), and
Australia (Australian Design Rules) are built in accordance with coun-
try-specific standards and must be certified separately.

As a rule, firefighting vehicles are built on series-production truck
chassis. As these account for approximately 30% of the manufacturing
costs, value added can be increased with chassis produced in-house.
In particular, Rosenbauer builds vehicles for the US market on its own
chassis, including the entire PANTHER series and the fully electric
Revolutionary Technology (RT/X).

The fire extinguishing systems installed in the vehicles are also predom-
inantly produced by Rosenbauer. This makes Rosenbauer a full-service
provider and gives it a competitive edge over pure superstructure
manufacturers who do not have any chassis of their own and/or need
to buy the “centerpieces” of their vehicles. The firefighting systems
(truck-mounted pumps, foam proportioning systems, turrets, portable
fire pumps) are produced for the entire Group at the Leonding location.

Around the world, firefighting technology and firefighting vehicles in par-
ticular are predominantly procured via public tenders. At the same time,
a trend towards purchasing associations and collective tenders has been
noticeable for years, leading to fiercer price competition in many countries.

Fire & Safety Equipment
Rosenbauer is also a full-service provider for firefighting equipment. Key
strategic products are developed within the company, manufactured
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in-house or at contractual partners, and sold as Rosenbauer-brand
items. These include nozzles, submersible pumps, high-performance
ventilators and generators as well as fire service helmets and protective
suits, boots, and gloves. These are all positioned in the very top-quality
segment and are distinguished by their outstanding functionality, safety
and reliability as well as attractive value for money.

Equipment specialists who focus on the sale of Rosenbauer products
are active in all areas. Rosenbauer is in continuous contact with its
customers when it comes to the use of equipment products.

Preventive Fire Protection

Preventive Fire Protection handles the planning, installation, and servic-
ing of stationary firefighting systems. The recycling industry is one of the
most important customers for fire protection systems. The spectrum of
offerings comprises both water- and foam-based firefighting systems and
ranges from sprinkler and spray systems, gas and kitchen extinguishing
systems through to turret extinguishing systems including fire alarm and
early detection systems. Significant parts of the equipment, such as the
ready-to-install sprinkler pipe systems, turrets and compressed air foam
systems (CAFS), are produced by Rosenbauer.

In addition, Rosenbauer’s portfolio includes semi-stationary solutions
such as the RPE Twin Agent CAFS/dry powder unit as well as mobile
solutions such as the portable/wheeled RFC POLY extinguishing sys-
tems.

The operational safety of the systems is guaranteed by a comprehensive
maintenance and service offering. This includes the preparation of
system-specific maintenance concepts and their implementation by
specially trained service personnel.

Customer Service

Customer service is a strategically important pillar of the firefighting
business. It carries out the initial product training with customers
and usually remains at their side across the entire product life cycle.

In addition to a finely coordinated maintenance and service catalog,
the customer service offering includes a broad range of user training
as well as training in driving technology and deployment tactics on
state-of-the-art simulators. Experienced trainers design the courses
in a practical and methodical way, either on-site at the customer’s
premises, in a Rosenbauer training center, or online via web meetings.

On request, Rosenbauer functions as a full-service provider and
takes charge of complete fleet management. With around 25 of
its own service locations in all areas and around 550 service staff,
Rosenbauer is always close to its customers. In addition to this,
there are approximately 100 service partners, mostly with their own
workshop infrastructure. Rosenbauer therefore offers by far the best
and largest service network in the industry worldwide.

Research and development

In 2022, research and development activities were focused on further
developing the existing product range and expanding the electric vehicle
fleet. New products were presented at Interschutz. After a seven-year
hiatus on account of the pandemic, the leading international trade show
for the firefighting industry took place in June 2022 in Hanover.

Furthermore, in April Rosenbauer attended FDIC in the US, where it
unveiled the RTX (US version of the Revolutionary Technology) to the
wider public for the first time. After the trade show, the vehicle went
straight to the Los Angeles Fire Department for a trial phase. The RTX
was taken into regular operation in September 2022.

In addition to unveiling the complete municipal electric line-up, the most
important innovations of the reporting year were the PANTHER electric,
the RTE PS 2 Power Station, the new payload module for the RTE robot,
the RFC CAFS Cube S, and digital solutions designed for early detection
and fighting of wildfires.

Fully electric line-up for municipalities

At Interschutz, Rosenbauer demonstrated what a zero-emission fire ser-
vice vehicle fleet could look like. Alongside the RT, the range of electric
vehicles on display included the first AT electric, which uses tried-and-
trusted AT technology; the first L32A-XS electric, which combines all the
functions of a standard aerial ladder with the benefits of a fully electric
series-production chassis; and the GW-L electric, a logistics truck boast-
ing an ultra-flexible superstructure.

The AT electric offers the same range of functions and familiar operating
environment of a “classic” AT - just with the addition of an electric drive
system on a Volvo FE Electric series-production chassis. Tried-and-
tested design elements like the integrated twin cabin with rotating steps
and Rosenbauer’s COMFORT stowage system have been reproduced as
is in the AT electric. Both the driveline and the firefighting pump in the
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AT electric are operated electrically. During firefighting operations, the
pump is driven by an electric motor (an electric power take-off) supplied
as standard with the chassis and fed from the chassis’ high-voltage
system. An energy backup system (EBU) in addition to two lithium-ion
batteries carry on supplying the vehicle with energy during prolonged
operations.

Schutz & Rettung Zirich, the largest civil rescue organization in
Switzerland, is acting as innovation partner for the L32A-XS electric.
The Zurich Fire Department has been testing the vehicle’s suitability for
operational use since December 2022 in three different urban environ-
ments in the course of a one-year pilot project with Rosenbauer. The
insights from the project will be used as a basis for series development.
Rosenbauer focused on functionality during development of the electric
aerial ladder. It needed to be just as functional, powerful, and reliable as
the established standard aerial ladders while also being equally easy to
use and maintain. The aerial ladder therefore has an entirely identical
design, apart from the interface to the electric drive system (ePTO). The
L32A-XS electric is powered by three electric lithium-ion batteries and is
built on a Volvo FE Electric chassis.

Positive feedback and award for the RT

Following a 13-month trial phase, the Berlin Fire Department has
taken the Revolutionary Technology (RT) into regular operation. During
this period, the all-electric vehicle completed approximately 1,400
operations without failing once. On highly active operation days, the RT
was called out as many as 16 times in 24 hours, and generally did not
require charging in between. Over the trial phase, 95% of all operations
were electric-only, serving as confirmation that the design of the battery
capacity is just right.

In 2022, the first NFPA-compliant RTX (US version of the RT) was deliv-
ered to the Los Angeles Fire Department and the vehicle was showcased
at FDIC. Following a short trial phase, the RTX became part of the regular
vehicle fleet in Los Angeles in September 2022. In the first 20 weeks,
the RTX responded to around 1,300 emergency calls, over 99% of which
were handled using electricity.

The RT’s innovative concept is helping emergency services to achieve
their sustainability targets. This won the RT the Austrian State Prize
for Mobility in the “Climate-friendly technologies - sustainable value
creation” category. This category recognizes innovations that promote
industrial trends that help to achieve climate neutrality in the key fields
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of mobility, and which demonstrate new climate-friendly approaches
to sustainable mobility. The prize is awarded by the Austrian Federal
Ministry for Climate Action, Environment, Energy, Mobility, Innovation
and Technology.

Near-series concept vehicle: the PANTHER electric

As one of the highlights at Interschutz, Rosenbauer presented the first
PANTHER 6x6 with an electric driveline. Its development began around
two years ago when drivelines, on-board power supplies, and electric
components became available that would also be capable of meeting the
high performance requirements of an ARFF vehicle. Airport operators
and fire departments from all over the world were involved in the design
of the PANTHER 6x6 electric right from the start.

As with the RT, Rosenbauer relies on its own e-drive platform for the
PANTHER electric, which was developed jointly with Magna. The
high-voltage batteries on board provide sufficient energy for the jour-
ney to the operational scene, the deployment of the entire supply of
extinguishing agent, and the return journey in accordance with ICAO
specifications. An energy backup system offers the possibility of provid-
ing additional electrical energy in the system, for example to increase
performance in the short term or to extend the operating time. In boost
mode, for example, acceleration from 0 to 80 km/h can be pushed to
under 21 seconds or even below, and even in normal mode the PANTHER
electric accelerates faster than a classic 6x6.

The transition of the concept vehicle to series development began in
the reporting year. For the pre-series, too, Rosenbauer will cooperate
with innovation partners, as it has done with the RT, and will incorporate
the findings from the test operations under real conditions into the
development work and the set-up of series production.

As well as showcasing its battery-powered vehicle fleet, Rosenbauer
demonstrated how an off-grid and zero-emission energy supply at the
scene can be a possibility with the RTE PS 2 Power Station and its solar
panel accessories. The new RTE PS 2 Power Station was designed to
supply typical firefighting consumers such as a submersible pump, slide
hammer, or a high-performance ventilator with a self-sufficient and
flexible source of power for long periods.

Founding member of the Autonomous Operation Cluster
Rosenbauer is working together with Ammann, PALFINGER, Prinoth,
and TTControl as part of the newly established Autonomous Operation

Cluster (AOC). The AOC members plan to jointly develop the key tech-
nologies necessary to enable autonomous, smart operation of mobile
machinery and off-highway vehicles. They will focus their energies on
applications for construction machinery, cranes, firefighting equipment,
and snow groomers. Use of computer vision and artificial intelligence
solutions could be key as these technologies enable precise detection
of objects and processing of information relating to the machines’
environment.

Digital products and services

Rosenbauer has been cooperating with OroraTech since the start
of 2022 on a way of detecting wildfires early using satellite systems.
OroraTech provides up-to-date wildfire information taken from public
satellites with thermal imaging cameras. However, the current intervals
(up to 6 hours) are still too great to ensure a rapid response in the case
of imminent danger.

That is why Rosenbauer and OroraTech are planning to expand this
system into a wildfire monitoring and fighting system that works with
intervals of up to 30 minutes. To this end, OroraTech will launch up to
100 satellites the size of a shoebox, each equipped with a high-resolu-
tion thermal imaging camera and artificial intelligence, into space over
the next few years. A prototype has been in orbit since January.

The aim of the strategic partnership is to digitalize the process of fight-
ing wildfires to provide actionable insights to emergency services on the
ground. OroraTech’s satellite system will be linked to RDS Connected
(software product portfolio allowing emergency responders to stay con-
nected) and all parties involved will have access to current and historic
satellite data. Drone images will also be displayed and distributed via
RDS Connected Command. Drones are a highly effective technology and
are able, for example, to distinguish a hotspot from a larger campfire, a
factory chimney, or reflective solar panels, and can provide firefighters
with a combination of RGB images and thermal imaging for situational
awareness before they arrive on scene.

The RDS Connected Command smartphone apps (Android and iOS)
were enhanced during the reporting year and now also offer a chat
function and access to data beyond the operational event, for example
appointment schedules and event calendars. All mission-relevant
information can also be made available to emergency crews via RDS
Connected Command; for example, building and site plans or tactical
geo-information.



Rosenbauer Annual Financial Report 2022

Objectives, strategy and controlling

As an industry trendsetter, Rosenbauer helps shape fire and disaster
prevention with pioneering innovations and outstanding products.
Looking ahead as well, the company aims to break new ground in the
development of firefighting technology. Rosenbauer strives to be the
best in all areas. Its primary business goal is to achieve sustainable,
profitable growth and to continuously increase the enterprise value
of the company. Rosenbauer benefits from a number of strengths in
implementing this claim to leadership:

m its global presence and comprehensive service offering as the only
system provider for preventive firefighting and disaster protection
technology,

its role as an innovation and technology leader,

its strong, vertical integration and industrial production methods,
the international reputation of the Rosenbauer brand, and

its skilled and dedicated employees.

The starting point for business decisions and the controlling of the
Group is strategic multi-year planning, which includes market, portfolio,
product, and production planning. A detailed budget will be adopted
for each of the next financial years for all companies, the areas, and
the Group. During the year, these annual budgets will be monitored for
target achievement using tools including comparisons between target
and actual performance, comparisons with the previous year, variance
analyses, and forecasts.

The key performance indicators in the Group are revenues and operating
EBIT, the operating EBIT margin, ROCE (return on capital employed), and
earnings before taxes (EBT). Further relevant performance indicators are
incoming orders and order backlog.

Rosenbauer is conscious of its particular social responsibility as a provider
of equipment to fire services whose members show a high level of social
commitment. The group of companies therefore also takes non-financial
factors including the environment, human resources, and compliance into
account in its business activities; places great emphasis on sustainability;

2 |WF, World Economic Outlook, Update, January 31, 2023.
3 World Bank, Global Economic Prospects, February 3, 2023.
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and maintains continuous dialog with its stakeholders (see “Rosenbauer
Sustainability Report” available at www.rosenbauer.com).

Economic Environment?3

Global economy

The most recent estimate of the International Monetary Fund (IMF) puts
global economic growth at 3.4% in 2022, while the growth rate the year
before was 6.2%. The global fight against inflation and the resurgence of
COVID-19 in China were particular factors that weighed on economic activity.

Despite this headwind, many economies experienced surprisingly strong
growth in real GDP in the third quarter of 2022, including the US, the
eurozone, and the larger emerging and developing countries. In many
cases, the reasons for this were domestic, with stronger-than-anticipated
private consumption, higher levels of private investment amid tight labor
markets, and more-generous-than-expected fiscal support. At the same
time, there was an increase in corporate investment to satisfy private
demand. On the supply side, easing supply chain bottlenecks and falling
transport costs alleviated the pressure on prices for incoming materials
and allowed for a recovery in sectors like the automotive sector whose
activity had previously been limited. Energy markets have also adapted
surprisingly quickly to the shock of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine.

This upturn in most, if not all, larger economies faded in the fourth
quarter of 2022. The US economy, for one, maintained its comparatively
stronger rate of growth. This was supported, on the one hand, by con-
sumers continuing to spend their savings and, on the other hand, by
historically low unemployment and widely available job opportunities.

Global inflation was estimated at 8.8% in the reporting year. It was con-
sidered to have peaked in the third quarter when energy and commodity
prices started to come down.

North America

Rising food and energy prices together with a tight labor market pushed
US inflation to new all-time highs in 2022, before price pressures started
to abate toward the end of the year. This led to the fastest tightening of

monetary policy in over 40 years. There was a corresponding decline
in economic activity in the first half of the year, with domestic demand
remaining flat even during the second half of the year. This situation was
also reflected in housing construction investments in particular.

Ultimately, substantial fiscal consolidation and monetary policy head-
winds are estimated to have slowed US economic growth to 2.0% over
the reporting year, from a level of 5.9% in the previous year. Canada’s
GDP increased by 3.5% in 2022, from 5.0% in 2021.

For the current year, the IMF anticipates a sustained economic downturn
in the US and Canada to 1.4% and 1.5% respectively. There have been
mixed signals coming from the US economy of late. There has been a
surprising turn to the upside in some data, such as retail sales and the
labor market, and a surprising shift to the downside in other data such as
industrial production. But the upside surprises have been more common
than the downside surprises of late.

Europe

Europe’s economic growth proved more resilient in 2022 than could
have been expected in view of the Ukraine war’s negative impacts on
trade relations. This resilience - which is evidenced by consumption and
investment data alike - can be explained, on the one hand, by govern-
ment support amounting to 1.2% of EU GDP to help households and
companies cope with the energy costs crisis and, on the other hand, by
momentum from the economy reopening after the COVID-19 pandemic.
Nonetheless, high-frequency indicators suggest a contraction of the
production and services sector. Consumer confidence has eroded and
the business climate has deteriorated. Hence economic output in the
eurozone increased by 3.5% over the past year.

This declining rate of growth is expected to bottom out this year at 0.7%.
At the same time, this figure is 0.2 percentage points higher than was
forecast last October. This revision has taken into account the ECB’s
swift interest rate hikes and the erosion in real earnings, which are
being offset by aftereffects of the positive result in 2022, lower energy
wholesale prices, and measures to boost purchasing power in the form
of energy price caps and transfer payments. It is Spain once again that is
expected to report the strongest growth in 2023 with 5.2%.
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Asia

The emerging and developing economies of Asia achieved a much lower
rate of growth than expected in 2022 at 4.3% because of China. Their
growth is expected to pick up again this year to 5.3%. The slowdown of
the Chinese economy in the fourth quarter of 2022 suggests that the
growth rate for the year as a whole needs to be revised downward by
0.2 percentage points to 3.0%, with China’s growth dipping below the
global average for the first time in over 40 years. The IMF projection
indicates that China will achieve growth of 5.3% this year, which reflects
the increased mobility in the country.

India’s growth is expected to fall from 6.8% in 2022 to 6.1% in 2023.
The ASEAN-5 countries are on a similar trajectory. While they reported
growth of 5.2% last year, the rate of growth is expected to drop to 4.3%
this year.

Industry Development

World firefighting market

The world firefighting market has an annual volume* of approximately
21,000 vehicles with a total value of around € 6.0 billion. This figure
does not include compact vehicles up to a gross vehicle weight of 7.5 t,
fire and safety equipment, service and stationary equipment.

Based on Rosenbauer’s internal estimates, the global market volume
is likely to have stagnated in the reporting year, which can mainly be
attributed to the massive disruptions to international supply chains. The
strongest sales regions are Europe, North America, and Asia; the biggest
single markets the US, China, and Germany.

North America

There was a very positive trend in demand on the North American fire-
fighting market in 2022, despite a significantly weaker economic envi-
ronment and rising interest rates. Procurement volumes are expected to
have increased again to over 6,000 vehicles in the past twelve months.
At the same time, manufacturers were impacted by massive supply
chain disruptions and a strained labor market, with increases in material
costs being passed through to only a limited extent.
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The strong level of demand is expected to cool off somewhat in 2023.
Whether the currently full order books can actually be processed and
lead times improved will depend on the availability of preliminary prod-
ucts, raw materials, and labor.

Europe

The European firefighting market, which is heterogeneous and small-
scale in most countries, once again experienced higher levels of demand
in the reporting year. Tendering activity was very strong in Central
Europe in particular (Austria, Germany, and Switzerland), an area that is
distinguished by lots of individual orders. There is also a growing interest
in electric mobility here. At the same time, the airport business seems
to be stable throughout Europe following the aftermath of the COVID-19
pandemic. Eastern Europe likewise developed in a satisfactory manner
in 2022, albeit at a lower level.

New procurement is expected to remain stable over the current year. In
individual markets, sustained levels of high inflation and phasing out of
subsidies have pushed fire departments to the limits of their budgets,
with scheduled tenders postponed or canceled as a result.

Asia

The fragmented Asian firefighting market continued to recover from the
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2022. In particular, the planning
and building of new airports and runways and postponed replacement
purchases caused the demand for ARFF vehicles to pick up noticeably.
Local suppliers are increasing competitive pressures in the standard
municipal vehicle business. Some countries in the region are still experi-
encing economic problems or facing trade restrictions. Highly developed
firefighting markets like Singapore, Hong Kong, Japan, Australia, and
New Zealand are the only positive exceptions.

China, Asia’s largest single market, has practically closed itself off to
imports in the wake of its economic conflict with the US. Standard
vehicles are having to be procured from Chinese manufacturers. Only
specialty vehicles can still be purchased from overseas, subject to
approval. A sustained slight improvement in the industry economy is
expected in 2023, with economic outlooks projected to be better by
international standards.

4 Last available market data from 202 1. Own calculation based on figures from the World Bank and the UN as well as annual reports and expert estimates.

Middle East

The previous year saw an increase in new tenders for firefighting
technology in Middle Eastern countries, which coincided with favorable
oil price developments and a phase of relative political stability in the
region. Local production has continued to become more significant as a
criterion for awarding contracts. Lower levels of demand are expected
for the current year in view of a considerably weaker economic out-
look for Saudi Arabia and oil production cuts in the OPEC countries.
Nonetheless, a number of attractive projects should be ready for a
decision in the municipal and industrial business.

Other markets

There is still a lot of catching up to do in Latin America and Africa when
it comes to firefighting technology. There were actually a number of invi-
tations to tender in Latin America last year. Demand for ARFF vehicles is
continuing to rise, and demand in the European NISA countries remains
at a high level.
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Economic report

Overall development in 2022

In 2022, the global firefighting industry stagnated in a generally weaker
economic environment. From February, Russia’s war of aggression
against Ukraine massively put renewed pressure on international supply
chains and commodity markets, which had previously shown the first
signs of recovery following the COVID-19 pandemic. In the further
course of the year, recurring and changing bottlenecks in the supply
of materials produced highly uncertain production conditions, and this
combined with significantly higher supplier prices for some items com-
promised vehicle production within the Rosenbauer Group.

Despite these difficult conditions, the CEEU and NISA sales regions and
the Preventive Fire Protection segment succeeded in increasing their
deliveries and project volumes.

Incoming orders hit a new record level of € 1,230.0 million in 2022
(2021: € 1,064.3 million), with all five sales regions and the Preventive
Fire Protection segment reporting clear growth. The order from the Berlin
Fire Department, which following a one-year trial phase has decided
to purchase four more vehicles from the fully electric Revolutionary
Technology (RT) model series, is particularly pleasing. The order backlog
of € 1,469.7 million as of December 31, 2022 (2021: € 1,145.2 million)
was significantly higher than consolidated revenues for the year.

Consolidated revenues/EBIT (in € million)

EBIT

| BLY
| EX

57.7

Consolidated revenues

2020 1,044.2
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Development of revenues and earnings

Revenue development

Revenues for 2022 were on a par with the previous year at € 972.2
million (2021: € 975.1 million). At the same time, virtually all material
groups were affected by supply chain disruptions and supply bottle-
necks. Poor availability of truck chassis in particular repeatedly delayed
line production and resulted in considerable rework. In the summer,
Rosenbauer began to build largely standardized stock vehicles in Europe
in order to meet the most pressing needs of emergency services at short
notice and improve capacity utilization at its locations.

The Group’s strongest product segment in terms of revenues was
Vehicles at around 74% (2021: 76%). This was followed by Customer
Service, which accounted for 10% (202 1: 8%) of total revenues at € 96.5
million (2021: € 78.4 million). The revenue contribution of the Fire &
Safety Equipment segment was also 10% (2021: 9%) and that of the
Other Revenues segment was 3% (202 1: 4%). Preventive Fire Protection
generated revenues of € 36.3 million (2021: € 29.8 million), thus con-
tributing 3% (202 1: 3%) to consolidated revenues.

By far the largest share of revenues was accounted for by the parent
company Rosenbauer International AG at € 443.8 million (2021: € 444.3
million). With an export ratio of 84% (2021: 89%) and deliveries to more
than 120 countries, Rosenbauer has the largest international presence
in the firefighting industry.

Cost of sales increased to € 843.3 million (202 1: € 818.6 million). Gross
profit decreased by 17.5% to € 128.9 million (202 1: € 156.5 million). The
gross profit margin amounted to 15.3% (2021: 19.1%).

Cost development

At € 572.6 million (202 1: € 547.8 million), cost of materials accounted for
the largest share of cost of sales, which was higher than in the previous
year relative to revenues. Proportionate personnel expenses amounted
to € 189.6 million (2021: € 171.5 million), and were likewise higher than
in the previous year in relation to revenues. Depreciation and amortiza-
tion expenses on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
increased from € 13.7 million to € 14.1 million in the reporting year.

Structural costs comprise research and development, sales and admin-
istrative expenses, and went up from € 129.1 million to € 147.7 million.
Capitalized research and development costs, which were reported in the
income statement in 2022, decreased from € 8.9 million to € 6.3 million.

Other operating expenses of € 1.9 million (2021: € 1.3 million) were
offset by other operating income of € 10.2 million (2021: € 9.0 million).

Result of operations

As a result of lower gross profit, the Rosenbauer Group is reporting EBIT
of € -10.6 million for the 2022 financial year (2021: € 35.0 million).
Not only does this figure reflect the disruptions to production caused by
supply bottlenecks for various components and raw materials; it is also
impacted by one-time effects such as the Interschutz trade show and
restructuring costs. The missing parts situation improved slightly toward
the end of the year, which allowed for positive EBIT of € 19.9 million in
the fourth quarter.

The financial result was negative at €-19.6 million due to the deconsol-
idation of the joint venture in Russia and greater financing costs, and
was down significantly on the previous year’s level (202 1: €-6.2 million).

Consequently, earnings before taxes (EBT) amounted to € -30.2 million
(2021: € 28.9 million). Reported tax income was € 7.8 million (2021:
€ -5.7 million). The tax income in 2022 stems from positive tax effects
arising from the reorganization in the US and the recognition of loss
carryforwards.

After adding this tax income, the net profit for the period was € -22.3
million (202 1: € 23.2 million).

The non-controlling interests held by the partners at Rosenbauer Aerials,
Rosenbauer Espafiola, Rosenbauer South Africa, Eskay Rosenbauer
Brunei and Rosenbauer Saudi Arabia amounted to € 1.9 million in the
reporting year (2021: € 7.8 million including non-controlling interests
from the companies Rosenbauer America and Rosenbauer Slovenia in
which the company purchased shares in the reporting year).
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Orders

The Rosenbauer Group reported incoming orders of € 1,230.0 million in
the past year (2021: € 1,064.3 million), with all five sales regions and the
Preventive Fire Protection segment posting clear growth. The Preventive
Fire Protection segment reported the greatest relative growth.

There was exceptionally dynamic growth in demand over the year as a
whole. Substantial orders for personal protective equipment and ARFF
vehicles were acquired in Australia, for instance. The largest order for
stationary fire protection in the company’s history to date was placed by
Miillheizkraftwerk Wiesbaden, Germany.

The order backlog of € 1,469.7 million as of December 31, 2022 (2021:
€ 1,145.2 million) was significantly higher than consolidated revenues
for the year.

Segment reporting - business segments (by area)

Segment reporting is based on the five sales regions (areas): CEEU
(Central and Eastern Europe), NISA (Northern Europe, Iberia, South
America and Africa), MENA (Middle East and North Africa), APAC
(Asia-Pacific) and NOMA (North and Central America). Preventive Fire
Protection (PFP) is presented as a separate segment.

CEEU area

The CEEU area comprises the countries of Central, Eastern and Southern
Europe, with the DACH region (Germany, Austria, Switzerland) as its
historic domestic market.

Incoming orders/ order backlog as of Dec. 31 (in € million)

Incoming orders

2021 _1,064.3

2020

Order backlog

1,007.7 1,072.1
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CEEU

The CEEU area includes the Group companies Rosenbauer International
and Rosenbauer Osterreich in Leonding (Austria), Rosenbauer
Deutschland in Luckenwalde (Germany), Rosenbauer Karlsruhe
(Germany), Rosenbauer Slovenia in Radgona (Slovenia), Rosenbauer
Italia in Andrian (Italy), Rosenbauer Rovereto (lItaly), Rosenbauer Schweiz
in Oberglatt (Switzerland) and Rosenbauer Polska in Palmiry (Poland).
The plants in the CEEU area (Leonding, Neidling, Karlsruhe, Radgona and
Rovereto) produce for all areas, while the Luckenwalde plant primarily
produces for the German market.

Market development

During the reporting year, Europe was confronted with multiple crises,
which led to international supply chain disruptions, rising raw material
and energy prices and higher inflation. Russia’s war of aggression
against Ukraine in particular had a major impact on the continent.
Nevertheless, there was some good development in the company’s most
important firefighting markets. Demand in the DACH region returned to
its pre-pandemic level and the first signs of the long-awaited increase in
dynamism were seen in the Eastern European markets.

In Romania, for instance, Rosenbauer won a tender issued by the Ministry of
Internal Affairs for the delivery of 18 B45 hydraulic firefighting and rescue
platforms, with an option for the customer to increase the number to as
many as 100 vehicles. The Ministry of the Interior in Italy has also chosen
Rosenbauer as its supplier of hydraulic firefighting and rescue platforms.

Revenues by areas in 2022

3% PFP
27% NOMA 40% CEEU
11% APAC

10% NISA

9% MENA —.
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An initial order was placed for 30 platforms with a rescue height of 32.1 m,
and the customer also has the option to increase this order to up to 100
vehicles. Another major order was placed by the Procurement Office of
Mecklenburg-Western Pomerania. Having already entrusted Rosenbauer
with the delivery of 274 TSF-W small firefighting vehicles in 2021, last
November it placed an order for 40 LF20 large firefighting group vehicles.

There is an encouraging amount of demand for electric firefighting
vehicles as well. Following a successful trial operation, the Berlin Fire
Department has placed an order for four more RTs and an electric
equipment vehicle for operational hygiene. Switzerland’s largest rescue
organization, Schutz & Rettung Ziirich, is currently trialing Rosenbauer’s
electric aerial ladder.

Incoming orders in this area during the reporting year were up on the
previous year at € 435.8 million (2021: € 412.1 million).

Business development

Revenues in the CEEU area increased to € 378.2 million in 2022 (2021:
€ 346.8 million). Germany accounted for the largest share, followed by
Austria.

Delivery times played a major role in the third year of the COVID-19
pandemic in light of further disruptions to value chains. The CEEU
sales team therefore decided - particularly in Germany - to produce
vehicles “without an order” that could quickly be made available to fire
departments on request. This meant that the company produced and
sold additional identical vehicles, including the LF-KatS firefighting and
disaster protection vehicle, 300 of which Rosenbauer delivered to the
German Ministry of the Interior, and the TSF-W for Mecklenburg-Western
Pomerania. Other standard vehicles were also produced and delivered
quickly, including one AT to the Murnau Fire Department, which would
have otherwise been unable to fulfill its mandate of providing security for
the G7 Summit in Bavaria.

A new sales channel was launched in 2022, with a firefighting vehicle
appearing in the Rosenbauer online shop for the very first time. The
standard version of the TSF-W can be ordered directly via the portal,
and further online vehicle offerings are set to follow.

The CEEU area contributed around 40% of consolidated revenues in
2022 (2021: 35%). EBIT in the reporting year amounted to € 7.5 million
(2021: € 16.7 million), with an EBIT margin of 2.0% (202 1: 4.8%).
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Key figures

(in € million) 2020 2021 2022
Revenues 363.0 346.8 378.2
EBIT 19.3 16.7 7.5
Order intake 402.7 4121 435.8
Order backlog 366.3 426.0 472.5
NISA area

The NISA sales area comprises Western European countries from the
North Cape to Gibraltar and most of the African and South American
nations.

The NISA area includes the Group companies Rosenbauer Espafiola in
Madrid (Spain), Rosenbauer South Africa in Johannesburg (South Africa),
Rosenbauer France in Meyzieu (France) and Rosenbauer UK in Meltham
(UK). The Ciansa plant in Linares, Spain, builds vehicles for the NISA
region as well as for other regions/areas.

Market development

The heterogeneous markets of the NISA area showed only slight signs
of recovery in 2022, primarily in the Scandinavian countries for typical
replacement purchases. Demand in Africa and Latin America, on the
other hand, continued to suffer from the lack of financial resources
among emergency services and remained well below actual require-
ments. New partnerships in Peru and Brazil that were entered into
during the reporting year are expected to lift Rosenbauer’s business in
the LATAM region, with the company landing several orders for wildland
firefighting equipment and personal protective equipment in Colombia.

Senegal placed an order for seven ARFF vehicles with Rosenbauer as the
company was able to deliver four of them, all PANTHER 6x6 standard
vehicles, in the very same year. A soft loan was arranged in Tanzania to
allow the Ministry of Home Affairs to purchase twelve state-of-the-art
emergency vehicles. For the second time, Rosenbauer won a tender
issued by the Haute-Savoie firefighters’ association in France, which
was again supplied with 11,000 HEROS Titan helmets in a follow-up to
the 2017 order.

The NISA area was dissolved on December 31, 2022 in the course of
streamlining the sales structure and was integrated into the newly estab-
lished Americas, Europe and Middle East & Africa sales regions. Detailed
information about this can be found in the Forecast Report on page 50.

Business development

The NISA area generated increased revenues of € 98.4 million in 2022
(2021: € 93.2 million), representing 10% of all revenues in the Group
(2021: 10%).

EBIT in the NISA area decreased to € -3.7 million in the reporting year
(2021: € 1.2 million), while the EBIT margin was -3.8% (2021: 1.2%).

Key figures

(in € million) 2020 2021 2022
Revenues 114.5 93.2 98.4
EBIT 3.5 1.2 -3.7
Order intake 98.9 116.3 118.8
Order backlog 89.9 113.2 132.6
MENA area

The MENA area geographically comprises the countries in the Middle
East and North Africa.

The MENA area includes the Group companies Rosenbauer Saudi Arabia,
headquartered in Riyadh (Saudi Arabia), with the production site in King
Abdullah Economic City (KAEC), and Rosenbauer MENA Trading - FZE
(Dubai) with a subsidiary in Abu Dhabi (United Arab Emirates). The KAEC
plant produces solely for MENA sales.

Market development

The markets on the Arabian peninsula looked in slightly better shape in
2022, with tender volumes having picked up year-on-year and industrial
companies in particular making investments in safety technology.
For example, Rosenbauer was successful with the Saudi Electricity
Company, which was expanding an order from the previous year to 45
high-end vehicles.

The Group leveraged its competitive advantage in the region as the
only international manufacturer to offer vehicles combining the best
of European and American firefighting technology. In addition, certain
orders are being processed at the local KAEC plant, which will also satisfy
the growing demand for value added in the region. Offering a broad-based
customer and after-sales service is a further criterion that is becoming
ever more crucial for awarding contracts on the Arabian peninsula.
Rosenbauer laid the foundations for this many years ago, transforming
the MENA organization into a comprehensive fire department provider.
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The MENA area’s order intake of € 124.2 million in the reporting year
was significantly higher than the previous year’s figure of € 102.2 million.

Business development

Revenues in the MENA area dropped considerably in line with the
regional procurement cycle to € 90.2 million in 2022, compared with
€ 123.7 million a year earlier.

The MENA area contributed 9% of the Group’s total revenues in the
reporting year (2021: 13%). EBIT declined to € -4.5 million (2021: € 5.2
million), and the EBIT margin was -5.0% (2021: 4.2%).

Key figures

(in € million) 2020 2021 2022
Revenues 150.1 123.7 90.2
EBIT 16.2 5.2 -4.5
Order intake 120.7 102.2 124.2
Order backlog 138.5 115.1 164.1
APAC area

The APAC area comprises the entire Asia-Pacific region, China, Japan,
India, the CIS countries, Turkey and Russia.

The area also includes the Group companies S. K. Rosenbauer in
Singapore, Rosenbauer Australia based in Brisbane, Rosenbauer Fire
Fighting Technology (Yunnan) in China and a minority interest in PA “Fire-
fighting special technics” in Moscow, Russia. Due to the lack of access,
PA “Fire-fighting special technics” is being deconsolidated in the 2022
annual financial statements, with a corresponding effect of € 5.8 million
on the financial result. There are further sales and service locations in
Brunei and the Philippines. The Singapore plant produces vehicles solely
for the Southeast Asian market.

Market development

Following the de facto shutdown of the Chinese firefighting vehicle
market, the APAC area has lost its most important and biggest single
market in the region. It has now become impossible for an international
firefighting equipment provider to import vehicles into the country. So
Rosenbauer has modified its sales strategy and geared it more strongly
toward the sale of fire & safety equipment and components. Over the
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past few months, the company has set up the relevant sales channels
and its own dealer network. Rosenbauer’s top-selling helmet, the HEROS
Titan, was awarded special CCC (China Compulsory Certification) last
year.

In Japan, Rosenbauer primarily has success with ARFF vehicles.
Around 20 PANTHER vehicles were sold to various airports during the
reporting year. In 2022, the company sealed an order for the delivery
of 19 PANTHER vehicles in Australia as well, with an option to procure
another ten vehicles. This meant Rosenbauer Australia cemented its
reputation as the preferred partner of the Australian and New Zealand
aviation industry, which already has 150 PANTHER vehicles operating
in the field. In addition, the Queensland Fire & Rescue Service ordered
5,000 units of the HEROS Titan AS, which saw Rosenbauer increase its
market share for firefighting helmets to around 70%. This also provides
impressive validation of the decision taken five years ago to certify the
helmet to Australian and New Zealand standards.

Despite the difficult overall economic situation, the APAC area posted
incoming orders of € 120.5 million in the reporting year (2021: €113.1
million).

Business development

In the 2022 reporting year, the APAC area reported a decline in revenues
to € 109.9 million (2021: € 117.1 million). Its share of total revenues
was 11% (2021: 12%). EBIT deteriorated to € -1.3 million after € 2.5
million in the previous year, with the EBIT margin at -1.2% (2021: 2.2%).

Key figures

(in € million) 2020 2021 2022
Revenues 127.0 117.1 109.9
EBIT 4.4 2.5 -1.3
Order intake 93.6 113.1 120.5
Order backlog 120.2 110.1 123.0
NOMA area

The NOMA area comprises the US, Canada, and countries in Central
America and the Caribbean. In addition to the holding company
Rosenbauer America, based in Lyons, the area also includes the pro-
duction companies Rosenbauer Minnesota and Rosenbauer Motors

in Wyoming (Minnesota), Rosenbauer South Dakota in Lyons (South
Dakota) and Rosenbauer Aerials in Fremont (Nebraska). The firefighting
vehicles are manufactured to US standards and most of them are deliv-
ered to the NOMA sales area, but also to customers in the MENA, NISA
and APAC areas.

Market development

The North American firefighting market, which is the biggest single
market in the world with a most recent procurement volume of over
6,000 vehicles a year, was in excellent shape in 2022 despite inflation
and rising interest rates.

Rosenbauer took advantage of this good development and strongly
increased its order intake year-on-year to an all-time high. Most of the
increase originated from price rises that Rosenbauer pushed through on
the domestic market. Fleet accounts also played a key role. The Nashville
Fire Department, for instance, increased its order from 2021 to a total
number of 35 vehicles and over 30 vehicles were sold to Oregon. The
RTX is also enjoying increasing popularity, as evidenced by positive feed-
back at the largest US firefighting trade show FDIC and initial experience
of everyday operation at the Los Angeles Fire Department.

Rosenbauer also expanded its dealer and service network further in
2022, targeting major cities along the West and East Coast to exploit
existing potential there.

Order intake in the NOMA area amounted to a pleasing figure of € 388.4
million in the reporting year, which was considerably higher than in the
previous year (2021: € 290.1 million).

Business development

In the reporting period, the NOMA area generated revenues of € 263.7
million, which was on a par with the previous year (2021: € 264.5
million). This corresponds to a 27% share of consolidated revenues
(2021: 27%). Supply chain disruptions impacted vehicle deliveries in the
NOMA area as well. For this reason, in the reporting year the company
relied more heavily on standardized “Stock trucks” that could be made
available more quickly and were all sold out by the end of the year.
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The complete takeover of Rosenbauer America laid the foundation for
focusing efforts on expanding and developing the dealer network and
further enhancing customer service and after-sales support.

EBIT was way down on the previous year at € -9.0 million (2021: € 9.5
million), with an EBIT margin of -3.4% (2021: 3.6%).

Key figures

(in € million) 2020 2021 2022
Revenues 260.9 264.5 263.7
EBIT 15.1 9.5 -9.0
Order intake 263.1 290.1 388.4
Order backlog 337.6 357.7 549.6

Preventive Fire Protection

The two Group companies Rosenbauer Brandschutz in Leonding (Austria)
and Rosenbauer Brandschutz Deutschland in Mogendorf (Germany) as
well as the locations in Gladbeck, Hilden and Hattersheim all operate in
the Preventive Fire Protection segment. They plan, install and maintain
stationary firefighting and fire alarm systems and are recognized as VdS-
approved installation companies, which is a requirement for companies
to be able to bid in German and international tenders.

Market development

The recycling industry is one of the most important customers for
Rosenbauer fire protection systems. The biggest order in the company’s
history to date was landed in the reporting year, with the planning and
installation of stationary fire protection systems for Millheizkraftwerk
Wiesbaden, Germany. In Austria, Rosenbauer was instructed by the
Austrian Power Grid to equip a further five substations with stationary
firefighting systems, having already installed three such systems in the
previous year. International tenders were won in Norway, South America
and the Philippines.

This meant there was positive development in incoming orders in
Preventive Fire Protection, which increased to € 42.3 million in 2022
compared with € 30.5 million in 2021.

Business development
Revenues in Preventive Fire Protection developed encouragingly in
the reporting period, moving up from € 29.8 million to € 31.8 million.
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The segment’s share of total revenues is thus 3% (2021: 3%). EBIT was
positive at € 0.4 million (2021: € 3 thousand).

Key figures

(in € million) 2020 2021 2022
Revenues 28.7 29.8 31.8
EBIT -0.8 0 0.4
Order intake 28.7 30.5 42.3
Order backlog 19.6 23.1 27.9

Segment reporting - information on business units
(by product)

Vehicles

Rosenbauer produces all types of firefighting vehicles to European and
US standards in addition to many other national standards: municipal,
ARFF and industrial vehicles plus hydraulic firefighting and rescue
platforms. Municipal vehicles by far accounted for the largest share of
production in 2022; most of the vehicles were manufactured for fire
departments in Austria, Germany and the US.

A total of 1,882 vehicles were delivered in the reporting year (2021:
2,000 vehicles). With revenues of € 716.2 million (2021: € 735.0
million), this product segment accounted for the highest share of the
Group’s revenues at around 74% (2021: 76%).

Vehicle revenue also includes firefighting systems, most of which are
installed in our own vehicles. The product portfolio includes firefighting
pumps, pump systems and portable fire pumps, foam proportioning
systems, compressed air (CAFS) and high-pressure firefighting systems,
turrets for vehicles and stationary fire protection systems as well as
nozzles, extinguishing arms and motor pump units.

Over the reporting period, Rosenbauer worked intensively on expanding
its electric vehicle fleet and was the only manufacturer to showcase
a complete electric line-up for the municipal sector at Interschutz in
Hanover in June 2022. In addition to the RT, which is already in series
production, the line-up included a logistics truck, the AT electric and
the L32A-XS electric (aerial ladder). This was handed over to Schutz &
Rettung Zirich for trial operation at the end of October.

Rosenbauer demonstrated its technology and innovation leadership
with the unveiling of the PANTHER electric and is laying the foundation
for emission-free operation of ARFF vehicles. The concept vehicle is
currently being transitioned to series development.

Key figures

(in € million) 2020 2021 2022
Order intake 783.9 834.4 960.9
Revenues 816.8 735.0 716.2

Fire & Safety Equipment

Rosenbauer equips firefighters and rescue workers from head to toe with
personal protective equipment and has everything that fire departments
need in its technical equipment range - from generators to complex
equipment for dealing with hazardous substances.

The sale of own products, all of which are located in the premium-quality
segment and are perfectly matched to customer requirements, is being
driven forward around the world. Advancing climate change and the
natural disasters that go with it are forcing the company to adapt its
equipment in order to protect firefighters from the imminent dangers.
Fighting forest fires in particular requires both manpower and equipment.
Rosenbauer has developed a lightweight single-layer protective suit for
technical firefighting operations (GAROS G10) as a further evolution of
the GAROS G30 precisely for this environment, which it presented to the
public for the first time at Interschutz.

In the personal protective equipment product segment, the HEROS
firefighting helmet is one of the most successful products on the fire-
fighting market. Over a million helmets have been sold in more than
140 countries since the product was launched 30 years ago. Interest in
the product is unwaveringly high, and in 2022 the HEROS Titan protective
helmet received CCC (China Compulsory Certification), which means the
product can now also be procured by Chinese fire departments.

The Fire & Safety Equipment product segment generated revenues
of € 93.4 million in 2022 (2021: € 88.6 million), over 65% of which
originated from the company’s own brands. Its share of consolidated
revenues was around 10% (2021: 9%).
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Key figures

(in € million) 2020 2021 2022
Order intake 94.1 83.6 92.2
Revenues 86.3 88.6 93.4

Customer Service

Rosenbauer operates service centers (25 in total) in all areas through
which regional customer service is managed. Around 550 service staff
are employed worldwide, and another 100 service partners complete
the global Customer Service network.

Customer Service offers defined service packages with graded services,
as well as training and education programs. Other key elements are
spare parts business, repairs and general overhauls in addition to the
rental of vehicles and equipment. The Customer Service segment also

Vehicle revenue by category in 2022

8% Industrial
firefighting vehicles 77% Municipal
firefighting

15% ARFF vehicles

vehicles

Vehicles delivered

2020 2,238
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includes business with digital products and services. These comprise
drones for firefighting operations, simulators for training operations, as
well as the Connected Command (formerly EMEREC) operations man-
agement system and the Connected Fleet vehicle and fleet management
system.

The revenues generated in the Customer Service segment amounted to
€ 96.5 million in 2022 (2021: € 78.4 million). Its share of consolidated
revenues increased year-on-year from 8% to 10%.

Key figures

(in € million) 2020 2021 2022
Order intake 66.5 80.3 91.0
Revenues 72.2 78.4 96.5

Other Revenues

Other revenues amounted to € 33.9 million in the past financial year
(2021: € 43.3 million). They essentially include freight and delivery
costs and have hardly any impact on the company’s results.

Key figures

(in € million) 2020 2021 2022
Order intake 34.5 35.5 43.5
Revenues 39.8 43.3 33.9

Financial position, net assets and capital structure

Principles of financial management

Rosenbauer’s financial management system provides financial
resources within the Group, ensures financial independence and that
the company is liquid at all times, and monitors all interest and currency
risks. In order to safeguard liquidity, suitable financing instruments are
used that guarantee the necessary freedom to finance operations,
investments and targeted growth.

The Treasury department manages and ensures the Group’s liquidity,
regularly assesses liquidity requirements and works closely with the
operating units.

Investments

Investments (in rights and property, plant and equipment) of € 16.9
million made by the Rosenbauer Group in 2022 were considerably
lower than in the previous year (202 1: € 28.2 million). Depreciation and
amortization (rights and property, plant and equipment) remained static
at €20.5 million (202 1: € 20.4 million). This meant that, for the first time
in years, investments were lower than depreciation and amortization,
which is also the result of the cost-cutting program introduced in 2022.

Efficient production

Rosenbauer formulated an energy efficiency roadmap for select loca-
tions in the reporting year that will allow it to conserve and save natural
resources as much as possible. The roadmap focuses on the main plant
in Leonding and on achieving independence from the global natural gas
market. Rosenbauer is hoping that these efforts will make it immune to
potential shortages of this particular energy source, keep the cost of
emissions in check by lowering the company’s own CO, emissions and
cover part of its production costs.

The first step in the roadmap involved taking stock and making an
assessment of the company’s entire energy supply and its technical
facilities. On the basis of these findings, the company set out a number
of short- and mid-term measures to reduce energy consumption. More
details about this can be found in the Sustainability Report on page 45.

A new logistics hall was completed and put into operation at the
Luckenwalde location in September 2022. This means the Luckenwalde
plant now has a production and loading capacity of up to 400 vehicles
a year. The new building has also optimized logistics processes by way
of shorter distances and state-of-the-art equipment, for example. In
addition, the customer and employee car park is also being extended,
landscaped, equipped with better lighting and made more secure all as
part of the redesign.

Rosenbauer Polska moved to a new location at the end of August. It now
occupies a strategically favorable location between Warsaw and Warsaw
Modlin Airport. The newly built branch comprises a two-story building
with office space as well as warehouse and assembly facilities.

The production location in Radgona, Slovenia, was also expanded in 2022.
A 500 m? hall with a social area was built in order to increase production
capacity and create the space required to provide new services. The new
production hall has six assembly areas where vehicles can be assembled.
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The newly built service area also has a test station and a customer accept-
ance facility. The expansion means that disaster protection vehicles
(LF-KatS) can now be manufactured here for the German market.

Investments/depreciation (in € million)

Investments

2022 [ 169
]

Depreciation

20.5

]
2021 28.2 B 2o
1

2020 35.0 8.2

Efficient processes

As part of its “Refocus, Restart” restructuring program, in 2022
Rosenbauer launched its first comprehensive initiatives in the areas
of increasing efficiency and productivity, reducing purchasing prices
and value analyses. The primary focus was on stabilizing production
processes over the long term through actions such as eliminating dis-
ruptions, waste and unplanned rework in assembly. A new productivity
management system was developed and introduced to allow the compa-
ny’s operating performance to be managed more closely and efficiently
going forward.

Rosenbauer also pressed ahead with the introduction of SAP S/4HANA
as a Group-wide ERP system. The first fully integrated sales & service
location was successfully put into operation at Rosenbauer Switzerland
in February. The project launch for the second pioneer location at
Rosenbauer Slovenia is scheduled for this April. Rosenbauer was crowned
a Grand Winner in the Rapid Time to Value category at the SAP Austria
Quality Awards for the successful project work it has delivered so far.

Financing
The Group’s financing has always followed the principles of maintaining
assured liquidity. Total asset management ensures the optimization of
current assets with the continuous monitoring of inventories and trade
receivables.
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Equity amounted to € 186.2 million as of the end of the year (2021:
€ 210.4 million). As a result of the simultaneous increase in total assets,
the equity ratio decreased to 19.1% (2021: 23.6%).

Non-current interest-bearing liabilities, predominantly fixed interest
agreements, were significantly higher in 2022 at € 202.2 million (2021:
€ 161.1 million). The interest incurred on total interest-bearing financial
liabilities amounted to € 13.3 million (2021: € 4.9 million). The average
interest rate was 3.5% (2020: 1.5%).

The accounting ratios of the Rosenbauer Group reflect the structure of
business in the firefighting industry. Due to the payout of the minority
shareholders in the US subgroup and the associated financing Group’s
net debt (the net amount of interest-bearing liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents and securities) climbed to € 319.9 million (2021: € 203.6
million). The gearing ratio rose to 171.8% (2021: 96.8%).

Net cash flow from operating activities was negative at € -2.3 million
in 2022 (2021: € 143.0 million). This development is mainly due to the
increase in inventories and receivables.

Key figures

(in € million) 2020 2021 2022
Capital Employed' 653.8 610.5 590.4
ROCE 8.8% 5.7% -1.8%
ROE 21.3% 13.6% -15.1%
' average

Asset structure

The financial situation of the Rosenbauer Group remains solid despite the
difficult conditions. Total assets increased year-on-year and amounted to
€ 973.6 million as of December 31, 2022 (2021: € 89 1.6 million).

Non-current assets went up to € 268.7 million by the end of the year
(2021: € 258.8 million). Right-of-use assets, which have also been
recognized in non-current assets since 2019 on the basis of IFRS 16
Leases, decreased to € 34.0 million (2021: € 35.2 million). Current
assets amounted to € 704.9 million (2021: € 632.8 million).

Structure of the statement of financial position over three years (in € million)

Non-current assets 246.3 186.2 Equity!
247.4 231.9 227.2 210.4
490.8 356.2 Interest-bearing
Inventories . liabilities
407.8 417.3 309.1 269.7
411.5 431.2 Provisions,
374.9 Liabilities and other debt
Receivables and 236.5 236.4 262.0
other assets
2022 2021 2020 2020 2021 2022
12021 adjusted; see also consolidated
ASSETS LIABILITIES financial statements page 60
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By the end of 2022, trade working capital stood at € 368.0 million
(2021: € 345.4 million). This increase can primarily be attributed to the
company’s larger inventories and higher trade receivables of € 177.9
million (2021: € 159.0 million).

Current interest-bearing liabilities rose from € 72.5 million to € 118.8
million in the reporting year.

Procurement, logistics and production

Purchasing and supplier policy

It is crucial to the business success of the Rosenbauer Group to only
work with the best and most innovative suppliers. Fire departments’
wide-ranging requirements are constantly changing, and Rosenbauer and
its suppliers must be just as flexible in how they respond. Rosenbauer
deliberately sets store by close cooperation based on a spirit of part-
nership with its suppliers. Together, strategies are developed to improve
cost-efficiency, optimize the logistics chain, satisfy environmental
aspects and even develop innovative product solutions. One of the
goals of the intensive cooperation with suppliers is to leverage not just
Rosenbauer’s own knowledge, but also the expertise, creativity and
experience of its suppliers.

High purchasing volume

Given the high material intensity (59% of revenues) and the correspond-
ing high procurement volumes, on-time production is a core challenge.
The majority of Rosenbauer’s procurement volume is sourced in Europe,
primarily in Austria and Germany, and the rest mostly comes from the US.
Chassis make up the largest share of the Group’s procurement volumes.
For Rosenbauer, they are generally a pass-through accounting item.
Vehicles for the American market, as well as the complete PANTHER
series and the new RT, are built on proprietary chassis manufactured at
Rosenbauer Motors in Wyoming (Minnesota) and in Leonding.

Cost increases and material availability

The 2022 financial year was characterized by massive supply chain dis-
ruptions. This combined with the ongoing coronavirus crisis initially led
to a further rise in commodity prices. An easing of the situation that had
started to materialize at the start of the calendar year was halted at the
end of February by the war in Ukraine. The company had no choice but
to accept significant price rises in the financial year. These were based
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on increases in the price of aluminum and steel goods, plastics, logistics
and energy. The Purchasing department provided a constant stream of
timely updates on the current market situation and the related risks. Key
tasks during this financial year included securing contractually agreed
prices and limiting the rampant rise in purchasing prices. The second
key priority was to work with the Logistics department to guarantee
availability. However, despite all these efforts the company was not able
to fully meet its production requirements.

The biggest impacts on our production operations came from manufac-
turers’ inability to deliver chassis. Production stoppage of harnesses in
Ukraine triggered considerable delays in chassis deliveries. Almost all
manufacturers are experiencing issues with various missing parts and
are responding to the situation with short-notice rescheduling and long
delivery times. One step the company took was to coordinate even more
closely with the manufacturers affected in order to encourage greater
transparency and find a way of gradually improving the situation.

On the logistics front, seaports were running at full capacity. The availa-
bility of transport containers was also significantly limited. This resulted
in longer waiting times and increased transportation costs. The first
signs of easing in transport logistics were seen toward the end of the
year. However, the availability of transport carriers will remain a sensi-
tive matter that is being exacerbated by a lack of truck drivers in Europe.

Outlook

Following two tight years on the procurement market, there are the
first tentative signs of improvements over the further course of 2023.
However, the situation for chassis supplies at the beginning of 2023 was
still unsatisfactory. Initial price declines on the raw material markets and
slower economic growth are creating new opportunities to noticeably
improve the procurement situation. However, the aftereffects and back-
logs from 2022 concerning chassis and certain electronic components
will still be evident.

Supplementary report

The Rosenbauer Group was the target of a cyberattack at the end of
February 2023. The cyberattack and the following shutdown of the IT
infrastructure affected the individual divisions differently and resulted
in downtimes of up to two weeks in production. The organization of
internal material flows was affected in particular. Some branches, such
as the locations in the US and in Linares, Spain, were able to maintain

production without interruption. As a precaution, all servers and end
devices were reinstalled under close monitoring, and security standards
were raised throughout the Group. The Group’s IT infrastructure was
available again from the middle of March 2023.

Apart from the aforementioned cyberattack, no other events of particu-
lar significance for the company occurred after the end of the reporting
period on December 31, 2022 that would have altered its net assets,
financial position or result of operations.
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Other Legal Information

Non-financial statement/sustainability

Sustainability concept

At Rosenbauer, sustainability means taking corporate social responsi-
bility for long-term economic success in harmony with the environment
and society. Achieving sustainable, profitable growth is a declared
corporate goal. All relevant stakeholders will be involved in the process
and addressed directly.

Rosenbauer’s sustainability strategy sets out the key areas for action.
In addition to the efficient use of resources, Rosenbauer as a technol-
ogy leader aims to use future-oriented materials to create products
that help customers protect life and infrastructure. Furthermore, as
a top employer, Rosenbauer aspires to offer its employees an optimal
work-life balance and to create a modern and, above all, safe working
environment for them.

A climate strategy - together with a set of reduction targets - was
formulated for the Rosenbauer Group in the 2022 financial year. It was
examined and approved by the Executive Board. It will form the basis
for mandatory and in-depth reporting in the future. Further information
about this can be found in the 2022 Sustainability Report from page 26.

The sustainability strategy is embedded in the corporate strategy; it is
founded on Rosenbauer’s brand values. As a naturally curious company,
Rosenbauer is tackling the challenges facing modern fire services
around the world, and is taking bold and confident strides in the right
direction. As their partner, Rosenbauer works with a focus on product
and service solutions that make the everyday work of emergency service
teams easier and, above all, safer.

In its activities, the Group is not just bound by legal provisions, but also
has its own rules such as its Code of Conduct, which go even further.

Sustainability management

Organizationally, Rosenbauer’s Sustainability Management team is
located within the Group Communication, Investor Relations & CSR
department, and reports to the Executive Board. The aim of Sustainability
Management is to consider the environmental and societal impact of all

business processes and to balance the company’s economic objectives
with its ecological and social ideals. Sustainability Management and
operational units work together closely on this. Both quantitative and
qualitative tools are used in the monitoring and annual review of target
achievement.

Sustainability reporting

Since the 2017 financial year, Rosenbauer has published an annual
sustainability report that is available for download from the Rosenbauer
website. This was prepared in accordance with the standards of the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) and the requirements of the Nachhaltigkeits-
und Diversitatsverbesserungsgesetz (NaDiVeG - Austrian Sustainability
and Diversity Improvement Act) and is published as a separate non-fi-
nancial report in accordance with section 267a and section 243b of the
Austrian Commercial Code (UGB). In 2022, the report was examined and
approved by the Supervisory Board.

For the 2022 reporting year, Rosenbauer is subject to the reporting
obligation under Article 8 of the EU Taxonomy Regulation. This reporting
year, for the first time Rosenbauer is required to disclose the share of
economic activities that are and are not compliant with taxonomy in
total revenues, capital expenditure, and operating expenses as well as
corresponding qualitative information on these. Further information can
be found in Rosenbauer’s 2022 Sustainability Report from page 15.

Employees

Management of the COVID-19 pandemic

The COVID-19 crisis team, which has been set up at the Rosenbauer
headquarters since the start of the pandemic, continued its work
in 2022. Action plans were drawn up on a daily basis, translated into
various languages, and made available to all Group companies. Keeping
the risk of infection to @ minimum remained a priority. The opportunities
for office employees to work remotely were revised to suit the current
circumstances. As vaccines became available, Rosenbauer offered
employees and their relatives vaccination appointments for both booster
jabs at the company’s main site in Leonding. Around 200 people alto-
gether took advantage of this opportunity. The COVID-19 crisis team has

suspended its activities due to the overall health situation as of mid-year
2022.

Personnel policy

Rosenbauer has brought its personnel policy into line with general
economic and social conditions. The most important objectives are
to position the company as an attractive employer in the public eye,
to implement modern management tools in operational processes, to
promote internationality and diversity in the employee structure, and to
create the framework for a performance-led corporate culture.

Employees by countries 2022

13% Rest of the world

25% Germany 40% Austria
22% USA —.
Number of employees as of Dec. 31

M Blue-collar workers M White-collar workers [ Apprentices




Rosenbauer Annual Financial Report 2022

The company attaches great importance to employees that are profes-
sionally and socially competent and supports them in the targeted and
ongoing development of their skills. In addition to an extensive skills
training program, there are special programs for team and management
development. The Group employed 4,078 employees as of the end of
2022, representing a decrease of 1.3% year-on-year. The Group also had
a total of 106 temporary employees as of the end of 2022 (2021: 176).

Personnel development

Employee development and skills training are among the most important
tasks of HR management. Rosenbauer continually evaluates its range
of training and continued professional development programs and
adapts them to meet given strategic and organizational needs. They
mainly include technical and business training sessions and seminars on
improving project management, negotiation, conversational, and social
skills. Emphasis is also placed on the topic of health. The #StayHealthy
portfolio comprises a broad range of programs on general health mat-
ters, stress management, and resilience. The training and continued
professional development program also touches on the topic of diversity
and inclusion, and this is set to be expanded further.

Despite the strained overall situation, the Group invested a total of € 580
thousand in training and continued professional development programs
in 2022 (2021: € 600 thousand). There was some normalization in
the COVID-19 situation in 2022, which saw a trend toward returning
to normal operations. This allowed the Rosenbauer Customer Service
Excellence Program to be rolled out on an international scale, specifi-
cally to Dubai.

Other proven management programs were run normally again during
the reporting year. In 2022, an Operations Management Development
Program (O-MDP) was added to the training program offering for the first
time. It is aimed at managers in production and production-related areas
of all German-speaking Group companies. The O-MDP is based on the
company’s existing programs and the idea is that it will close the gaps
between the Team Leader Program and the Management Development
Program.

Rosenbauer attaches a great deal of importance to the training of
apprentices, and apprentice training was expanded further in 2022.
There were 153 apprentices in 2022. The main professions offered as
apprenticeships were metal technician with a focus on mechanical engi-
neering, mechatronics, and industrial salesperson. The recruitment of a
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number of female trainees to our technical professions was a particular
achievement.

The company still aims to give a preference to women when taking on
apprentices for technical professions. For a few years now, there has
been a steady rise in the number of female apprentices in the mecha-
tronics and metal engineering professions as well as in the number of
women working in production. At the end of 2022, as many as 13.5% of
Rosenbauer’s employees were women (202 1: 13.2%).

Equal opportunities

Rosenbauer strives to give all employees equal opportunities - irre-
spective of their background, age, gender, culture, or origins. In 2022,
Rosenbauer continued the women@rosenbauer initiative aimed at
promoting diversity. The focus is still to increase the proportion of
women in the workforce in general, but particularly in the Rosenbauer
International management team. Suitable measures are being developed
and implemented step by step by Human Resources together with the
women’s network.

In a traditionally male-dominated occupational field, targeted measures
are needed for the advancement of women. Women@rosenbauer aims,
above all, to create networking opportunities for female employees and
to provide a space for mutual support and discussion. Several working
groups have worked on various areas and on implementing these effec-
tively within the organization. These include more intensive support for
women and men on parental leave; an internal website with information
on the topic of equality; and various events to improve cooperation
among all employees. As a visible token of the company’s appreciation
for parents-to-be, a baby starter package was created and will be sent
out to all locations worldwide.

Another focus is on recruitment, with the explicit aim of attracting more
women to Rosenbauer in the future - especially in technical professions.
A number of measures are being supported to inspire an interest in
technology among school-age girls. In 2022, the Rosenbauer Technical
Trainee Program was successfully launched. The slogan “Women
Wanted” enticed two highly skilled female technicians to start their
careers at Rosenbauer.

Information in accordance with Section 243a (1)
Austria Commercial Code (UGB)

Rosenbauer’s shares are listed in the Prime Market of the Vienna Stock
Exchange. The share capital of Rosenbauer International AG amounts to
€ 13.6 million and is divided into 6,800,000 no-par-value shares, each
embodying a pro rata amount of € 2.0 of the share capital. 3,665,912
shares are registered shares and 3,134,088 are bearer shares. Each
Rosenbauer share confers one vote.

Rosenbauer Beteiligungsverwaltung GmbH (BVG) holds 51% of the
shares in Rosenbauer International AG. BVG requires a majority of
75% of votes for a transfer of its shares to third parties. In line with the
principle of equal treatment, there are no restrictions on voting rights
or transfers of shares if the share of bearer shares in the share capital
of the company is not less than 40% at any time. One shareholder of
Rosenbauer Beteiligungsverwaltung GmbH indirectly holds an interest
equivalent to 11.8% in Rosenbauer International AG. To the best of the
company’s knowledge, there are no shareholders with special rights of
control. Employees who own shares exercise their voting rights directly.

The Articles of Association of Rosenbauer International AG set out
the provisions for the appointment and dismissal of members of the
Executive Board and the Supervisory Board. Only persons who are under
the age of 65 at the time of their appointment can be appointed as mem-
bers of the Executive Board. However, a person over the age of 65 at
the time of such appointment can be appointed to the Executive Board
if there is a resolution to this effect by the Annual General Meeting that
is approved by means of a simple majority of votes cast. Only persons
who are under the age of 70 at the time of their appointment can be
appointed as members of the Supervisory Board. However, a person
over the age of 70 at the time of such appointment can be appointed
to the Supervisory Board if there is a resolution to this effect by the
Annual General Meeting that is passed by means of a simple majority
of votes cast.

No compensation agreements have been concluded between the com-
pany and its Executive Board and Supervisory Board members or its
employees providing for the event of a public takeover bid.

The corporate governance report of the Rosenbauer Group has been
published on the website under www.rosenbauer.com/en/at/group in
the “Investor Relations” section under “Corporate Governance.”
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Risks and Opportunities

Risk management

Rosenbauer is exposed to various risks and opportunities in its business
activities. The ongoing identification, appraisal and controlling of these
risks and opportunities form an integral part of the management, plan-
ning and controlling process. The risk management system builds on the
organizational, reporting and leadership structures in place within the
Group and supplements these with specific elements needed for proper
assessment. The five core elements of Rosenbauer’s risk management
are as follows:

® 3 risk management handbook that is valid throughout the Group and
particularly contains all definitions and a fully formulated risk strategy,

m a defined organizational structure with risk managers in the areas
defined as risk units, subsidiaries and departments and a central
Group Risk Manager,

m regular recording and evaluation of risks and opportunities in all risk
units,

m the reporting structure of the Group,

m the risk report at Group level and evaluations at the level of individual
risk units.

Systematic monitoring

Risk management at Rosenbauer is mapped in a system that enables
a clear presentation of the existing risks and opportunities in the
Rosenbauer Group at the level of the respective risk unit. Business risks
and opportunities are identified and recorded twice a year by means of
a structured process in which the risk managers receive the support and
assistance of the Group Risk Manager.

Risks and opportunities are assessed in terms of their probability
of occurrence and potential impact on EBT. To assist in this, ten risk
categories have been recorded in a catalog that classifies the identified
risks and opportunities.

On the basis of the risk analysis, the necessary control and management
measures and risk management tools are derived as defined measures
at operational level and assigned to the respective risks. The risk man-
agers in the individual risk units are responsible for implementation.

Furthermore, the results of the risk inventory are reported to the Audit
Committee once per year. The general functionality and effectiveness of
the system are also assessed at this meeting.

Internal control system

The purpose of the internal control system (ICS) is to ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of business activities. It comprises sys-
tematically designed organizational measures and controls for adhering
to internal and external policies and preventing damage that could, for
instance, be incurred as a result of unregulated or unlawful actions. The
controls are directly integrated into business processes and procedures.
Process-independent audits of the effectiveness of the controls are also
performed by Internal Audit.

Targeted control environment

Company-wide regulations and policies form a key basis for the ICS.
There are also process descriptions and work instructions established
in the integrated management system. Internal audits monitor whether
these policies are adhered to and the processes properly implemented.
The results are documented, recommendations are derived from this
and operational implementation is ensured.

Standard financial reporting

The control environment for the financial reporting process is charac-
terized by clear structural and process organization. All functions are
clearly assigned to particular persons (in Accounting or Controlling, for
example). The employees involved in the financial reporting process
fulfill all professional requirements. Insofar as it is technically or organ-
izationally feasible, the principle of dual control is observed during the
relevant financial reporting processes. The accounting systems used are
largely standard software protected against unauthorized access. Key
accounting principles for the financial reporting process are set out in a
binding corporate manual.

Detailed financial reports
The completeness and accuracy of accounting data are checked reg-
ularly by means of both random inspections and plausibility testing.

There is also ongoing analysis by the Group’s Controlling and Treasury
departments. Detailed financial reports are prepared on a monthly and
quarterly basis, with the up-to-date version retrievable on a daily basis,
so as to promptly identify and correct deviations in the income and asset
situations from projected figures.

Clear responsibilities

In addition to the process-oriented conditions, this distinctive regulatory
and reporting system primarily provides for procedural measures that
must be implemented by all units affected. Operational responsibility is
borne by the respective process managers. Compliance with Rosenbauer
regulations is monitored by Internal Audit as part of the periodic review
of the relevant areas.
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Explanations of individual risks

General and industry risks

Global warming

In 2020, an analysis of climate-related risks and opportunities was
carried out with the support of an external consultant. The recommen-
dations of the Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
were applied. The first step here was to identify those climate-related
risks and opportunities that could potentially be financially relevant for
Rosenbauer. These climate-related risks and opportunities identified
were subjected to an assessment with regard to their financial impact on
Rosenbauer and their probability of occurrence. There were no changes
for the 2022 reporting year. Rosenbauer will continue to monitor the
development of climate policy framework conditions and reassess the
identified risks and opportunities if necessary.

The physical climate risks for Rosenbauer production and assembly sites
were identified as the most significant climate-related challenge, while
the generally increasing demand for fire protection products and the
opportunities for new Rosenbauer products and services were identified
as the most significant climate-related opportunity. Further information
can be found in Rosenbauer’s Sustainability Report 2022 from page 12.

Rosenbauer supports the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD).

Market risks and opportunities
The international firefighting business is a typical “laggard” and
responds to economic weaknesses only at a delay of 12 to 24 months.
This is because the majority of customers are from the public sector,
plan their procurements for the long term and want to set trends with
their investments counter-cyclically.

As part of the assessment of market risks and opportunities, Rosenbauer
refers to the assumptions of leading institutions regarding economic
trends in the individual countries and regions. There is also a higher
level of investment in firefighting technology after natural disasters.
While such procurement contracts cannot be planned, they always offer
additional sales opportunities for the firefighting technology providers.
Rosenbauer regularly analyzes the relevant industry risks and seizes
opportunities by responding rapidly to market changes.
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Annual business planning is based on the Group’s mid-term planning and
comprises a catalog of objectives broken down by region and product
that serves as a control instrument. This allows opportunities and any
strategic risks to be identified at an early stage. Having production sites
on three continents and a global sales and service network means that
sales fluctuations on individual markets are evened out.

Competitive and price pressure

Competitive and price pressure is at its highest in the firefighting indus-
try for municipal vehicles. The increasing centralization of procurement
presents opportunities through the promotion of fair competition and
more transparent processes but it also entails the risk of losing major
orders due to the bundling of procurement.

Rosenbauer is constantly analyzing and monitoring market and sales
trends in the individual countries and areas and has clearly defined its
strategy and growth targets for each distribution and product area.

Risks arising from legal and political conditions

Risks to the fire safety business arising from changes in overall political
or legal conditions are very difficult to protect against. However, given
that most customers operate in the public sector, it is rare that they
cancel orders. Political crises and embargoes can temporarily limit
access to certain markets.

Many countries have strict regulations on the use of hazardous
substances. Non-compliance with relevant regulations can lead to sub-
stantial penalties and reputation risks. Hazardous substances are found
in fluorochemical extinguishing agents. Special precautions to avoid
hazardous substances heighten product requirements. Rosenbauer is
countering the stricter regulations by developing special admixture sys-
tems and turrets that allow the use of fluorine-free foam concentrates
and thus protect the environment and people.

In production, hazardous substances that can endanger health are
managed with the ongoing monitoring of workplaces at risk and in
compliance with local provisions. Further information can be found in
Rosenbauer’s Sustainability Report 2022 from page 12

Operation risks

Production risks and opportunities

Manufacturing activities necessitate a thorough examination of risks
along the entire value chain. The potential production risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis using a series of key performance indicators (pro-
ductivity, assembly and throughput times, production numbers, quality,
costs, etc.). In addition to local performance indicators, the central
controlling element in vehicle manufacturing operations is “concurrent
costing”, whereby variance analysis is used to monitor the production
costs of every single order. To even out changes in capacity utilization
at individual locations, Rosenbauer’s manufacturing processes operate
on a Group-wide basis and the company also outsources construction
contracts to external partners. This limits the risk of the underutilization
of production capacity in the event of a significant market decline.

Income risks that can occur on account of external disruptions to pro-
duction are covered by suitable insurance against loss of production.
Appropriate insurance cover is also in place for risks associated with
fire, explosions and similar elemental risks.

Product risks and opportunities

Rosenbauer practices systematic quality management in accordance
with 1ISO 9001 and describes its processes and procedures in it. The
management system is regularly audited and makes a significant
contribution to ensuring uniformly high product quality worldwide and
to increasing customer satisfaction. The latest development methods,
increased quality awareness and ongoing process optimization also help
to reduce risks.

To reduce potential financial risks, the instrument of product liability
insurance is used throughout the Group alongside the risk management
system. In order to offer products with the best possible benefit to
customers, Rosenbauer operates a systematic innovation management
process and works closely with fire services on product development.
Professional product management determines the direction in the devel-
opment process. Market analyses and cost-effectiveness considerations
are incorporated in a technology roadmap.

Demographic developments are giving rise to changes in fire depart-
ments’ personnel, and thus also to new challenges for the manufacturers
of firefighting technology. More women and older people will be working
in fire services in the future, so the technology and equipment must
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be designed to meet their operational needs. Rosenbauer focuses on
these challenges by engaging in innovation, technology and knowledge
management and in its product development, and also consults with fire
departments as partners in its development process.

Procurement risks

2022 was a year of ongoing high availability risks. The COVID-19 pan-
demic and Russia’s war of aggression on Ukraine had a massive impact
on material supplies. In addition to the shortage of materials, suppliers’
production capacities were also insufficient to meet the needs of all
customers, resulting in repeated unforeseen supply bottlenecks.

A crucial component for vehicle manufacturing is the on-time supply of
chassis. The security of supply from chassis manufacturers was severely
disrupted by the lack of availability of cable harnesses, electronic and
other components. Repeated production line shutdowns at chassis man-
ufacturers resulted in significant delays, the duration of which was often
difficult to estimate, as well as massive extensions of delivery times. The
effects of this development are still being experienced.

Gas supply shortfalls from Russia represent a general risk, particularly for
Central Europe. A drop in gas supplies and the resulting drastic increase
in the price of all energy sources not only impacted Rosenbauer’s
production sites, but primarily also the suppliers of energy-intensive
production materials. In consequence of this, further price increases for
these production materials were expected.

Through intensive discussions with suppliers, production at the locations
was largely maintained despite missing parts and a high level of rework-
ing. Future purchasing risks will continue to be closely monitored. In
close cooperation with Purchasing, Logistics and Production, measures
are being implemented to increase resilience in supply chains. These
include measures targeted to critical suppliers or longer-term price and
volume hedging of certain raw materials such as aluminum or the price
of electricity and gas. In addition, the financial situation of suppliers is
also being monitored.

IT risks

The more networked a company is, the greater the cyber risk. This
term covers various individual risks that could result from a potential
cyberattack. Essentially, these are violations of the confidentiality of
data (spying, data loss), violations of the integrity of the IT system or
data (manipulation by malicious software), violations of the availability
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of the IT system or data (interruptions in the internal area, failure of
communication paths), etc.

To minimize cyber risk as far as possible, Rosenbauer pays great atten-
tion to a secure IT infrastructure. These risks are countered by means of
regular investment in hardware and software, the use of state-of-the-art
IT security systems, up-to-date data protection methods and structured
access controls. The robustness of the security systems is also tested
by simulated external attacks. The technical measures are supported by
regular, targeted IT security and data protection awareness training for
employees.

Environmental risks

The Rosenbauer Group’s production activities essentially comprise
assembly work, and therefore entail hardly any environmental risk.
Furthermore, clear environmental standards and instructions apply to
processes. These are documented in an environmental management
system in accordance with ISO 14001 and regularly reviewed and
amended by internal and external audits.

As part of the regular tours and audits, energy consumption is examined
and energy-intensive processes are scrutinized. By implementing an
energy management system (ISO 50001), waste can thus be identi-
fied and measures to eliminate it are defined. Similarly, the total use
of resources is recorded and deviations are therefore detected early,
saving energy costs.

Personnel risks and opportunities

The tense situation on the labor market also poses a major challenge for
Rosenbauer in its search for qualified skilled employees. By establishing
a successful employer brand, Rosenbauer is able to recruit, integrate,
and retain skilled personnel. The slogan “Saving lives starts with you!”
makes it clear that working at Rosenbauer is meaningful. Our employees
help others and make a valuable contribution to society through their
actions.

Attractive working time models, a wide range of health measures and
activities, and a modern remuneration system are some of the reasons
for the high level of satisfaction among employees, which is reflected in
low staff turnover and high resilience.

To secure the skilled workers needed for the future against the backdrop
of volatile labor markets, apprenticeships in particular are of great

importance. With the “women@rosenbauer” initiative, Rosenbauer is
becoming particularly attractive to women. A wide range of training
and development measures also make it possible to retain, qualify,
and motivate employees within the company. In addition to succession
planning for key positions, Rosenbauer also attaches importance to
the ongoing further development of managers and the possibility of an
internal career path.

Legal risks

Rosenbauer International AG and its subsidiaries face legal proceedings,
lawsuits and official investigations in the context of their business activi-
ties. These can affect - among other things - product safety, patents and
other intellectual property rights, dealer, supplier and other contractual
relationships and also lead to proceedings under competition law.

Irregularities were detected in the process of preparing the 2017 annual
financial statements of Rosenbauer Deutschland GmbH. The investi-
gations initiated in this context were concluded by the end of 2018.
Proceedings for asserting claims have been initiated at the civil courts
and are still unresolved.

Rosenbauer International AG was informed at the end of January 2022
that a tax liability was imminent in connection with a tax investigation
against a former managing director of subsidiaries. The tax liability
relates to a period in which the subsidiaries concerned were not yet
owned by Rosenbauer International AG. A large part of the tax claim
was settled by the subsidiary as legal successor in 2022. The provision
recognized in the previous year for this matter was reduced in 2022 to
the expected outstanding amount of € 0.4 million, Legal action has been
initiated against the former managing director and the former owner of
the subsidiaries and is currently pending in court.

Compliance risks are being addressed as part of Rosenbauer
Compliance Management. Regular training aims to prevent violations
in relation to compliance. An anonymous whistleblower platform for
reporting suspected cases of antitrust law, corruption, economic crime,
discrimination or sexual harassment has been available to all employees,
suppliers and business partners since December 2021.
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Financial risks

A solid financial basis is of great importance to an international
company. The required working capital and investment financing has
been secured. The financing agreements contain financial covenants
that stipulate firstly an IFRS consolidated equity ratio of at least 20%
and secondly that the ratio of net debt to EBITDA must not exceed a
factor of 5 (factor of 6 as of December 31, 2023 and a factor of 5 in the
subsequent financial years). Failure to comply with these financial ratios
entitles the lender to terminate the respective financing agreement. The
financial covenants were suspended as of December 31, 2022 and must
be satisfied again as of December 31, 2023.

As of December 31, 2022, the Rosenbauer Group had current inter-
est-bearing liabilities of € 118.9 million (202 1: €72.5 million). In addition
to working capital and investment loans and lease liabilities, these also
include current overdraft facilities used as of the balance sheet date.
Significant refinancing will not be necessary in the 2023 financial year
Details can be found in the list of financial liabilities in the notes under
item D37. See “Risk Management.”

Interest rate and currency risks

The international nature of the Group’s activities gives rise to interest
and currency-related risks that are hedged by the use of suitable instru-
ments. A financial and treasury policy that applies throughout the Group
stipulates which instruments are permitted. Operating risks are hedged
with derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forwards
and interest rate swaps. These transactions are conducted solely to
hedge risks and not for the purposes of trading or speculation. Please
see the explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Credit risks

Credit risks, which can arise from payment defaults, are considered
unlikely as most customers operate in the public sector. Various options
are used to secure payments, such as letters of credit and retention
of title. For deliveries to countries with increased political or economic
risk, public and private export insurance is taken out for the purpose of
protection.
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Assessment of overall risk

Rosenbauer feels that it is well positioned to meet the demands made on
it by its customers, the market, the economic environment and interna-
tional competition. Based on the analysis of currently discernible risks,
there are no indications of any risks that - either singly or in conjunction
with other risks - might jeopardize the Group’s continued existence.

This applies both to the results of past business activity and to activities
that are planned or have already been initiated.
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Forecast report

Overall economic development" 2

At the beginning of the year, the International Monetary Fund (IMF)
slightly raised its forecast for global economic growth in 2023. It now
expects growth of 2.9% instead of the previous 2.7%. This figure is signif-
icantly lower than the previous year’s growth rate of 3.4% and below the
long-term average of 3.8% between 2000 and 2019. The global economy
is anticipated to recover further in 2024. Global inflation is expected to
drop from 8.8% to 6.6% this year.

The projected bottoming out of the economy this year is due to a number
of positive surprises, most notably the higher resilience of many econo-
mies. As a result, the US economy could grow by 1.4% in 2023 instead
of 1.0% as assumed in October, the euro area by 0.7% instead of 0.5%,
and Asia by 5.3% instead of 4.9%. Negative world GDP growth, as often
associated with a global recession, is not expected.

The low growth simultaneously reflects the central banks’ key interest
rate increases to combat inflation, particularly in the developed econo-
mies, and the war in Ukraine. In emerging and developing economies,
the declining economy was anticipated to bottom out as early as 2022.
China’s growth is expected to accelerate as it reverses its zero-COVID
policy. According to the IMF, both groups of countries will then gradually
recover further in the course of 2024.

Although the risks to this forecast have decreased since the last
publication in October 2022, they still largely predict a deterioration in
the scenario. For example, a renewed tightening of the health situation
in China could slow the recovery, Russia’s war of aggression against
Ukraine could escalate, and tighter global financing conditions could
lead to another debt crisis. Unfavorable news from inflation could bring
new prices to the financial markets, while progressive geopolitical frag-
mentation will hamper economic development. Stronger impetus from
pent-up demand in many countries and a faster decline in inflation would
undoubtedly contribute to an improvement in the forecast.

' IMF, World Economic Outlook, Update, January 31, 2023.
2 World Bank, Global Economic Prospects, February 3, 2023.
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Prospects on sales markets

The firefighting industry follows economic developments with a gap of
one to two years. Demand is largely defined by countries with steady
procurement. However, elevated safety awareness following natural
disasters also leads to increased investment in firefighting technology
and equipment.

In 2023, slight growth should be possible for the global firefighting
industry. Particularly in the developed economies, the willingness to
invest appears to be high, even if the corresponding budget resources
for preventive firefighting and disaster protection are reaching a ceiling
in isolated cases. The decisive factors for production will be how long it
takes for supply chains to stabilize and whether energy and raw material
prices decline as forecast.

The North American market has started the new year with very dynamic
demand, mainly attributable to extensive funding programs for emer-
gency response and electric mobility, which also benefit fire depart-
ments. At the same time, the performance of industry sales will be
largely dependent on the availability of preliminary products and labor.
The market’s new supply prices will likely only be able to compensate
for inflation this year. Unlike in Europe, for example, there is no issue of
energy costs here.

Europe’s firefighting market is expecting stable new procurement in
2023. Despite price increases and some delayed projects, there has
been no noticeable decline in demand in the core markets, and procure-
ment intensity is particularly high in the D-A-CH region. Many of these
projects involve the purchase of forest fire equipment and vehicles,
and interest in electric mobility is increasing. The sector’s performance
could be weakened if inflation rates were to rise again or subsidies
were not extended and the budget situation of fire departments were to
deteriorate as a result.

The weak state of the sector on the Asian firefighting markets will
improve only slightly in the current year. This is due to the comparatively
better economic outlook, the planning and construction of new airports

and runways and postponed replacement purchases. Nevertheless,
market volumes will continue to fall well short of the usual levels. In
2024, airport business could return to pre-COVID levels.

For the countries of the Middle East, demand is expected to be lower
this year in view of a significantly weaker economic outlook for Saudi
Arabia and oil production cuts in the OPEC. Nonetheless, a number of
attractive projects should be ready for a decision in the industrial and
airport business. In addition to local production, increasing attention is
also being paid to alternative vehicle drives.

Reorganization of sales regions

Rosenbauer reorganized its sales regions at the start of 2023 with the
aim of simplifying market development through synergies. To this end,
the NISA area (Northern Europe, Iberia, South America, Africa) was
dissolved as an independent unit and was integrated into the newly
established Americas, Europe, and Middle East & Africa sales regions.

The Scandinavian and Benelux countries as well as England, France,
Spain and Portugal were incorporated into the former CEEU area, which
now comprises all European countries and has been renamed the
Europe area. The African countries served by the NISA area moved to
the Middle East & Africa area. As a result, only one area is now active
on the African continent. The South American firefighting markets were
transferred to the former NOMA area, which now serves all of North and
South America and the Caribbean as the Americas area The Asia-Pacific
area is not affected by these organizational changes.

Americas

The Americas area is entering 2023 with full order books. Production is
running at full capacity until the end of the year and is currently focusing
on increasing output following the extensive supply chain disruptions
and reducing the order backlog as quickly as possible. The price quality
of the contracts signed in 2022 is expected to improve profitability again
in the course of the year.
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To increase profitability in the new truck business, standard vehicles
known as stock trucks are being launched which can be offered with
short delivery times and an attractive price/performance ratio. The
GENERAL is a new, low-cost variant of the Rosenbauer Custom Chassis
(COMMANDER, WARRIOR, AVENGER), on which around 70% of all
US-built vehicles are based.

In addition, component and parts sales are being stepped up, both within
the Rosenbauer Group and to customers and partners, in order to gener-
ate further revenues and strengthen the earnings side. In the future, the
Latin American markets in particular are to be increasingly supplied with
superstructures and cabs in a modular system, which will be finished by
qualified partners and mounted on locally procured chassis.

Following the acquisition of the shares of two partners in the reporting
year, Rosenbauer America is being developed from an investment
holding company into a powerful subgroup. The management team was
reorganized and the organization was streamlined accordingly. This year,
the focus will be on consolidating these new structures and leveraging
synergies.

Europe

In 2023, the Europe area will focus on its core markets and traditional
strength in standard vehicles as well as on expanding its non-vehicle
business. In line with the Group’s strategy, this should generate
significantly higher revenues and earnings by 2030. In the future, the
standard vehicle markets are to be supplied to a greater extent with
market-specific pre-configured firefighting vehicles that Rosenbauer can
manufacture industrially and make available to customers quickly.

The organization of the Europe area will consequently be adapted to
be in line with that of Rosenbauer Austria. Appropriate resources have
already been created here for increased sales of equipment products.
The equipment business received a key initial boost with the opening of
a new, representative branch in Palmiry near the Polish capital Warsaw
in the summer of 2022.

The integration of the Western European markets of the former NISA
area is also expected to enable specific synergies to be implemented
in the service area For example, the Rosenbauer Service Center North
Rhine-Westphalia in Germany will in future also be able to support fire
departments in the neighboring Benelux countries.
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Important lead fire departments will be added as RT customers in 2023.
In April, the Basel professional fire department will put its first vehicle
into service, followed later in the year by the Vienna professional fire
department.

Overall, the missing parts situation in vehicle production has recently
eased significantly, but has not yet returned to normal levels. The supply
of truck chassis is expected to improve from the second quarter onwards
following top-level talks between Rosenbauer and its suppliers.

International export business

In 2023, the Middle East & Africa area will extend its successful model
from the Arab region to Africa, where it will also evolve from a hardware
supplier to a comprehensive fire department provider. In the future, the
market will increasingly be served with all-in solutions based on stand-
ardized vehicles. The service for these will also be taken over, as well as
useful additions from the equipment and digital solutions product areas
being offered.

In addition, suitable financing models such as the leasing of emergency
vehicles will be offered in Africa, as in the former MENA area, enabling
customers to acquire vehicles very quickly without having to make the
investment all at once. Vehicle production at the company’s assembly
plant in KAEC will be further intensified, with the parts coming from the
entire European and American production portfolio.

This year, the Asia-Pacific area will focus its sales efforts on those
markets that offer intact opportunities in the export business. Following
the shutdown of China, the largest single market in the region, these
particularly include the ASEAN countries, Japan, Australia and New
Zealand. Rosenbauer makes use of its technological leadership in
this respect, supplying primarily high-quality ARFF vehicles from the
PANTHER series or aerial ladders with rescue heights of up to 64 m,
both of which are manufactured in Europe. The individual markets of
Hong Kong and Singapore are traditionally supplied with vehicles from
the Singapore plant. The municipal firefighting market in Australia will
also be served in the future. However, as this is not possible without
local value creation, assembly capacities have recently been created at
Rosenbauer Australia, which will be used to build ET series vehicles with
SKD sets from Europe from mid-2023.

Rosenbauer closely monitors the development of the different fire-
fighting markets in order to exploit sales opportunities early on. Sales
activities are then stepped up in the countries or regions where greater
procurement volumes have been identified. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had a very solid order backlog of € 1,469.7 million
(2021: € 1,145.2 million). This figure is higher than a year’s revenues,
although the equipment products and service revenues included here
have only partly been taken into account owing to the shorter delivery
times and larger vehicle orders with delivery times of more than two to
three years.

Innovations and new products

The goal of Rosenbauer’s research and development activities is to
strengthen and expand its international competitive position. The Group
is intensively analyzing global megatrends - such as global warming,
demographic change, urbanization and digitization - and their impact
on emergency services and technology for fire departments. The Group
derives specific measures for product development from this analysis.

For example, the “Green Energy on Fire” initiative was launched in
2022, a networking and knowledge platform for the energy and mobility
transition among Austrian fire departments. Representatives from fire
departments, the energy industry, technology companies and politics
exchange ideas on their approaches to reducing climate-damaging
greenhouse gases and what supporting measures are needed to achieve
this. The most important fields of action are summarized and further
developed in the “Green Energy on Fire Map.”

With the presentation of a complete electric line-up for the municipal
sector at Interschutz in Hanover, Rosenbauer has taken an important
step in the direction of an emission-free fire department. Rosenbauer
will continue to consistently pursue this path in 2023. In addition to
the RT and RTX that are already in series production, Schutz & Rettung
Ziirich began the test operation of an electric aerial ladder. The findings
from this will serve as the basis for the further development of the
L32A-XS electric to series production readiness.

Rosenbauer is one of the most innovative companies in the firefighting
industry. It creates a competitive edge with constantly new and attrac-
tive products and taps into new growth opportunities.
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Investments and production capacity

Investment management at Rosenbauer systematically records all needs
in the Group and ranks them according to priority. Investments of less
than € 20 million are planned for 2023. This is below the average level
of investment prior to the COVID-19 pandemic (2020: € 35 million) and
results from the restructuring measures that are expected to return the
Rosenbauer Group to profitability in the course of the year.

The most important investment projects in 2023 include

m the construction of a new operations building at the Singapore
location,

m the purchase of the previously rented operations building at the
Gladbeck location, and

B the expansion of parking facilities at the Luckenwalde location.

The Group-wide roll-out of SAP-S/4Hana will also continue as planned.
The resulting increase in the degree of digitalization of processes will
optimize the Group-wide use of resources.

Financial and liquidity situation

Rosenbauer has high financing requirements during a year for reasons
specific to the industry. One reason for this is the long throughput times,
particularly in vehicle production, and the relatively low advances paid
by customers. The Group counteracts this with targeted measures
intended to optimize order handling.

The Rosenbauer Group’s financing is ensured by financing facilities pro-
vided by various banks with different maturities. The Group’s financing
strategy is based on conservative principles and makes secure liquidity
and solid equity capitalization high priorities.
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Overall assessment of future development

In the reporting year, Rosenbauer presented a long-term Group strat-
egy up to 2030, which essentially rests on three pillars: technology
leadership, customer loyalty, and operational excellence. The strategy
envisages further growth and the expansion of the market share for the
decade, as well as the transformation of the Group and the industry
toward greater sustainability.

In view of highly uncertain production conditions in the form of recurring
and changing supply bottlenecks and cost increases for preliminary
products, raw materials and energy, the Group’s Executive Board will
continue to focus on operational excellence and efficiency improvements
in the core business in the current financial year. To this end, it has
developed a comprehensive restructuring program entitled “Refocus,
Restart” with the broad participation of middle management, comprising
short- and mid-term measures to reduce manufacturing costs and fortify
the business model. The program also includes the value analysis and
adjustment of existing products or the introduction of a dynamic pricing
model capable of integrating changes in the environment as strong as
those in the previous year.

Rosenbauer thus has a very solid basis for success in the year 2023
despite the volatile underlying conditions.

Leonding, April 6, 2023

Revenues and result of operations

The increase in key interest rates in the fight against inflation and
Russia’s war of aggression against Ukraine weighed on economic
activity at the start of 2023. Economists are therefore expecting global
economic growth of 2.9% in the current year, well below the previous
year’s figure.

The firefighting industry, whose order books are full to bursting, lags
behind the economic cycle. While it is expecting a slight increase in
demand again this year, actual industry sales will depend on the further
development of international supply chains. At the same time, the fixed
price agreements customary for the tender business in the public sector
will weigh on the profitability of all market participants.

Following a record level of incoming orders in 2022, the Rosenbauer
Group has started the current financial year with a solid order backlog
well in excess of one year’s revenues, and thus a great deal of con-
fidence. Based on a further improvement in the supply of truck chassis,
the Rosenbauer Group’s Executive Board expects revenues to exceed
€ 1 billion in 2023. The EBIT margin is anticipated to improve by around
4 percentage points compared with the reporting year.

Sy CheFs e\ )
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Daniel Tomaschko Markus Richter
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Consolidated statement of financial position

Explanatory 01.01.2021 31.12.2021 Dec. 31, Explanatory 01.01.2021 31.12.2021 Dec. 31,
ASSETS (in € thousand) notes adjusted adjusted 2022 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (in € thousand) notes adjusted adjusted 2022
A. Non-current assets A. Equity

. Property, plant and equipment (D1) 157,020 162,073 155,920 . Share capital (D9) 13,600 13,600 13,600
1. Intangible assets (D1) 38,339 46,409 54,083 Il Capital reserves (D9) 23,703 23,703 23,703
1. Right-of-use asset (D1) 32,177 35,207 34,032 . Other reserves (D9) -1,456 -271 21,247
IV.  Securities (D2) 760 655 685 IV. Accumulated results (D9) 175,154 169,770 125,528

V. Investments in companies accounted for Equity attributable to shareholders
using the equity method (D3, D4) 3,622 3,090 1,585 of the parent company 211,001 206,801 184,078
VI.  Deferred tax assets (D5) 5,561 11,354 22,402 V. Non-controlling interests (D10) 3,641 3,617 2,099
237,480 258,789 268,707 Total equity 214,642 210,418 186,177

B. Non-current liabilities

B. Current assets l. Non-current interest-bearing liabilities (D11) 219,719 161,082 202,234
I Inventories (D6) 417,302 407,754 490,763 1. Non-current lease liabilities 28,024 30,483 28,648

I Receivables and other assets (D7) 236,685 159,040 177,949 Ill.  Other non-current liabilities (D12) 2,036 1,327 1,784

Ill.  Income-tax receivables 676 529 542 IV. Non-current provisions (D13) 34,093 32,365 24,552

V. Cash and cash equivalents (D8) 19,015 65,450 35,601 V. Deferred tax liabilities (D5) 2,195 3,134 5,269
673,678 632,773 704,855 286,067 228,391 262,487

C. Current liabilities

l. Puttable non—controlling interests (D14) 67,894 82,269 13,517
I Current interest-bearing liabilities (D15) 56,402 72,505 118,805
Ill.  Current lease liabilities 4,975 5,632 6,543
IV.  Contract liabilities (D16) 135,501 130,598 190,505
V. Trade payables (D17) 49,485 63,894 78,753
VI.  Other current liabilities (D18) 71,972 71,007 86,109
VII.  Income-tax liabilities (D19) 7,874 9,438 5,757
VIIl.  Other provisions (D20) 16,345 17,410 24,909

410,448 452,753 524,898

Total ASSETS 911,157 891,562 973,562 Total EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 911,157 891,562 973,562
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Consolidated income statement

in € thousand Explanatory notes 2021 2022
1. Revenues (D21) 975,110 972,245
2. Cost of Sales (D22) -818,646 -843,344
3. Gross Profit 156,464 128,901
4. Other operating income (D26) 9,016 10,176
5. R&D and Product management (D23) -15,381 -25,315
6. Selling expenses (D24) -62,685 -61,691
7. Administrative expenses (D25) -51,051 -60,710
8. Other expenses (D27) -1,337 -1,915
9. Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 35,026 -10,554
10. Interest income (D30) 616 4,116
11. Interest expense (D31) -6,156 -17,969
12. Share in results of companies accounted for using the equity method (D3, D4) -615 -5,744
13. Financial result -6,155 -19,597
14. Earnings before income tax (EBT) 28,871 -30,151
15. Income tax (D32) -5,655 7,804
16. Net income for the period 23,216 -22,347

thereof Non-controlling interests 7,783 1,912

thereof Shareholders of parent company 15,433 -24,259

Average number of shares outstanding (E5) 6,800,000 6,800,000

Basic earnings per share (E5) 2.27 -3.57

Diluted earnings per share (E5) 2.27 -3.57
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Presentation of the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income
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in € thousand Explanatory notes 2021 2022
Net profit for the period 23,216 -22,347
Restatements as required by IAS 19 (D13) 938 4,341
thereof deferred taxes -201 -1,191
Change in fair value of financial liabilities that is attributable to a change in credit risk 0 1,128
thereof deferred taxes 0 -259
Total changes in value recognized in equity that cannot be subsequently reclassified into profit or loss 737 4,019
Gains/losses from foreign currency translation 6,871 10,673
Gains/losses from foreign currency translation of companies accounted for using the equity method (D3) 121 4,239
Gains/losses from cash flow hedge (D37¢)
Change in unrealized gains /losses -1,651 1,999
thereof deferred tax 437 -452
Realized gains/losses -3,732 1,782
thereof deferred tax 933 -446
Total changes in value recognized in equity subsequently reclassified into profit or loss when certain conditions are met 2,980 17,796
Other comprehensive income 3,716 21,815
Total comprehensive income after income taxes 26,932 -532
thereof:
Non-controlling interests 10,314 2,209
Shareholders of parent company 16,619 -2,741




Rosenbauer Annual Financial Report 2022

Group Management Report | Consolidated Financial Statements | Management Report | Financial Statements 30

Changes in consolidated equity

Attributable to shareholders in the parent company

Other reserves

Explanatory Currency Restatement as  Revaluation Hedging Accumulated Non-controlling

in € thousand notes Share capital Capital reserve translation required by IAS 19 reserve reserve results Subtotal interests  Group equity
As of Jan 1, 2022 13,600 23,703 6,635 -5,639 0 -1,268 169,770 206,801 3,617 210,418
Other comprehensive income 0 0 14,616 3,150 869 2,884 1 21,519 297 21,815
Net profit for the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 -24,259 -24,259 1,912 -22,347
Total comprehensive income 0 0 14,616 3,150 869 2,884 -24,258 -2,740 2,209 -532
Acquisition of non-controlling

interests (B1) -12,409 -12,409 -1,781 -14,190
Changes in non-controlling interests (D14) 0 0 0 0 0 0 -1,454 -1,454 2,632 1,179
Dividend (D9) (D10) 0 0 0 0 0 0 -6,120 -6,120 -4,578 -10,698
As of Dec 31, 2022 13,600 23,703 21,251 -2,489 869 1,616 125,529 184,079 2,099 186,177
As of Jan 1,2021" 13,600 23,703 2,175 -6,376 0 2,745 184,154 220,002 7,167 227,168
Restatement 0 0 0 0 0 0 -9,000 -9,000 -3,526 -12,526
As of Jan 1, 2021 adjusted 13,600 23,703 2,175 -6,376 0 2,745 175,154 211,002 3,641 214,643
Other comprehensive income 0 0 4,461 737 0 -4,013 1 1,186 2,531 3,716
Net profit for the period 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,433 15,433 7,783 23,216
Total comprehensive income 0 0 4,461 737 0 -4,013 15,434 16,619 10,314 26,932
Changes in non-controlling interests (D14) 0 0 0 0 0 0 -10,619 -10,619 -3,697 -14,316
Dividend (D9) (D10) 0 0 0 0 0 0 -10,200 -10,200 -6,641 -16,841
As of Dec 31, 2021 13,600 23,703 6,635 -5,639 0 -1,268 169,770 206,801 3,617 210,418

' Open Values have been adjusted according to IAS 8. See Note A4.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

in € thousand Explanatory notes 2021 adjusted 2022
Profit before income tax 28,871 -30,151

+ Depreciation (D29) 28,802 29,418
+ Gains/losses of companies accounted for using the equity method (D3, D4) 614 5,744
- Gain/Losses from the retirement of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and securities (D26) -357 -1,310
+ Interest expenses (D31) 6,155 19,662
- Interest and securities income (D30) -617 -5,819
+ Change in inventories (D6) 22,176 -73,054
+ Change in receivables and other assets and construction contracts (D7) 62,616 -10,239
+ Change in other receivables 16,036 2,499
+ Change in trade payables/advance payments received and contract liabilities -3,057 65,658
+ Change in other liabilities -4,924 12,416
+ Change in provisions (excluding income tax deferrals) -575 2,091
Cash earnings 155,740 16,915

- Interest paid -5,950 -19,405
+ Interest received and income of securities 613 5,819
+ Dividends received from companies accounted for using the equity method (D3, D4) 38 0
- Income tax paid -7,481 -5,658
Net cash flow from operating activities 142,960 -2,328

- Payments from the purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and securities (D33) -30,381 -20,204
+ Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and securities 2,506 3,115
- Payments from capitalized development costs (D1) -7,704 -6,247
Net cash flow from investing activities -35,579 -23,336

- Payments from the acquisition of non-controlling interests (D12) 2,103 -82,034
- Dividends paid (D9) -10,200 -6,120
- Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (D10) -6,641 -4,578
+ Proceeds from interest-bearing liabilities 48,521 99,233
- Repayment of interest-bearing liabilities -92,197 -12,541
- Repayment of leasing liabilities -6,012 -6,074
Net cash flow from financing liabilities -64,426 -12,114
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 42,955 -37,778

+ Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period (D8) 19,015 65,450
+ Adjustment from currency translation 3,480 7,929
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (D8) 65,450 35,601
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Explanatory notes

A. General Information

A1. Information on the company and the basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The Rosenbauer Group is an international group of companies whose ultimate parent company is Rosenbauer
International AG, Austria. Its main focus is on producing firefighting vehicles, developing and manufacturing
firefighting systems, equipping vehicles and their crews, and preventive firefighting. The Group’s head office is
located at Paschinger Strasse 90, 4060 Leonding, Austria. The company is registered with the Linz Regional
Court under commercial register number FN 78543 f and is listed on the Prime Market of the Vienna Stock
Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements of Rosenbauer International AG and its subsidiaries as of December
31, 2022 were prepared in accordance with the principles of the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as endorsed by the EU, and are expected to be presented by the Executive Board to the Supervisory
Board for approval for publication in April 2023. The additional requirements of section 245a(1) of the
Unternehmensgesetzbuch (UGB - Austrian Commercial Code) have been complied with.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the same reporting date as the parent company,
Rosenbauer International AG. The financial year is the calendar year. The annual financial statements of the
individual companies included in the consolidated financial statements were prepared as of the same date as
the consolidated financial statements.

Within the Group, accounting and measurement are based on uniform criteria and on the principle of going
concern. This did not lead to a different assessment as a result of the COVID-19 crisis and the Ukraine crisis.
The effects of the COVID-19 crisis and the Ukraine crisis are presented under D 34.

The consolidated statement of financial position is structured by maturity in accordance with IAS 1. Assets
and liabilities are classified as current if they are expected to be received or settled within twelve months of
the end of the reporting period. The consolidated income statement has been prepared using the cost of sales
method.

Unless stated otherwise, the consolidated financial statements and the figures shown in the notes have been
prepared in thousands of euro (€ thousand). The commercial rounding of individual items and percentages
may result in minor rounding differences.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared applying the historical cost system. This does not
apply to derivative financial instruments or financial investments available for sale, which were measured at
fair value.

A2. Effects of new accounting standards

New, revised or supplemented standards
No new, revised or supplemented IASB standards affecting Rosenbauer’s consolidated financial statements
were applied for the first time in the 2022 financial year.

The following new, revised or supplemented standards have no impact on the consolidated financial state-
ments of Rosenbauer International AG:

Standards/Interpretations Effective date in the EU

Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations Jan. 1, 2022
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment Jan. 1, 2022
Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets Jan. 1,2022
Amendments to Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Jan. 1, 2022
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A3. Future changes in accounting policies due to new accounting standards

As of the time of these financial statements being approved for publication, in addition to the standards and
interpretations already applied by the Group, the following standards and interpretations had already been
published but were not yet effective or had not yet been endorsed by the European Commission. The Group
intends to adopt these new or amended standards from their effective date.

The changes to the following standards/interpretations are not expected to have any significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements of Rosenbauer International AG.

Effective date

Standards/Interpretations

IAS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from

a Single Transaction (published May 2021) January 1, 2023

Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (published January 2020) and
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current - Deferral of Effective
Date (published October 2022)

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance contracts: Initial Application of IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9 - Comparative Information (published December 2021)

January 1, 2024

January 1, 2023

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (published May 2017), including Amendments to
IFRS 17 (published June 2020)

Amendment IAS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors (published February 2021)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies, Amendment to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2 (published February 2021)

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice
Statement: Disclosure of Accounting policies (published February 2021) -
not yet endorsed

January 1, 2023

January 1, 2023

January 1, 2023

January 1, 2023

Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: Lease Liabilities in a Sale and Leaseback

(published September 2022) - not yet endorsed January 1, 2024
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A4. Correction of an error in accordance with IAS 8

Callable non-controlling interests (error correction)

In connection with the reorganization of the US-American investments, it was determined that the current
operating agreement of Rosenbauer Aerials, LLC, Nebraska, USA, also contains a clause that triggers an
unconditional payment obligation on the part of the Rosenbauer Group when a minority shareholder tenders
its shares. In accordance with IAS 32, therefore, a liability must be recognized and the minority interest under
IFRS 10 derecognized. In accordance with IFRS 9, the liability must be measured as of the end of the reporting
period as if the option had been exercised at the earliest possible date. For Rosenbauer, it is still economically
a minority interest, as both the dividend claims and the risk of changes in the value predominantly remain with
the minority shareholder. For these reasons, the change in value of the liability is recognized via a transfer
directly from equity to the liability. In the consolidated income statement, however, the minority interest con-
tinues to be handled in accordance with IFRS 10. This corresponds to the partial recognition of NCI method.
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Both effects were corrected by restating the relevant financial statement line items for previous years accordingly:
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Jan. 1, 2021 Puttable NCI's Jan. 1,2021

Consolidated statement of financial positions published change adjusted
Accumulated results 184.152 -8.998 175.154
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company 219.999 -8.998 211.001
Non-controlling interests 7.167 -3.526 3.641
Total equity 227.166 -12.524 214.642
Puttable non-controlling interests 55.370 12.524 67.894
Current liabilites 397.924 12.524 410.448
Sum EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 911.157 - 911.157
Dec. 31,2021 Puttable NCI's Dec. 31, 2021

Consolidated statement of financial positions published change adjusted
Accumulated results 180.784 -11.015 169.770
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company 217.816 -11.015 206.801
Non-controlling interests 7.297 -3.680 3.617
Total equity 225.113 -14.695 210.418
Puttable non-controlling interests 67.574 14.695 82.269
Current liabilites 438.058 14.695 452.753
Sum EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 891.562 - 891.562
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B. Consolidation Principles

B1. Companies included in consolidation

The companies included in the consolidated financial statements are shown in the list of investees (see note
E3. “Related party disclosures”).

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are investees controlled by the parent company. The parent company controls an investee when
it has exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability to utilize its
control over the material activities of the investee so as to influence the amount of returns from the investee.

The parent company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the above criteria for control.

If the parent company does not have a majority of voting rights, the investee is still controlled if it has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities unilaterally. At the subsidiaries where Rosenbauer International
AG does not directly or indirectly hold more than half of the voting rights, control is contractually assured.

Thus, in accordance with IFRS 10, in addition to the parent company there are five (previous year: five) Austrian
and 25 (previous year: 25) foreign subsidiaries legally or constructively controlled by Rosenbauer International
AG.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins from the date the parent company obtains control of the subsidiary and
ceases when the parent company loses control of the subsidiary. All the subsidiaries included are included in
consolidation.

Associates and joint ventures (companies accounted for using the equity method)

An associate is an investee over which the parent company has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the entity in which the investment is
held. This does not constitute control or joint control of the decision-making processes.

A joint venture is a subcategory of joint arrangement as defined by IFRS 11, which is jointly controlled by the
parties involved and in which the parties involved have a right to the net assets. Joint control requires the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement and exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties involved.
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Shares in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method and recognized at cost on
addition. The carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the investor’s share of the profit or loss
of the companies accounted for using the equity method after the date of acquisition. The Group’s share of
the profit or loss of the companies accounted for using the equity method is recognized in profit or loss in the
financial result from the acquisition date.

The shares in the associate in Russia (PA “Fire-fighting special technics” LLC.; Rosenbauer’s share: 49%)
and the shares in Rosenbauer Ciansa S.L. (Rosenbauer’s share: 50%) were accounted for using the equity
method in the previous year. The associated company in Russia (PA “Fire-fighting special technics” LLC.) was
deconsolidated in the financial year.

Companies accounted for

Companies consolidated using the equity method

2021 2022 2021 2022
As of Jan. 1 29 31 2 2
Foundation 3 0 0 0
Mergers 1 0 0 0
Disposals 0 0 0 1
As of Dec. 31 31 31 2 1

Acquisitions, reorganizations and disposals

On April 20, 2022, the increased investment in Rosenbauer Espafiola S.A. was concluded when Rosenbauer
International AG acquired an additional 17.7% share in Rosenbauer Espafiola from a co-owner. It now holds
79.8% of the equity of the Spanish subsidiary. The purchase price was € 700 thousand. In 2021, the company
generated revenues of € 14.1 million.
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On April 29 and June 30, 2022, the increased investment in Rosenbauer America LLC was concluded when a
further 25% each was acquired from two minority shareholders. This increases Rosenbauer’s share in the US
business from 50% to 100%. The purchase price corresponds to the value in US dollars of the callable non-con-
trolling interests recognized in the first quarter. The sale is presented in the consolidated statement of cash
flows under the “Payments from the acquisition of non-controlling interests” line item; any differences from the
value recognized in the first quarter are attributable mainly to currency effects. In increasing its investment,
Rosenbauer sees a strategic opportunity to further expand its business in this region and to strengthen the
integration of the US subgroup.

The transaction to increase the investment in Rosenbauer d.o.o., Slovenia, was closed on December 8, 2022.
Rosenbauer International AG acquired the remaining 10% of shares from a co-owner and now holds 100%. The
purchase price was € 1,000 thousand.

PA “Fire-fighting special technics” LLC. was deconsolidated as of December 31, 2022 due to lack of significant
influence. The deconsolidation resulted in a loss of € 5,812 thousand, € 4,112 thousand of which was due to
the recycling of cumulative currency losses in other comprehensive income. The loss on deconsolidation was
recognized under net finance costs. The equity investment is recognized at fair value as of December 31, 2022
in accordance with IFRS 9 (fair value: € 0 thousand).

Rosenbauer E-Commerce GmbH was founded in May 202 1. This company is to form the basis for the online
business, which is to be expanded. The online store went online in Austria in September 2021 and is now being
successively rolled out to other countries.

APAC Holding GmbH was founded in March 2021, and the Chinese branch was subsequently transferred
to a company named Rosenbauer Fire Fighting Technology (Yunnan) Co., Ltd. The founding of the company
provides a new basis for the Chinese business and meets the increased local requirements.
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B2. Methods of consolidation

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of a business acquisition is
calculated as the total of the consideration transferred, measured at fair value as of the acquisition date, and
the non-controlling interests in the company acquired. For each business combination, the acquirer measures
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportion-
ate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Costs incurred in the business combination are recognized
under other expenses.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or whenever an impairment event occurs. The annual financial
statements of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are based on uniform account-
ing policies. The separate financial statements of the companies included were prepared as of the same
date as the consolidated financial statements. All receivables and liabilities, expenses and income between
companies included in the consolidated financial statements are eliminated. Intercompany profits and losses
are also eliminated.

Non-controlling interests represent the share of earnings and net assets not attributable to the Group as all
non-controlling interests in the Group are measured at the value of the pro rata, remeasured net assets (partial
goodwill method). Non-controlling interests are reported separately in the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of financial position. They are reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position under equity but separately from the equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent company.
Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as equity transactions. The difference between the
purchase price and the carrying amount of the pro rata acquired net assets is off set against accumulated
net profits. Callable interests in the equity of subsidiaries with options to sell on the part of non-controlling
shareholders represent financial liabilities for the Rosenbauer Group. In accordance with IFRS 9, these are
initially recognized at the fair value of the repurchase amount and subsequently remeasured at fair value
through other comprehensive income as of the end of each reporting period. The earnings of the subsidiaries
concerned are allocated in full to the Rosenbauer Group, and the non-controlling interests are reported in the
consolidated income statement.
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B3. Currency

The annual financial statements of the entities included in the consolidated financial statements that prepare
their accounts in foreign currency are translated into euro in line with the functional currency concept in
accordance with IAS 21. As the companies conduct their business as financially, economically, and organiza-
tionally independent entities, this is the respective national currency for all companies. All assets and liabilities
are therefore translated at the respective mean rate of exchange at the end of the reporting period while
expenses and income are translated at average rates for the year.

Differences from foreign currency translation in asset and liability items as against the previous year’s transla-
tion and translation differences between the consolidated statement of financial position and the consolidated
income statement are recognized in other comprehensive income.

The translation difference arising from remeasurement of equity as against first-time consolidation is off set
against consolidated reserves in other comprehensive income. Translation differences as of the end of the
reporting period of € 14,912 thousand (2021: € 6,992 thousand) were transferred to other comprehensive
income in the year under review.

The exchange rates on which currency translation is based developed as follows:

Closing rate Annual average rate
in € Dec. 31,2021 Dec. 31,2022 Dec. 31,2021 Dec. 31,2022
100 US dollars 88.2924 93.7559 84.6340 94.8877
100 Swiss francs 96.7961 101.5538 92.6026 99.4855
100 Singapore dollars 65.4493 69.9301 63.0355 68.8721
100 Brunei dollars 65.4493 69.9301 63.0355 68.8721
100 South African rands 5.5363 5.5253 5.6843 5.8105
100 Saudi riyals 23.5018 24.8756 22.4924 25.2723
100 Australian dollars 64.0410 63.7227 63.3590 65.9040
100 Russian rubles 1.1723 1.2669 1.1451 1.3571
101 Zloty 21.7538 21.3639 21.8722 21.3471
101 VAE-Dirham 24.0333 25.5102 22.9652 25.8592
100 British pounds 119.0079 112.7485 116.4953 117.2873
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B4. Fair value measurement

Financial instruments, such as derivatives are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value is defined
as the price that would have to be received from the sale of an asset or that would have to be paid for the
transfer of a liability between market participants as part of an orderly transaction on the measurement date.
In measuring fair value it is assumed that the transaction in which the asset is sold or the liability is transferred
takes place on the principal market for the asset or liability, of the most advantageous market if there is no
principal market. The Group has to have access to the principal market or to the most advantageous market.

Rosenbauer measures fair value using assumptions that market participants would use in pricing. It is assumed
that the market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use.

In calculating fair value Rosenbauer uses measurement methods that are appropriate under the respective
circumstances and for which there is sufficient data available to measure fair value, using observable inputs
where possible.

The following hierarchy is used in the consolidated financial statements to determine and report the fair values
of financial instruments by measurement method:

®m Level 1: Quoted (non-adjusted) prices on active markets for similar assets or liabilities.
m Level 2: Methods in which all the input parameters that significantly affect the calculation of fair value are
either directly or indirectly observable.
m Level 3:Method in which the input parameters that significantly affect the calculation of fair value are not
based on observable market data.

For all classes of financial instruments other than non-current interest-bearing loan liabilities, the carrying
amount is equal to the fair value.



Rosenbauer Annual Financial Report 2022

C. Accounting Policies

The principle of uniform accounting is implemented by applying the same policies throughout the Group.

C1. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at the lower of cost less depreciation and cumulative impairment
or recoverable amount. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method from the time it is in the
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating. Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or
the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or construction.

The following amortization rates are applied:

3,00 % - 10,00 %
2,00 % - 4,00 %
10,00 % - 25,00 %
10,00 % - 33,33 %

Plant buildings and other constructions
Office buildings
Technical equipment and machinery

Other equipment, furniture and fixture

The residual carrying amounts, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted as necessary.

If there is evidence of impairment for non-financial assets and the recoverable amount - the higher of the
value in use or fair value less costs of disposal - is less than the respective carrying amount, the assets are
written down to recoverable amount in accordance with IAS 36 (Impairment of Assets). If the reasons for an
impairment loss recognized in the previous years no longer apply, the impairment loss is reversed. Property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets are derecognized either on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset cannot be calculated, the asset is included in a cash-generating unit
(CGU) and tested for impairment, using the value in use as the recoverable amount. In the Rosenbauer Group
usually the legally separate business units each form a CGU.

An impairment loss recognized previously is only reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If this is the
case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. However, this amount must
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not increase the carrying amount of an asset above the carrying amount that would have been determined
for the asset had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years. Such a reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

C2. Intangible assets

With the exception of goodwill, intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method. The following
amortization rates are applied:

Rights /licenses 25,0 %-33,3%
10.00%

7,00 %-10,00 %
10,00 % - 25,00 %

25,0 %-33,33 %

Customer base

Technology

Capitalized development costs

Other intangible assets

The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at the end of each financial year. Amortization of intangible assets is reported in “Depreciation and
amortization expense on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets”.

Goodwill

Goodwill in accordance with IFRS 3 is tested for impairment annually and whenever there are indications it
has become impaired. Goodwill is assigned to the cash-generating units that are expected to profit from the
business acquisition in order to perform impairment testing. A key criterion for qualifying as a cash-generating
unit is its technical and economic independence for generating income. Impairment in a cash-generating unit
is calculated by comparing its current amortized carrying amount (including the goodwill assigned) with the
value in use. The value in use is calculated as the present value of the associated future receipts and payments
based on data from medium-term corporate planning. Cash flows incurred after a period of three years are
extrapolated using the forecast average industry growth of 1% (2021: 1%).
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The table below summarizes key assumptions for each cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
assigned:

Group Management Report | Consolidated Financial Statements | Management Report | Financial Statements 39

Period of cash flow Average annual Annual margin Discount rate before

forecasts increase in revenues development taxes
2022
Rosenbauer d.o.o. 3 years 9% Constantly rising 13.1%
Rosenbauer UK plc 3 years 19% Constantly rising 11.8%
Rosenbauer Brandschutz Deutschland 3 years 7% constant 11.7%
2021
Rosenbauer d.o.o. 3 years 31% Constantly rising 10.1%
increase to pre-Brexit
Rosenbauer UK plc 3 years 13% levels 10.5%
Rosenbauer Brandschutz Deutschland 3 years 2% constant 9.8%
The assumptions regarding revenue development in the cash-generating units are generally based on past  The table below shows the carrying amounts of the existing goodwill for each CGU:
results and internal forecasts. The cost drivers and additions to assets are based on empirical values and
internal expectations. The discount rate is calculated based on current market data for similar enterprises in  in € thousand Dec. 31,2021 Dec. 31,2022
the same branch of industry. Rosenbauer d.o.o 843 843
Rosenbauer UK plc 344 326
In the assumptions used there is estimation uncertainty regarding earnings, the change in working capital, Rosenbauer Brandschutz Deutschland 4,146 4,146
investment and the discount rate.
5,333 5,315

A sensitivity analysis in which discount rates were raised by 50 basis points did not identify any impairment. In
addition, the sensitivity analysis showed that given a reduction in EBIT of 10% for 2023 to 2025, with all other
parameters remaining constant, the carrying amounts would still be covered and there would no impairment
requirement.

For the purposes of the goodwill impairment test, the legally independent business units were generally
defined as goodwill-carrying CGUs based on internal monitoring of goodwill.

If the carrying amount of the CGU to which the goodwill was allocated exceeds its recoverable amount, then
impairment is recognized on the goodwill allocated to this CGU in the amount of the difference. If the impair-
ment loss exceeds the carrying amount of the goodwill, the additional impairment is divided up based on the
carrying amounts of each individual asset of the CGU. The carrying amount of an asset must not be written
down below a determinable net realizable value or value in use or below zero. Impairment losses on goodwill
cannot be reversed in accordance with IAS 36.
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Research and development
Research costs are not capitalized under IAS 38 (“Intangible Assets”) and are therefore shown directly and in
full in the income statement.

Development costs intended to significantly advance a product or process are only capitalized in accordance
with IAS 38 if the product or process is technically and economically feasible, it can be marketed and will
generate future economic benefit, the expenses can be reliably measured and Rosenbauer has sufficient
resources to complete the development project. All other development expenses are recognized immediately
in profit or loss. Capitalized development expenses for completed projects are reported at cost less cumulative
write-downs. As long as a development project has not been completed, the cumulative amounts recognized
are tested for impairment annually or whenever there are indications that they may have become impaired.

Development costs of € 6,27 1 thousand were capitalized in the 2022 financial year (2021: € 8,911 thousand).

C3. Securities

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets, such as securities, are recognized as of the settlement
date, i.e. the date on which the company commits to purchasing the asset.

In accordance with IFRS 9, at initial recognition financial assets are classified for the subsequent measure-
ment either at amortized cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income or at fair value through
profit or loss. The classification of financial assets at initial recognition is dependent on the properties of the
contractual cash flows of the financial assets and on the Group’s business model for the management of its
financial assets.

In the Rosenbauer Group, at initial recognition, securities are measured at fair value and are assigned to the
“Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss” IFRS 9 category. Financial assets mandatorily
measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the statement of financial position at fair value,
with the changes in the fair value recognized as a total in the income statement.

Interest received or paid for financial investments are reported as interest income or interest expenses.
Interest income is recognized pro rata temporis taking into account the effective interest rate on the asset.
Dividend income is reported when the legal right to payment arises.
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C4. Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes are recognized on all taxable temporary differences between the value in the IFRS consolidated
statement of financial position and the tax accounts. They are calculated in accordance with IAS 12 using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences,
except for the deferred tax liabilities arising from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit.

Furthermore, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for taxable temporary differences in connection with
investments in subsidiaries, associates or interests in joint ventures if the timing of the reversal of the tem-
porary difference can be controlled and it is likely that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities for the current and earlier period are measured at the amount expected
to be refunded by the tax authority/paid to the tax authority. Current taxes on items recognized in other
comprehensive income are not recognized in the income statement but rather in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets on loss carryforwards are recognized if their utilization is expected in the planning period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is assessed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the deferred
tax asset can be at least partially utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are assessed at the end of each
reporting period and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled.

Current taxes are calculated using the tax rates and laws that apply as of the end of the reporting period.
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C5. Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value (market price) at the end of the reporting
period. The cost is calculated for assets of the same type using moving average prices or a similar method. The
cost includes only the directly attributable costs and pro rata overheads assuming the normal utilization rate
of the production facilities. Interest is not recognized for borrowed capital.

C6. Trade receivables

Subject to a significant financing component, trade receivables are initially recognized at the transaction price
in accordance with IFRS 9. Non-interest-bearing or low-interest receivables with an expected remaining term
of more than one year are discounted and initially recognized at their present value.

Allocation to possible IFRS 9 categories is dependent firstly on the business model test and secondly on the
characteristics of the cash flows. Some companies in the Rosenbauer Group use the “hold and sell” business
model for trade receivables, as the contractual cash flows are collected both through customer payments and
through sales to various house banks under factoring agreements. Trade receivables are therefore assigned to
the “Measurement at fair value through other comprehensive income” category. The allocation of trade receiv-
ables to this category does not have any material effect on Rosenbauer’s consolidated financial statements
as the majority of trade receivables are expected to be settled within one year, and it is therefore assumed
that the fair value is approximately equal to amortized cost in line with the previous measurement standard.
The other trade receivables are assigned to the “At amortized cost category,” as the Group adopts the “hold”
business model for these trade receivables.

Trade receivables that were assigned to the “At fair value through other comprehensive income” category on
initial recognition are subsequently measured at fair value and written down for expected credit losses. Trade
receivables that were assigned to the “At amortized cost” category at initial recognition are subsequently
measured at amortized cost, reduced for write-downs for expected credit losses.

Trade receivables in foreign currency are measured at the middle exchange rate as of the end of the reporting
period.
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The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired.

In calculating the impairment at the level of expected credit losses, a distinction is made between receivables
with and without credit impairment. A receivable is classified as having credit impairment if the following
events occur:

m The receivable is past due and there are clear indications that the customer will fail make payment on what
is owed.

®m Bankruptcy proceedings are likely to or have already been initiated.

m Settlement negotiations were initiated with Rosenbauer.

For receivables with credit impairment, the impairment is recognized using a specific valuation allowance in
the amount of the expected credit losses.

All other receivables are therefore not classified as having credit impairment. At the end of each reporting
period, the impairment is generally determined for receivables without credit impairment using an impairment
matrix in the amount of the expected credit losses. The provision rates are determined on the basis of the
past due period in days. The calculation includes the probability-weighted outcome based on the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information about past events and economic conditions to be
expected in the future that are available at the end of the reporting period.

Impairment losses are reversed in profit or loss if the reason for the impairment is no longer applicable or
there is improvement.

The receivable is derecognized only in the event of insolvency or unsuccessful legal claims.

A financial asset (or part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial assets) is derecognized when it
meets one of the following three conditions:

a) The contractual rights to receive the cash flows of that financial asset have expired.

b) The Group has transferred the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset and either
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset or neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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C7. Cash in hand

The cash and cash equivalents reported under “Cash and cash equivalents” such as cash in hand and bank
balances are classified at initial recognition as “At amortized cost” for subsequent measurement.

The cash and cash equivalents reported under “Cash and cash equivalents” are measured in subsequent peri-
ods using the effective interest method and are tested for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. Impairment
is recognized through profit and loss.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. In terms of calculating impairment requirements for cash and bank balances, the Group uses
simplification regulations from IFRS 9.5.5.10 (the simplification of financial instruments with low credit risk),
according to which there is no review of credit deterioration at financial institutions with a credit rating in the
“investment grade” category. The expected credit losses calculated for bank balances are immaterial.

Cash and cash equivalents in foreign currency are measured at the middle exchange rate as of the end of the
reporting period.

Interest income is recognized pro rata temporis taking into account the effective interest rate on the asset.

C8. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized as of the settlement date, i.e. the date on
which the company commits to purchasing the asset.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as currency forwards, as hedge against exchange rate
risks. These derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value when the agreement is concluded and
subsequently remeasured at fair value in subsequent periods. Derivative financial instruments are recognized
as financial assets if their fair value is positive, and as financial liabilities if this is negative.

For subsequent derivatives to which hedge accounting does not apply are assigned to the “Mandatorily meas-
ured at fair value through profit or loss” IFRS 9 category, with the total changes in the fair value recognized in
the income statement.

In the Rosenbauer Group, certain hedging relationships in the foreign currency area are designated as cash
flow hedges. Derivative financial instruments, which are designated as hedging instruments as part of the
hedge accounting regulations of IFRS 9 (“Financial Instruments”), are recognized at the effective portion of
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fair value in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the hedging reserve in equity. The ineffective
portion of an effective hedging instrument is recognized in profit or loss. As of the date of the hedged item
being recognized, the result of the hedge will be reclassified from other comprehensive income to the income
statement. When the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the hedge no longer
exists but the proposed transaction is still expected to occur, the unrealized gains/losses accrued from this
hedging instrument to date remain in equity and, in accordance with the above, are recognized in profit or
loss when the hedged item is recognized in the income statement. If the originally hedged transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative unrealized gains and losses in equity until then are also recognized
in profit or loss.

The hedging policy and the financial instruments in place as of the end of the reporting period are described
in more detail under note D37. “Risk management”.

C9. Non-current staff obligations

Defined benefit plans

On the basis of statutory obligations, employees of Austrian Group companies who joined before December
31, 2002 receive a one-time settlement in the event of termination or as of the retirement date. This is
dependent on the number of years of service and the relevant remuneration at the time of settlement. The
benefit obligations are offset by provisions calculated in line with actuarial principles. The provision for defined
benefit plans recognized in the statement of financial position is equal to the present value of the defined
benefit obligation (DBO) at the end of the reporting period. Provisions for severance are calculated uniformly
as of the end of the reporting period in line with the projected unit credit method using an interest rate of 4.1%
p.a. (2021: 1.1% p.a.) and a growth rate for future pay increases of between 3.0% and 6.0% p.a. (2021: 3.0%
p.a.). Interest expenses on staff provisions are recognized as finance cost. The discount rate is determined on
the basis of yields on prime, fixed rate corporate bonds with a rating of AA or better. The term of the bonds
matches the expected maturities of the defined benefit obligations.

In addition to disability and mortality rates (basis: data AVO 2018-P for salaried employees and Pagler & Pagler
for manual workers) and retirement on reaching pension age, the turnover rate was set at between 0% and
1.81% (2021: between 0% and 1.8%) depending on the number of years of service completed. The calculation
is based on individual retirement age in accordance with the Austrian Pension Reform, taking into account the
gradual achievement of retirement age.

The provision amounts are calculated by an actuary as of the end of the respective reporting period in the form
of an actuarial report.
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In accordance with IAS 19, the remeasurement of provisions for pensions and similar obligations, and of
settlement obligations, is recognized in other comprehensive income.

For the pension commitments in place that were determined under works agreements, the scope of benefits
is based on eligible years of service in the form of a fixed amount per year. This fixed amount is based on the
eligible individual income on retirement. Current pensions are regularly reviewed to ensure that they maintain
their value. Current pensions are paid out 14 times per year.

The calculation of severance and pension obligations is based on the following parameters:

Interest rate Salary increase Pension increase

in % 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
2023 6%;
2024 4,5%;
Austria 1.1 4.1 3.0 2025f 3%
Germany 1.1 4.1 2.0 2.0

Defined contribution plans

In addition to the defined benefit system, there is a defined contribution plan for employees in Austria who
joined after January 1, 2003. An amount prescribed by law of 1.53% of gross total salary must be paid into an
employee pension fund (2022: € 1,210 thousand; 2021: € 1,166 thousand), which is recognized in staff costs.
Furthermore, amounts of € 429 thousand (2021: € 406 thousand) in Austria and € 1,384 thousand (2021:
€ 1,660 thousand) in the United States were paid into a pension system that constitutes a defined contribution
plan. In Germany contributions of € 3,883 thousand (2021: € 3,846 thousand) were paid into the German
pension plan that also constitutes a defined contribution plan. As there are no further commitments other than
these contributions, as in Austria, no provisions were required.

Other con-current staff obligations

Provisions for anniversary bonuses are calculated uniformly as of the end of the reporting period in line with
the projected unit credit method using an interest rate of 4.2% p.a. (2021: 1.3% p.a.) and a growth rate for
future pay increases of between 3.0% and 6.0% p.a. (2021: 3.0% p.a.). In addition, further to disability and
mortality rates (basis: AVO 2018-P for employees and Pagler & Pagler for manual workers) and retirement on
reaching pension age, turnover rates of between 0% and 6.53% (202 1: between 0% and 6.22%) depending on
the number of years of service completed were taken into account. The Interest expenses on staff provisions
for long-service bonuses are reported in staff costs.
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C10. Other provisions

Other current and non-current provisions include all risks from uncertain obligations from past events by
the time of the preparation of the statement of financial position. If such obligations will probably lead to an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits, they are carried at the amount considered the most likely
given a careful review of the matter.

If the Group expects at least a partial reimbursement for a recognized provision (for example, from an insur-
ance policy), the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset if it is as good as certain. The expense
relating to the provision is reported in the income statement net of the amount recognized for reimbursement.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate that
reflects the risks specific to the liability, if necessary, in the individual case. The increase in provisions over
time in the event of discounting is recognized in net finance costs.

C11. Liabilities

At initial recognition financial liabilities are recognized at fair value (equal to fair value). They are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Liabilities in foreign currency are measured at
the mean rate of exchange as of the end of the reporting period. Financial liabilities in a hedging relationship
are designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities from callable non-controlling interests are recognized at fair value (level 3). For the repay-
ment amount, the purchase price formula according to the shareholders’ agreement (“operating agreement”)
is applied at the earliest possible exercise date. The two most recently available financial statements and the
most recently approved planning for the subsequent year are consulted for the purchase price formula, and the
pro rata equity is also recognized. The longest lead time of the shareholders’ agreement (three months) is used
as the expected payment date. The short-term interest rate of 6.7% (2021: 1.5%) is derived from observable,
short-term USD interest rates and also includes own credit risk and other risk components. The result of
remeasurement is recognized directly in other comprehensive income. If the net result planned for the subse-
quent year were to increase by 10%, the liability would increase by € 275 thousand (202 1: € 1,594 thousand).

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, canceled or
expires. If a financial liability is exchanged for a different financial liability to the same lender with substantially
different terms or if the terms of an existing financial liability are substantially changed, such an exchange or
change of terms is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.
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C12. Revenue recognition

The Group operates in the areas of the sale of firefighting vehicles, firefighting systems and equipment, the
sale of stationary and mobile systems for preventive firefighting and related after-sale services. Revenues
from contracts with customers are recognized if the control of goods and after-sale services is transferred to
the customer. Recognition occurs in the amount of the consideration that the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for these goods or services.

The significant judgments, estimates and assumptions in connection with the revenues from contracts with
customers are described in C15 disclosures.

Revenues from the sale of vehicles, firefighting systems, equipment and stationary and mobile fire extin-
guishing systems

These revenues are recognized when control of the asset is transferred to the customer. This is generally the
case for delivery. In special cases, for example, delayed acceptance by the customer, bill-and-hold agreements
may also apply. The payment terms are short-term and do not include a financing component. If other loan
commitments are included in the contract that represent separate performance obligations, a portion of the
transaction price is assigned to these loan commitments. (e. g. extended warranties). In accordance with IFRS
15, repurchase obligations are taken into account as a variable component of consideration when determining
the transaction price. Anticipated penalties are treated as transaction price reductions and, as a result, shown
as revenue reductions.

In applying the regulatory waiver contained in IFRS 15, the Group needs not adjust the promised amount of
consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if the entity expects, at contract inception,
that the period between when the entity transfers of the promised good or service to a customer and when the
customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

Revenues from the sale of after-sale services

The Group performs servicing (maintenance, customer service, refurbishment) that is sold to the customer
either individually or in a bundle with the sale of vehicles, firefighting systems, equipment and stationary
and mobile fire extinguishing systems. Multiple-element arrangements therefore contain both a service com-
ponent and the delivery of goods. Consequently, the Group allocates the transaction price of the individual
components on the basis of relative individual selling prices and the revenues from these contracts are not
realized in full as of a specific time. The payment period normally ends 0 to 30 days after invoice date.

Repurchase obligations

In accordance with IFRS 15, repurchase obligations in customer contracts must be taken into account as a
variable component of consideration when determining the transaction price. IFRS 15 requires that revenues
from sales are only recognized to the extent that future cancellation is not expected.
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Contract liabilities

A contract liability is a Group’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consider-
ation before the Group transfers the goods or services to the customer, a contract liability will be recognized
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as
revenues, as soon as the Group fulfills its contractual obligations.

Warranty

For the majority of contracts with customers, there is a legal warranty period in the respective country. In
individual cases, extended warranties are sold in separate contracts or in multiple-component arrangements,
beyond the legal warranty period. In the case of multiple-component arrangements, these are accounted for
as separate performance obligations.

Contract acquisition costs

The Rosenbauer Group uses the practical expedient from IFRS 15, whereby contract acquisition costs from
contracts with customers with a term of less than one year are to be recognized as an expense and should not
be capitalized when these costs are incurred.
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C13. Government grants

Government grants in connection with investments result in reductions in acquisition and production costs.
Grants for costs that cannot be specifically allocated, such as in particular research and development costs
for research and development projects that cannot be capitalized, are recognized in other income. Grants
relating to directly attributable costs, such as in particular short-time working allowances or reimbursement of
non-wage labor costs, reduce the corresponding expenses in the income statement.

C14. Currency translation

Monetary items in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the end of each reporting
period using the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items recognized in line with
the historical cost principle are still reported using the exchange rate at the time of first-time recognition. Non-
monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Foreign exchange differences from the translation of monetary
items are recognized in profit or loss. This does not include foreign exchange differences from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation.

C15. Estimates and judgments

In the consolidated financial statements, to a certain degree, estimates and assumptions must be made that
affect the recognized assets and liabilities, the disclosure of other obligations at the end of the reporting
period and the reporting of income and expenses during the reporting period. The actual amounts that arise
in the future can differ from estimates.

The most important assumptions about the future that entail a significant risk in the form of a material adjust-
ment of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are explained below:

Assessment of control of subsidiaries and joint management of joint ventures
Please see D10. and D4. for information on the judgments and assumptions made in classifying Rosenbauer
Aerials as a subsidiary and classifying Rosenbauer Ciansa as a joint venture.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

There is an impairment loss if the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recov-
erable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding disposal transactions between independent business partners for similar assets
or observable market prices less directly attributable costs for the disposal of the asset. A discounted cash
flow method is used to calculate the value in use. The recoverable amount is dependent on the discount rate
used in the discounted cash flow method and on forecast future cash flows as well as the growth rate used for
purposes of extrapolation (details of the impairment of non-financial assets can be found in notes C2. and D1.).

Measurement of receivables
The Group uses an impairment matrix to calculate the expected credit losses on trade receivables. The provi-
sion rates are determined on the basis of the past due period in days.

The impairment matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical loss rates. The Group subsequently calibrates
the table to adjust its historical defaults to information about the future. If, for example, it is assumed that the
forecast economic conditions will deteriorate in the course of the coming year, the historical loss rates will be
adjusted. This occurred in 2021 and 2022 in connection with adjustments due to the coronavirus crisis and
the Russia/Ukraine crisis. The historical loss rates are updated and any changes to estimates about the future
are analyzed at the end of each reporting period.

Assessment of the relationship between the historical loss rates, the forecast economic conditions and the
expected credit losses constitutes a significant estimate. The amount of expected credit losses depends on
the changes in circumstances and the forecast economic conditions. (Details on receivables and the probabil-
ity of default can be found in notes D7. “Current receivables and other assets”.

Inventory measurement

Standardized marketability and visibility write-down was implemented to take into account the risk of obsolete-
ness. Finished goods are also systematically reviewed in terms of measurement at the lower of cost or market
value, which is essentially defined by sales price expectations, currency developments, the time of sale and
the costs still anticipated (for details see note D6.).
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Deferred tax assets

Tax planning is used as the basis for the capitalization of deferred tax assets, taking into account the business
planning by subsidiaries. If, on the basis of these future forecasts, a loss carryforward is not expected to be
used within an appropriate period of three to five years, the loss carryforward is not recognized (see note D5.).

Staff provisions

The Rosenbauer Group uses actuarial calculations from actuaries for staff provisions. The calculations are
based on assumptions regarding the discount rate and increases in remuneration and pensions (details of the
assumptions and the amounts recognized for staff provisions can be found in notes C9. and D13.).

Other provisions

The amount recognized as a provision for warranties is the present value of the best estimate of these costs
based on past experience (2022: € 12,871 thousand; 2021: € 12,817 thousand). The Group expects to settle
the majority of the provisions in the coming year.

Irregularities were detected in the process of preparing the 2017 annual financial statements of Rosenbauer
Deutschland GmbH. The investigations initiated in this context were concluded by the end of 2018. Proceedings
for asserting claims have been initiated at the civil courts and are still unresolved.

Puttable non-controlling interests

The repayment amount results from the application of a purchase price formula. This is based on the local sub-
group financial statements and the most recently approved planning for the subsequent year. The sub-group
financial statements regularly include estimates and judgments, but these do not usually differ from those
of the Group as a whole. The planning entails estimation uncertainty regarding the net result. There is low
estimation uncertainty regarding the discount rate.

Development costs

Development costs were capitalized in line with the accounting policies presented. First-time recognition
of costs is based on the management assessment that technical feasibility and commercial viability have
been demonstrated. For the purposes of calculating the amounts to be capitalized, the management makes
assumptions regarding the forecast future cash flows from the project, the applicable discount rates and the
period when the forecast future benefit will be received. The carrying amount of capitalized development
costs was € 37,235 thousand (2021: € 31,666 thousand) as of December 31, 2022 and essentially relates to
development services for vehicles, high-rise aerial appliances and firefighting systems.

Capitalized development costs that have not yet been amortized and their underlying development projects
generate their own future cash inflows, which are tested for impairment at least once a year on the basis of
economic efficiency calculations.
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Cash flow hedges
In accounting for cash flow hedges for future cash flows it is assumed that these cash flows are highly likely.

Fair value option
When accounting for financial liabilities, estimates are made concerning the existence of a hedging relation-
ship that lead to measurement at fair value being exercised.

Accounting of leases

IFRS 16 requires estimates that influence the valuation of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets. These
include the terms of contracts covered by IFRS 16, the terms of the contracts and the incremental borrowing
rate used to discount future payment obligations. The incremental borrowing rate is derived from the risk-free
interest rate of the underlying term, adjusted for country, currency and corporate risk.

Climate risks

In conjunction with risk management, Rosenbauer also evaluates climate risks on an ongoing basis. The
identified climate-related risks and opportunities were subjected to an analysis of the financial effects on
Rosenbauer and the likelihood of occurrence. The climate-related opportunities and risks were integrated in
the annual risk management process. If activities with an accounting effect arise from risk management, these
are recognized accordingly in the financial statements. Climate risks had no effects resulting in a change of
assets’ useful lives. Short and medium-term financial planning, and thus impairment testing, are based on
the strategy and the business model geared towards sustainability. Furthermore, no obligations arose in the
financial year that would have required a provision or contingent liability due to climate issues. Subsidies in
connection with research and development work are used where possible.

Changes in estimates
There were no significant changes in estimates in the 2022 financial year.
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C16. Leases

All significant individual leases relate to property. The terms of these contracts range between two and 32
years. Some leases provide for an extension option for the lessee, one allows for early termination by the
lessee.

The majority of leases that have property as a leased asset provide for an annual index adjustment, which is
based on local indices.

In terms of volume, most individual contracts in the Rosenbauer Group relate to vehicles. Many of these
contracts can be classified as current. Vehicles that were included in the statement of financial position have
a term of between 12 and 48 months.

Extension and termination options

Some leases within the Rosenbauer Group contain extension or termination options for the lessee. On the
provision date, for each extension or termination option an assessment is made by the Group as to whether the
exercise of the option can be regarded as sufficiently certain. Various factors are taken into account, including
economic barriers.

The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain that an extension option will be exercised if a significant
event or significant change in circumstances occurs that is within its control.

Potential future cash outflows of € 286 thousand (2021: € 912 thousand) were not included in the lease
liability because it is not sufficiently certain that the lease agreements will be extended (or not terminated).

General notes on the accounting of leases

At inception of the lease, the Group assesses whether the agreement constitutes or contains a lease. This is
the case when the agreement gives the right to control the use of an identified asset for a specified period
of time against payment of a fee. In order to assess whether an agreement contains the right to control an
identified asset, the Group uses the definition of a lease in accordance with IFRS 16.

This method was applied to all contracts relevant to IFRS 16.

Low-value leased assets and short-term leases with a term of less than twelve months are not capitalized in
accordance with the exemption option, but are recognized on a straight-line basis.

On the provision date or when an agreement containing a lease component is amended, the Group allocates
the contractually agreed remuneration on the basis of the relevant individual selling prices.
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On the provision date, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at amortized cost, which is equal to the initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted
for payments made on or before the provision date, plus any initial direct costs and the estimated costs of
dismantling or removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is then depreciated on a straight-line basis from the date of provision to the end of the
lease period. In addition, the right-of-use asset is continuously adjusted for impairment where necessary and
adjusted for certain revaluations of the lease liability.

Initially, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments not yet made at the provision
date, discounted at the Group’s incremental financing rate.

To determine its incremental borrowing rate, the Group obtains interest rates from external financial sources
and makes certain adjustments to reflect lease terms and the nature of the asset.



Rosenbauer Annual Financial Report 2022

C17. Consolidated statement of cash flows

The consolidated statement of cash flows is presented using the indirect method. Net interest income (includ-
ing interest from IFRS 16) is a component of net cash flow from operating activities.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
m fixed payments, including de facto fixed payments

m variable lease payments linked to an index or (interest) rate, initially measured on the basis of the index or
interest rate valid on the provision date

B amounts expected to be paid under a residual value guarantee, and

m the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise it, lease payments for
an extension option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise it, and penalties for early termination of
the lease, unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate the lease early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured if future
lease payments change as a result of a change in an index or (interest) rate, if the Group adjusts its estimate
of the expected payments under a residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its assessment regarding the
exercise of a purchase, extension or termination option or if a de facto fixed lease payment changes.

If the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset or, if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero, it is
recognized in profit or loss.

The Group shows right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as separate items in the statement of financial posi-
tion.
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D. Notes to the consolidated statement of
financial position and the consolidated
income statement

D1. Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use assets

The breakdown of the items compiled in the consolidated statement of financial position and their develop-
ment can be found in the consolidated statement of changes in non-current assets. As in the previous year,
property, plant and equipment do not include any investment property.

The Group had contractual obligations to buy property, plant and equipment of € 3,017 thousand as of
December 31, 2022 (2021: € 4,018 thousand).

Property, plant and equipment of € 7,617 thousand was pledged as collateral for liabilities in 2022 (2021:
€ 7,260 thousand). There are no restrictions on title.

Development costs of € 6,271 thousand (2021: € 8,911 thousand) were capitalized as internally developed
intangible assets in the 2022 financial year.
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Cost of acquisition or production Accumulated depreciation Net book value
Change in
As of Jan 1, Currency basis of Adjust-  As of Dec AsofJan 1, Currency Adjust- AsofDec  AsofDec  As of Dec
in € thousand 2022 differences consolidation  Additions  Disposals ments 31,2022 2022 differences  Additions Disposals ments 31,2022 31,2022 31,2021
I. Property, plant and
equipment
1. Land and buildings
a) Land value 14,958 83 0 23 0 0 15,064 40 0 2 0 0 42 15,022 14,918
b) Office and plant buildings 123,349 2,041 0 2,318 1,636 396 126,468 53,732 1,073 4,103 928 0 57,980 68,488 69,617
¢) Outside facilities 10,039 0 0 142 169 0 10,012 5,925 0 489 166 0 6,248 3,763 4,113
d) Investments in non-owned
buildings 12,346 179 0 413 14 0 12,924 6,543 85 965 5 0 7,588 5,336 5,803
2. Undeveloped land 10,572 101 0 89 0 0 10,762 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,762 10,5672
3. Technical equipment and
machinery 68,473 1,052 0 4,476 3,014 -384 70,603 37,182 681 5,725 1,334 -247 42,007 28,595 31,290
4. Other equipment, furniture
and fixture 89,648 577 0 6,056 2,792 505 93,994 64,572 396 7,611 2,133 247 70,693 23,301 25,076
5. Advance payments received
and construction in progress 684 2 0 503 0 -517 672 0 0 20 0 0 20 652 684
330,069 4,035 0 14,020 7,625 0 340,499 167,996 2,235 18,915 4,566 0 184,580 155,919 162,073
Il. Intangible assets
1. Rights/licenses 14,061 80 0 2,899 333 1,409 18,116 8,136 11 1,617 333 0 9,431 8,685 5,925
2. Goodwill 6,618 -18 0 0 0 0 6,600 1,286 0 0 0 0 1,286 5,315 5,333
3. Customer base 7,369 -45 0 0 0 0 7,324 5,469 -31 449 0 0 5,887 1,437 1,900
4. Technology 3,131 0 0 0 0 0 3,131 1,563 0 174 0 0 1,737 1,394 1,568
5. Development costs 39,927 0 0 6,247 -1,258 0 47,432 8,260 0 1,935 0 0 10,195 37,236 31,666
6. Other intangible assets 17 0 1,410 3 -1,409 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 17
71,123 17 0 10,556 922 0 82,618 24,714 -20 4,175 333 0 28,536 54,082 46,409
I1l. Right-of-Use Assets
1. Land and buildings 43,626 668 0 2,686 0 0 46,980 11,465 166 4,839 0 0 16,470 30,511 32,161
2. Undeveloped land 700 41 0 0 0 0 741 136 8 49 0 0 193 548 564
3. Technical equipment and
machinery 5,457 48 0 1,866 0 0 7,371 3,072 11 1,378 0 0 4,461 2,910 2,386
4. Other equipment, furniture
and fixture 196 5 0 0 0 0 201 99 2 36 0 0 137 64 97
49,979 762 0 4,552 0 0 55,293 14,772 187 6,302 0 0 21,261 34,032 35,207

451,171 4814 0 29,128 6,703 0 478,410 207,482 2,402 29,392 4,899 0 234377 244,033 243,689
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Cost of acquisition or production

Accumulated depreciation

Group Management Report | Consolidated Financial Statements | Management Report | Financial Statements 50

Net book value

Change in
As of Jan 1, Currency basgis of Adjust-  Asof Dec Asof Jan 1, Currency Adjust- AsofDec  Asof Dec  As of Dec
in € thousand 2021 differences consolidation Additions Disposals ments 31,2021 2021 differences  Additions Disposals ments 31,2021 31,2021 31,2020
I. Property, plant and
equipment
1. Land and buildings
a) Land value 14,855 103 0 0 0 0 14,958 38 0 2 0 0 40 14,918 14,817
b) Office and plant buildings 117,979 2,226 0 1,759 135 1,520 123,349 48,780 1,075 3,992 115 0 53,732 69,617 69,199
c) Outside facilities 9,630 0 0 459 4 -46 10,039 5,448 0 482 2 -3 5,925 4,113 4,181
d) Investments in non-owned
buildings 10,900 239 0 1,186 148 169 12,346 5,562 133 993 145 0 6,543 5,803 5,338
2. Undeveloped land 10,482 90 0 0 0 0 10,572 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,572 10,482
3. Technical equipment and
machinery 60,874 1,073 0 11,822 5,409 113 68,473 34,140 778 5,972 3,666 -42 37,182 31,290 26,733
4. Other equipment, furniture
and fixture 83,645 640 0 7,702 2,682 343 89,648 59,035 432 7,740 2,532 -103 64,572 25,076 24,610
5. Advance payments received
and construction in progress 1,660 0 0 1,433 119 -2,290 684 0 0 0 0 0 0 684 1,660
310,025 4,371 0 24,361 8,497 -191 330,069 153,005 2,418 19,181 6,460 -148 167,996 162,073 157,020
Il. Intangible assets
1. Rights/licenses 11,331 3 0 3,807 1,285 205 14,061 8,010 1 1,256 1,283 152 8,136 5,925 3,321
2. Goodwill 6,596 22 0 0 0 0 6,618 1,286 0 0 0 0 1,286 5,333 5,311
3. Customer base 7,313 56 0 0 0 0 7,369 4,974 34 461 0 0 5,469 1,900 2,339
4. Technology 3,131 0 0 0 0 0 3,131 1,389 0 174 0 0 1,563 1,568 1,743
5. Development costs 32,223 0 0 7,704 0 0 39,927 6,606 0 1,654 0 0 8,260 31,666 25,616
6. Other intangible assets 15 0 0 17 0 -15 17 4 0 0 0 -4 0 17 11
60,609 81 0 11,528 1,285 190 71,123 22,269 35 3,545 1,283 148 24,714 46,409 38,340
Il. Right-of-Use Assets
1. Land and buildings 36,185 900 0 6,541 0 0 43,626 6,588 164 4,713 0 0 11,465 32,161 29,597
2. Undeveloped land 646 54 0 0 0 0 700 86 7 43 0 0 136 564 560
3. Technical equipment and
machinery 3,721 14 0 1,731 9 0 5,457 1,796 6 1,279 9 0 3,072 2,386 1,926
4. Other equipment, furniture
and fixture 151 4 0 41 0 0 196 56 2 41 0 0 99 97 95
40,703 972 0 8,313 9 0 49,979 8,526 179 6,076 9 0 14,772 35,207 32,177
411,337 5,424 0 44,202 9,791 -1 451,171 183,800 2,632 28,802 7,752 0 207,482 243,689 227,537
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D2. Securities

The securities reported in the consolidated financial statements in the amount of € 685 thousand (2021: € 655
thousand) are assigned to the “Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss” IFRS 9 category. The
securities are listed equities, bonds and units in funds.

D3. Investments in associates

The Group holds a 49% equity investment in a Russian company (PA “Fire-fighting special technics” LLC.;
Russia, Moscow). PA “Fire-fighting special technics” LLC. was deconsolidated as of December 31, 2022 due to

lack of significant influence (see B1. “Companies included in consolidation”).

The reconciliation of the summarized financial information shown to the carrying amount is as follows:

in € thousand 2021 2022
As of Jan 1 1,952 1,573
Share of net profit for the period -500 -218
Foreign exchange differences 121 127
Deconsolidation 0 -1,482
As of Dec 31 1,573 -0

Group Management Report | Consolidated Financial Statements | Management Report | Financial Statements 51

D4. Interests in joint ventures

The Group has a 50% interest in a Spanish company (Rosenbauer Ciansa S.L.). This was founded with the joint
owner and manager of Rosenbauer Espafiola.

The Board consists of four members in total, two of whom appointed by Rosenbauer International AG and two
by the joint venture partner. Rosenbauer International AG is therefore not able to control the relevant activities
of Rosenbauer Ciansa S.L. under this arrangement. In the event of a tied vote on the Board, decisions are made
by an independent business consultant. In the company agreement, Rosenbauer has the option to acquire a
further 12.11% of shares. Exercising this option would not grant Rosenbauer a voting majority on the Board as
voting is per capita and not by voting rights. The company is therefore a joint venture as defined by IFRS 11.

This interest is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method. The joint
venture is not material to the Group.

Development of the carrying amount of the equity investment in the joint venture in Spain:

in € thousand 2021 2022
As of Jan 1 1,669 1,517
Share in total comprehensive income -114 68
Dividend -38 0
As of Dec 31 1,517 1,585

The total comprehensive income of the joint venture does not include any items in other comprehensive
income.
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D5. Deferred taxes

The differences between the carrying amounts in the tax accounts and the IFRS consolidated statement of
financial position result from the following differences and give rise to the following deferred taxes:

Deferred tax 2021 Deferred tax 2022
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The rise in deferred tax assets in 2022 is due to inside basis differences identified in conjunction with the
increased shareholding in Rosenbauer America LLC. In accordance with IAS 12.39, the difference between
the carrying amount and the net assets included in the consolidated financial statements (outside basis dif-
ferences) was not previously recognized. The deferred tax assets resulting from this of € 10,132 thousand
are shown above under “Extraordinary tax write-down” and “Measurement differences on intangible assets”.

in € thousand Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities  Deferred taxes include deferred tax assets of € 901 thousand (2021: € 2,531 thousand) and deferred tax

Outstanding 1/7th write-downs as per liabilities of € 720 thousand (2021: € 13 thousand), which are through other comprehensive income.

section 12 (3) KStG (Corporation Tax Law) 525 0 766 0

Currency forwards, securities (outside profit

or loss) 442 13 0 720 D6. Inventories

Currency forwards, securities (in profit or )

loss) 145 0 1,006 o in€thousand Dec. 31,2021 Dec. 31,2022

IAS 19 measurement in other comprehensive Raw materials and supplies 91,581 131,693

income 2,092 0 901 0 Work in progress 289,116 287,161

Capitalized development costs 0 7,365 0 7,881 Finished goods and goods for resale 17,492 54,972

Measurement differences on receivables 0 255 0 960  Goods in transit 6,197 11,398

Elimination of intercompany profits 1,956 0 1,965 0 Advance payments 3,367 5,540

Extraordinary tax write-down 892 51 4,340 51 407,754 490,763

Measurement differences on provisions and

liabilities 5,366 0 4,815 . . . .

Canitalized loss carrvforwards 5.694 0 - 603 The write-downs for the current year are reported in the income statement in the amount of € 4,322 thousand

v prat2 e yorw - o ’ ’ (2021: € 2,515 thousand) under cost of materials. As in the previous year, no impairment losses were reversed

easurement differences on intangible . ) . . . o

assets 0 1,394 5,564 1,236 in the current financial year. Also, no inventories were pledged as collateral for liabilities.

Leasing according to IFRS 16 9,206 8,947 8,905 8,558

Others 330 403 709 35  D7. Current receivables and other assets

Deferred tax asset/liability 26,648 18,427 36,574 19,441

Netting of deferred tax assets and liabilities -15,293 -15,293 -14,172 14172 = £ thouse?nd Dec. 31,2021 Dec. 31, 2022

Balance sheet approach as of Dec 31 11,354 3,134 22,402 5,269 Trade receivables 129,998 145,743
Receivables from factoring 3,003 806
Receivables from derivatives 394 2,663

Deferred tax assets of € 32,650 thousand as of December 31, 2022 were recognized on tax loss carryforwards  po.qivables from other taxes 5498 4.486

(2021: € 22,785 thousand), these can be used indefinitely. There were loss carryforwards of € 30,913 thou- -

. . K . i Deferred items 5,428 7,227

sand in 2022 (2021: € 0 thousand) for which deferred tax assets were not recognized as their effectiveness -

as ultimate tax relief was not sufficiently assured. For temporary differences of € 66,968 thousand (2021: Other receivables and assets 14,720 17,025

€ 78,334 thousand) from investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, deferred tax liabilities were not 159,040 177,949

recognized pursuant to IAS 12.39, as the parent company can control the timing and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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All current receivables listed in the table above are due within one year. Current receivables and assets of
€ 11,713 thousand (2021: € 10,926 thousand) contain receivables and assets that are not a financial instru-
ment.

The valuation allowances on receivables relate exclusively to trade receivables recorded under current receiv-
ables and, to a lesser extent, to receivables from factoring agreements. Impairment for the current year for
trade receivables with and without credit impairments of € 730 thousand (2021: € 1,211 thousand) is recog-
nized in other expenses. There was no impairment on other financial instruments.

Receivables with credit impairment in € thousand 2021 2022
Impairment as of Jan 1 1,490 2,594
Allocation 1,211 730
Utilization -2 -7
Foreign exchange differences 0 -34
Reversal -105 -195
Impairment as of Dec 31 2,594 3,088
Receivables without credit impairment in € thousand 2021 2022
Impairment as of Jan 1 777 338
Reversal -439 -209
Impairment as of Dec 31 338 129

More details on calculating impairment without credit impairment can be found under C6 Receivables from
derivatives.

New factoring agreements were concluded in the 2022 financial year. Selected receivables from banks
amounting to € 61,956 thousand (previous year: € 65,090 thousand) were sold as of the end of the reporting
period. The receivables relate to vehicle deliveries that are not yet due and are backed by corresponding
collateral. The receivables sold are analyzed according to the derecognition rules of IFRS 9, and qualifying
receivables are derecognized accordingly due to the transfer of control or transfer of risk. The non-prepaid
amount of € 806 thousand (previous year: € 3,003 thousand) is reported under receivables from factoring
agreements.
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The risk most relevant to the risk assessment of the receivables sold is the risk of default, which is regarded
as very low. This is due both to the fact that the customers are predominantly governmental or government-
related organizations and that the receivables are very well secured with letters of credit or other security
instruments on the basis of internal guidelines. There are different types of factoring agreements. Rosenbauer
transfers on the one hand 80% and on the other 100% of the remaining risk of default of the receivables sold
to the banks. The remaining minor 20% del credere risk is provided for in other provisions.

D8. Cash and cash equivalents

in € thousand Dec. 31,2021 Dec. 31,2022
Bank balances 65,371 35,517
Cash and cash equivalents 79 84

65,450 35,601

There were no restrictions on disposal on the amounts included in this item in the previous year.

D9. Equity

At the end of 2022, the share capital amounted to € 13,600 thousand and was divided into 6,800,000 no-par
value shares. 3,665,912 shares are registered shares and 3,134,088 are bearer shares.

The capital reserves originate from the new shares issued on the Vienna Stock Exchange in 1994 and con-
stitute restricted capital reserves that cannot be distributed. The proposal for the appropriation of profits is
based on the separate financial statements of the company prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
UGB (Austrian Commercial Code).

The item “Other reserves” contains the foreign currency translation adjustment, the revaluation reserve,
remeasurements in accordance with IAS 19 and the hedge reserve. The foreign currency translation adjust-
ment contains the translation difference arising from remeasurement of equity as against first-time consolida-
tion. This item also includes differences from foreign currency translation in asset and liability items as against
the previous year’s translation and translation differences between the consolidated statement of financial
position and the consolidated income statement.
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The change in credit risk from the measurement of financial liabilities at fair value is included in the fair value  D10. Non-controlling interests

reserve.
The following table shows the summarized financial information for each subsidiary of the Group with sig-

The change in the hedge reserve results from the remeasurement of currency forwards and interest rate  nificant non-controlling interests before inter-company eliminations. In the financial year 2022 there were

swaps under IFRS 9, taking into account tax effects. dividends paid of € 3,6 10 thousand to non-controlling interests which where acquired in the current year and
which are not shown in the table below.

Measurement differences from callable non-controlling interests are recognized in other comprehensive

income.

Details of reserves can be found in the “Statement of changes in consolidated equity”.

Proposal for the appropriation of profits

The 30th Annual General Meeting of Rosenbauer International AG approved the proposed dividend for the
2021 financial year of € 0.9 per share on May 13, 2022.

The proposal for the appropriation of profits for 2022 is based on the separate financial statements of the
company prepared in accordance with the provisions of the UGB (Austrian Commercial Code). The appropri-
ation of the net retained profits for 2022 in the annual financial statements of Rosenbauer International AG
according to the UGB is as follows:

in € thousand 2021 2022
Accumulated profit of Rosenbauer International AG 6,271 -35,391
Dividends paid out or proposed 6,120 0
Carry forward 151 -35,391

The Executive Board proposes to the Annual General Meeting not to distribute a dividend for the 2022 finan-
cial year.
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Puttable non-controlling
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interests
Immaterial
Rosenbauer non-con-
Rosenbauer  Saudi Arabia trolling
2022 (in € thousand) Rosenbauer Aerials, LLC. Espafola S.A. Ltd. interests Sum
Spanien, Saudi-Arabia,
Based in USA, Nebraska Madrid Riad
Shareholding (= share of voting rights) of
interests held by parent company 50.00% 79.82% 75.00%
Shareholding (= share of voting rights) of
non-controlling interests 50.00% 20.18% 25.00%
Current assets 13,204 25,171 23,522 2,956 51,650
Non-current assets 758 3,230 9,770 200 13,201
Current liabilities 3,502 23,808 27,125 2,775 53,708
Non-current liabilities 0 759 1,208 98 2,066
Consolidated Net assets (100%) 10,461 3,835 4,959 284 9,078
consolidated proportionate net assets 5,230 774 1,240 85 2,099
Revenues 20,279 28,262 23,817 3,352 55,432
Net profit for the period (100%) -29 180 455 232 866
thereof non-controlling
interests -14 36 114 59 209
Other comprehensive
income (100%) 486 0 242 -30 212
thereof non-controlling
interests 243 0 61 -7 54
Total comprehensive
income (100%) 457 180 697 202 1,078
thereof non-controlling
interests 228 36 174 53 263
Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests -968 0 0 0 0
Net cash flow
from operating activities 2,075 1,276 2,786 672 4,734
Net cash flow
from investing activities -237 639 -2,369 -28 -1,759
Net cash flow
from financing activities -2,135 -445 -141 -24 -610
Total net cash flows (100%) -297 1,469 276 621 2,366
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Puttable non-controlling interests
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Non-controlling interests

Immaterial
Rosenbauer Rosenbauer Rosenbauer Rosenbauer Rosenbauer non-con-
America, LLC., Minnesota, South Dakota, Rosenbauer Rosenbauer Rosenbauer  Saudi Arabia d.o.o. trolling
2021 (in € thousand) LLC. LLC. Motors, LLC.  Aerials, LLC. Sum Espaiola S.A. Ltd. Slowenien interests Sum
USA, South USA, USA, South USA, Spanien,  Saudi-Arabia, Slowenien,
Based in Dakota Minnesota Dakota Minnesota USA, Nebraska Madrid Riad Radgona
Shareholding (= share of voting rights) of
interests held by parent company 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 25.00% 62.11% 75.00% 90.00%
Shareholding (= share of voting rights) of
non-controlling interests 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 75.00% 37.89% 25.00% 10.00%
Current assets 1,080 81,358 69,352 31,756 10,694 194,239 14,278 23,546 9,287 1,842 48,952
Non-current assets 59,595 6,954 5,210 1,662 651 74,073 3,915 7,848 9,232 90 21,086
Current liabilities 5,987 75,310 32,310 32,461 2,839 148,908 12,934 25,791 6,018 1,900 46,643
Non-current liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,604 1,341 1,161 0 4,106
consolidation -26,453 -167 -31,398 2,599 -1,147 -56,566 0 0 0 0 0
Consolidated Net assets (100%) 28,235 12,835 10,854 3,556 7,359 62,839 3,655 4,262 11,340 32 19,289
consolidated proportionate net assets 14,117 6,418 5,427 1,778 5,520 33,259 1,385 1,066 1,134 20 3,604
Revenues 0 118,182 144,987 55,597 14,199 15,607 19,907 25,635 2,348
Net profit for the period (100%) -4,259 5,918 11,124 902 1,206 14,891 -79 -143 1,061 -8 830
thereof non-controlling
interests -2,130 2,959 5,562 451 905 7,747 -30 -36 106 -5 36
Other comprehensive
income (100%) -1,984 3,071 2,995 114 499 4,695 0 302 -6 -66 230
thereof non-controlling
interests -992 1,535 1,497 57 374 2,472 0 75 -1 -16 59
Total comprehensive
income (100%) -6,243 8,989 14,119 1,016 1,705 19,585 -79 79 1,055 -74 981
thereof non-controlling
interests -3,121 4,495 7,059 508 1,279 10,219 -30 20 105 -20 75
Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests -5,287 0 0 0 -1,236 -6,523 -48 0 -70 0 -118
Net cash flow
from operating activities -1,541 3,143 14,542 8,655 4,406 29,205 1,054 1,325 4,342 -235 6,487
Net cash flow
from investing activities -3,313 -2,786 -259 -439 -275 -7,071 -619 -1,185 -1,845 -2 -3,651
Net cash flow
from financing activities 4,655 -893 -4,332 -8,015 -2,314 -10,899 -673 -230 -1,142 -2 -2,047
Total net cash flows (100%) -199 -536 9,952 201 1,816 11,235 -238 -90 1,355 -239 789




Rosenbauer Annual Financial Report 2022

Although the Group holds only 50% (202 1: 25%) of the voting rights in Rosenbauer Aerials in 2022, it controls
this company on account of Rosenbauer International AG’s right to cast a deciding vote. In accordance with
the company agreements of these companies, Rosenbauer International AG is authorized to elect half of their
Board members. The Board makes all relevant decisions and determines operational management. A simple
majority is sufficient for this. In the event of a tied vote in the Board, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board
of Rosenbauer International AG, or the Deputy Chairman, has a contractual right to cast the deciding vote.

€ 4,578 thousand was distributed to non-controlling interests in subsidiaries in 2022 (2021: € 6,641 thou-
sand).

D11. Non-current interest-bearing liabilities

This item includes all interest-bearing liabilities to banks and lease liabilities with a remaining term of more
than one year. Details can be found in the list of financial liabilities under note D37. “Risk management”.

D12. Other non-current liabilities

The non-current liabilities are export financing liabilities (2022: € 1,395 thousand; 2021: € 1,210 thousand)
and other non-current liabilities (2022: € 389 thousand; 2021: € 117 thousand). Other non-current liabilities
of € 1,395 thousand (202 1: € 1,210 thousand) contain liabilities that are not a financial instrument.

D13. Non-current provisions

a) Severance provisions

Severance payments are one-time payments which labor law requires to be made to employees on termination
and to employees when they retire. The amount is based on the number of years in service and the amount of
remuneration. Severance provisions are recognized in the amount determined in line with actuarial principles
(for details of the assumptions used in calculation please see note C9.).
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in € thousand 2021 2022
Net present value of obligation as of Jan 1 20,871 20,163
Reclassification 740 0
Current service cost 990 1,021
Interest cost 156 199
Actuarial profits and losses -680 -3,575
Current payments -1,915 -2,396
Net present value of obligation as of Dec 31 20,163 15,412

Actuarial gains and losses include € 347 thousand (202 1: € 58 thousand) due to experience adjustments, €
-3,926 thousand (202 1: €-636 thousand) due to changes in financial assumptions and € 4 thousand (2021: €
-102 thousand) for changes in demographic assumptions.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation for the current financial year is € 15,412 thousand (2021:
€ 20,163 thousand).

The net expenses for severance payments arising from commitments and settlement losses break down as
follows:

in € thousand 2021 2022
Staff costs

Current service cost 990 1,021
Interest expenses

Interest cost 156 199
Net settlement expenses 1,146 1,220

The average term of the defined benefit obligation for severance payments was 9 years as of December 31,
2022 (2021: 11 years).

The sensitivity analysis for severance obligations below shows the effects on obligations resulting from
changes in key actuarial assumptions. In each case one key factor has been changed while the others were
kept constant. However, in reality it is somewhat unlikely that there would be no correlation between these
factors.
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Change in net present value of obligation in € thousand +1% -1%  The net expenses for pensions arising from commitments broke down as follows:
Dec. 31,2022 in € thousand 2021 2022
Interest rate -1,144 1,323  Staff cost
Pay increase 1,307 -1,150 Current service cost 20 13
Longevity -403 120 Interest expenses

Interest cost 43 53
Dec. 31, 2021 Net pension expenses 62 66
Interest rate -1,904 2,258
Pay increase 2,171 -1,874 The average term of the defined benefit obligation for settlement as of December 31, 2022 was 10 years
Longevity 910 34 (2021: 12 years).

b) Provisions for pensions

Within the Rosenbauer Group there are pension schemes that arose on the basis of national legislation or
voluntary agreements. These include both defined benefit and defined contribution plans (for details of the
assumptions used in calculation please see note C9.).

The sensitivity analysis for pension obligations below shows the effects on obligations resulting from changes
in key actuarial assumptions. In each case one key factor has been changed while the others were kept
constant. However, in reality it is somewhat unlikely that there would be no correlation between these factors.

Change in net present value of obligation in € thousand +1%/Jahr -1%/Jahr
in € thousand 2021 2022 pec. 31,2022
Net present value of obligation as of Jan 1 5,489 5,006  |nterest rate -353 418
Current service cost 20 13 Payincrease 381 -330
Interest cost 43 53 Longevity 174 -172
Actuarial profits and losses -258 -766
Current payments -287 292 pec. 31,2021
Net present value of obligation as of Dec 31 5,006 4,014  |pterest rate 525 639
Pay increase 568 -483
Actuarial gains and losses include € 146 thousand (2021: € -80 thousand) due to experience adjustments, Longevity 245 240

€-912 thousand (202 1: €-178 thousand) due to changes in financial assumptions and € 0.0 thousand (2021:
€ 0.0 thousand) for changes in demographic assumptions.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation for the current financial year is € 4,014 thousand (2021:
€ 5,006 thousand).

Further information on staff provisions can be found in the description of accounting policies.
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c) Miscellaneous non-current provisions

in € thousand Dec. 31,2021 Dec. 31,2022
Provisions for long-service bonuses 7,196 5,126
7,196 5,126

Details of the changes in the non-current provisions shown can be found in the “Statement of changes in
provisions” under D20.

D14. Puttable non-controlling interests

This item contains the options to sell held by the US minority shareholder Rosenbauer Aerials LLC., Nebraska,
which can be exercised at any time. The value is calculated from the present value of the payment obligation
from a purchase price formula, which takes into account the earnings values of two past and one future year,
and the equity value. The options held by the minority shareholders of the US holding company Rosenbauer

Group Management Report | Consolidated Financial Statements | Management Report | Financial Statements 59

D16. Contract liabilities

The contract liabilities include payments from the customer in the amount of € 178,599 thousand (2021: €
116,278 thousand), most of which were made for the delivery of firefighting vehicles, as well as accrued reve-
nues from multiple-component arrangements in the amount of € 11,906 thousand (2021: € 14,320 thousand),
relating to performance obligations over time.

D17. Trade payables

The trade payables of € 78,753 thousand (2021: € 63,894 thousand) are due within one year and of € 0

thousand (202 1: € 0 thousand) are due after one year.

D18. Other current liabilities

America LLC., South Dakota, which were exercised in 2022, had still been recognized in the previous year. in € thousand Dec. 31,2021 Dec. 31, 2022

Liabilities from taxes 9,103 11,625
in € thousand 2021 2022 Social security liabilities 2,901 3,142
Net present value of obligation as of Jan 1 67,894 82,269  Liabilities from derivatives 3,061 5,017
Dividend payment -6,523 -4,578  Liabilities from staff obligations 31,467 28,208
Remeasurement 20,898 3,399  Liabilities from commission obligations 6,389 5,841
Excecution of option 0 -67,574  Other liabilities 18,086 32,276
Net present value of obligation as of Dec 31 82,269 13,517 71,007 86,109

D15. Current interest-bearing liabilities

In addition to production or investment loans and lease liabilities, these also include overdrafts as of December
31 of the respective year. Details can be found in the list of financial liabilities under note D37. “Risk manage-
ment”.

The Other liabilities essentially include credit notes and liabilities from outstanding invoices. Other current lia-
bilities of € 42,975 thousand (2021: € 43,47 1 thousand) contain liabilities that are not a financial instrument.

D19. Tax liabilities

Tax liabilities declined from € 9,438 thousand to € 5,757 thousand, essentially on account of payments made
in the current financial year in connection with a tax investigation of the former owner and managing director
of Rosenbauer Brandschutz Deutschland GmbH. The claims originally recognized and announced by the tax
office of € 2,888 thousand were reduced to € 403 thousand in 2022. The legal action initiated against the
former managing director in the previous year is still ongoing, though it was not possible to recognize an asset
for the possibility for recourse under IFRS.
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D20. Other provisions and statement of changes in provisions

Other provisions include warranties and sales risks. Furthermore, a provision of € 4,700 thousand was included
for former members of the Executive Board in the financial year.

Miscellaneous current provisions for 2022 are shown in the “Statement of changes in provisions”.

Details of the assumptions used in calculation can be found under C10 and C15.
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Currency As of Dec 31,
in € thousand As of Jan 1, 2022 differences Allocation Consumption Reversal Compounding 2022
Current
Warranties 12,817 413 3,890 -3,643 -606 0 12,870
Onerous contracts 742 0 1,343 -601 0 0 1,484
Others 3,851 28 8,455 -1,414 -367 0 10,553
Total current provisions 17,410 440 13,688 -5,658 -973 0 24,908
Non-current
Provisions for long-service bonuses 7,196 0 11 -2,070 -104 94 5,126
Total non-current provisions 7,196 11 -2,070 -104 94 5,126
Total 24,606 440 13,699 -7,728 -1,077 94 30,034

The schedule of provisions for severance payments and pensions is contained under D13. “Non-current provisions” in the explanatory notes.
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D21. Revenues
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D22. Cost of sales

The table below shows the breakdown of revenues according to product groups and areas: in € thousand 2021 2022
Other income -2,887 -1,950
2022 Change in inventory of finished goods and work in progress 17,871 -3,817
Areas Costs of goods sold 547,768 572,607
Business units CEEU NISA MENA APAC NOMA PFP Total  Staff costs 171,466 189,605
Vehicles 264,563 69,645 61,287 90,740 229,818 0 716,053  Depreciation and amortization 13,690 14,109
Fire & Safety Equipment 65,263 11,771 7,140 9,031 176 0 93,380  other expenses 70,738 72,790
PFP 400 0 0 0 0 31,800 32,200 818,646 843,344
Customer Service 43,989 14,740 19,641 8,184 9,985 0 96,539
Others 4,143 2,203 2,113 1,895 23,717 0 34,072  In addition to raw materials and supplies, the cost of materials mainly relates to chassis, metal components for
Total Revenue from vehicle bodies, plastic and electronic parts, as well as equipment and purchased parts.
contracts with
customers 378,358 98,360 90,181 109,850 263,696 31,800 972,245  The cost of purchased services mainly includes lease expenses for leased personnel in the operating area,
energy costs and waste disposal costs.
2021
Areas D23. Development and product management
Business units CEEU NISA MENA APAC NOMA PFP Total in € thousand 2021 2022
Vehicles 252,400 67,813 91,137 97,290 _ 231,913 0 740,555 Change in inventory of finished goods and work in progress 229 215
Fire & Safety Equipment 55,338 9,057 14,431 9,462 275 0 88,563 Capitalized development costs 8911 6,271
PFP 68 / 0 0 0 29755 29,830 Costs of goods sold -4,898 -3,947
Customer Service 36,951 14,423 14,877 6,702 5,472 0 78,424 Staff costs 19,146 23,626
Others 2,083 1,910 3,268 3,690 26,788 0 37,738 Depreciation and amortization 3,769 3,285
Total Revenue from
contracts with other expenses 6,045 8,407
customers 346,839 93,210 123,713 117,143 264,451 29,755 975,110 15,381 25,315

Please see the disclosures on the product segments and the segment reporting under note D35. “Segment
reporting” for information on the composition of revenues.

The aggregated amount of the transaction price for not yet fulfilled performance obligations amounted to
€ 1,469.7 million (2021: € 1,145.2 million) at the end of the reporting period. Of this, between 70 and 75%
(2021: 78%) is expected to be recognized as revenues in the following financial year.

Total development costs amount to € 31,586 thousand (2021:

€ 24,292 thousand).
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D24. Selling costs in € thousand 2021 2022
. Audit of group and local accounts 110 113
in € thousand 2021 2022 - -

Other audit related services 18 91
Other income -229 0 -

Other services 35 6
Change in inventory of finished goods and work in progress 32 71 163 210
Costs of goods sold 4,627 3,063
Staff costs 32,752 32,898
Depreciation and amortization 1,809 2,142 . .

P D26. Other operating income
other expenses 23,694 23,517
62,685 61,691  in € thousand 2021 2022

Income from the disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible
The other expenses item mainly includes event costs, travel expenses and costs of the marketing and sales assets 612 1,616
department. Government grants 940 238

Income from rent and insurance 408 902

Reversal of write-downs of provisions 1,267 416
D25. Administration costs Exchange rate gains 2,071 2,358
in € thousand 2021 2022  Sundry 3,718 4,647
Other income -29 -362 9,016 10,176
Change in inventory of finished goods and work in progress 17 -191
Costs of goods sold 6,231 6,418  Government grants primarily relate to grants for employment programs such as partial retirement, trainee
Staff costs 32223 40.255 bonuses and COVID-19 subsidies.
Depreciation and amortization 9,442 10,074 . R X X o R

In particular, other income includes license proceeds, canteens, hospitality and compensation.
other expenses 3,167 4,516

51,051 60,710

The other expenses item mainly includes maintenance costs, legal, auditing and consulting costs, costs of
third-party services and rent and leases. Expenses from leases of low-value assets amount to € 563 thousand
(2021: € 626 thousand), and expenses from short-term leases not including low-value assets amount to € 511
thousand (202 1: € 202 thousand).

Auditor’s fees
Administrative expenses include the following expenses for services provided by the auditor of the consoli-
dated financial statements, KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschaftspriifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft:

D27. Other expenses

in € thousand 2021 2022
Losses from the disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 255 180
Exchange rate losses 1,083 1,818
Other expenses -1 -83

1,337 1,915
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D28. Staff costs and employee disclosures

in € thousand 2021 2022
Wages 97,743 110,349
Salaries 111,760 125,509
Pension costs 1,010 1,001
Expenses for defined contribution plans 7,077 6,906
Expenses for statutory and voluntary social security contributions and levies and
mandatory contributions dependent on pay 37,999 42,619
255,588 286,384
Average number of employees
2021 2022
Workers 2,306 2,263
Salaried emoloyees 1,595 1,669
Apprentices 140 143
4,041 4,075

Expenses for defined contribution plans include expenses for benefits to company pension funds in the amount
of € 1,210 thousand (2021: € 1,166 thousand).

D29. Depreciation and amortization expense on property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
Depreciation and amortization of € 29,392 thousand (previous year: € 28,802 thousand) includes € 6,302

thousand (previous year: € 6,075 thousand) from the amortization of right-of-use assets arising from leases
in accordance with IFRS 16.

D30. Financial income

in € thousand 2021 2022
Income from securities 2 0
Other interest and similar income 614 4,116
thereof from Fair Value evaluation 0 2,900
thereof from FX-profits 406 174
616 4,116
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The fair value measurement results from the financial liabilties designated at fair value.

D31. Finance expenses

in € thousand 2021 2022
Interest and similar expenses 5,957 17,717
thereof from leases in accordance with IFRS 16 924 973
thereof from Fair Value evaluation 0 4,111
thereof from FX-losses 39 85
Interest on non-current staff provisions 199 252
6,156 17,969
The interest expense for long-term anniversary provisions is reported in staff costs.
D32. Income tax
in € thousand 2021 2022
Income taxes 10,821 4,309
thereof previous year 2,214 1,441
Change in deferred income taxes -5,167 -12,113
thereof due to changes in tax rates 43 741
5,655 -7,804

An amount of €-2,348 thousand (202 1: € 1,169 thousand) from the change in deferred taxes was recognized
directly in other comprehensive income in the 2022 financial year.

In the RBI Group, there is a tax group in accordance with Austrian tax law. The parent company is Rosenbauer
International AG. The group members are the Austrian companies Rosenbauer Osterreich GmbH, Rosenbauer
Brandschutz GmbH, APAC-Holding GmbH and Rosenbauer E-Technology Development GmbH. The compensa-
tion is implemented by way of an allocation agreement in which positive tax results are offset at the current
rate of corporation tax. A negative tax allocation is kept on record for the purpose of future offsetting. Income
tax income for all group members amounts to € 939 thousand (202 1: income tax income of € 4,218 thousand).
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The table below shows the causes of the difference between the national income tax expense and the effective

tax expense in the Group:

in € thousand 2021 2022
Profit before income taxes 28,871 -30,151

thereof 25% (202 1: 25%) national income tax expense 7,218 -7,538
Tax relief from partnerships’ -1,475 0
Effect of different tax rates -1,575 -1,177
Permanent differences -177 2,341
Non-recognition of carryforwards 0 7,110
Taxes from previous years 2,214 -9,461
Other -550 921
Effective tax income (-) /expense (+) 5,655 -7,804

' Taxes relating to non-controlling interests

The taxes from previous years include income of € 212 thousand from the reversal of a provision recognized
in the previous year in connection with a tax investigation. Shareholders’ claims to dividends did not give rise

to any tax consequences for the Group in 2022 or 2021.
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D33. Consolidated statement of cash flows

The consolidated statement of cash flows is presented using the indirect method. Cash and cash equivalents
consist exclusively of cash in hand and bank balances. Interest received and paid are assigned to operat-
ing activities. Dividend payments are reported under financing activities. There were non-cash additions to
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment of € 1,732 thousand (2021: € 2,079 thousand) in the
2022 financial year. Non-cash additions to right-of-use assets amounted to € 4,551 thousand in 2022 (2021:
€ 8,313 thousand).

The reconciliation of cash and non-cash changes in liabilities from financing activities is as follows:

Exchange rate
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in € thousand Dec. 31, 2022 Cashflow changes Accured interest non-cash change Dec. 31, 2021
Current interest-bearing financial liabilities 118,805 45,539 761 0 0 72,505
Non-current interest-bearing financial liabilities 202,234 41,152 0 0 0 161,082
Lease liabilities 35,191 -6,074 599 711 3,840 36,115
Liabilities from callable non-controlling interests 13,517 -72,151 0 0 3,399 82,269
Total liabilities from financing activities 369,746 8,465 1,360 711 7,239 351,971
Exchange rate
in € thousand Dec. 31, 2021 Cashflow changes Accured interest non-cash change Dec. 31, 2020
Current interest-bearing financial liabilities 72,505 15,564 539 0 0 56,401
Non-current interest-bearing financial liabilities 161,082 -59,241 604 0 0 219,719
Lease liabilities 36,115 -6,012 814 924 7,390 32,999
Liabilities from callable non-controlling interests 82,269 -6,523 0 0 20,898 67,894
Liabilities from the acquisition of non-controlling interests 0 -781 29 0 0 753
Total liabilities from financing activities 351,971 -56,992 1,986 924 28,288 377,766

Further details on liabilities arising from the acquisition of non-controlling interests can be found in note B1.

The total payments from leases included in the statement of financial position in accordance with IFRS 16
amounted to € 6,074 thousand (2021: € 6,012 thousand) in the financial year.
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D34. Effects of the COVID-19 crisis on the Group’s net assets, financial
position and results of operations

Rosenbauer’s business performance lags behind the economic cycle, so it took a while for the COVID-19
crisis to make an impact. In particular, the negative effects of the COVID-19 crisis and the Russia/Ukraine
conflict caused disruptions in supply chains and the underutilization of plants due to delivery delays in 2022
as well as the deconsolidation of PA “Fire-fighting special technics” LLC. due to lack of significant influence
(see B1. “Companies included in consolidation”). Due to the shifts in revenues and the disruptions to produc-
tion, operating performance and the earnings situation fell short of expectations. The missing parts situation
improved slightly towards the end of the year. Above all, Rosenbauer has again received more truck chassis,
which allowed it to increase the number of units completed. A further easing of the supply chain problems and
a stabilization of the costs of materials are expected by the middle of 2023.

It is positive, however, that the order intake was at a satisfying level in 2022. Demand has not yet suffered from
the ongoing crises. Nonetheless, earnings pressure has grown due to rising material prices, as the necessary
price increases are not easy to implement given the competitive situation.

However, the economic environment is expected to recover in the medium term, and Rosenbauer is particu-
larly well equipped for the future thanks to its advanced technology.

The aid programs set by governments were used to cushion the negative impact on the Group’s net assets,
financial position and results of operations. In particular, the option of short-time working and other measures
to safeguard jobs allowed staff costs to be offset against a grant of € 1,694 thousand (2021: € 9,982 thou-
sand) in the financial year.
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D35. Segment reporting

In accordance with IFRS 8 (“Operating Segments”), segments must be defined and segment information dis-
closed on the basis of internal controlling and reporting. This results in segment reporting presented in line
with the management approach of internal reporting. The Group is managed by the chief operating decision
makers on the basis of sales markets. The development of the market segments is particularly significant in
internal reporting. Segmentation is based on the division of the sales regions (areas) defined by the chief
operating decision makers. In addition to the segments managed by sales markets (areas), the PFP (Preventive
Fire Protection) segment is shown as a further segment in internal reporting.

The following reportable segments have been defined in line with the internal management information system:

The CEEU area (Central and Eastern Europe), the NISA area (Northern Europe, Iberia, South America and
Africa), the MENA area (Middle East and North Africa), the APAC area (Asia-Pacific, Australia, China), the
NOMA area (North and Middle America) and PFP (Preventive Fire Protection).

The chief operating decision makers monitor the EBIT of the areas separately in order to make decisions on the
allocation of resources and to determine the units’ earnings power. Segment performance is assessed on the
basis of EBIT using the same definition as in the consolidated financial statements. However, income taxes are
managed on a uniform Group basis and are not allocated to the individual segments.

Segment reporting refers to the revenues and earnings generated by the individual areas both on their respec-
tive local markets and from export sales.

Country responsibility is being streamlined with effect from January 1, 2023 in order to use synergies to
simplify market development. The NISA area is being dissolved and integrated into the newly established
Americas, Asia-Pacific, Middle East & Africa and Europe sales regions. Preventive Fire Protection activities are
also still presented in a separate segment.

Segment figures have been presented in the tables “Business”, and “Disclosures on business units” and
“Information on geographic areas” for 2021 and 2022.
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Business segments
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2022 (in € thousand) CEEU area NISA area MENA area APAC area NOMA area PFP’ Group
External revenues 378,358 98,360 90,181 109,850 263,696 31,800 972,245
EBIT before share of results of companies accounted for using the equity method 7,579 -3,692 -4,528 -1,332 -9,029 448 -10,554
Profit before income tax (EBT) -15,550 -5,911 1,174 2,953 -14,777 1,960 -30,151
Depreciation -21,765 -640 -1,556 -498 -3,397 -1,536 -29,392
Impairment losses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Finance expenses -13,350 -120 -44 -51 -4,376 -28 -17,969
Financial income 3,388 19 5 16 681 7 4,116
Share in results of companies accounted for using the equity method 0 68 0 -5,812 0 0 -5,744
Further details in the explanatory notes under point D.30.

' Preventive Fire Protection

No customer contributed more than 10% of external revenues in 2022.

As shown above, depreciation and amortization, financial expenses, finance income, and the share of results of companies accounted for using the equity method are allocated according to the locations of Group companies (production-based).

2021 (in € thousand) CEEU area NISA area MENA area APAC area NOMA area PFP' Group
External revenues 346,838 93,210 123,713 117,143 264,451 29,755 975,110
EBIT before share of results of companies accounted for using the equity method 16,673 1,165 5,161 2,520 9,510 -3 35,026
Profit before income tax (EBT) 11,628 969 5,138 2,032 9,129 -25 28,871
Depreciation -21,871 -705 -1,096 -354 -3,178 -1,598 -28,802
Impairment losses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Finance expenses -5,452 -111 -22 -42 -506 -23 -6,156
Financial income 409 29 0 54 124 0 616
Share in results of companies accounted for using the equity method 0 -115 0 -500 0 0 -615

Further details in the explanatory notes under point D.30.
' Preventive Fire Protection
No customer contributed more than 10% of external revenues in 2021.

As shown above, depreciation and amortization, financial expenses, finance income, and the share of results of companies accounted for using the equity method are allocated according to the locations of Group companies (production-based).
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Information on business units
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Revenues

in € million 2021 2022
Vehicles 735 716
Fire & Safety

Equipment 89 93
Preventive Fire Protection (PFP) 30 32
Customer Service 78 97
Others 43 34
Group 975 972

Information on geographic areas

Right-of-use Right-of-use
Revenues Property, plant and equipment Intangible assets Assets Assets
in € thousand 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
Austria 75,848 77,023 86,005 80,456 33,588 41,152 7,117 5,772
USA 221,631 237,630 14,689 14,699 1,129 2,006 8,058 7,709
Germany 203,259 210,810 30,422 28,861 9,491 8,659 14,076 13,624
Saudi Arabia 50,326 28,391 6,607 8,489 0 0 823 715
Rest of the world 424,046 418,391 24,350 23,415 2,201 2,266 5,133 6,212
Group 975,110 972,245 162,073 155,920 46,409 54,083 35,207 34,032
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D36. Capital management

The capital provided by equity and borrowed capital is taken as the basis for capital management in the
Rosenbauer Group.

The financial strategy is designed to support and promote the strategic and operational development of the
company. The aim is to strike a balance between profitability, liquidity and security. Financial and strategic
flexibility must be maintained by ensuring access to capital and advantageous financing conditions at all times.
Sufficient financial strength should enable both operating business and investment projects. The interests of
shareholders and lenders are taken into account in the form of an attractive dividend policy, a stable corporate
credit rating and the reliability and continuity of results and corporate statements. The financial strategy is
an integral part of our business understanding and actions and forms the basis of all major planning and
decision-making processes.

The key financial figures for capital management are the ratio of net debt to EBITDA and the equity ratio.
EBITDA stands for earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. Net debt comprises
interest-bearing liabilities and lease liabilities less cash, cash equivalents and securities. Net debt therefore
amounts to € 319,994 thousand (2021: € 203,597 thousand). EBITDA amounts to € 19,058 thousand in 2022
(2021: € 63,735 thousand). The ratio of net debt to EBITDA is therefore 16.8 (2021: 3.2).

In the case of liabilities from callable non-controlling interests, the business opportunities and risks and the
dividend claim remain with the minority shareholder, so the liability is still economically a minority interest and
not an interest-bearing purchase price liability.

Furthermore, the equity ratio is optimized with total assets management, which ensures the optimization
of restricted current assets with the continuous monitoring of production levels and trade receivables. The
equity ratio is calculated as the percentage of equity to total assets and was 19.1% as of December 31, 2022
(December 31, 2021 restated: 23.6%).
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D37. Risk management

Rosenbauer is exposed to various risks in its business activities. Apart from the global crises (D34.) and the
disclosed tax investigation (C15.), the annual evaluation of the Group companies did not reveal any signif-
icant new or previously unrecognized risks. On the basis of the information currently known, there are no
specific risks to the future of the company as a going concern. The Rosenbauer Group operates globally and
is therefore necessarily exposed to changes and fluctuations in inflation, interest rates and exchange rates.
It is company policy, by closely observing the risk positions that exist and market developments, to balance
risks internally as far as possible, to manage net positions with a view to optimizing earnings and, where
reasonable, to hedge such positions. The goal of currency risk hedging is to create a secure basis of calculation
for construction contracts.

A key area in hedging risks is financial instruments. Financial instruments are contracts that give rise to both a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. In accordance with
IFRS 7, they include on the one hand primary financial instruments such as trade receivables and payables
and financial receivables and liabilities. On the other, they also included derivative financial instruments used
to hedge the risks of changes in exchange and interest rates. Both primary and derivative financial instruments
are reported on below.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized as of the settlement date, i.e. the date on
which the company commits to purchasing the asset.

Given the daily or short-term maturities, the fair value of cash and cash equivalents and short-term invest-
ments, current receivables and liabilities is essentially the carrying amount. At the end of the reporting period
securities were measured with a fair value of € 685 thousand (2021: € 655 thousand). The fair value is
calculated from the market price at the end of the reporting period.

a) Climate and environmental risks

Climate change is also steadily growing in significance in the firefighting industry, so the Rosenbauer Group
has been tackling this issue for many years in order to ensure a timely, solid and effective response to these
risks.

The most immediate risk at present is the transition risk arising from the process of adaptation to a lower-car-
bon and more ecologically sustainable economy. Rosenbauer responded to the adaptation process around
seven years ago and began developing the first hybrid firefighting vehicle, presenting it to the public in 2020.
The vehicle has been very positively received by the market and is currently being transferred to series produc-
tion. However, this novel vehicle is probably just the beginning of an extensive adaptation of the product range
to the new requirements, so research and development costs are expected to remain high. As of the end of
the reporting period, development costs of € 16,640 thousand (202 1: € 14,043 thousand) were capitalized in
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direct connection with this transformation of the product range, and development costs will continue to rise.
The risk lies in the realization of development costs on the market, as these development costs also increase
the products’ production costs. The market is currently accepting of a higher price, particularly because the
products developed so far offer significantly increased efficiency and convenience for fire services. Because
of the higher costs, however, there remains a higher risk of undesirable developments and write-downs of
development costs in the future.

Besides the development costs, rising costs from energy and material purchases are also to be expected, for
example due to carbon pricing or sustainable production processes. There is a risk here that these regulations
do not develop symmetrically in the various markets, so competitors in less regulated markets could enjoy a
cost advantage.

The physical risk of climate change, i.e. the effects of physical events such as droughts, floods, storms, etc.,
has various consequences for Rosenbauer. On the one hand, the locations are of course exposed to an ele-
vated risk (such as water scarcity, extreme weather, heat, etc.), and supply chains can be negative affected by
such events. On the other hand, Rosenbauer offers products and technologies to counter this risk and can do a
lot to mitigate these effects. This not only involves the provision of first-class equipment for disaster response,
such as in the event of forest fires, floods or storms, but also the prevention of such extreme situations.
For Rosenbauer, prevention comes before de-escalation. Early detection plays a key role here - the product
portfolio is being expanded and investments made in software solutions. There is a financial risk that these
cost will not be realized on the market.

Climate and environmental risks are not currently affecting the measurement of assets and liabilities.

b) Credit risk

The risk on receivables can be rated as consistently low on account of the customer structure and the hedging
policy for credit risks. In addition, all customers that wish to do business with the Group on a credit basis are
subject to a credit check. Receivables are also monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group
is not exposed to a significant risk of default. The maximum credit risk and therefore risk of default is equal
to the carrying amounts.

The table below shows the credit risk for the Group’s financial assets:

Dec. 31, 2022

Group Management Report | Consolidated Financial Statements | Management Report | Financial Statements 70

12-month ECL Gross carrying

Net carrying

in € thousand or lifetime ECL amount Impairment amount
Securities n/a 685 0 685
Other financial assets 12m ECL 17,025 0 17,025
Trade receivables Lifetime ECL 148,960 -3,217 145,743
With credit impairment Lifetime ECL 19,508 -3,088 16,420
Without credit impairment Lifetime ECL 129,452 -129 129,324
Cash and cash equivalents 12m ECL 35,601 0 35,601
202,271 -3,217 199,054

Dec. 31, 2021
12-month ECL Gross carrying Net carrying
in € thousand or lifetime ECL amount Impairment amount
12m ECL 0.0 0.0 0.0
Securities n/a 655 0 655
Other financial assets 12m ECL 14,720 0 14,720
Trade receivables Lifetime ECL 132,930 -2,932 129,998
With credit impairment Lifetime ECL 12,687 -2,594 10,093
Without credit impairment Lifetime ECL 120,243 -338 119,905
Cash and cash equivalents 12m ECL 65,450 0 65,450
213,755 -2,932 210,823

Within the EU receivables are mostly from municipal legal entities. If receivables relate to private customers of
low or unknown credit standing, these receivables are insured through the private insurance market.

Receivables from customers outside the EU of low credit standing - including government customers - are
secured with documentary credits or bank guarantees. Alternatively, but also cumulatively, insurance policies
can be concluded with one of the government insurance companies. In Austria this is done with Osterreichische
Kontrollbank AG.
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The diagram below shows the Group’s calculated credit risk exposure for trade receivables using an impair-
ment matrix:

Trade receivables

Without credit impairment

1 to 90 days 91 to 180 Over 180 days With credit
2022 in € thousand not past due past due days past due past due impairment
Estimated total gross carrying
amount in the event of past
due payment 61,790 52,817 9,074 0 19,508
Expected credit losses 28 51 50 0 3,088

Trade receivables

Without credit impairment

1 to 90 days 91to 180 Over 180 days With credit
2021 in € thousand not past due past due days past due past due impairment
Estimated total gross carrying
amount in the event of past
due payment 56,672 40,808 7,463 15,301 12,687
Expected credit losses 38 51 53 196 2,594

c) Market risk

Inflation risk

In the last few decades of low interest rate policies and a threat of deflation, material prices and wage costs
were also easy to predict and therefore easy to calculate in project business. Inflation risk as therefore only
of subordinate importance. However, this situation changed significantly at the end of 202 1. Material prices
climbed sharply due to supply chain disruptions, and in 2022 this was joined by volatile and massively increas-
ing energy prices as a result of the war in Ukraine.

As the time between a binding submission of a tender and actual delivery ranges from several months to over a
year, there is a risk that the actual price increase will exceed the planned price increase. Rosenbauer responds
to these risks with a variety of measures.

In purchasing, chassis are ordered only for specific contracts at fixed prices, so the price risk for chassis can
be ruled out. For other materials, an attempt is made to achieve the highest possible price security by means
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of framework agreements and by coordinating the order times with the production program. Active supplier
management and short-term adjustment of delivery schedules also reduce price risk. In addition, price lists
are reviewed at short intervals and increased at short notice if a further increase in prices is foreseeable.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risks mainly apply to receivables and liabilities with terms of more than one year.

For assets, interest rate risks apply to investment securities. Securities were measured at market value at the
end of the reporting period. It is possible to reduce interest rate risks and optimize income with the regular
monitoring of interest rate developments and the reorganization of securities holdings derived from this.

There are non-current liabilities to banks from loans for various investments in operating activities. However,
more prolonged negative changes in market values can cause the result of operations to deteriorate. A change
in interest rates of +/-1% on the credit portfolio as of the end of the reporting period would have reduced
earnings and equity by € 1,801 thousand (2021: € 1,159 thousand) and respectively increased earnings and
equity by € 1,801 thousand (202 1: € 908 thousand). The sensitivity to current liabilities to banks is negligible.

Globally, the key benchmark rates are being fundamentally reformed, including the replacement of some
Interbank Offered Rates (IBORs) with alternative, virtually risk-free interest rates (referred to as “IBOR reform”).
The Group’s financial instruments are subject to IBORs that will be replaced or reformed as part of these
market-wide initiatives. Rosenbauer has already switched its US dollar contracts to the Secured Overnight
Financing Rate (SOFR). The EURIBOR will be used as a benchmark rate until further notice. The effects of this
are considered immaterial.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument may vary due to
the change in exchange rates. The Group is particularly exposed to exchange rate risks in the course of its
operating activities (if revenue and/or expenses are denominated in a foreign currency). In order to manage
its currency risk, the Group hedges all transactions regarding expected sales and purchases that are expected
to occur in the next twelve months. If a derivative transaction is concluded for the purposes of the hedge,
the Group negotiates the terms of the contract such that the derivative financial instrument is equal to the
risk to be hedged. For the hedge of expected transactions, the derivative financial instrument covers the risk
period from the date at which cash flows from the transaction are forecast to the date at which the liability or
receivable denominated in a foreign currency is settled. The majority of expected foreign currency exposure
from the next financial year is hedged with currency forwards.

Group companies invest in non-current securities almost exclusively in their own currency area, hence there
is no currency risk here.
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In assets, currency risks relate mainly to the US dollar and UAE dirham, resulting from trade receivables
from international customers, from previously agreed contracts and future transactions. Most other markets
invoice in euro. In liabilities, with the exception of trade payables, there are no significant currency risks as
current financing of operating activities is implemented by the Group companies in their own local currency.
Any currency risks from short-term peaks are borne by the company themselves. In addition to hedging with
derivative financial instruments, there is also natural hedging by the positions closed, for example US dollar
trade payables are offset by US dollar receivables.

The table below shows the sensitivity of consolidated earnings before taxes (due to changes in the fair values
of monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity (due to changes in the fair values of currency for-
wards) to a change in exchange rates, considered possible in line with prudent business judgment, affecting
the main currencies relevant to the Group. All other variables remain constant.
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Effect on earnings

before taxes Effect on equity

Exchange rate

in € thousand development 2021 2022 2021 2022
usD +10% 2,589 5,535 -6,469 -8,287
-10% -2,871 -5,598 5,730 7,368
SGD +10% -8 -138 169 -25
-10% 8 138 -169 25
CHF +10% -1 -2 -283 -301
-10% 1 2 283 301
SAR +10% 280 2 219 638
-10% -412 -2 -264 -638
AED +10% 331 -253 -36 -177
-10% -358 222 8 115
GBP +10% -150 -63 5 72
-10% 118 46 -8 -72
RUB +10% -50 157
-10% 50 -157

Derivative financial instruments (hedges)
FX risks are hedged using derivative financial instruments such as FX forwards. There are no derivative finan-
cial instruments without a hedge.

Interest risks are hedged using derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps. Hedges are ini-
tially recognized at fair value when the agreement is entered into and subsequently remeasured at fair value.

In accordance with IAS 32, derivative financial instruments are only offset and reported in the statement of
financial position as a net amount when there is a legal right to do so and it is intended to settle on a net basis.
No offsetting was carried out in 2022 or in the previous year.
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In accordance with IFRS 9, derivatives are classified in the following categories:

Dec. 31, 2022
in € thousand non-current current
Derivatives with positive fair values
Derivatives that are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss
(receivables and other assets) 288
7 288
Dec. 31,2022
in € thousand non-current current
Derivatives with negative fair values
Derivatives that are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss
(other liabilities) 0 592
592
Dec. 31,2021
in € thousand non-current current
Derivatives with positive fair values
Derivatives that are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss
(receivables and other assets) 0 212
212
Dec. 31, 2021
in € thousand non-current current
Derivatives with negative fair values
Derivatives that are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit and loss
(other liabilities) 0 1,149
0 1,149
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Nominal value Fair value
in € thousand 2022 2022
Currency forwards 17,883 -297
Nominal value Fair value
in € thousand 2021 2021
Currency forwards 32,243 -937

The economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument is determined by comparing
the value-determining risk factors. In the event of complete or approximate consistency of the hedged item’s
and hedging instrument’s significant value-determining risk factors, the critical terms match method is used to
provide evidence of the economic relationship. In all other cases, either sensitivity analyses or aspects of the
dollar-offset method, depending on the scale of the value-determining risk factors, are used to demonstrate
the economic relationship.

Deviations in the value-determining risk factors between the hedged item and the hedging instrument give rise
to sources of ineffectiveness. For the hedge of foreign currency risks, deviations in the forward rate between
the hypothetical derivative as the hedged item and the hedging instrument (currency forward) present such a
source of ineffectiveness. Changes in expected timings for the hedged item’s planned cash flows give rise to
ineffectiveness. There was no hedge ineffectiveness in 2022 or 2021.

As the underlying assets of the hedged item and the hedging instrument are always consistent, the accounting
hedge ratio is always 1:1, i.e. the hedging instrument’s designated amount or volume is equal to the hedged
item’s designated amount or volume. Adjustments to the accounting hedge ratio are recognized if the hedge
ratio has an imbalance that would result in ineffectiveness, with potential consequences for accounting that
are incompatible with the purpose of hedge accounting.
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In accordance with IFRS 9, derivatives are classified in the following categories:

Dec. 31, 2022

Change in the value of
hedging instruments as
the basis for calculating

Dec. 31, 2021

Change in the value of
hedging instruments as
the basis for calculating

in € thousand non-current current ineffectiveness iy € thousand non-current current ineffectiveness

Derivatives with positive fair values Derivatives with positive fair values

Cash‘flow hedge derivatives Cash flow hedge derivatives

(receivables and other assets) 182 2,186 2,367 (receivables and other assets) 145 37 182

Total 182 2,186 2,367 Total 145 37 182
Dec. 31, 2022

Change in the value of
hedging instruments as
the basis for calculating

Dec. 31, 2021

Change in the value of
hedging instruments as
the basis for calculating

in € thousand non-current current ineffectiveness iy € thousand non-current current ineffectiveness
Derivatives with negative fair values Derivatives with negative fair values

Cash flgw .he.dge derivatives Cash flow hedge derivatives

(other liabilities) 13 301 315 (other liabilities) 47 1,704 1,751
Total 13 301 315  Total 47 1,704 1,751
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Nominal Nominal

Maximum Average values Fair value Maximum Average values Fair value
2022 term forward rate in € thousand in € thousand 2021 term  forward rate in € thousand in € thousand

Currency forwards Currency forwards
usb Sale Sep. 28,2023 1.0739 45,248 -90 USD Sale Mar. 30, 2023 1.1827 35,235 -1,453
AED Sale Mar. 6, 2024 3.8966 3,122 64 ZAR Sale Jan. 31, 2022 19.6655 127 -10
SEK Sale Nov. 24,2023 10.2465 18,487 1,435 AED Sale Jun. 30, 2022 4.4557 1,302 -90
CAD Sale Nov. 20, 2024 1.2991 16,378 593 GBP Sale Feb. 3, 2022 0.8854 124 -7
CAD Buy Oct. 31, 2024 1.3347 1,409 -11  SEK Sale Nov. 24, 2023 10.0376 23,873 190
NzD Sale Aug. 25, 2023 1.6530 429 13 SEK Buy Feb. 28, 2022 10.0720 546 -10
AUD Sale Oct. 25, 2023 1.5345 1,662 42  CAD Sale Jun. 7, 2023 1.2645 14,480 22
AUD Buy Feb. 24,2023 1.5737 635 1 CAD Buy Mar. 11, 2022 1.2892 253 5
HKD Sale Jul. 31, 2024 8.4586 2,500 7 NzD Sale Sep. 1, 2022 1.6997 1,909 -28
SAR Sale Jul. 27,2023 3.9267 1 -0 AUD Sale Jul. 25, 2022 1.5920 1,726 -30
89,872 2,053 RON Sale Jan. 27, 2022 4.9860 6,318 -33
SAR Sale Jan. 31,2022 4.5038 2,098 -126
87,989 -1,569

The following items were hedged:
2022

Risk in € thousand

Change in the value
of the hedged item

Reserve status

Foreign currency risk

-2,053

1,616

Risk in € thousand

2021

Change in the value
of the hedged item

Reserve status

Foreign currency risk

1,569

-1,268
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The table below shows the change in the hedge reserve: Level 1 Level 2
in € thousand 2021 2022 2021 2022
Foreign currency risk Derivative financial instruments trough profit
in € thousand 2021 2022  and loss
Value as of Jan 1 2,745 -1,268 Positive fair value 212 295
Gains/losses of the effective part from the change in fair value of hedging Negative fair value 1,149 592
instruments -1,651 1,999 Derivative financial instruments through OCI
Deferred tax thereon in OCI 437 -452 Positive fair value 182 2367
Gains/losses reclassified to the income statement -3,732 1,782 Negative fair value 1751 315
thereof deferred tax 933 -446 . -
Zinssicherungsgeschéfte
Carrying amount as of Dec 31 -1,268 1,616 Positive fair value 0 0
Negative fair value 161 4,111
. oo . . . . . . Interest-bearing liabilities mandatorily
The financial investments available for sale shown in the following table as level 1 include - as in the previous  gegignated as effective at fair-value through
year - listed equities and units in funds. The fair value of currency forwards and interest rate swaps shown as  profit and loss
level 2 is determined - as in the previous year - by reference to bank valuations based on recognized math- Positive fair value 4,028
ematical measurement models (discounted cash flow method on the basis of current interest and currency Negative fair value 0 0
future yields based on interbank mid-rates as of the end of the reporting period). The interest rate hedging - :
. R X . o2 R Investments mandatorily at fair-value through
relates to the hedging of parts of the promissory note interest. Financial liabilities at fair value are shown under profit and loss
level 2. The significant inputs used for measurement at fair value are not based on observable market data. In " -
Positive fair value 655 685

2022 - as in the previous year - there were no reclassifications between level 1 and level 2 or vice versa. There
was no change in the measurement method.

Negative fair value

For non-controlling interests see chapter C11. “Liabilities” and D10. “Non-controlling interests”.

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of not being able to settle the liabilities due on time. Liquidity in the Group is deter-
mined by means of corresponding monthly rolling liquidity planning and secured by sufficient medium- and
long-term credit facilities.

The promissory note agreements were entered into in the 2019 financial year with a nominal volume of
€ 127.5 million and $ 10 million. Their carrying amounts are € 106.5 million (2021: € 127.5 million) and
$ 3.0 million (2021: $ 10.0 million) as of December 31, 2022. The promissory note agreements include an
agreement on a financial covenant of an IFRS consolidated equity ratio of at least 20%. Failure to comply with
this financial ratio entitles the lender to terminate the respective financing agreement. The financial covenant
was suspended as of December 31, 2022 and must be satisfied again as of December 31, 2023.
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A syndicated loan with a volume of € 170.0 million was agreed in 2020. An extension of its volume is possible.
The term is three years with an extension option of one year in each case. There are liabilities from the syndi-
cated loan of EUR 35 million (202 1: EUR 0 million) as of December 31, 2022. A credit facility of € 40.0 million
was agreed in the 2021 financial year with a carrying amount of € 32 million as of December 31, 2022 (2021:
€ 40.0 million). Furthermore, financing of $ 77.3 million was raised for the acquisition of non-controlling inter-
ests in the US in the 2022 financial year. The financing agreements contain financial covenants that stipulate
firstly an IFRS consolidated equity ratio of at least 20% and secondly that the ratio of net debt to EBITDA must
not exceed a factor of 5 (factor of 6 as of December 31, 2023 and a factor of 5 in the subsequent financial
years). Failure to comply with these financial ratios entitles the lender to terminate the respective financing
agreement. The financial covenants were suspended as of December 31, 2022 and must be satisfied again as
of December 31, 2023.

The Rosenbauer Group also has a loan agreement for a volume of $ 40.0 million with a carrying amount of
$ 12.9 million (2021: $ 2.5 million). This loan agreement contains financial covenants. Failure to comply with
these financial ratio entitles the lender to terminate the financing agreement. The financial covenants were
suspended as of December 31, 2022.

Total interest-bearing financial liabilities amount to € 321,039 thousand (2021: € 233,587 thousand). The
average interest rate amounts to 3.5% (2021: 1.5%). As the incidental costs of the financial liabilities shown in
the table below with the nominal interest rates are low, the nominal interest rate is approximately the effective
interest rate, hence there is no impact on the net assets, financial position or results of operations.

The tables below show the structure of interest-bearing financial liabilities as of December 31, 2022 and the
structure of trade payables and other liabilities.

Interest-bearing financial liabilities
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in € thousand Dec. 31,2021 Dec. 31,2022
Interest rate agreement and maturity
Fixed, current 47,238 85,018
Fixed, non-current 68,556 55,956
Floating rate, current 25,267 33,786
Floating rate, non-current 92,526 146,278
Total interest-bearing liabilities 233,587 321,039
Currencies
€ 231,001 227,474
CHF 484 0
AUD 0 0
BND 0 0
SGD 177 0
usD 1,922 93,564
ZAR 2 1
233,587 321,039
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Maturity structure
The figures shown in the table below reflect the undiscounted cash flows, hence they may differ from the carrying

amounts.

in € thousand Total Up to 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years More than 5 years
Interest-bearing liabilities (current and non-current)

2022 362,315 132,591 75,422 87,625 66,676
2021 233,587 72,505 19,227 141,725 130

Trade payables
2022 78,753 78,753 0 0 0
2021 63,894 63,894 0 0 0

Leas liabilities
2022 35,191 6,544 5,633 12,189 10,825
2021 36,115 5,632 5,406 13,277 11,800

Puttable non-controlling interests
2022 13,517 13,517 0 0 0
2021 82,269 82,269 0 0 0

Other liabilities from financial instruments (without derivative liabilities) (current and non-current)
2022 38,506 38,117 315 74 0
2021 24,592 24,475 117 0 0

The fair value of non-current loan liabilities bearing interest at fixed rates is € 87,572 thousand (2021: € 68,246
thousand). The inputs for calculating the fair value of non-current loan liabilities bearing interest at fixed rates are
assigned to level 2 of the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy. The fair value of non-current loan liabilities bearing interest at
fixed rates was calculated using a DCF method and a standard discount rate.
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The table below shows the undiscounted cash flows from derivative liabilities.

in € thousand Total Up to 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years 4 to 5 years More than 5 years
Derivative liabilities (current and non-current)

2022

Inflow 56,259 54,749 1,510 0
Outflow -57,166 -55,642 -1,623

Balance -907 -893 -13 0
2021

Inflow 88,861 84,147 4,714 0
Outflow -91,761 -86,999 -4,762

Balance -2,900 -2,853 -47 0
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d) Reconciliation of carrying amounts under IFRS 7Additional information on financial instruments in accordance with IFRS 7:

Designated as
effective at fair
value through

Mandatorily
measured at fair
value through

Measured at fair
value through

other comprehen-

Measured at

Not a financial
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Derivative financial instruments profit and loss profit and loss sive income amortized cost instrument Carrying amount Fair Value
Trading Hedge Accounting Dec. 31,2022 Dec. 31, 2022
ASSETS
Other non-current assets 0 0 685 0 0 0 685 685
Trade receivables 0 0 0 60,211 85,532 0 145,743 145,743
Income tax receivables 0 0 0 0 0 542 542 542
Other current assets 0 0 0 0 17,830 11,713 32,206 32,206
Cash and cash equivalents 0 0 0 0 35,601 0 35,601 35,601
LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing non-current liabilities 0 47,972 0 0 154,262 0 202,234 190,072
Non-current lease liabilities 0 0 0 0 28,648 0 28,648 28,648
Other non-current liabilities 0 0 0 0 389 1,395 1,784 1,784
Puttable non-controlling interests 0 0 0 13,517 0 0 13,517 13,517
Interest-bearing current liabilities 0 0 0 0 118,805 0 118,805 118,805
Current lease liabilities 0 0 0 0 6,543 0 6,543 6,543
Trade payables 0 0 0 0 78,753 0 78,753 78,753
Other current liabilities 0 0 0 38,117 42,975 86,109 86,109




Rosenbauer Annual Financial Report 2022

Group Management Report | Consolidated Financial Statements | Management Report | Financial Statements 81

Designated as
effective at fair
value through

Mandatorily
measured at fair
value through

Measured at fair
value through

other comprehen-

Measured at

Not a financial

Derivative financial instruments profit and loss profit and loss sive income amortized cost instrument Carrying amount Fair Value
Trading Hedge Accounting Dec. 31,2021 Dec. 31, 2021
ASSETS
Other non-current assets 0 0 655 0 0 0 655 655
Trade receivables 0 0 0 61,733 68,265 0 129,998 129,998
Income tax receivables 0 0 0 0 0 529 529 529
Other current assets 0 394 0 0 0 17,723 10,926 29,042 29,042
Cash and cash equivalents 0 0 0 0 0 65,450 0 65,450 65,450
LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing non-current liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 161,082 0 161,082 158,626
Non-current lease liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 30,483 0 30,483 30,483
Other non-current liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 117 1,210 1,327 1,327
Puttable non-controlling interests 0 0 0 0 82,269 0 0 82,269 82,269
Interest-bearing current liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 72,505 0 72,505 72,505
Current lease liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 5,632 0 5,632 5,632
Trade payables 0 0 0 0 0 63,894 0 63,894 63,894
Other current liabilities 161 2,900 0 0 0 24,475 43,471 71,007 71,007
e) Net results by measurement category In determining the net results from financial instruments, impairment and reversals, income and expenses from
the foreign currency translation, gains or losses, and other changes to the fair values of financial instruments

in € thousand 2021 2022 through profit or loss are included.
Mandatorily at fair value through profit and loss -577 1,140
At fair value through other comprehensive income -1,944 -5,126
Financial assets at amortized cost -2,152 -7,282

Total -4,673 -11,268
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E. Other Disclosures

E1. Events after the end of the reporting period

The Rosenbauer Group was targeted by a cyberattack in February 2023. The immediately assembled task
force worked with external cybersecurity and data forensics experts and was able to safeguard and quickly
restore system operations. The cyberattack caused brief disruptions to operations, in particular in line produc-
tion. A detailed assessment of any consequential damages is not yet possible at this time.

There have been no other events of particular significance for the company that occurred after the end of the
reporting period on December 31, 2022, that would have altered its net assets, financial position or result of
operations.

E2. Contingent liabilities

Rosenbauer International AG has not issued any liability statements for the benefit of non-Group companies.
There are also no further contingent liabilities that will give rise to significant liabilities.
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E3. Related party disclosures
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Subsidiaries
2021 2022

Investment Type of Investment Type of
in € thousand Currency share' in % consolidation share' in % consolidation
Rosenbauer Osterreich GmbH, Austria, Leonding EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Brandschutz GmbH, Austria, Leonding EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer E-Technology Development GmbH, Austria, Leonding EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer E-Commerce GmbH, Austria, Leonding ? EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer APAC Holding GmbH, Austria, Leonding ? EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Deutschland GmbH, Germany, Luckenwalde EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Karlsruhe GmbH / formerly Rosenbauer Management GmbH EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer France S.A.R.L., France, Meyzieu EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Finanzierung GmbH, Germany, Passau EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Brandschutz Deutschland GmbH, Germany, Mogendorf EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer d.o.o., Slovenia, Radgona EUR 90 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Rovereto S.r.l., Italy, Rovereto EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Italia S.r.l., Italy, Andrian EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Schweiz AG, Switzerland, Oberglatt EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Espanola S.A., Spain, Madrid EUR 62.1 KV 79.8 KV
Rosenbauer Ciansa S.L., Spain, Linares EUR 50 AE 50 AE
Rosenbauer Polska Sp.z. 0.0., Warsaw, Poland EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Minnesota, LLC., ¥ USA, Minnesota EUR 50 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer South Dakota, LLC., ¥ USA, South Dakota EUR 50 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Holdings Inc., USA, South Dakota EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer America, LLC., ¥ USA, South Dakota EUR 50 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Aerials, LLC., ¥ USA, Nebraska EUR 25 KV 50 KV
Rosenbauer Motors, LLC., ¥ USA, Minnesota EUR 50 KV 100 KV
S.K. Rosenbauer Pte. Ltd., Singapore EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Australia Pty. Ltd., Australia, Brisbane EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Eskay Rosenbauer Sdn Bhd, Brunei EUR 80 KV 80 KV
Rosenbauer South Africa (Pty.) Ltd., South Africa, Halfway House EUR 75 KV 75 KV
Rosenbauer Saudi Arabia, Saudi Arabia, Riad EUR 75 KV 75 KV
Rosenbauer Mena Trading - FZE, United Arab Emirates, Dubai EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer UK plc, United Kingdom, Holmfirth EUR 100 KV 100 KV
Rosenbauer Fire Fighting Technology, People’s Republic of China, Kunming ? EUR 100 KV 100 KV
PA "Fire-fighting special technics" LLC., Russia, Moscow ° EUR 49 AE

"ndirect shareholding
2 Foundation in 2021

3 Incorporation 2021 of Rosenbauer Karlsruhe GmbH & Co.KG into Rosenbauer Management GmbH, Renaming to Rosenbauer Karlsruhe GmbH
% Rosenbauer International AG has the right to cast the deciding vote in the event of a tie
91n 2022 PA "Fire-fighting special technics" LLC. will be reported under other non-current financial assets.
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As the parent company, Rosenbauer International AG forms a group as referred to by section 9 of
Korperschaftsteuergesetz (KStG - Austrian Corporation Tax Act) with the group members Rosenbauer
Osterreich GmbH, Rosenbauer Brandschutz GmbH, Rosenbauer E-Technology Development GmbH and APAC
Holding GmbH. The compensation is implemented by way of an allocation agreement in which positive tax
results are offset at the current rate of corporation tax. A negative tax allocation is kept on record for the
purpose of future offsetting.
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E4. Remuneration of persons in key functions

The Executive Board bonus is calculated from the degree of target attainment of EBT and ROCE in the respec-
tive financial year. The target is set by the Supervisory Board for two financial years at a time.

Executive Board

2022 in € thousand Remuneration fix Remuneration variable Sum
At Rosenbauer, related parties are divided into subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and key management.
Key management comprises the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board (see E4. Remuneration of persons Siegel 253 100% 0 0% 253
in key functions). Wolf 359 100% 0 0% 359
Transactions with related parties are described below; all transactions were performed on an arm’s length Zeller 356 100% 0 0% 356
basis: Tomaschko 357 100% 0 0% 357
Richter 25 100% 0 0% 25
Joint ventures Associated companies Sum 1,350 100% 0 0% 1,350
in € thousand 2021 2022 2021 2022
Sale of goods 3 9 2,453 _ 2021 in € thousand Remuneration fix Remuneration variable Sum
Purchase of goods 2,268 2,790 - -
Receivables _ 3 2,246 _ Siegel 421 61% 268 39% 689
Liabilities 491 837 _ 39  Zeller 288 73% 104 27% 392
Loans 1,000 1,000 _ _ Tomaschko 291 74% 104 26% 395
Wolf 288 73% 104 27% 392
Sum 1,288 69% 580 31% 1,868
The purchases of goods listed relate in particular to vehicles supplied by the Spanish joint venture Rosenbauer
Ciansa to the Spanish subsidiary. In particular, sales of goods listed with associated companies and receiva-
bles relate to goods supplied by the parent company to the Russian partner company PA “Fire-fighting special
technics” LLC; Russia, Moscow). Supervisory Board
2022 in € thousand Remuneration fix Remuneration variable Sum
The Rosenbauer Group employs one family member of an active member of the Executive Board at arm’s-
length conditions. Reisinger 38 100% 0 0% 38
Siegel 38 100% 0 0% 38
Matzner 28 100% 0 0% 28
Zehnder 23 100% 0 0% 23
Sum 127 100% 0 0% 127
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2021 in € thousand Remuneration fix Remuneration variable Sum
Reisinger 38 76% 12 24% 50
Siegel 38 76% 12 24% 50
Matzner 28 76% 9 24% 37
Zehnder 23 72% 9 28% 32
Sum 127 75% 42 25% 169

CEO Dieter Siegel was removed from office on July 31, 2022. Accordingly, remuneration of € 181 € thousand
was paid out and a provision for future claims of € 4,700 thousand were recognized from August 1, 2022 (term
of Executive Board until 2026).

E5. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated in accordance with IAS 33 (“Earnings Per Share”) by dividing the profit or
loss for the period after deducting non-controlling interests by the number of shares outstanding. As there
were no “dilutive potential ordinary shares” outstanding, the “diluted earnings per share” are equal to “basic

earnings per share”.

The calculation is as follows:

2021 2022
Profit or loss for the period
after deducting non-controlling interests in € thousand 15,433 -24,259
Average number of shares outstanding units 6.800.000 6.800.000
Basic earnings per share in €/share 2.27 -3.57
Diluted earnings per share in €/share 2.27 -3.57

There were no transactions with potential ordinary shares in the period between the end of the reporting
period and the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
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E6. Executive bodies of the company
Supervisory Board

m Christian Reisinger, Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Date of first appointment: May 25, 2006; End of current term of office: 2026 Annual General Meeting

m Rainer Siegel, Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Date of first appointment: May 29, 2009; End of current term of office: 2024 Annual General Meeting

® Bernhard Matzner, Member of the Supervisory Board
Date of first appointment: May 18, 2017; End of current term of office: 2027 Annual General Meeting

® Martin Paul Zehnder, Member of the Supervisory Board
Date of first appointment: May 18, 2018; End of current term of office: 2023 Annual General Meeting

Works Council Delegates to the Supervisory Board:
®m Rudolf Aichinger
m Wolfgang Untersperger

Executive Board

m Sebastian Wolf, Chairman of the Executive Board from August 1, 2022

m Dieter Siegel, Chairman of the Executive Board until July 31, 2022

®m Andreas Zeller, Deputy Chairman of the Executive Board

m Daniel Tomaschko, Member of the Executive Board

m Markus Richter, Member of the Executive Board since December 1, 2022

Leonding, April 6, 2023

S CheZe oot \u;\s

Sebastian Wolf Andreas Zeller Daniel Tomaschko Markus Richter
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Auditor’s Report

Report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Audit Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rosenbauer International AG, Leonding, Austria,
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, and the consolidated income statement and presentation of the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, changes of consolidated equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and the explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements comply with the legal requirements and present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and its
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU, and the additional requirements
pursuant to Section 245a UGB (Austrian Commercial Code).

Basis for our Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the EU Regulation 537 /2014 (“AP Regulation”) and Austrian
Standards on Auditing. These standards require the audit to be conducted in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities” section of our report. We are independent of the audited Group in accordance with Austrian
company law and professional regulations, and we have fulfilled our other responsibilities under those relevant
ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained up to the date of the auditor’s
report is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on this date.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, however, we do not provide a separate opinion thereon.
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We have identified the following particularly important examination issues:

®m |Impairment of accounts receivables
® Revenue recognition (cut-off)
® Provision for onerous contracts

Impairment of accounts receivables

See notes chapter C “Accounting and Valuation Principles”, Section C6 “Accounts receivables”, as well as
chapter D “Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Balance Sheet and Consolidated Income Statement”,
Section D7 “Short-Term Receivables and Other Assets” and Section D37 “Risk Management.”

Risk for the Consolidated Financial Statements
In the consolidated financial statements of Rosenbauer International AG as at 31 December 2022, receivables
from sales and services amounting to €145.7 million are reported.

The Group determines on each balance sheet date whether there is an impairment of a financial asset or a
group of financial asset. The impairment allowance for accounts receivables is calculated according to the
simplified model (expected credit losses due to all possible default events during the expected term). External
forecasts on the prospective economic development are taken into account.

The main risk here is the correct derivation of the valuation matrix for customer receivables, the inclusion of
prospective factors, and the assessment of the willingness and ability of customers to pay the contractual
consideration in full - particularly those with overdue receivables.

Our Response
In the audit of the impairment of accounts receivables, we performed the following significant audit proce-
dures:

m We obtained an understanding of the process and the controls implemented to monitor the risk provision of
customer receivables and critically analyzed whether these processes are suitable to identify credit losses
and appropriately reflect the impairment of customer receivables.

m Furthermore, we carried out sample testing to examinewhether anyindicators of credit losses existed and
whether risk provisions and impairment allowances were adequately formed. The selection of the sample
was risk-oriented, based on an analysis of the overdue customer receivables as at 31December 2022.

m We also conducted discussions with management regarding positions based on discretionary decisions
and judgements. We reviewed and paid particular attention to any contractual discretionary decisions and
judgements included in the documentation received, and other internal and external information, as part of
our audit work.
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m Additionally, we performed testing on paid customer receivables as at the audit date by verifying customer
payment receipts and thusly proving whether an impairment requirement existed or not.

m For all general non-specific allowances impairment losses for which the risk provision was calculated based
on the Expected Credit Losses (general impairment loss) according to IFRS 9, we reviewed the derivation of
the impairment loss matrix, the correct calculation method of the valuation model, and the underlying basic
data. In addition, the selection and measurement of future-oriented estimates were critically assessed for
comprehensibility and plausibility.

Revenue recognition (Cut-Off)

See notes chapter C “Accounting and Valuation Principles,” Section C6é “Trade Receivables,” as well as chapter
D “Explanatory Notes to the Consolidated Balance Sheet and Consolidated Income Statement,” Section D7
“Current Trade Receivables and Other Assets” and Section D37 “Risk Management.”

Risk for the Consolidated Financial Statements

In the consolidated financial statements of Rosenbauer International AG as at 31 December 2022, revenues
of €972.2 million are reported. The proper recognition of revenues is assessed in accordance with IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers in the Rosenbauer International AG Group.

For (potential) investors and financial statement users, revenue recognition is a key decision criterion for
evaluating the company’s market performance and development.

The risk for the financial statements is that revenue recognition was not properly recorded due to an incorrect
assessment of the control criterion for the transfer of risks and rewards. Additionally, there is a risk that
special cases in revenue recognition (such as bill-and-hold agreements) are not appropriately evaluated.

Our Response
In the audit of revenue recognition, we performed the following significant audit procedures:

® We gained an understanding of the revenue recognition process and evaluated the design and implementa-
tion of controls related to the proper recognition of revenues.

m Using substantive audit procedures (cut-off testing), we verified whether revenue was properly recognized
during the reporting period.

m We evaluated samples of revenue cancellations after the reporting date, as well as sales transactions
shortly before the reporting date to ensure the correct recognition of revenue transactions.

m Furthermore, we conducted a confirmation of balances based on a statistical selection.
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Provision for onerous contracts

See notes chapter C “Accounting and Valuation Principles,” Section C6é “Trade Receivables,” as well as chapter
D “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,” Section D7 “Current Trade Receivables and Other Assets,”
Section D20 “Other Provisions and Changes in Provisions,” and Section D37 “Risk Management.”

Risk for the Consolidated Financial Statements

In the consolidated financial statements of Rosenbauer International AG as at 31 December 2022, provisions
for loss contingencies of €1.5 million are disclosed. These primarily relate to manufacturing orders at the
beginning of a project, when the greatest impact from market volatility exists and cannot yet be reflected in
inventory valuation.

Due to the high inflation and difficult market conditions present in the 2022 fiscal year, there is a risk for the
financial statements that an insufficient provision for loss contingencies has been recognized.

Our Response
In auditing the provision for loss contingencies, we performed the following significant audit procedures:

m We obtained an understanding of the process for determining and calculating the provision for loss con-
tingencies and assessed the design and implementation of controls related to the complete and accurate
recognition of the provision.

m We conducted discussions with management regarding input parameters that are based on management’s
discretion and critically evaluated their (logic and comprehensibility)and plausibility . We placed special
emphasis on the discretionary elements in the documentation and other internal and external information
obtained.

m We reviewed the calculation of the provision for loss contingencies for the correct application of the valua-
tion model and underlying data.

Other Information
Management is responsible for other information. Other information is all information provided in the annual
report and the annual financial report, other than the consolidated financial statements, the group manage-

ment report and the auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover other information and we do not provide
any kind of assurance thereon.

In conjunction with our audit, it is our responsibility to read this other information and to assess whether,
based on knowledge gained during our audit, it contains any material inconsistencies with the consolidated
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financial statements or any apparent material misstatement of fact. If we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of fact in other information, we must report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU, the additional
requirements pursuant to Section 245a UGB (Austrian Commercial Code) and for such internal controls as
management determines are necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Management is also responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless man-
agement either intents to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our audit opinion. Reasonable assurance represents a high level of assurance, but provides no
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the AP Regulation and Austrian Standards on Auditing
(and therefore ISAs), will always detect a material misstatement, if any. Misstatements may result from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the AP Regulation and Austrian Standards on Auditing, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Moreover:

m We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, we design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain suf-
ficient and appropriate audit evidence to serve as a basis for our audit opinion. The risk of not detecting
material misstatements resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
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collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or override of internal control.

We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting esti-
mates and related disclosures made by management.

We conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our audit report to the respective note
in the consolidated financial statements. If such disclosures are not appropriate, we will modify our audit
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, includ-
ing the notes, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsi-
ble for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, amongst other matters, the planned scope and tim-
ing of our audit as well as significant findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We communicate to the audit committee that we have complied with the relevant professional require-
ments in respect of our independence, that we will report any relationships and other events that could
reasonably affect our independence and, where appropriate, the related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit i.e. key audit matters. We describe these key audit matters in our auditor’s report
unless laws or other legal regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or when in very rare
cases, we determine that a matter should not be included in our audit report because the negative conse-
quences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal Requirements

Group Management Report

In accordance with Austrian company law, the group management report is to be audited as to whether it is
consistent with the consolidated financial statements and prepared in accordance with legal requirements.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the group management report in accordance with Austrian
company law.
We have conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted standards on the audit of group manage-
ment reports.

Opinion

In our opinion, the group management report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and
has been prepared in accordance with legal requirements. The disclosures pursuant to Section 243a UGB
(Austrian Commercial Code) are appropriate.

Statement

Based on our knowledge gained in the course of the audit of the consolidated financial statements and our
understanding of the Group and its environment, we did not note any material misstatements in the group
management report.

Additional Information in accordance with Article 10 AP Regulation
We were elected as auditors at the Annual General Meeting on 13 May 2022 and were appointed by the
supervisory board on 21 October 2022 to audit the financial statements of Company for the financial year

ending on 31 December 2022.

In addition, during the Annual General Meeting, we have been elected as auditors for the following financial
year and appointed by the supervisory board.

We have been auditors of the Company, without interruption, since the consolidated financial statements at
31 December 2020.
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We declare that our opinion expressed in the “Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report is consistent with our additional report to the Audit Committee, in accordance with Article 11 AP
Regulation.

We declare that we have not provided any prohibited non-audit services (Article 5 Paragraph 1 AP Regulation)
and that we have ensured our independence throughout the course of the audit, from the audited Group.

Engagement Partner
The engagement partner is Mr Mag. Christoph Karer.
Linz, 13 April 2023

KPMG Austria GmbH
Wirtschaftspriifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft

Mag. Christoph Karer
Wirtschaftspriifer
(Austrian Chartered Accountant)

This document has been provided with a qualified electronic signature and is valid in this version only. The consolidated financial statements together with our auditor’s report may only be published if the consolidated financial statements and the group
management report are identical with the audited version attached to this report. This auditor’s report relates exclusively to the German-language and complete consolidated financial statements together with the group management report. Section 281

Paragraph 2 UGB (Austrian Commercial Code) applies.
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Statement of all
Legal Representatives

We confirm to the best of our knowledge that the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of

the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the group as required by the applicable accounting

standards and that the group management report gives a true and fair view of the development and perfor-
mance of the business and the position of the group, together with a description of the principal risks and

uncertainties the group faces.

We confirm to the best of our knowledge that the separate financial statements give a true and fair view of
the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the parent company as required by the applicable
accounting standards and that the management report gives a true and fair view of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the company, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties the company faces.

Leonding, April 6, 2023

S et F Taroiido— \M X
Sebastian Wolf Andreas Zeller Daniel Tomaschko Markus Richter
CEO CSO CTO CFO

Global central functions:
Global Marketing, Global
Product Management &
Innovation, Group
Communication, Investor
Relations & CSR, Human
Resources, Fire & Safety
Equipment

Global central functions:
Area Organization
APAC, CEEU, MENA,
NISA and NOMA,
Customer Service &
Digital Solutions,

Sales Administration

Global central functions:
Production Units, Preventive
Fire Protection and Order
Centers, Supply Chain
Management, Quality
Management,

Central Technics

Global central functions:
Group Controlling,
Group Accounting & Tax,
Group IT, Group Legal &
Compliance, Group
Audit, Group Treasury &
Insurance
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Lagebericht

Wirtschaftliches Umfeld'

Die Weltwirtschaft ist 2022 laut jlingster Schatzung des Internationalen
Wahrungsfonds (IWF) um 3,4 % gewachsen. Im Jahr davor belief sich
das Plus noch auf 6,2 %. Dabei haben vor allem der weltweite Kampf
gegen die Inflation und das Wiederaufleben von COVID-19 in China die
wirtschaftliche Aktivitét belastet.

Trotz dieses Gegenwinds hat sich das reale BIP in vielen Volkswirtschaf-
ten im 3. Quartal 2022 (berraschend stark entwickelt, unter ihnen die
USA, die Eurozone und die groBeren Schwellen- sowie Entwicklungs-
lénder. Die Griinde dafiir sind vielfach innerstaatlich: ein starkerer als
erwarteter Privatkonsum sowie hdhere Privatinvestitionen inmitten an-
gespannter Arbeitsmérkte und eine groBere als erwartete steuerliche
Unterstiitzung. Gleichzeitig sind die Unternehmensinvestitionen gestie-
gen, um die private Nachfrage zu befriedigen. Auf der Angebotsseite
hat sich der Druck auf die Eingangspreise durch sich lockernde Versor-
gungsengpasse und sinkende Transportkosten reduziert und eine Erho-
lung vormals beschrénkter Sektoren wie etwa der Fahrzeugsparte er-
moglicht. Die Energiemarkte haben sich ebenfalls {iberraschend schnell
an den Schock durch die russische Invasion in der Ukraine angepasst.

Im 4. Quartal 2022 ist dieser Aufwartstrend in den meisten, wenn auch
nicht allen gréBeren Volkswirtschaften wieder verblasst. So konnte etwa
die US-Wirtschaft ihr im Vergleich stérkeres Wachstum aufrechterhalten.
Dies wurde einerseits durch Konsumenten unterstitzt, die weiter ihre
Ersparnisse ausgaben, und andererseits durch eine historisch niedrige
Arbeitslosigkeit sowie ein reichhaltiges Stellenangebot.

Die globale Inflation betrug im Berichtsjahr voraussichtlich 8,8 %. Sie
sollte im 3. Quartal mit dem einsetzenden Riickgang der Energie- und
Rohstoffpreise ihren Hohepunkt erreicht haben.

! IWF, WORLD ECONOMIC OUTLOOK, UPDATE, 31. JANNER 2023
WELTBANK, GLOBAL ECONOMIC PROSPECTS, 3. FEBRUAR 2023
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Branchenentwicklung?

Weltfeuerwehrmarkt

Der Weltfeuerwehrmarkt hat ein jahrliches Volumen von zirka 21.000
Fahrzeugen mit einem Gesamtwert von rund 6,0 Mrd €. Nicht eingerech-
net sind hier Kleinfahrzeuge bis 7,5 t Gesamtgewicht, feuerwehrtechni-
sche Ausriistung, Service und stationére Anlagen.

Basierend auf internen Schatzungen von Rosenbauer diirfte auf das glo-
bale Marktvolumen im Berichtsjahr stagniert haben, was insbesondere
auf die massiven Storungen der internationalen Lieferketten zuriickzu-
fiihren ist. Die stérksten Absatzregionen sind Europa, Nordamerika und
Asien; die groBten Einzelmarkte sind die USA, China und Deutschland.

2 Zuletzt verfiigbare Marktdaten aus 202 1. Eigene Berechnung auf Basis von Zahlen
der Weltbank und der UNO sowie von Jahresberichten und Expertenschétzungen

Umsatz-, Ertrags- und Auftragsentwicklung

Die Rosenbauer International AG erzielte im Geschéftsjahr 2022 einen
Umsatz von 443,8 Mio € (2021: 444,3 Mio €).

Das starkste Umsatzsegment war mit 75 % (2021: 76 %) das Produkt-
segment Fahrzeuge. Der Bereich Ausriistung kam auf einen Umsatz von
65,4 Mio € (2021: 66,5 Mio €), was einem Anteil von 15 % (2021: 15 %)
am Gesamtumsatz entspricht. Die Umsédtze Service, Ersatzteile und
Sonstige beliefen sich auf 10 % (2021: 9 %).

Rund 45 % (2021: 35 %) des Umsatzes bzw. 199,8 Mio € (2021: 154,6
Mio €) wurden in Europa erzielt. Im Nahen Osten wurde ein Umsatz von
70,0 Mio € bzw. 16 % (2021: 106,4 Mio € bzw. 24 %) erzielt. Die Umsétze
in der Region Asien/QOzeanien beliefen sich auf 52,7 Mio € (2021: 76,9
Mio €). Lieferungen in sonstige Lander betrugen 121,3 Mio € (2021:
106,4 Mio €).

Auftragslage

Der Auftragseingang erreichte 2022 einen Wert von 465,1 Mio € (2021:
469,3 Mio €) und lag somit auf dem Niveau des Vorjahres. Der Auftrags-
bestand betrug zum Jahresultimo 461,2 Mio € (31. Dezember 2021:
430,9 Mio).

Ertragslage

Das Geschéftsjahr 2022 war durch massive Lieferkettenstérungen ge-
pragt. Zusammen mit der anhaltenden Corona-Krise fiihrte dies zunachst
zu einem weiteren Anstieg der Rohstoffpreise. Eine sich zum Anfang des
Kalenderjahres abzeichnende Entspannung wurde durch den im Februar
2022 begonnen Krieg in der Ukraine beendet. Im Geschéftsjahr muss-
ten signifikante Preissteigerungen akzeptiert werden. Neben den Materi-
alpreiserhdhungen kam es insbesondere durch Lieferverzégerungen bei
den Fahrgestellen wiederholt zu Produktionsstérungen. Der Betriebser-
folg lag somit mit -30,6 Mio € (2021: -12,7 Mio €) deutlich unter dem
Vorjahr. Das Ergebnis vor Steuern war demzufolge ebenfalls negativ und
betrug -36,5 Mio € (2021: -8,3 Mio €).

Die Segmentberichterstattung erfolgt nach fiinf Absatzregionen (Areas):
CEEU (Zentral- und Osteuropa), NISA (Nordeuropa, Iberien, Slidamerika
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und Afrika), MENA (Mittlerer Osten und Nord- afrika), APAC (Asien-Pazi-
fik) und NOMA (Nord- und Mittelamerika). Der Vorbeugende Brandschutz
(Preventive Fire Protection, PFP) wird als eigenes Segment dargestellt.

Area CEEU

Die Area CEEU umfasst die Lander Zentral-, Ost- und Siidosteuropas,
mit der D-A-CH-Region (Deutschland, Osterreich, Schweiz) als histori-
schem Heimmarkt.

Zur Area CEEU gehdren die Konzerngesellschaften Rosenbauer Inter-
national und Rosenbauer Osterreich mit Sitz in Leonding, Rosenbauer
Deutschland in Luckenwalde, Rosenbauer Karlsruhe (Deutschland), Ro-
senbauer Slowenien in Radgona, Rosenbauer Italia in Andrian, Rosen-
bauer Rovereto (ltalien), Rosenbauer Schweiz in Oberglatt und Rosen-
bauer Polska in Palmiry. Die Werke in der Area CEEU (Leonding, Neidling,
Karlsruhe, Radgona und Rovereto) produzieren fiir alle Areas, das Werk
Luckenwalde hauptséachlich fiir den deutschen Markt.

Marktentwicklung

Europa war im Berichtsjahr mit multiplen Krisen konfrontiert, die zu
Storungen der internationalen Lieferketten, steigenden Rohstoff- und
Energiepreisen sowie hoher Inflation fihrten. Vor allem der Angriffs-
krieg Russlands gegen die Ukraine hatte auf dem Kontinent starke
Auswirkungen. Nichtsdestotrotz haben sich die wichtigsten Feuerwehr-
markte gut entwickelt. In der D-A-CH Region war die Nachfrage wieder
so stark wie vor der COVID-19 Pandemie und in den osteuropéaischen
Markten waren erste Anzeichen fiir die schon lange erwartete Dynami-
sierung sichtbar.

So hat Rosenbauer in Ruménien eine Ausschreibung des Innenministeri-
ums Uber die Lieferung von 18 Hubrettungsbiihnen B45 gewonnen, deren
Anzahl durch den Kunden auf bis 100 Fahrzeuge erweitert werden kann.
Auch in Italien hat sich das Innenministerium fiir Rosenbauer als Liefe-
rant von Hubrettungsgeraten entschieden. In einem ersten Abruf wur-
den 30 Bihnen mit 32,1 m Rettungshdhe bestellt, optional kann dieser
Auftrag ebenfalls auf bis zu 100 Fahrzeuge aufgestockt werden. Einen
weiteren GroBauftrag erteilte das Beschaffungsamt Mecklenburg-Vor-
pommern. Nachdem Rosenbauer schon 2021 mit der Lieferung von 274
Kleinléschfahrzeugen TSF-W betraut worden war, wurden im November
des Vorjahres 40 groBe Loschgruppenfahrzeuge LF20 bestellt.

Erfreulich ist auch die Nachfrage nach E-Feuerwehrfahrzeugen: Nach er-
folgreichem Probebetrieb hat die Berliner Feuerwehr vier weitere RT und
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einen elektrischen Geratewagen Hygiene bestellt. Die groBte Schweizer
Rettungsorganisation, Schutz & Rettung Ziirich, testet die elektrische
Drehleiter von Rosenbauer.

Der Auftragseingang in der Area lag im Berichtsjahr mit 435,8 Mio €
(2021: 412,1 Mio €) liber dem Vorjahr.

Geschiftsentwicklung

Der Umsatz in der Area CEEU erhdhte sich 2022 auf 378,2 Mio € (2021:
346,8 Mio €). Der groBte Anteil entfiel auf Deutschland, gefolgt von Os-
terreich.

Die Area CEEU steuerte 2022 rund 40% (2021: 35%) zum Konzernum-
satz bei. Das EBIT betrug im Berichtsjahr 7,5 Mio € (2021: 16,7 Mio €),
die EBIT-Marge 2,0% (2020: 4,8 %).

Area NISA

Das NISA-Vertriebsgebiet umfasst die westeuropdischen Lander vom
Nordkap bis Gibraltar sowie den GroBteil der afrikanischen und siidame-
rikanischen Staaten.

Zur Area NISA gehdren die Konzerngesellschaften Rosenbauer Espafiola
in Madrid (Spanien), Rosenbauer South Africa in Johannesburg (Stdafri-
ka), Rosenbauer France in Meyzieu (Frankreich) und Rosenbauer UK in
Meltham (GroBbritannien). Im spanischen Werk Ciansa in Linares wer-
den sowohl Fahrzeuge fiir die NISA-Region als auch fiir andere Regio-
nen/Areas gebaut.

Marktentwicklung

Auf den heterogenen Markten der Area NISA war 2022 nur eine leichte
Erholung spirbar und hier vor allem in den skandinavischen Landern bei
den typischen Ersatzbeschaffungen. Die Nachfrage in Afrika und Latein-
amerika litt hingegen weiterhin unter der mangelnden Finanzkraft der
Einsatzorganisationen und blieb daher deutlich unter den eigentlichen
Bedarfen. Neu im Berichtsjahr geschlossene Partnerschaften in Peru
und Brasilien sollen das Geschéft von Rosenbauer in der LATAM-Regi-
on beleben, in Kolumbien konnten mehrere Auftrage im Bereich Wald-
brandléschtechnik und personlicher Schutzausriistung an Land gezogen
werden.

Die Area NISA wird im Rahmen der Straffung der Vertriebsstruktur mit
31. Dezember 2022 aufgeldst und in die neu formierten Vertriebsregio-
nen Americas, Europe, Middle East & Africa integriert.
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Geschiéftsentwicklung

Die Area NISA erwirtschaftete 2022 ein Umsatzplus auf 98,4 Mio €
(2021: 93,2 Mio €), was 10% aller Erlése im Konzern (2021: 10%) ent-
sprach.

Das EBIT der Area NISA ging im Berichtsjahr auf -3,7 Mio € (2021: 1,2
Mio €) zuriick, die EBIT-Marge betrug -3,8% (2021: 1,2%).

Area MENA
Die Area MENA umfasst geografisch den Nahen und Mittleren Osten
sowie Teile Nordafrikas.

Zur Area MENA gehoren die Konzerngesellschaften Rosenbauer Saudi
Arabia mit Sitz in Riad (Saudi-Arabien) einschlieBlich der Produktions-
statte in der King Abdullah Economic City (KAEC) und die Rosenbau-
er MENA Trading - FZE (Dubai) mit einem Tochterunternehmen in Abu
Dhabi (Vereinigte Arabische Emirate). Das Werk in der KAEC produziert
ausschlieBlich fir den MENA-Vertrieb.

Marktentwicklung

Die Markte auf der arabischen Halbinsel zeigten sich 2022 in etwas
besserer Verfassung, das Ausschreibungsvolumen hat gegentber dem
Vorjahr wieder angezogen. Vor allem Industriebetriebe investierten in
Sicherheitstechnik. So war Rosenbauer beispielsweise bei der Saudi
Electricity Company erfolgreich, die einen Auftrag aus dem Vorjahr auf
45 Highend-Fahrzeugen erweiterte.

Der Konzern nutzte dabei seinen Wettbewerbsvorteil in der Region, als
einziger internationaler Hersteller Fahrzeuge anbieten zu kdnnen, die
das Beste aus europdischer und amerikanischer Feuertechnik vereinen.
AuBerdem werden bestimmte Auftragsumfange vor Ort im Werk KAEC
abgearbeitet, wodurch nicht zuletzt die zunehmende Forderung nach
Wertschdpfung in der Region erfiillt wird. Ein weiteres, immer wichti-
ger werdendes Kriterium flr die Auftragsvergabe auf der arabischen
Halbinsel ist ein breit aufgestellter Customer und After Sales Service.
Rosenbauer hat schon vor Jahren dahingehend die Weichen gestellt und
die MENA-Organisation zu einem ganzheitlichen Feuerwehrdienstleister
umgebaut.

Der Auftragseingang in der Area MENA verzeichnete mit 124,2 Mio €
im Berichtsjahr einen moderaten Anstieg im Vergleich zum Vorjahre mit
102,2 Mio €.



Rosenbauer Annual Financial Report 2022

Geschiéftsentwicklung

Der Umsatz in der Area MENA verringerte sich 2022 entsprechend dem
regionalen Beschaffungszyklus deutlich auf 90,2 Mio € nach 123,7 Mio
€ im Vorjahr.

Die Area MENA steuerte im Berichtsjahr 9% (2021: 13%) zu den Gesam-
terldsen des Konzerns bei. Das EBIT fiel auf -4,5 Mio € (2021: 5,2 Mio €),
die EBIT-Marge betrug -5,0 % (2021: 4,2 %).

Area APAC
Die Area APAC umfasst die gesamte ASEAN-Pazifik-Region, Russland,
Tirkei, die GUS-Staaten sowie Japan, Indien und China.

Zur Area gehoren die Konzerngesellschaften S. K. Rosenbauer in Singa-
pur, Rosenbauer Australia mit Sitz in Brisbane, Rosenbauer Fire Fighting
Technology (Yunnan) in China und eine Minderheitsbeteiligung an der PA
4Fire-fighting special technics“ in Moskau, Russland. Weitere Vertriebs-
und Servicestandorte gibt es in Brunei und auf den Philippinen. Das
Werk Singapur produziert ausschlieBlich Fahrzeuge flir den siidostasi-
atischen Markt.

Marktentwicklung

Die Area APAC hat nach der defacto-Abschottung des chinesischen
Feuerwehrfahrzeugmarktes ihren wichtigsten und gréBten Einzelmarkt
in der Region verloren. Fiir einen internationalen Feuerwehrausstatter
ist es mittlerweile unmoglich geworden, Fahrzeuge ins Land zu bringen.
Rosenbauer hat daher seine Vertriebsstrategie umgestellt und diese
stérker auf den Verkauf von Ausriistung und Komponenten ausgerichtet.
Entsprechende Sales-Kanéle und ein eigenes Dealer-Netzwerk wurden
in den letzten Monaten aufgebaut. Der Rosenbauer Top-Helm HEROS-ti-
tan wurde im Vorjahr dafiir eigens nach CCC (China Compulsary Certi-
fication) zertifiziert.

In Japan ist Rosenbauer vor allem mit Flughafenldschfahrzeugen er-
folgreich. Im Berichtsjahr wurden rund 20 PANTHER an verschiedene
Airports verkauft. Auch in Australien konnte 2022 ein Auftrag tber die
Lieferung von 19 PANTHER mit Option auf weitere zehn Fahrzeuge unter
Dach und Fach gebracht werden. Rosenbauer Australia festigte damit
den Ruf als bevorzugter Partner der australischen und neuseeléndischen
Aviation-Industrie, die bereits 150 PANTHER im Feld betreibt. Dariiber
hinaus hat das Queensland Fire & Rescue Service 5.000 HEROS-titan
AS bestellt, wodurch der Rosenbauer Marktanteil bei Feuerwehrhelmen
auf rund 70 % steigen und die vor fiinf Jahren getroffenen Entscheidung,
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den Helm nach australischer und neuseeléndischer Norm zu zertifizie-
ren, eindrucksvoll bestatigt wird.

Trotz der schwierigen gesamtwirtschaftlichen Lage konnte in der Area
APAC ein Auftragseingang von 120,5 Mio € im Berichtsjahr (2021: 113,1
Mio €) verbucht werden.

Geschiftsentwicklung

Die Area APAC verzeichnete im Berichtsjahr 2022 einen Umsatzriick-
gang auf 109,9 Mio € (2021: 117,1 Mio €). Der Anteil am Gesamtumsatz
betrug 11% (2021: 12%). Das EBIT verschlechterte sich auf -1,3 Mio €
nach 2,5 Mio € im Vorjahr, die EBIT-Marge belief sich auf -1,2 % (2021:
2,2 %).

Das Joint Venture in Russland wird aufgrund fehlenden Zugriffs im Jah-
resabschluss 2022 mit einem Effekt von 5,8 Mio € im Finanzergebnis
entkonsolidiert.

Area NOMA

Die Area NOMA umfasst die USA und Kanada sowie einige Lénder in
Mittelamerika und der Karibik. Neben der Holdinggesellschaft Rosen-
bauer America mit Sitz in Lyons gehoéren die Produktionsgesellschaften
Rosenbauer Minnesota und Rosenbauer Motors in Wyoming (Minneso-
ta), Rosenbauer South Dakota in Lyons (South Dakota) und Rosenbauer
Aerials in Fremont (Nebraska) zur Area. Die Feuerwehrfahrzeuge wer-
den nach US-Norm gefertigt und lberwiegend in die Vertriebsregion
NOMA geliefert, gehen aber auch an Kunden in den Areas MENA, NISA
und APAC.

Marktentwicklung

Der nordamerikanische Feuerwehrmarkt, mit einem Beschaffungsvo-
lumen von zuletzt mehr als 6.000 Fahrzeugen im Jahr der gréBte Ein-
zelmarkt der Welt, hat sich im Jahr 2022 trotz Inflation und steigender
Zinsen in ausgezeichneter Verfassung prasentiert.

Rosenbauer konnte von der guten Entwicklung profitieren und den Auf-
tragseinang gegenliber 2021 kréaftig auf ein Alltime-High steigern. Ein
GroBteil der Steigerung resultierte aus Preissteigerungen, die Rosenbau-
er am Heimmarkt durchsetzen konnte. Fleet Accounts spielten ebenfalls
eine wichtige Rolle. So hat das Nashville Fire Department seine Order
von 2021 auf insgesamt 35 Fahrzeuge erhéht und nach Oregon konnten
Uber 30 Fahrzeuge verkauft werden. Auch der RTX erfreut sich steigen-
der Beliebtheit, wie das positive Feedback bei der groBten US-Feuer-

wehrmesse FDIC und die ersten Erfahrungen im Alltag im Los Angeles
Fire Department zeigten.

Dariiber hinaus hat Rosenbauer 2022 sein Héandler- und Servicenetz-
werk durch Adressierung von GroBstédten an der West- und Ostkiiste
weiter ausgebaut, um die dort vorhandenen Potenziale zu nutzen.

Der Auftragseingang in der Area NOMA betrug im Berichtsjahr erfreu-
liche 388,4 Mio € und war damit deutlich héher als im Vorjahr (2021:
290,1 Mio €).

Geschéftsentwicklung

Die Area NOMA erzielte in der Berichtsperiode mit 263,7 Mio € ei-
nen Umsatz auf Vorjahresniveau (2021: 264,5 Mio €). Das entspricht
einem Anteil am Konzernumsatz von 27% (2021: 27 %). Stérungen in
der Lieferkette beeinflussten auch in der Area NOMA die Auslieferung
von Fahrzeugen. Daher wurde im Berichtsjahr verstarkt auf standari-
sierte Vorratsfahrzeuge, so genannte ,Stock Truck® gesetzt, die schnel-
ler verfligbar waren und bis Jahresende alle verkauft werden konnten.
Durch die vollstiandig Ubernahme von Rosenbauer America wurde der
Grundstein fir die Fokussierung auf den Aus- und Aufbau des Dealer
Netzwerks und der Weiterentwicklung des Customer Service und des
After-Sales-Supports gelegt.

Das EBIT lag mit -9,0 Mio € (2021: 9,5 Mio €) deutlich unter dem Vorjah-
reswert, die EBIT-Marge bei -3,4 % (2021: 3,6 %).

Vorbeugender Brandschutz

Im Vorbeugenden Brandschutz sind die beiden Konzerngesellschaften
Rosenbauer Brandschutz mit Sitz in Leonding und Rosenbauer Brand-
schutz Deutschland mit Sitz in Mogendorf sowie Standorten in Gladbeck,
Hilden und Hattersheim tétig. Sie planen, errichten und warten ortsfes-
te Losch- und Brandmeldeanlagen und sind als VdS-Errichterbetriebe
anerkannt; eine Voraussetzung, um bei deutschen und internationalen
Ausschreibungen anbieten zu kénnen.

Marktentwicklung

Die Recyclingbranche gehdrt zu den wichtigsten Abnehmern von Rosen-
bauer Brandschutzanlagen. Im Berichtsjahr konnte der bislang groBte
Auftrag in der Geschichte an Land gezogen werden, die Planung und
Errichtung von stationdren Brandschutzanlagen fiir das Millheizkraft
Wiesbaden, Deutschland. In Osterreich wurde Rosenbauer von der Aus-
trian Power Grid beauftragt, weitere finf Umspannwerke mit stationa-
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ren Léschanlagen auszustatten, nachdem im Vorjahr bereits drei dieser
Anlagen errichtet wurden. Internationale Ausschreibungen konnten in
Norwegen, Stidamerika und auf den Philippinen gewonnen werden.

Der Auftragseingang im Vorbeugenden Brandschutz entwickelte sich
wiederum positiv und stieg 2022 auf 42,3 Mio € im Vergleich zu 2021
mit 30,5 Mio €.

Geschiftsentwicklung

Der Umsatz im Vorbeugenden Brandschutz entwickelte sich in der Be-
richtsperiode erfreulich und stieg von 29,8 Mio € auf 31,8 Mio €. Damit
betragt der Anteil am Gesamtumsatz 3 % (2021: 3%). Das EBIT war mit
0,4 Mio € positiv (2021: 3 t€).

Finanzlage, Vermogens- und Kapitalstruktur

Branchenbedingt ist die Bilanzstruktur zum Jahresende durch ein hohes
Working Capital geprégt. Dieses resultiert aus den vergleichsweise langen
Durchlaufzeiten der Feuerwehrfahrzeuge, die grundsatzlich kundenspezi-
fisch gebaut werden. Die Bilanzsumme erhdhte sich zum 31. Dezember
2022 auf 617,9 Mio € (2021: 532,5 Mio €). Hohere AuBenstande bei den
Forderungen sowie gestiegene Vorrate waren hierfiir die Hauptursache.

Das Sachanlagevermdgen lag mit 76,9 Mio € (2021: 82,5 Mio €) unter
dem Vorjahresniveau. Die Finanzanlagen betrugen 143,7 Mio € (2021:
79,5 Mio €). Der starke Anstieg resultiert aus einer Ausleihung in Hohe
von 62,7 Mio. € an die amerikanische Gesellschaft Rosenbauer Holdings
Inc. zur Finanzierung der Anteilskdufe von zwei amerikanischen Minder-
heitsgesellschaftern.

Das Umlaufvermogen erhdhte sich aufgrund der gestiegenen Vorrate
von 162,1 Mio € (2021: 135,1 Mio €) sowie der héheren Forderungen
von 206,5 Mio € (2021: 171,6 Mio €) um 6% und belief sich insgesamt
auf 372,1 Mio € (2021: 350,1 Mio €). Da die Verbindlichkeiten mit 402,4
Mio € (2021: 279,5 Mio €) ebenfalls deutlich Gber dem Vorjahr lagen,
betrug das Working Capital insgesamt -30,3 Mio € (2021: 70,6 Mio).

Im abgelaufenen Geschéftsjahr reduzierten sich die Eigenmittel auf-
grund des reduzierten Ergebnisses auf 140,0 Mio € (2021: 181,6 Mio
€). Die Eigenkapitalquote reduzierte sich somit ebenfalls aufgrund des
negativen Ergebnisses sowie einer gestiegenen Bilanzsumme zum Stich-
tag 31. Dezember 2022 auf 22,7 % (2021: 34,1 %).
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Investitionen

Die Investitionen in das Sachanlagevermdgen und immaterielle Vermo-
gensgegenstéande lagen im Berichtsjahr mit 8,1 Mio € deutlich unter dem
Niveau des Vorjahres € (2021: 12,7 Mio. Die Abschreibungen des Sach-
anlagevermodgens und der immateriellen Vermdgensgegenstiande ent-
sprechen mit gesamt 9,7 Mio € dem Vorjahresniveau (2021: 9,8 Mio €).

Effiziente Produktion

Um mit den natirlichen Ressourcen mdglichst schonend und sparsam
umzugehen, entwickelte Rosenbauer im Berichtsjahr eine Energieef-
fizienz-Roadmap fiir ausgewdhlte Standorte. Die Schwerpunkte liegen
dabei auf dem Hauptwerk in Leonding und die Erreichung der Unabhan-
gigkeit vom globalen Erdgasmarkt. Auf diese Weise will sich Rosenbauer
gegen eine mogliche Verknappung dieses Energietrdgers immunisieren,
Emissionskosten durch die Reduktion des eigenen CO,-Ausstosses ver-
meiden und seine Herstellkosten teilweise absichern.

Im ersten Schritt erfolgte eine Bestandsaufnahme und Analyse der ge-
samten Energieversorgung sowie der technischen Ausstattung. Ausge-
hend von diesen Erkenntnissen wurden kurz- und mittelfristige MaBnah-
men zur Reduktion des Energieverbrauchs erarbeitet.

Erweiterte Kapazitaten

Rosenbauer agiert immer nahe am Kunden und hat mit dem im April
2021 neu erdffneten ,Rosenbauer Kundenzentrum Osterreich® am
Standort Asten eine Anlaufstelle fir alle Belange geschaffen - vom
Service bis hin zur Beschaffung von Ausriistung oder Ersatzteilen. Die
umfangreiche Service-Infrastruktur kombiniert mit einem Shop bietet
zeitgeméaBen Kundenservice im Sinne eines One-Stop-Shops.

Mit Blick auf Nachhaltigkeit produziert Rosenbauer mdglichst langlebige
Ausristung und Komponenten, deren Lebensdauer durchaus verlangert
werden kann. Dafiir wurde am Standort Asten eine Montagewerkstatt
mit Metallbearbeitungsmaschinen samt SchweiBarbeitsplatz eingerich-
tet, um kleinere Umbauten und das Refurbishment, die Modernisierung
und Generaliiberholung von Feuerwehrfahrzeugen, durchfiihren zu kén-
nen. Es ist angedacht, den Standort Asten auch grenziiberschreitend fir
das Refurbishment von Fahrzeugen zu nutzen.

Effiziente Prozesse
Im Rahmen seines Restrukturierungsprogrammes ,Refocus, Restart®
hat Rosenbauer 2022 erste umfassende Initiativen in den Bereichen

Effizienz- und Produktivitdtssteigerung, Reduktion der Einkaufspreise
und Wertanalysen gesetzt. Die Schwerpunkte lagen in erster Linie auf
einer nachhaltigen Stabilisierung der Produktionsprozesse, unter ande-
rem durch das Eliminieren von Stérungen, Verschwendungen und unge-
planten Nacharbeiten in den Montagen. Um die Betriebsleistung kiinftig
engmaschiger und effizienter steuern zu kdnnen, wurde ein neuartiges
Produktivitdtsmanagement entwickelt und eingefiihrt.

Zudem setzte Rosenbauer die Einfiihrung von SAP S/4HANA als kon-
zernweites ERP-System fort. Im Februar wurde der erste vollintegrierte
Sales & Service Standort bei Rosenbauer Schweiz erfolgreich produktiv
gesetzt. Das Projekt fiir den zweiten Pionierstandort bei Rosenbauer
Slowenien startet im April diesen Jahres. Fir die bisherige erfolgreiche
Projektarbeit wurde Rosenbauer als ,,Grand Winner® bei den SAP Austria
Quality Awards in der Kategorie ,Rapid Time to Value“ ausgezeichnet.

Beschaffung, Logistik und Produktion

Einkaufs- und Lieferantenpolitik

Fir den Geschéaftserfolg des Rosenbauer Konzerns ist es von Bedeutung,
nur mit den besten und innovativsten Lieferanten zusammenzuarbeiten.
Die breiten Anforderungen der Feuerwehren veréndern sich permanent,
entsprechend flexibel miissen Rosenbauer und seine Zulieferer darauf
reagieren kdnnen. Rosenbauer setzt gezielt auf eine enge und partner-
schaftliche Zusammenarbeit mit seinen Zulieferern. Gemeinsam werden
Strategien zur Verbesserung der Kosteneffizienz, Optimierung der Logis-
tikkette, Erflllung von Umweltaspekten bis hin zu innovativen Produktlo-
sungen entwickelt. Ziel der intensiven Zusammenarbeit ist es unter an-
derem, neben der Nutzung des eigenen Wissens auch auf das Know-how,
die Kreativitat und die Erfahrung der Lieferanten zurlickzugreifen.

Hohes Zukaufsvolumen

Basierend auf der hohen Materialintensitdt und einem damit korrespon-
dierenden hohen Einkaufsvolumen ist die termingerechte Versorgung der
Produktion eine zentrale Herausforderung. Ein GroBteil des Rosenbauer
Einkaufsvolumens wird in Europa, vor allem in Osterreich und Deutsch-
land, beschafft, der Rest stammt liberwiegend aus den USA. Den groB-
ten Anteil am Konzern-Einkaufsvolumen haben die Fahrgestelle. Sie sind
fir Rosenbauer im Regelfall ein durchlaufender Posten. Fahrzeuge fiir
den amerikanischen Markt sowie die komplette PANTHER Reihe und der
neue RT werden auf eigene Fahrgestelle aufgebaut, die bei Rosenbauer
Motors in Wyoming (Minnesota) und in Leonding gefertigt werden.
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Kostensteigerungen und Materialverfiigbarkeit

Das Geschéaftsjahr 2022 war durch massive Lieferkettenstérungen
gepragt. Zusammen mit der anhaltenden Corona-Krise flihrte dies zu-
nachst zu einem weiteren Anstieg der Rohstoffpreise. Eine sich zum
Anfang des Kalenderjahres abzeichnende Entspannung wurde durch
den im Februar 2022 begonnen Krieg in der Ukraine beendet. Im Ge-
schéftsjahr mussten signifikante Preissteigerungen akzeptiert werden.
Diese basierten auf Steigerungen bei Aluminium- und Stahlerzeugnissen,
Kunststoffen sowie der Logistik und Energie. Der Einkauf informierte
friihzeitig und kontinuierlich tber die aktuelle Marktsituation und die
damit verbundenen Risiken. Das Absichern von vertraglich vereinbar-
ten Preisen und das Eingrenzen von rasant steigenden Einkaufspreisen
waren in diesem Geschaftsjahr die Kernaufgaben. Gemeinsam mit der
Logistik wurde die Sicherstellung von Verfiigbarkeiten zum zweiten we-
sentlichen Schwerpunkt. Die Bedarfe der Produktion konnten trotz aller
Bemtihungen nicht vollumfénglich bedient werden.

Die gréBten Auswirkungen auf unsere Produktion hatten Ausfélle bei
den Lieferungen von Fahrgestellten. Der Stillstand der Produktion von
Kabelbdumen in der Ukraine I6ste erhebliche Verzdgerungen bei Chas-
sis-Lieferungen aus. Nahezu alle Hersteller sind mit unterschiedlichen
Fehlteilen konfrontiert und reagieren mit kurzfristigen Umplanungen
und langen Lieferzeiten. Als MaBnahme wurden die Abstimmungen mit
diesen Herstellern noch intensiver gestaltet, um mehr Transparenz zu
schaffen und schrittweise Verbesserungen aus der Situation zu finden.

In der Logistik waren die Seehéfen stark ausgelastet. Auch die Verfligbar-
keit von Containern und Transportgebinden war deutlich reduziert. Dies
fiihrte zu langeren Wartezeiten und gestiegenen Kosten bei Transporten.
Gegen Jahresende waren erste Signale einer Entspannung bei der Trans-
portlogistik splirbar. Dennoch wird die Verfligbarkeit der Verkehrstréager,
verstarkt durch einen Fahrermangel in Europa, weiter sensibel bleiben.

Ausblick

Nach zwei angespannten Jahren auf dem Beschaffungsmarkt gibt es
erste vorsichtige Zeichen fiir Besserungen im weiteren Verlauf des
Jahres 2023. Erste Preisriickgange auf den Rohstoffméarkten sowie ein
verlangsamtes Wirtschaftswachstum schaffen neue Mdglichkeiten die
Beschaffungssituation spiirbar zu verbessern. Die Nachwirkungen und
Riicksténde aus 2022 etwa bei den Fahrgestellen und bestimmten Elek-
tronikbauteilen werden aber noch sichtbar bleiben.
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Weitere rechtliche Angaben
Nichtfinanzielle Erklarung/Nachhaltigkeit

Nachhaltigkeitsversténdnis

Unter Nachhaltigkeit versteht Rosenbauer verantwortungsvolles unter-
nehmerisches Handeln fir langfristigen 6konomischen Erfolg im Ein-
klang mit Umwelt und Gesellschaft. Nachhaltig profitabel zu wachsen ist
erklértes Unternehmensziel. Dabei werden sdmtliche relevanten Stake-
holder miteinbezogen und im direkten Dialog angesprochen.

In der Rosenbauer Nachhaltigkeitsstrategie sind die zentralen Hand-
lungsschwerpunkte festgelegt. Neben der effizienten Nutzung von Res-
sourcen will Rosenbauer als Technologiefiihrer mit zukunftsorientierten
Materialien Produkte schaffen, die den Kunden zum Schutz von Leben
und Infrastruktur dienen. Dariiber hinaus hat Rosenbauer den Anspruch,
als Top-Arbeitgeber seinen Mitarbeitenden eine ausgewogene Work-Life-
Balance zu ermdglichen und fiir sie eine moderne und vor allem sichere
Arbeitsumgebung zu schaffen.

Im Geschéftsjahr 2022 wurde eine Klimastrategie samt Reduktionszie-
len fiir den Rosenbauer Konzern entwickelt und vom Vorstand gepriift
und freigegeben. Sie dient als Basis fiir die zukiinftige verpflichtende
und vertiefende Berichterstattung.

Die Nachhaltigkeitsstrategie ist eingebettet in die Unternehmensstra-
tegie; ihr Fundament sind die Rosenbauer Markenwerte. Aus Tradition
neugierig stellt sich Rosenbauer weltweit den Herausforderungen der
modernen Feuerwehren und geht selbstbewusst voran. Als ihr Part-
ner arbeitet Rosenbauer fokussiert an Produkt- und Servicel6sungen,
die den Alltag der Einsatzkréfte erleichtern und vor allem sicherer
machen.

Der Konzern fiihlt sich in seinem Handeln nicht nur an gesetzliche Be-
stimmungen gebunden, sondern hat eigene Regeln wie den Code of
Conduct aufgestellt, die darlber hinausgehen.

Nachhaltigkeitsmanagement

Das Rosenbauer Nachhaltigkeitsmanagement ist organisatorisch in der
Abteilung Group Communication, Investor Relations & CSR angesiedelt
und berichtet an den Vorstand. Ziel des Nachhaltigkeitsmanagements
ist es, in allen Geschaftsprozessen die Auswirkungen auf Umwelt und
Gesellschaft zu berlicksichtigen und die 6konomischen mit den &kolo-

gisch-sozialen Vorstellungen des Unternehmens in Einklang zu bringen.
Dabei arbeiten Nachhaltigkeitsmanagement und operative Einheiten
eng zusammen. Zur Steuerung und jahrlichen Uberpriifung der Zielerrei-
chung werden sowohl quantitative als auch qualitative Messinstrumente
eingesetzt.

Nachhaltigkeitsberichterstattung

Seit dem Geschéftsjahr 2017 verdffentlicht Rosenbauer jahrlich einen
Nachhaltigkeitsbericht, der Uber die Rosenbauer Website abgerufen
werden kann. Dieser wurde nach den ,,GRI-Standards“ (Global Repor-
ting Initiative) und nach den Anforderungen des &sterreichischen ,,NaDi-
VeG*“ (Nachhaltigkeits- und Diversitatsverbesserungsgesetz) erstellt und
erscheint geméaB § 267a UGB und § 243b UGB als gesonderter nichtfi-
nanzieller Bericht. 2022 wurde der Bericht vom Aufsichtsrat geprift und
freigegeben.

Flr das Berichtsjahr 2022 unterliegt Rosenbauer der Berichterstat-
tungspflicht geméaB Art. 8 der EU Taxonomie-Verordnung. Rosenbauer
ist fir dieses Berichtsjahr erstmalig verpflichtet, den Anteil der taxo-
nomiekonformen und nicht-taxonomiekonformen Wirtschaftstatigkeiten
am Gesamtumsatz, an den Investitions- und Betriebsausgaben sowie
entsprechende qualitative Informationen dazu offenzulegen.

MITARBEITERINNEN UND MITARBEITER

Management der COVID-19 Pandemie

Der seit Beginn der Pandemie installierte COVID-19-Krisenstab in der
Zentrale von Rosenbauer hat im Jahr 2022 seine Arbeit fortgeflhrt. Ta-
gesaktuell wurden MaBnahmenplane erstellt, in verschiedene Sprachen
Ubersetzt und allen Konzerngesellschaften zur Verfiigung gestellt. Der
Fokus lag weiter darauf, das Infektionsrisiko zu minimieren. Die Méglich-
keiten der Telearbeit fiir Biiroangestellte wurden an die Gegebenheiten
angepasst. Aufgrund der Verfligbarkeit von Impfstoffen bot Rosenbauer
fir beide Boosterimpfungen am Hauptstandort Leonding Impftermine
fur Mitarbeitende und deren Angehdrige an. Von dieser Mdglichkeit ha-
ben in Summe zirka 200 Personen Gebrauch gemacht. Mit Jahresmitte
2022 hat der COVID-19-Krisenstab seine Tatigkeit wegen der allgemei-
nen Gesundheitslage ruhend gestellt.

Personalpolitik
Rosenbauer hat seine Personalpolitik an die wirtschaftlichen und ge-
sellschaftlichen Rahmenbedingungen angepasst. Wichtigste Ziele sind
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die Positionierung des Unternehmens als attraktiver Arbeitgeber in der
Offentlichkeit, die Implementierung von modernen Fiihrungsinstrumen-
ten in den operativen Prozessen, die Férderung von Internationalitdt und
Diversitat in der Mitarbeiterstruktur sowie die Schaffung von Rahmenbe-
dingungen fiir eine leistungsorientierte Unternehmenskultur.

Das Unternehmen legt groBen Wert auf fachlich wie sozial kompetente
Mitarbeitende; es unterstiitzt diese gezielt bei der Weiterentwicklung ih-
rer Fahigkeiten. Neben einem umfangreichen Qualifizierungsangebot gibt
es spezielle Programme flr die Team- und Fiihrungskréfteentwicklung.

Mit durchschnittlich 1.499 Mitarbeitern beschéftigte die Rosenbauer In-
ternational AG im Jahr 2022 etwa gleich viel Mitarbeiter als zum Stichtag
des Vorjahres (2021: 1.491). Die Gesamtzahl der Mitarbeiter gliedert
sich in 772 Arbeiter (2021: 788), 635 Angestellte (2021: 613) und 92
Lehrlinge (2021: 90).

Personalentwicklung

Die Entwicklung und Qualifizierung der Mitarbeitenden ist eine der wich-
tigsten Aufgaben des HR-Managements. Rosenbauer evaluiert laufend
das Angebot an Aus- und Weiterbildungsprogrammen und adaptiert es
fiir gegebene strategische und organisationale Bedarfe. Diese umfassen
vor allem technische und betriebswirtschaftliche Trainings, Seminare
zur Verbesserung der Projektmanagement-Kompetenz, der Verhand-
lungs- und Gesprachsfiihrung sowie der sozialen Kompetenzen. Ein
weiterer Schwerpunkt wird auBerdem auf das Thema Gesundheit gelegt.
Mit dem #StayHealthy Portfolio existiert ein breites Angebot zu den The-
men allgemeine Gesundheit, Stressmanagement oder Resilienz. Auch
das Thema Diversity & Inklusion wird im Rahmen des Aus- und Weiterbil-
dungsprogramms behandelt und soll kiinftig noch ausgeweitet werden.

Trotz der angespannten Gesamtsituation investierte der Konzern 2022
insgesamt 580 t€ (2021: 600 t€) in Aus- und WeiterbildungsmaBnah-
men. Im Jahr 2022 normalisierte sich die Lage hinsichtlich Covid-19 und
es zeichnet sich ein Trend wieder in Richtung Normalbetrieb ab. Dies
ermoglichte die Ausweitung des Rosenbauer Customer Service Excellen-
ce-Programs auf internationaler Ebene, konkret nach Dubai.

Weitere bewéhrte Management Programme konnten im Berichtsjahr
wieder wie gewohnt durchgefiihrt werden. Ergénzt wurde dieses Ange-
bot 2022 erstmals um das ,,Operations Management Development Pro-
gram® (O-MDP), welches sich an Fihrungskréfte im Produktions- und
produktionsnahen Bereichen aller deutschsprachigen Konzerngesell-
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schaften richtet. Das O-MDP orientiert sich dabei an bereits bestehen-
den Programmen und soll die Liicke zwischen Team Leader Program und
Management Development Program schlieBen.

Die Lehrlingsausbildung hat bei Rosenbauer einen sehr hohen Stellen-
wert, die wichtigsten Lehrberufe waren Metalltechniker mit Schwer-
punkt Maschinenbau, Mechatroniker und Industriekaufleute. Ein be-
sonderer Erfolg war die Gewinnung von weiblichen Auszubildenden in
technischen Berufen.

Chancengleichheit

Rosenbauer ist bestrebt, jeder Mitarbeiterin und jedem Mitarbeiter die
gleichen Chancen einzurdumen - unabhédngig von Abstammung, Alter,
Geschlecht, Kultur oder Herkunft. Um die Diversitat zu fordern, hat
Rosenbauer 2022 die Initiative women@rosenbauer weitergefiihrt. Im
Vordergrund steht unverdndert die Erhéhung der Frauenquote generell,
besonders aber im Fihrungskreis der Rosenbauer International. Ent-
sprechende MaBnahmen werden seitens des Bereiches Human Resour-
ces gemeinsam mit dem Frauennetzwerk erarbeitet und schrittweise
umgesetzt.

In einem traditionell von Mannern geprégten Berufsfeld sind gezielte
MaBnahmen zur Férderung von Frauen nétig. Women@rosenbauer zielt
vor allem auf die Vernetzung der Mitarbeiterinnen ab, auf gegenseitige
Unterstitzung und Austausch. Mehrere Arbeitsgruppen haben an The-
men und deren wirksamer Umsetzung in der Organisation gearbeitet.
Dazu z&hlen beispielsweise eine intensivere Begleitung von Frauen und
Méannern in Karenz (Elternzeit), eine interne Website mit Informationen
zum Thema Gleichstellung sowie diverser Veranstaltungen, um das Mit-
einander aller Mitarbeitenden zu verbessern. Als sichtbares Zeichen der
Wertschatzung fiir werdende Eltern wurde ein Babystartpaket geschaf-
fen und soll an allen Standorten verteilt werden.

Ein weiterer Schwerpunkt liegt auf dem Bereich Recruiting, der in Zu-
kunft explizit mehr Frauen fiir Rosenbauer gewinnen mdochte, insbe-
sondere in technischen Berufen. Es werden mehrere MaBnahmen un-
terstitzt, die Madchen schon im Schulalter fiir die Technik begeistern
sollen. Im Jahr 2022 konnte das Rosenbauer Technical Trainee Program
erfolgreich gestartet werden. Unter dem Schwerpunkt ,Women Wanted*
haben zwei top-qualifizierte Technikerinnen ihre Karriere bei Rosenbauer
begonnen.

Forschung und Entwicklung

Der Schwerpunkt der Forschungs- und Entwicklungstatigkeit lag 2022
auf der Weiterentwicklung des bestehenden Produktangebotes und der
Ergédnzung der elektrischen Fahrzeugflotte. Die Vorstellung der Produkt-
neuheiten erfolgte im Rahmen der Interschutz. Nach einer coronabe-
dingten Pause von sieben Jahren fand die internationale Leitmesse fir
die Feuerwehrbranche im Juni 2022 in Hannover statt.

Des Weiteren nahm Rosenbauer im April an der amerikanischen FDIC
teil, um dort erstmalig den RTX (Revolutionary Technology in US-Ausfiih-
rung) einer breiten Offentlichkeit vorzustellen. Nach der Messe ging das
Fahrzeug direkt an das Los Angeles Fire Department fiir die Testphase.
Im September 2022 wurde der RTX in den Regelbetrieb (ibernommen.

Zu den wichtigsten Innovationen des Berichtsjahres z&hlen neben
der Vorstellung des komplettierten kommunalen Electric Line-up, der
PANTHER electric, die RTE PS 2 Power Station, neue Nutzlastmodule fiir
den RTE Robot, RFC CAFS Cube S sowie digitale Lésungen zur Friiher-
kennung und Bekampfung von Waldbrénden.

2022 wurden in der Rosenbauer International AG 13,1 Mio € (2021: 12,2
Mio €) in Forschung und Entwicklung investiert. Das sind 4,6 % (2021:
4,1 %) der relevanten Nettoerlose der Eigenproduktion.

Vollstindiges Electric Line-up fiir Kommunen

Rosenbauer zeigte auf der Interschutz, wie ein emissionsfreier Fuhrpark
der Feuerwehren aussehen kann: Neben dem RT umfasst das elektri-
sche Fahrzeugprogramm den ersten AT electric, bei dem die bewahrte
AT-Technologie umgesetzt ist, die erste L32A-XS electric, die alle Funk-
tionalitdten einer Standarddrehleiter mit den Vorzligen eines vollelektri-
schen Serienchassis vereint und den GW-L electric, ein Logistikfahrzeug
mit hochflexiblem Aufbau.

Der AT electric bietet denselben Funktionsumfang und die gewohnte Be-
dienumgebung wie ein ,klassischer® AT nur mit elektrischem Antrieb auf
einem Volvo FE Electric Serienfahrgestell. Die bewahrten Aufbauelemen-
te wie die integrierte Doppelkabine mit Drehtreppe oder das Rosenbauer
Halterungssystem COMFORT finden sich Eins zu Eins im AT electric wie-
der. Sowohl der Antriebsstrang als auch die Feuerldschpumpe werden
im AT electric elektrisch betrieben. Die Pumpe wird im Brandeinsatz
Uber einen serienmaBig mit dem Chassis mitgelieferten E-Motor (einem
elektrischen Nebenabtrieb) angetrieben und aus dem Hochvoltsystem
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des Chassis gespeist. Ein Energy Backup System (EBS) zusatzlich zu
zwei Lithium-lonen-Akkumulatoren stellt bei langer andauernden Einsat-
zen die Energieversorgung des Fahrzeuges sicher.

Als Innovationspartner flir die L32A-XS electric fungiert Schutz & Ret-
tung Zirich, die groBte, zivile Rettungsorganisation der Schweiz. Die
Berufsfeuerwehr Ziirich testet seit Dezember 2022 in einem einjéhri-
gen Pilotprojekt gemeinsam mit Rosenbauer das Fahrzeug in drei un-
terschiedlichen urbanen Umgebungen auf seine Einsatztauglichkeit. Die
dabei gewonnenen Erkenntnisse dienen als Basis fiir die Serienentwick-
lung. Bei der Entwicklung der elektrischen Drehleiter lag der Fokus auf
Funktionalitét. Sie sollte ebenso funktionell, leistungsfahig und zuverlds-
sig sein, wie die bewahrte Standarddrehleiter bei gleicher Bedienbarkeit
und Servicefreundlichkeit. Daher ist der Drehleiteraufbau ab der Schnitt-
stelle zum E-Antrieb (ePTO) vollkommen ident. Die L32A-XS electric wird
Uber drei elektrische Lithium-lonen-Akkumulatoren angetrieben und ist
auf einem Volvo FE Electric-Chassis aufgebaut.

Positive Riickmeldungen und Auszeichnung fiir den RT

Nach einer Testphase von 13 Monaten hat die Berliner Berufsfeuerwehr
den Revolutionary Technology (RT) in den Regelbetrieb bernommen. In
dieser Zeit absolvierte das voll elektrische Fahrzeug rund 1.400 Einsatze
ohne Ausfall. An hochfrequenten Einsatztagen riickte der RT bis zu 16
Mal innerhalb von 24 Stunden aus, wobei in der Regel kein Zwischenla-
den notwendig war. In der Erprobungsphase konnten 95 % aller Einsétze
rein elektrisch abgearbeitet werden, eine Bestdtigung dafiir, dass die
Auslegung der Akkukapazitéten richtig ist.

2022 erfolgte die Auslieferung des ersten NFPA-konformen RTX (RT in
der US-Ausfiihrung) an das Los Angeles Fire Department sowie die Pré&-
sentation des Fahrzeuges im Rahmen der FDIC. Nach einer kurzen Test-
phase ist der RTX in Los Angeles seit September 2022 Teil der regulédren
Fahrzeugflotte. In den ersten 20 Wochen fuhr der RTX zu ungeféhr 1.300
Notrufen, davon konnten tber 99 % elektrisch absolviert werden.

Das innovative Konzept des RT unterstiitzt die Einsatzorganisationen dabei
ihre Nachhaltigkeitsziele zu erreichen. Dafir erhielt der RT den Staatspreis
Mobilitét in der Kategorie ,Klimafreundliche Technologien - nachhaltige
Wertschopfung“. Diese Kategorie pramiert Innovationen, die die indust-
rielle Trendwende zur Klimaneutralitat in Schlisselbranchen der Mobilitét
fordern und neue klimaschonende Wege fiir eine zukunftsfahige Mobilitat
aufzeigen. Der Preis wird vom Bundesministerium fiir Klimaschutz, Umwelt,
Energie, Mobilitat, Innovation und Technologie in Osterreich vergeben.
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Seriennahes Konzeptfahrzeug: PANTHER eletric

Als Highlight der Interschutz prasentierte Rosenbauer den ersten
PANTHER 6x6 mit elektrischem Antriebsstrang. Die Entwicklung starte-
te vor rund zwei Jahren als Antriebsstrange, Bordnetze und elektrische
Komponenten zur Verfiigung standen, mit denen auch die hohen Leis-
tungsanforderungen an ein Flughafenldschfahrzeug erfiillt werden kon-
nen. In die Konzeption des PANTHER 6x6 electric waren von Beginn an
Flughafenbetreiber und -feuerwehren aus der ganzen Welt eingebunden.

Rosenbauer setzt beim PANTHER electric auf eine eigene E-Antriebs-
plattform, die gemeinsam mit Magna entwickelt wird. Die eingesetz-
ten Hochvolt-Akkus liefern ausreichend Energie fiir die Anfahrt zum
Einsatzort, das Ausbringen des gesamten Loschmittelvorrats und die
Rickfahrt gemaB ICAO-Vorgaben. Ein Energie Backup System bietet die
Moglichkeit, zuséatzliche elektrische Energie im System zur Verfiigung zu
stellen, beispielsweise um die Performance kurzfristig zu steigern oder
die Einsatzdauer zu verldngern. So lasst sich im Boost-Modus die Be-
schleunigung von 0 auf 80 km/h auf 21 Sekunden oder knapp darunter
driicken und auch im Normalmodus beschleunigt der PANTHER electric
schneller als ein klassischer 6x6.

Die Uberleitung des Konzeptfahrzeuges in die Serienentwicklung starte-
te im Berichtsjahr. Bei der Vorserie wird Rosenbauer, wie beim RT, mit
Innovationspartnern zusammenarbeiten und die Erkenntnisse aus den
Testbetrieben unter realen Bedingungen in die Entwicklungsarbeit und
den Aufbau der Serienproduktion einflieBen lassen.

Ergédnzend zum batterieelektrischen Fuhrpark zeigte Rosenbauer, wie
mit der RTE PS 2 Power Station und Solarpaneelen als Zubehor eine
netzunabhangige und abgasfreie Energieversorgung der Einsatzstelle
moglich ist. Die neue RTE PS 2 Power Station wurde entwickelt, um
typische Feuerwehrverbraucher wie Tauchpumpe, Kombihammer oder
einen Hochleistungslifter autark und flexibel Uber eine lange Zeit mit
Energie zu versorgen.

Grindungsmitglied des Autonomous Operation Cluster

Rosenbauer arbeitet im Rahmen des neu initiierten Autonomous Opera-
tion Cluster (AOC) mit den Unternehmen Ammann, PALFINGER, Prinoth
und TTControl zusammen. Die AOC-Mitglieder entwickeln gemeinsam
Schlisseltechnologien fiir den autonomen, intelligenten Betrieb von mo-
bilen Maschinen und Off-Highway-Fahrzeugen. Dabei stehen insbeson-
dere Anwendungen wie Baumaschinen, Kréne, Feuerwehrausriistung
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und Pistenfahrzeuge im Fokus. Hier kénnten Lésungen aus den Berei-
chen Computer Vision und Kiinstliche Intelligenz das prézise Erkennen
von Objekten und die Verarbeitung von Umgebungsinformationen er-
maoglichen.

Digitale Produkte und Services

Rosenbauer kooperiert seit Anfang 2022 mit OroraTech, um mithilfe von
Satellitensystemen Waldbrande friihzeitig zu erkennen. OroraTech lie-
fert dabei aktuelle Waldbrandinformationen von offentlichen Satelliten,
die mit Warmebildkameras ausgeristet sind. Allerdings sind derzeit die
Zeitabstande (bis zu 6 Stunden) noch zu groB, um bei Gefahr ein rasches
Reagieren zu gewahrleisten.

Daher planen Rosenbauer und OroraTech, dieses System zu einem
Waldbrandiiberwachungs- und Bekdampfungssystem auszuweiten, das
mit Intervallen von bis zu 30 Minuten arbeitet. Dazu wird OroraTech in
den néachsten Jahren bis zu 100 Satelliten von der GréBe einer Schuh-
schachtel, ausgestattet mit je einer hochauflésenden Warmebildkamera
sowie kiinstlicher Intelligenz, ins All schieBen. Ein Prototyp kreist seit
Janner im Orbit.

Ziel der strategischen Partnerschaft ist es, die Waldbrandbekdmpfung
zu digitalisieren, um den Einsatzorganisationen vor Ort genaueste Infor-
mationen als Entscheidungsgrundlage liefern zu kénnen. Dazu wird das
Satellitensystem von OroraTech mit RDS Connected (Softwareprodukt-
portfolio zur Vernetzung von Einstzkraften) verkniipft und die Beteiligten
erhalten Zugriff auf aktuelle und historische Satellitendaten. Uber RDS
Connected Command werden auch Drohnenbilder angezeigt und verteilt.
Drohnen sind sehr effektiv und zum Beispiel in der Lage, einen Hotspot
von einem groBeren Lagerfeuer, einem Fabrikschornstein oder reflek-
tierenden Solarzellen zu unterscheiden und die Feuerwehren mit einer
Kombination aus RGB-Bildern und Warmebildaufnahmen zur Lageerkun-
dung zu versorgen, bevor diese am Einsatzort ankommen.

Die Smartphone-Apps (Android und iOS) von RDS Connected Command
wurden im Berichtsjahr weiterentwickelt und bieten nun auch eine
Chat-Funktion und den Zugriff auf Daten iiber das Einsatzgeschehen
hinaus wie auf Termin- oder Veranstaltungskalender. Uber RDS Connec-
ted Command konnen auch alle einsatzrelevanten Informationen wie
Objektpldne oder taktische Geoinformationen den Einsatzkréften zur
Verfligung gestellt werden.
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Informationen gemaB § 243a Abs. 1 UGB

Rosenbauer ist mit Stiickaktien im Prime Market der Wiener Bérse
gelistet. Das Grundkapital der Rosenbauer International AG betréagt
13,6 Mio €, eingeteilt in 6.800.000 nennbetragslose Stiickaktien, die
jeweils einen anteiligen Betrag am Grundkapital von 2,0 € verbriefen.
3.665.912 Aktien lauten auf Namen und 3.134.088 sind Inhaberaktien.
Jede Rosenbauer Aktie berechtigt zu einer Stimme.

Die Rosenbauer Beteiligungsverwaltung GmbH (BVG) hélt 51% der An-
teile an der Rosenbauer International AG. Die BVG hat die Ubertragung
ihrer Aktien an Dritte an eine Mehrheit von 75 % der Stimmen gebunden.
Unter Beachtung der Gleichbehandlung liegen beziiglich der Stimmrech-
te oder der Ubertragung von Aktien keine Beschrankungen vor, sofern
der Anteil an Inhaberaktien am Grundkapital der Gesellschaft zu keinem
Zeitpunkt unter 40% liegt. Ein Gesellschafter der Rosenbauer Beteili-
gungsverwaltung GmbH halt indirekt durchgerechnet 11,8% der Anteile
an der Rosenbauer International AG. Es gibt keine Inhaber von Aktien
mit besonderen Kontrollrechten. Mitarbeiterinnen und Mitarbeiter, die
Aktien besitzen, iben ihre Stimmrechte direkt aus.

In der Satzung der Rosenbauer International AG sind die Bestimmungen
zur Ernennung und Abberufung der Mitglieder des Vorstandes und des
Aufsichtsrates festgelegt. Zum Mitglied des Vorstandes kann nur bestellt
werden, wer das 65. Lebensjahr zum Zeitpunkt der Bestellung noch nicht
vollendet hat. Die Bestellung einer Person zum Mitglied des Vorstandes,
die zum Zeitpunkt der Bestellung das 65. Lebensjahr bereits vollendet
hat, ist jedoch dann zuléssig, wenn mit entsprechendem Beschluss der
Hauptversammlung die Zustimmung mit einfacher Mehrheit der abgege-
benen Stimmen erteilt wird. In den Aufsichtsrat kann nur gewéhlt werden,
wer das 70. Lebensjahr zum Zeitpunkt der Wahl noch nicht vollendet hat.
Die Wahl einer Person zum Mitglied des Aufsichtsrates, die zum Zeit-
punkt der Wahl das 70. Lebensjahr bereits vollendet hat, ist jedoch zu-
I&ssig, wenn der entsprechende Beschluss in der Hauptversammlung mit
einfacher Mehrheit der abgegebenen Stimmen gefasst wird.

Fir den Fall eines 6ffentlichen Ubernahmeangebotes gibt es keine Ent-
schadigungsvereinbarungen zwischen der Gesellschaft, ihren Vorstands-
und Aufsichtsratsmitgliedern oder den Mitarbeiterinnen und Mitarbeitern.

Der Corporate-Governance-Bericht des Rosenbauer Konzerns ist auf der
Website www.rosenbauer.com/de/at/group im Kapitel ,Investor Rela-
tions® unter ,Corporate Governance® veroffentlicht.

Group Management Report | Consolidated Financial Statements | Management Report | Financial Statements

Risiken und Chancen

Risikomanagement

Rosenbauer ist in seinem unternehmerischen Handeln mit unterschied-
lichen Risiken und Chancen konfrontiert. Die kontinuierliche Identifizie-
rung, Bewertung und Steuerung dieser Risiken und Chancen ist inte-
graler Bestandteil des Fiihrungs-, Planungs- und Controlling-Prozesses.
Das Risikomanagement greift auf die im Konzern vorhandenen Organi-
sations-, Berichts- und Flihrungsstrukturen zuriick und erganzt diese um
spezifische Elemente, die zur ordnungsgeméBen Beurteilung erforder-
lich sind. Im Kern besteht das Risikomanagement bei Rosenbauer aus
funf Elementen:

B einem konzernweit gliltigen Risikomanagement-Handbuch, das u. a.
samtliche Definitionen und eine ausformulierte Risikostrategie bein-
haltet,

m einer definierten Organisationsstruktur mit Risikoverantwortlichen in
den als Risk Units definierten Areas, Tochtergesellschaften und Ab-
teilungen sowie einem zentralen Group Risk Manager,

B einer regelméaBigen Erfassung und Bewertung von Risiken und Chan-
cen in allen Risk Units,

m der Reporting-Struktur des Konzerns und

m dem Risikobericht auf Konzernebene und Auswertungen auf der Ebe-
ne einzelner Risk Units.

Systematische Uberwachung

Das Risikomanagement wird bei Rosenbauer in einem System abgebil-
det, das eine Ubersichtliche Darstellung der im Rosenbauer Konzern vor-
handenen Risiken und Chancen auf der Ebene der jeweiligen Risk Unit
ermoglicht. Die Identifikation und Erfassung der Geschéftsrisiken und
-chancen wird mittels eines strukturierten Prozesses zweimal jahrlich
durchgefiihrt, bei dem die Risikoverantwortlichen durch den Group Risk
Manager begleitet und unterstitzt werden.

Die Bewertung der Risiken und Chancen erfolgt im Hinblick auf ihre Ein-
trittswahrscheinlichkeit und ihre allféllige Auswirkung auf das EBT. Als
Hilfestellung sind in einem Katalog zehn Kategorien mit Beispielen ange-
fuihrt, in die die identifizierten Risiken und Chancen eingeordnet werden.

Aus der Risikoanalyse werden auf operativer Ebene die erforderlichen
Kontroll- und SteuerungsmaBnahmen und die Instrumente zur Risiko-
bewaltigung als definierte MaBnahmen abgeleitet und den jeweiligen
Risiken zugeordnet. Verantwortlich fiir die Umsetzung sind die Risikover-
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antwortlichen in den einzelnen Risk Units. Darliber hinaus werden die
Ergebnisse der Risikoinventur einmal jahrlich an den Priifungsausschuss
berichtet. Im Zuge dieses Termins werden auch die generelle Funktions-
fahigkeit und die Wirksamkeit des Systems beurteilt.

Internes Kontrollsystem

Das Interne Kontrollsystem (IKS) hat die Aufgabe, die Effektivitat und
Effizienz der Geschéftstatigkeit zu sichern. Es besteht aus systema-
tisch gestalteten organisatorischen MaBnahmen und Kontrollen zur
Einhaltung von internen und externen Richtlinien sowie zur Abwehr von
Schéden, die beispielsweise durch ungeregelte oder unrechtmaBige
Handlungen verursacht werden kénnen. Die Kontrollen sind direkt in
die unternehmerischen Prozesse und Ablaufe integriert. Dariiber hinaus
erfolgen prozessunabhangige Priifungen der Wirksamkeit der Kontrollen
durch die Interne Revision.

Zielgerichtetes Kontrollumfeld

Eine wichtige Basis des IKS stellen die unternehmensweit giltigen
Regelungen und Richtlinien dar. Dazu kommen die im Integrierten Ma-
nagementsystem verankerten Prozessdarstellungen und hinterlegten
Arbeitsanweisungen. Im Rahmen von internen Audits wird kontrolliert,
ob diese Richtlinien eingehalten und die Prozesse sauber ausgefiihrt
werden. Die Ergebnisse werden dokumentiert, Empfehlungen abgeleitet
und die operative Umsetzung wird liberwacht.

Einheitliche Rechnungslegung

Das Kontrollumfeld des Rechnungslegungsprozesses ist durch eine
klare Aufbau- und Ablauforganisation gekennzeichnet. Sdmtliche Funk-
tionen sind eindeutig Personen (zum Beispiel in der Finanzbuchhaltung
oder im Controlling) zugeordnet. Die am Rechnungslegungsprozess be-
teiligten Mitarbeitenden erfiillen alle fachlichen Voraussetzungen. Bei
den relevanten Prozessen der Rechnungslegung wird, sofern es tech-
nisch bzw. organisatorisch méglich ist, auf ein Vier-Augen-Prinzip ge-
achtet. Bei den verwendeten Finanzbuchhaltungssystemen handelt es
sich Uberwiegend um Standardsoftware, die gegen unbefugte Zugriffe
geschiitzt ist. Auf den Rechnungslegungsprozess bezogene wesentliche
Bilanzierungs- und Bewertungsgrundsétze sind in einem Konzernhand-
buch verbindlich festgelegt.

Detaillierte Finanzberichte

Die Vollstandigkeit und Richtigkeit der Daten im Rechnungswesen wird
regelmaBig anhand von Stichproben und Plausibilitatspriifungen tber-
prift. Zudem erfolgen laufende Analysen durch das konzernweite Cont-
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rolling und Treasury. Detaillierte Finanzberichte werden auf Monats- und
Quartalsbasis erstellt bzw. sind téglich aktuell abrufbar, um Abweichun-
gen in der Ertrags- und Vermdgenslage von den Planzahlen rasch identi-
fizieren und beheben zu kénnen.

Klare Zustandigkeiten

Dieses ausgepragte Regelungs- und Berichtssystem gibt neben den
prozessorientierten Rahmenbedingungen vor allem ablauforientierte
MaBnahmen vor, die von sé@mtlichen betroffenen Einheiten umgesetzt
werden mussen. Die operative Verantwortung liegt bei den jeweiligen
Prozessverantwortlichen. Die Einhaltung des Rosenbauer Regelwerks
wird durch die Interne Revision im Rahmen der periodischen Priifungen
der einzelnen Bereiche Uberwacht.

Erlduterung der Einzelrisiken

Umfeld- und Branchenrisiken

Globale Erwarmung

Im Jahr 2020 wurde mit Unterstiitzung einer externen Beratung eine
Analyse der klimabezogenen Risiken und Chancen durchgefiihrt. Dabei
wurden die Empfehlungen der Taskforce on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD) angewandt. Hier erfolgte in einem ersten Schritt
die Identifikation von jenen klimabezogenen Risiken und Chancen, die
fir Rosenbauer potenziell finanziell relevant sein kénnten. Diese iden-
tifizierten klimabezogenen Risiken und Chancen wurden einer Bewer-
tung hinsichtlich ihrer finanziellen Auswirkungen auf Rosenbauer und
ihrer Eintrittswahrscheinlichkeit unterzogen. Fiir das Berichtsjahr 2022
ergaben sich keine Anderungen. Rosenbauer wird die Entwicklung der
klimapolitischen Rahmenbedingungen weiter beobachten und gegebe-
nenfalls die identifizierten Risiken und Chancen neu bewerten.

Als wesentlichste klimabezogene Herausforderung wurden die physi-
schen Klimarisiken fiir die Rosenbauer Produktions- und Montagestand-
orte identifiziert, als wesentlichste klimabezogene Chance der allgemein
zunehmende Bedarf an Brandschutzprodukten sowie die Chancen fiir
neue Rosenbauer Produkte und Services.

Rosenbauer ist Unterstiitzer der TCFD.

Marktrisiken und -chancen

Das internationale Feuerwehrgeschaft ist ein typischer Nachldufer und
reagiert erst mit einer Verzdgerung von zwolf bis 24 Monaten auf kon-
junkturelle Schwéachen. Das liegt daran, dass die Kunden tberwiegend
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aus dem offentlichen Sektor kommen, ihre Beschaffungen langfristig
planen und mit ihren Investitionen auch antizyklisch Impulse setzen
wollen.

Bei der Beurteilung marktwirtschaftlicher Risiken und Chancen orien-
tiert sich Rosenbauer an den Annahmen fiihrender Institutionen tber
die wirtschaftliche Entwicklung in den einzelnen Regionen und Léndern.
Auch nach Elementarereignissen und Naturkatastrophen wird verstérkt
in Feuerwehrtechnik investiert. Planbar sind diese Beschaffungen zwar
nicht, bieten aber immer wieder zusatzliche Absatzchancen fiir die Feu-
erwehrausstatter. Rosenbauer analysiert regelméBig die maBgeblichen
Branchenrisiken und nutzt Chancen durch rasches Reagieren auf Markt-
veranderungen.

Die jahrliche Geschéftsplanung wird aus der Mittelfristplanung abgelei-
tet und umfasst einen nach Regionen und Produkten gegliederten Ziel-
katalog, der als Steuerungsinstrument dient. So kénnen Chancen und
strategische Risiken friihzeitig erkannt werden. Mit Produktionsstatten
auf drei Kontinenten und einem weltweiten Vertriebs- und Servicenetz
lassen sich Absatzschwankungen in einzelnen Markten ausgleichen.

Wettbewerbs- und Preisdruck

Der groBte Wettbewerbs- und Preisdruck in der Feuerwehrbranche
herrscht bei Kommunalfahrzeugen. Die zunehmende Zentralisierung
des Beschaffungswesens bietet durch die Forderung eines fairen Wett-
bewerbs und transparentere Prozesse Chancen, birgt aber auch durch
die Blindelung der Beschaffung das Risiko, GroBauftrage zu verlieren.

Rosenbauer analysiert und uberwacht permanent die Markt- und Ab-
satzentwicklung in den einzelnen Landern bzw. Areas und hat fiir jeden
Vertriebs- und Produktbereich klar definiert, wie dabei strategisch vor-
zugehen ist und welche Wachstumsziele verfolgt werden.

Risiken infolge gesetzlicher und politischer Rahmenbedingungen
Risiken, die sich fiir das Feuerwehrgeschéaft aufgrund politisch oder
rechtlich verénderter Rahmenbedingungen ergeben, kénnen kaum
abgesichert werden. Wegen der iiberwiegend o&ffentlichen Abnehmer
kommt es allerdings nur in Ausnahmefallen zu Stornierungen von Auftra-
gen. Durch politische Krisen oder allfallige Embargobestimmungen kann
der Zugang zu bestimmten Mérkten voriibergehend eingeschrankt sein.

In vielen Landern herrschen strenge Regelungen hinsichtlich des Einsat-
zes von gefahrlichen Substanzen. Die Nichteinhaltung der einschléagigen
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Vorschriften kann mit erheblichen Strafen und Reputationsrisiken ver-
bunden sein. Gefahrliche Substanzen kommen in fluorhaltigen L&sch-
mitteln vor. Spezielle Vorkehrungen zur Vermeidung von geféhrlichen
Substanzen erhdhen die Produktanforderungen. Rosenbauer begegnet
den strengeren Bestimmungen mit der Entwicklung von speziellen Zu-
mischsystemen und Werfern, die den Einsatz von fluorfreien Schaum-
mitteln ermdglichen und damit Umwelt und Mensch schiitzen.

In der Produktion wird geféhrlichen Substanzen, die die Gesundheit
gefihrden konnen, durch die laufende Uberwachung der Risikoarbeits-
platze sowie durch die Einhaltung lokaler Vorschriften entgegengetreten.

Betriebliche Risiken

Die Produktionstéatigkeit erfordert eine intensive Auseinandersetzung
mit den Risiken entlang der Wertschépfungskette. Die potenziellen
Produktionsrisiken werden Uber eine Reihe von Kennzahlen (Produkti-
vitdt, Montage- und Durchlaufzeiten, Produktionsstiickzahlen, Qualitét,
Kosten etc.) permanent liberwacht. Das zentrale Steuerungselement in
der Fahrzeugfertigung ist neben Kennzahlen vor Ort die ,mitlaufende
Kalkulation®, bei der im Soll-Ist-Vergleich die Herstellkosten jedes Einze-
lauftrages Uberwacht werden. Zur Abfederung von Verénderungen in der
Auslastung einzelner Standorte fertigt Rosenbauer im Konzernverbund
und vergibt Fertigungsauftrdge auch an externe Partner. Dadurch wird
das Risiko einer Unterauslastung der Produktion im Falle eines deutli-
chen Marktriickganges in Grenzen gehalten.

Ertragsrisiken, die sich aufgrund von externen Stérungen in der Produk-
tion ergeben kénnen, werden durch entsprechende Produktionsausfalls-
versicherungen abgedeckt. Eine angemessene Versicherungsdeckung
besteht auch fiir Risiken im Zusammenhang mit Feuer, Explosionen und
dhnlichen elementaren Gefahren.

Produktrisiken und -chancen

Rosenbauer lebt ein konsequentes Qualitditsmanagement nach 1SO
9001 und beschreibt darin seine Prozesse und Abldufe. Das Manage-
mentsystem wird laufend auditiert und tréagt wesentlich dazu bei, welt-
weit eine einheitlich hohe Produktqualitdt zu gewahrleisten und die
Kundenzufriedenheit zu steigern. Moderne Entwicklungsmethoden, ein
gesteigertes Qualitatsbewusstsein sowie laufende Prozessoptimierun-
gen tragen ebenfalls zur Verringerung von Risiken bei.

Zur Reduzierung moglicher finanzieller Risiken wird im Konzern neben
dem Risikomanagementsystem auch das Instrument der Produkthaft-
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pflichtversicherung eingesetzt. Um Produkte mit hochstmdglichem Kun-
dennutzen anbieten zu kénnen, betreibt Rosenbauer ein systematisches
Innovationsmanagement und arbeitet in der Produktentwicklung eng
mit den Feuerwehren zusammen. Ein professionelles Produktmanage-
ment gibt die Richtung im Entwicklungsprozess vor. Im Rahmen einer
Technologie-Roadmap werden Marktanalysen und Wirtschaftlichkeits-
Uberlegungen miteinbezogen.

Die demografische Entwicklung zieht eine Verdnderung der Personalba-
sis der Feuerwehren nach sich und stellt damit auch die Hersteller von
Feuerwehrtechnik vor neue Herausforderungen. Frauen und é&ltere Men-
schen werden kiinftig vermehrt im Feuerwehrdienst tatig sein, Technik
und Ausriistung missen demnach so gestaltet werden, dass sie deren
Bediirfnissen in der Bedienung entgegenkommen. Rosenbauer beschaf-
tigt sich im Innovations-, Technologie- und Wissensmanagement sowie in
der Produktentwicklung intensiv mit diesen Herausforderungen und bin-
det die Feuerwehren als Partner auch in den Entwicklungsprozess mit ein.

Beschaffungs- und Einkaufsrisiken

Das Geschaftsjahr 2022 war gepragt durch anhaltend hohe Verfligbar-
keitsrisiken. Die COVID-19-Pandemie und Russlands Angriffskrieg auf
die Ukraine zeigten massive Auswirkungen auf die Materialversorgung.
Neben der Materialknappheit reichten auch die Produktionskapazitaten
der Lieferanten nicht aus, um die Bedarfe aller Kunden zu bedienen, so-
dass es immer wieder zu unvorhergesehenen Lieferengpéassen kam.

Ein entscheidender Baustein fir die Fahrzeugfertigung ist die termin-
gerechte Bereitstellung von Fahrgestellen. Die Versorgungssicherheit
durch die Fahrgestellhersteller war durch die mangelnde Verfligbarkeit
etwa von Kabelstrangen, Elektronikbauteilen sowie anderer Komponen-
ten erheblich gestort. Durch wiederholte Bandstillegungen bei den Her-
stellern von Chassis kam es zu deutlichen, oft in der Dauer schwer ein-
schatzbaren Terminverschiebungen und zu massiven Verlangerungen
der Lieferzeiten. Die Auswirkungen dieser Entwicklung sind weiterhin
splrbar.

Ausfallende Gaslieferungen aus Russland stellen ein generelles Risiko
vor allem flr Mitteleuropa dar. Ein Riickgang der Gasversorgung und die
damit einhergehende drastische Verteuerung aller Energietrager wiirde
sich nicht nur auf die Produktionsstandorte von Rosenbauer auswirken,
sondern in erster Linie auch auf die Lieferanten von energieintensivem
Produktionsmaterial. In weiterer Folge wére wohl mit weiteren Preisstei-
gerungen dieser Produktionsmaterialien zu rechnen.
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Durch intensive Kontakte mit den Lieferanten konnte die Produktion an
den Standorten trotz Fehlteilen und eines hohen Nacharbeitsaufwands
weitgehend aufrechterhalten werden. Zukinftige Einkaufsrisiken wer-
den weiter intensiv beobachtet. In enger Zusammenarbeit zwischen
Einkauf, Logistik und Produktion werden MaBnahmen zur Steigerung
der Resilienz in den Lieferketten umgesetzt, wie beispielsweise gezielte
MaBnahmen bei kritischen Lieferanten oder durch langerfristige Preis-
und Mengenabsicherungen bestimmter Rohmaterialien wie Aluminium
oder des Strom- und Gaspreises. Darliber hinaus wird die finanzielle Si-
tuation der Lieferanten iiberwacht.

Informationstechnische Risiken

Je vernetzter ein Unternehmen ist, umso groBer ist das Cyber-Risiko.
Unter diesem Begriff werden verschiedene Einzelrisiken zusammenge-
fasst, die aus einem potenziellen Cyber-Angriff resultieren kdnnen. Im
Wesentlichen sind das die Verletzung der Vertraulichkeit von Daten
(Ausspahen, Datenverlust), die Verletzung der Integritat des IT-Systems
oder der Daten (Manipulation durch Schadsoftware), die Verletzung
der Verfiigbarkeit des IT-Systems oder der Daten (Unterbrechungen im
internen Bereich, Ausfall von Kommunikationswegen) und Ahnliches.
Um das Cyber-Risiko mdéglichst zu minimieren, legt Rosenbauer groBes
Augenmerk auf eine sichere IT-Infrastruktur. Diesen Risiken wird durch
regelméaBige Investitionen in Hard- und Software, den Einsatz von ,,Sta-
te-of-the-Art* IT-Security-Systemen, modernen Datensicherungsmetho-
den sowie durch strukturierte Zugangs- und Zugriffskontrollen begegnet.
Die Robustheit der Sicherheitssysteme wird zudem durch simulierte
Angriffe von auBen getestet. Die technischen MaBnahmen werden flan-
kierend durch gezielte, regelméBige IT-Security- und Datenschutz-Awa-
reness-Trainings der Mitarbeitenden unterstitzt.

Umweltrisiken

Die Produktionstatigkeit des Rosenbauer Konzerns besteht im We-
sentlichen aus Montagearbeiten und birgt daher kaum Umweltrisiken.
Dariiber hinaus gelten fir die Prozesse klare Umweltstandards und An-
weisungen, die in einem Umweltmanagementsystem nach ISO 14001
dokumentiert sind und laufend durch interne wie externe Audits liber-
priift und weiterentwickelt werden.

Im Zuge von wiederkehrenden Rundgéngen und Audits werden regel-
maBig die Energieverbrduche betrachtet und energieintensive Prozesse
hinterfragt. Durch die Umsetzung eines Energiemanagementsystems
(ISO 50001) kénnen so Verschwendungen identifiziert und MaBnahmen
zu ihrer Beseitigung festgelegt werden. Ebenso werden die gesamten
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Ressourceneinséatze aufgezeichnet und dadurch Abweichungen friih er-
kannt sowie Energiekosten gespart.

Personelle Chancen und Risiken

Die angespannte Situation am Arbeitsmarkt stellt auch fiir Rosenbauer
eine groBe Herausforderung bei der Suche nach qualifizierten Fachkréaf-
ten dar. Durch die Etablierung einer erfolgreichen Arbeitgebermarke ist
es Rosenbauer moglich, Fachpersonal zu gewinnen, zu integrieren und
an das Unternehmen zu binden. Mit dem Slogan ,Der Moment, in dem
Leben gerettet werden, beginnt mit Dirl“ wird deutlich, dass Arbeit bei
Rosenbauer Sinn stiftet. Unsere Mitarbeiterinnen und Mitarbeiter hel-
fen anderen und leisten mit ihrem Tun einen wertvollen Beitrag in der
Gesellschaft.

Attraktive Arbeitszeitmodelle, vielfdltige GesundheitsmaBnahmen und
aktivitdten sowie ein modernes Entgeltsystem sind ausgewahlte Griinde
fur die hohe Zufriedenheit bei den Mitarbeitenden, die sich in niedriger
Fluktuation und hoher Resilienz niederschlagt.

Zur Absicherung der bendtigten Fachkréfte flr die Zukunft vor dem Hin-
tergrund volatiler Arbeitsmérkte kommt vor allem dem Lehrlingswesen
sehr groBe Bedeutung zu. Mittels der Initiative ,women@rosenbauer®
wird Rosenbauer besonders fiir Frauen attraktiv. Vielféltige Aus- und
WeiterbildungsmaBnahmen ermdéglichen es zusétzlich, die Mitarbei-
tenden im Unternehmen zu halten, zu qualifizieren und zu motivieren.
Neben einer Nachfolgeplanung der Schllsselpositionen ist Rosenbauer
auch die laufende Weiterentwicklung der Fihrungskréafte sowie die Mog-
lichkeit einer internen Karrierelaufbahn wichtig.

Rechtliche Risiken

Die Rosenbauer International AG und ihre Tochtergesellschaften sind im
Rahmen der Geschéftstatigkeit mit rechtlichen Verfahren, Anspriichen
und behordlichen Untersuchungen konfrontiert. Diese kdnnen unter
anderem die Produktsicherheit, Patente sowie andere Immaterialglter-
rechte, Handler-, Lieferanten- und weitere Vertragsbeziehungen betref-
fen sowie zu wettbewerbsrechtlichen Verfahren fiihren.

Im Rahmen der Erstellung des Jahresabschlusses 2017 der Rosenbau-
er Deutschland GmbH wurden UnregelméBigkeiten festgestellt. Die in
diesem Zusammenhang eingeleiteten Untersuchungen konnten zum
Jahresende 2018 abgeschlossen werden. Die Verfahren zur Geltendma-
chung von Anspriichen auf dem Zivilrechtsweg wurden eingeleitet und
sind derzeit noch offen.
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Die Rosenbauer International AG wurde Ende Janner 2022 informiert,
dass im Zusammenhang mit einer Steuerfahndungspriifung gegen einen
ehemaligen Geschéftsfiihrer von Tochterunternehmen eine Steuerver-
bindlichkeit droht. Die Steuerverbindlichkeit bezieht sich dabei auf einen
Zeitraum, in dem die betroffenen Tochterunternehmen noch nicht im Ei-
gentum der Rosenbauer International AG standen. Ein GroBteil der Steu-
ernachforderung wurde 2022 von der Tochtergesellschaft als Rechts-
nachfolgerin beglichen. Der im Vorjahr gebildete Riickstellungswert
aus diesem Sachverhalt reduzierte sich 2022 auf die erwarteten noch
offenen Betrage in Hohe von 0,4 Mio €. Rechtliche Schritte gegen den
ehemaligen Geschaftsflihrer und die vormalige Eigentiimerin der Toch-
terunternehmen wurden eingeleitet und sind derzeit gerichtsanhéngig.

Compliance-Risiken wird im Rahmen des Rosenbauer Compliance-Ma-
nagements begegnet. RegelméaBige Schulungen zielen darauf ab,
Compliance-relevanten VerstéBen vorzubeugen. Fir das Melden von
Verdachtsféllen in Bezug auf Kartellrecht, Korruption, Wirtschaftskrimi-
nalitat, Diskriminierung oder auch sexuelle Belastigung steht allen Mitar-
beitenden, Lieferanten und Geschéftspartnern seit Dezember 2021 eine
anonyme Hinweisgeberplattform zu Verfligung.

Finanzielle Risiken

Eine solide Finanzbasis ist flir ein international tatiges Unternehmen von
groBer Bedeutung. Die bendtigten Betriebsmittel- und Investitionsfinan-
zierungen konnten sichergestellt werden.

Die Finanzierungsvereinbarungen enthalten Financial Covenants, die ei-
nerseits eine Konzerneigenkapitalquote nach IFRS von mindestens 20
Prozent vorsieht und andererseits festlegt, dass das Verhéltnis Netto-
verschuldung zu EBITDA den Faktor 5 nicht libersteigen darf (Faktor 6
zum 31. Dezember 2023 und Faktor 5 in den fortfolgenden Geschéfts-
jahren). Die Nichteinhaltung dieser Finanzkennzahlen berechtigen den
Kreditgeber zur Kiindigung des jeweiligen Finanzierungsvertrags. Zum
31. Dezember 2022 wurden die Financial Covenants ausgesetzt und
missen zum 31. Dezember 2023 wieder erfiillt werden.

Zum 31. Dezember 2022 bestehen in der Rosenbauer International
AG kurzfristige verzinsliche Verbindlichkeiten in Hohe von 71,6 Mio €
(2021: 51,4 Mio €). Diese beinhalten neben Working Capital- bzw. Inves-
titionskrediten auch die laufenden ausgenutzten Kontokorrentrahmen
zum Bilanzstichtag. Wesentliche Refinanzierungen sind im Geschéfts-
jahr 2023 nicht notwendig.
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Zins- und Wahrungsrisiken

Aus den internationalen Aktivitdten entstehen zins- und wéhrungsbe-
dingte Risiken, die durch den Einsatz entsprechender Sicherungsinst-
rumente abgedeckt werden. Dabei regelt eine konzernweit geltende
Finanz- und Treasury-Richtlinie, welche Instrumente zuldssig sind. Die
operativen Risiken werden durch derivative Finanzinstrumente wie zum
Beispiel Devisentermingeschéafte sowie Zinssicherungsgeschéfte abge-
sichert. Diese Transaktionen werden ausschlieBlich zur Absicherung von
Risiken, nicht hingegen zu Handels- oder Spekulationszwecken durch-
gefiihrt. In diesem Zusammenhang wird auf die Ausfiihrungen in den
Erlduternden Angaben im Konzernabschluss verwiesen.

Kreditrisiken

Kreditrisiken, die sich aus Zahlungsausféllen ergeben kdnnen, werden
gering eingeschatzt, da der iberwiegende Teil der Kunden 6ffentliche
Abnehmer sind. Es kommen unterschiedliche Mdglichkeiten zur Zah-
lungsbesicherung wie beispielsweise Akkreditive und Eigentumsvorbe-
halte zum Einsatz. Bei Lieferungen in Lander mit einem erhdéhten poli-
tischen oder wirtschaftlichen Risiko werden zur Absicherung staatliche
und private Exportversicherungen in Anspruch genommen.

Beurteilung des Gesamtrisikos

Rosenbauer sieht sich gut aufgestellt, um die Anforderungen, die von
den Kunden, den Méarkten, vom wirtschaftlichen Umfeld und im interna-
tionalen Wettbewerb an das Unternehmen gestellt werden, auch kinftig
zu erfillen. Aus der Analyse der derzeit erkennbaren Einzelrisiken erge-
ben sich keine Anhaltspunkte, die - fiir sich genommen oder in Kombi-
nation mit anderen Risiken - den Fortbestand des Konzerns geféhrden
konnten. Dies gilt sowohl fiir die Ergebnisse der abgeschlossenen wirt-
schaftlichen Téatigkeit als auch fiir Aktivitaten, die geplant oder bereits
eingeleitet worden sind.

Nachtragsbericht

Der Rosenbauer Konzern war Ende Februar 2023 Ziel einer Cyber-Atta-
cke geworden. Die Cyber-Attacke sowie die folgende Abschaltung der
IT-Infrastruktur haben die einzelnen Unternehmensbereiche in unter-
schiedlichem AusmaB betroffen und in der Produktion zu Stehzeiten bis
zu zwei Wochen gefiihrt. Insbesondere die Organisation der internen
Materialflisse war beeintrachtigt. Einige Niederlassungen wie etwa die
Standorte in USA oder im spanischen Linares konnten durchgehend die
Fertigung aufrechterhalten. Als VorsichtsmaBnahme wurden sémtliche
Server und Endgerite unter genauer Uberwachung neu aufgesetzt und
die Sicherheitsstandards konzernweit angehoben. Per Mitte Marz 2022
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stand die IT-Infrastruktur der Unternehmensgruppe wieder zur Verfi-
gung.

Neben dem genannten Hackerangriff sind nach dem Bilanzstichtag zum
31. Dezember 2022 keine weiteren Vorgéange von besonderer Bedeutung
fiir die Gesellschaft eingetreten, die zu einer Anderung der Vermdgens-,
Finanz- und Ertragslage geflihrt hatten. Allerdings erschwert er das Errei-
chen der wirtschaftlichen Ziele im laufenden Geschaftsjahr 2023.

Prognosebericht

Gesamtwirtschaftliche Entwicklung'’

Der Internationale Wahrungsfonds (IWF) hat zum Jahresbeginn seine
Prognose fiir das Weltwirtschaftswachstum 2023 leicht angehoben. Er
geht demnach von einem Plus von 2,9 % an Stelle von bisher 2,7 % aus.
Dieser Wert liegt deutlich unter der Wachstumsrate des Vorjahres, die
sich auf 3,4 % belief, und unter dem langjahrigen Durchschnitt von 3,8 %
zwischen 2000 und 2019. Fiir 2024 wird eine weitere Erholung der welt-
weiten Konjunktur erwartet. Die globale Inflation soll heuer von 8,8 %
auf 6,6 % zurlickgehen.

Die projizierte, konjunkturelle Bodenbildung dieses Jahr geht auf eine
Reihe positiver Uberraschungen zurlick, allen voran die hohere Resilienz
zahlreicher Volkswirtschaften. Als Folge konnte die US-Wirtschaft 2023
um 1,4 % statt wie noch im Oktober angenommen 1,0 % wachsen, der
Euroraum um 0,7 % statt 0,5 % und Asien um 5,3 % statt 4,9 %. Ein ne-
gatives Wachstum des Welt-BIP, wie es oft mit einer globalen Rezession
einhergeht, wird nicht erwartet.

Das niedrige Wachstum spiegelt gleichzeitig die Leitzinsenerhéhungen
der Zentralbanken zur Bekampfung der Inflation, insbesondere in den
entwickelten Volkswirtschaften, und den Krieg in der Ukraine wider. In
den Schwellen- und Entwicklungslandern sollte die riicklaufige Wirt-
schaft bereits 2022 einen Boden gefunden haben. Im Zuge der Riick-
nahme seiner Null-Covid-Politik sollte sich das Wachstum Chinas be-
schleunigen. In 2024 werden sich dann laut IWF beide Landergruppen
schrittweise weiter erholen.

Die Risiken fiir diese Prognose sind zwar seit der letzten Verdffentli-
chung im Oktober 2022 gesunken, lberwiegen aber unverdndert in
Richtung einer Verschlechterung des Szenarios. So kénnte eine neuer-
liche Verschérfung der Gesundheitslage in China die Erholung bremsen,
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der Angriffskrieg Russlands gegen die Ukraine kdnnte eskalieren und die
weltweit strengeren Finanzierungsbedingungen kdnnten zu einer wei-
teren Schuldenkrise fiihren. Unglinstige Nachrichten von der Inflation
konnten neue Preise an den Finanzmarkten nach sich ziehen, wahrend
eine fortschreitende geopolitische Fragmentierung die wirtschaftliche
Entwicklung behindert. Zu einer Prognoseverbesserung wiirden ohne
Zweifel ein stérkerer Impuls von der angestauten Nachfrage in vielen
Landern und ein rascherer Riickgang der Inflation beitragen.

"IWF, World Economic Outlook, Update, 31. Janner 2023., Weltbank, Global Economic
Prospects, 3. Februar 2023.

Perspektiven auf den Absatzmarkten

Die Feuerwehrbranche folgt der konjunkturellen Entwicklung mit einem
Abstand von ein bis zwei Jahren. Die Nachfrage wird stark von Landern
mit kontinuierlichem Beschaffungswesen bestimmt. Aber auch ein er-
hohtes Sicherheitsbewusstsein nach Naturkatastrophen und anderen
Elementarereignissen flihrt zu vermehrten Investitionen in Feuerwehr-
technik und -ausriistung.

2023 sollte der globalen Feuerwehrbranche ein leichtes Wachstum mog-
lich sein. Insbesondere in den entwickelten Volkswirtschaften scheint
die Investitionsbereitschaft hoch, auch wenn die entsprechenden Bud-
getmittel fiir den Brand- und Katastrophenschutz vereinzelt einen Pla-
fond erreichen. Ausschlaggebend fiir die Produktion wird sein, wie lange
die Stabilisierung der Lieferketten dauert und ob die Energie- und Roh-
stoffpreise wie prognostiziert zurlickgehen.

Der nordamerikanische Markt ist mit einer sehr dynamischen Nachfrage
in das neue Jahr gestartet. Dahinter stehen umfangreiche Forderpro-
gramme fir den Katastrophenschutz und fiir die E-Mobilitat, die auch
den Feuerwehren zugutekommen. Die Entwicklung des Branchenumsat-
zes wird gleichzeitig maBgeblich von der Verfiigbarkeit von Vorproduk-
ten und Arbeitskréaften abhéngig sein. Die neuen Angebotspreise des
Marktes werden heuer vermutlich nur die Inflation ausgleichen kénnen.

Europas Feuerwehrmarkt kann 2023 mit stabilen Neubeschaffungen
rechnen. Trotz Preiserhdhungen und einiger zuriickgestellter Projekte
ist in den Kernmarkten kein Nachfragerlickgang bemerkbar, insbeson-
dere in der D-A-CH-Region ist die Beschaffungsintensitdt hoch. Viele
dieser Projekte beinhalten die Anschaffung von Waldbrandausriistung
und -fahrzeugen, das Interesse an E-Mobilitdt nimmt zu. Geschwacht
werden konnte die Branchenentwicklung, wenn die Inflationsraten wie-
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der steigen sollten oder Férderungen nicht verlangert werden und sich
dadurch die Budgetsituation bei den Feuerwehren verschlechtert.

Die schwache Branchenkonjunktur auf den asiatischen Feuerwehrmaérk-
ten wird sich im laufenden Jahr nur geringfiigig verbessern. Dahinter
stehen neben den vergleichsweise besseren Konjunkturaussichten die
Planung und Errichtung neuer Flughdfen bzw. Rollbahnen sowie ver-
schobene Ersatzbeschaffungen. Nichtsdestotrotz werden die Marktvo-
lumina weiterhin deutlich hinter den gewohnten Werten zuriickbleiben.
2024 kdnnte das Flughafengeschaft wieder Vor-Covid-Niveau erreichen.

Fur die Lander des Mittleren Ostens wird im laufenden Jahr angesichts
eines deutlich schwacheren Konjunkturausblicks fiir Saudi-Arabien
und einer gedrosselten Olproduktion in der OPEC mit einer geringeren
Nachfrage gerechnet. Nichtsdestotrotz sollten im Industrie- und Flugha-
fengeschéft attraktive Projekte entscheidungsreif werden. Neben einer
lokalen Fertigung wird dabei auch zunehmend auf alternative Fahrzeug-
antriebe ein Augenmerk gelegt.

Neuorganisation der Vertriebsregionen:

Mit Jahresbeginn 2023 hat Rosenbauer seine Vertriebsregionen neu
geordnet. Ziel ist es, die Marktbearbeitung durch Synergien zu verein-
fachen. Zu diesem Zweck wurde die Area NISA (Nordeuropa, Iberien,
Siidamerika, Afrika) als eigensténdige Einheit aufgeldst und in die neu
formierten Vertriebsregionen Americas, Europe sowie Middle East & Af-
rica integriert.

Die skandinavischen und Benelux-Ldnder sowie England, Frankreich,
Spanien und Portugal wurden in die bisherige Area CEEU eingegliedert,
die jetzt alle européischen Lénder umfasst und in Area Europe umbe-
nannt wurde. Die von der Area NISA betreuten afrikanischen Lander
wanderten in die Area Middle East & Africa. Am afrikanischen Kontinent
ist somit nur mehr eine Area tétig. Die sidamerikanischen Feuerwehr-
mérkte wurden in die ehemalige NOMA eingebracht, die nun als Area
Americas ganz Nord- und Stidamerika und die Karibik betreut. Die Area
Asia-Pacific ist von diesen organisatorischen Verédnderungen nicht be-
troffen.

Amerika

Die Area Americas geht mit vollen Auftragsbiichern ins Jahr 2023. Die
Produktion ist bis zum Jahresende ausgelastet und konzentriert sich ak-
tuell darauf, nach den umfangreichen Lieferkettenstérungen den Output
zu steigern und den Auftragsbestand moglichst rasch abzubauen. Durch
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die Preisqualitdt der 2022 abgeschlossenen Vertrage soll sich die Er-
tragskraft im Jahresverlauf wieder verbessern.

Um im Neufahrzeuggeschaft die Profitabilitét zu erhohen, werden Stan-
dardfahrzeuge, sogenannte Stock Trucks, aufgelegt, die mit kurzen Lie-
ferzeiten und einem attraktiven Preis-Leistungs-Verhéltnis angeboten
werden konnen. Dafiir steht mit dem GENERAL eine neue, kostengiinsti-
ge Variante des Rosenbauer Custom Chassis (COMMANDER, WARRIOR,
AVENGER) zur Verfligung, auf das rund 70 Prozent aller Fahrzeuge aus
US-Produktion aufgebaut sind.

Dariiber hinaus werden der Komponenten- und Teileverkauf forciert, so-
wohl innerhalb der Rosenbauer Gruppe als auch bei Kunden und Part-
nern, um weitere Umsatze zu generieren und die Ertragsseite zu starken.
Insbesondere die lateinamerikanischen Markte sollen kiinftig vermehrt
mit Aufbauten und Kabinen im Baukastensystem beliefert werden, die
von qualifizierten Partnern endgefertigt und auf vor Ort beschaffte Chas-
sis montiert werden.

Nach der im Berichtsjahr erfolgten Ubernahme der Anteile zweier Mit-
gesellschafter wird Rosenbauer America von einer Beteiligungsholding
zu einem schlagkraftigen Teilkonzern weiterentwickelt. Die Flihrungs-
mannschaft wurde neu aufgestellt, die Organisation entsprechend nach-
gezogen und verschlankt. Im heurigen Jahr geht es darum, diese neuen
Strukturen zu konsolidieren und Synergien zu heben.

Europa

Die Area Europe wird sich im Jahr 2023 einerseits auf ihre Kernmaérkte
sowie traditionelle Stérke im Normfahrzeuggeschéft konzentrieren und
andererseits das Nicht-Fahrzeuggeschaft ausbauen. Damit soll geméaB
Konzernstrategie bis 2030 deutlich mehr Umsatz und Ertrag erzielt wer-
den. Die Normfahrzeugmarkte sollen kiinftig verstarkt mit marktspe-
zifisch vorkonfigurierten Feuerwehrfahrzeugen beliefert werden, die
Rosenbauer industriell fertigen und den Kunden rasch zur Verfligung
stellen kann.

Die Organisation der Area Europe wird folglich nach dem Vorbild der
Rosenbauer Osterreich angepasst. Hier wurden bereits entsprechende
Ressourcen fiir einen verstarkten Verkauf von Ausriistungsprodukten
geschaffen. Einen wichtigen ersten Schub erfuhr das Ausriistungsge-
schéaft durch die Erdffnung einer neuen, reprasentativen Niederlassung
in Palmiry nahe der polnischen Hauptstadt Warschau im Sommer 2022.
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Mit der Integration der westeuropdischen Markte der vormaligen Area
NISA sollen sich auch im Servicebereich konkrete Synergien realisieren
lassen. So kann das Rosenbauer Servicezentrum Nordrhein-Westfalen
in Deutschland kiinftig auch die Feuerwehren in den angrenzenden Be-
nelux-Lander betreuen.

Wichtige Lead-Feuerwehren kommen 2023 als Kunden des RT hinzu: Im
April stellt die Berufsfeuerwehr Basel ihr erstes Fahrzeug in den Dienst,
die Berufsfeuerwehr Wien folgt im weiteren Jahresverlauf.

Insgesamt hat sich die Fehlteilesituation in der Fahrzeugfertigung zuletzt
deutlich entspannt, ohne jedoch auf Normalniveau zuriickzukehren. Die
Bereitstellung von LKW-Chasis soll sich nach Spitzen-Gespréachen zwi-
schen Rosenbauer und seinen Lieferanten ab dem 2. Quartal verbessern.

Internationales Exportgeschaft

Die Area Middle East & Africa wird 2023 ihr Erfolgsmodell aus dem arabi-
schen Raum auf Afrika ausweiten und sich auch dort vom Hardware-Lie-
feranten zum ganzheitlichen Feuerwehrdienstleister weiterentwickeln.
In Zukunft wird die Marktbearbeitung verstarkt mit All-in-Losungen auf
der Basis standardisierter Fahrzeuge erfolgen, flir die auch gleich das
Service Ubernommen wird und sinnvolle Ergédnzungen aus den Produkt-
bereichen Ausriistung und Digital Solution mit angeboten werden.

Dariiber hinaus sollen in Afrika, so wie bisher in der vormaligen Area
MENA, geeignete Finanzierungsmodelle wie das Leasing von Einsatz-
fahrzeugen angeboten werden, wodurch Kunden sehr rasch zu Fahrzeu-
gen kommen kdnnen, ohne die Investition auf einmal tatigen zu mussen.
Die Fahrzeugfertigung im eigenen Montagewerk in der KAEC wird weiter
intensiviert, die Teile dafiir kommen aus dem gesamten europdischen
und amerikanischen Produktionsportfolio.

Die Area Asia-Pacific wird heuer ihre Vertriebskraft auf jene Méarkte fo-
kussieren, die intakte Chancen im Exportgeschéft bieten. Das sind nach
der Abschottung Chinas, des groBten Einzelmarktes in der Region, allen
voran die ASEAN-Lander, Japan, Australien und Neuseeland. Rosenbau-
er nutzt dabei seine Technologieflihrerschaft und liefert vor allem hoch-
wertige Flughafenldschfahrzeuge aus der PANTHER-Baureihe oder Dreh-
leitern mit bis zu 64 m Rettungshohe, beide aus europdischer Fertigung.
Die Einzelmarkte Hongkong und Singapur werden traditionell mit Fahr-
zeugen aus dem Werk Singapur versorgt. Der kommunale Feuerwehr-
markt in Australien wird kiinftig ebenfalls bedient. Da dies allerdings
ohne lokale Wertschépfung nicht méglich ist, wurden zuletzt bei Rosen-
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bauer Australia Montagekapazitdten geschaffen, die ab Mitte 2023 fiir
den Bau von Fahrzeugen der ET-Baureihe mit SKD-Sets aus Europa ge-
nutzt werden sollen.

Rosenbauer verfolgt die Entwicklung der verschiedenen Feuerwehr-
mérkte sehr genau, um Absatzchancen friihzeitig nutzen zu kénnen.
Abhéngig davon, welche Lénder oder Regionen ein erhéhtes Beschaf-
fungsvolumen erkennen lassen, werden die Vertriebsaktivitdten intensi-
viert. Zum Bilanzstichtag verfligte Rosenbauer liber einen sehr soliden
Auftragsbestand.

Innovationen und neue Produkte

Mit seinen Forschungs- und Entwicklungsaktivitaten verfolgt Rosenbau-
er das Ziel, seine internationale Wettbewerbsposition zu stérken und
weiter auszubauen. Dabei beschéftigt sich der Konzern intensiv mit
den weltweiten Megatrends wie der globalen Erwarmung, dem demo-
grafischen Wandel, der Urbanisierung und Digitalisierung sowie deren
Auswirkungen auf die Einsatzorganisationen und die Technik fiir Feu-
erwehren. Daraus leitet der Konzern konkrete MaBnahmen fiir die Pro-
duktentwicklung ab.

So wurde beispielsweise im Jahr 2022 die Initiative ,,Green Energy on
Fire“ ins Leben gerufen, eine Netzwerk- und Wissensplattform fiir die
Energie- und Mobilitdtswende bei den Osterreichischen Feuerwehren.
Hier tauschen sich Vertreter von Feuerwehren, der Energiewirtschaft,
aus Technologieunternehmen und der Politik Gber ihre Ansétze zur Re-
duktion klimaschadlicher Treibhausgase aus und welche unterstitzen-
den MaBnahmen es dazu braucht aus. Die wichtigsten Handlungsfelder
werden in der ,,Green Energy on Fire Map“ zusammengefasst und wei-
terbearbeitet.

Mit der Vorstellung eines kompletten Electric Line-Up fiir den kommuna-
len Bereich auf der Interschutz in Hannover hat Rosenbauer einen wich-
tigen Grundstein fiir eine emissionsfreie Feuerwehr gelegt. Rosenbauer
wird diesen Weg auch 2023 konsequent weiterverfolgen. Neben den
bereits in Serie produzierten RT und RTX startete der Testbetrieb einer
elektrischen Drehleiter durch Schutz & Rettung Ziirich. Die Erkenntnisse
daraus dienen als Basis fiir die Weiterentwicklung der L32A-XS electric
zur Serienreife.

Rosenbauer ist eines der innovativsten Unternehmen der Feuerwehr-
branche. Mit stdndig neuen und attraktiven Produkten werden Wettbe-
werbsvorteile erzielt und neue Wachstumschancen erschlossen.
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Investitionen und Kapazitaten

Das Investitionsmanagement von Rosenbauer erfasst systematisch
samtliche Bedarfe im Konzern und reiht diese nach Prioritat. Fiir das Jahr
2023 sind Investitionen in Hohe von unter 20 Mio € geplant. Das liegt
unter dem durchschnittlichen Investitionsniveau vor der COVID-19 Pan-
demie (2020: 35 Mio €) und ist das Ergebnis der Restrukturierungs-maB-
nahmen, die den Rosenbauer Konzern im Laufe des Jahres wieder in die
Gewinnzone flihren sollen.
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Zu den wichtigsten Investitionsvorhaben 2023 gehoren

m der Bau eines neuen Betriebsgebdudes am Standort Singapur,

m die Fertigstellung eines neuen Betriebsgebdudes und einer neuen
Servicehalle am Standort Karlsruhe,

m der Kauf des bisher gemieteten Betriebsgebdudes am Standort Glad-
beck sowie

m die Erweiterung der Parkmdoglichkeiten am Standort Luckenwalde.

Dariiber hinaus soll der konzernweite Roll-out von SAP-S/4Hana wie ge-
plant fortgesetzt werden. Der damit steigende Digitalisierungsgrad von
Prozessen optimiert den konzernweiten Ressourceneinsatz.

Finanz- und Liquiditatslage

Rosenbauer hat branchenbedingt einen hohen unterjéhrigen Finan-
zierungsbedarf. Das liegt zum einen an langen Durchlaufzeiten insbe-
sondere in der Fahrzeugproduktion, zum anderen an vergleichsweise
niedrigen Kundenanzahlungen. Der Konzern wirkt diesem Umstand mit
gezielten MaBnahmen entgegen, die die Optimierung der Auftragsab-
wicklung zum Ziel haben.

Die Finanzierung von Rosenbauer wird iber mehrere Banken und mit
unterschiedlichen Fristigkeiten sichergestellt. Die Finanzierungsstrate-
gie des Konzerns ist nach konservativen Grundséatzen ausgerichtet und
raumt einer gesicherten Liquiditdt sowie einer soliden Eigenmittelaus-
stattung einen hohen Stellenwert ein.

Leonding, 6. April 2023
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Gesamtaussage zur kiinftigen Entwicklung

Rosenbauer hat im Berichtsjahr eine langfristige Konzernstrategie bis
2030 vorgelegt, die im Wesentlichen auf drei Saulen ruht: Technologie-
fuhrerschaft, Kundenverbundenheit und operationelle Exzellenz. Diese
sieht flir das Jahrzehnt weiteres Wachstum und den Ausbau von Markt-
anteilen ebenso vor wie die Transformation der Unternehmensgruppe
und der Industrie in Richtung mehr Nachhaltigkeit.

Angesichts hdchst unsicherer Produktionsbedingungen in Form von
wiederkehrenden und wechselnden Versorgungsengpassen sowie Kos-
tensteigerungen bei Vorprodukten, Rohmaterialien und Energie wird der
Konzernvorstand auch im laufenden Geschaftsjahr seinen Fokus weiter
auf operationelle Exzellenz und Effizienzsteigerung im Kerngeschaft le-
gen. Dazu hat er unter breiter Beteiligung des mittleren Managements
ein umfassendes Restrukturierungsprogramm mit dem Titel ,Refocus,
Restart entwickelt, das kurz- und mittelfristige MaBnahmen zur Her-
stellkostenreduktion und Abhéartung des Geschéftsmodells umfasst. Die
Wertanalyse und Anpassung bestehender Produkte oder die Einfiihrung
eines dynamischen Preismodells, das so starke Umfeldverédnderungen
wie im Vorjahr integrieren kann, sind unter anderem Teile dieses Pro-
grammes.

Damit verfligt Rosenbauer lber sehr gute Voraussetzungen, das Jahr
2023 trotz der volatilen Rahmenbedingungen erfolgreich zu meistern.

Sebastian Wolf Andreas Zeller Daniel Tomaschko Markus Richter
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Bilanz
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Stand Stand
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
AKTIVA EUR EUR EUR TEUR
A. ANLAGEVERMOGEN
I.  Immaterielle Vermdgensgegenstande
1. Konzessionen, Rechte 2.429.488,00 2.096
2. Geleistete Anzahlungen 8.347.399,93 5.330
10.776.887,93 7.426
Il.  Sachanlagen
1. Grundstiicke, grundstiicksgleiche Rechte und Bauten, einschlieBlich der Bauten auf fremdem Grund
davon Grundwert EUR 18.766.164,92 (2021 TEUR 18.766) 55.743.459,92 58.145
2. Investitionen in fremden Gebauden 126.561,00 150
3. Technische Anlagen und Maschinen 9.746.257,00 12.145
4. Andere Anlagen, Betriebs- und Geschaftsausstattung 10.794.501,00 12.013
5. Geleistete Anzahlungen und Anlagen in Bau 488.685,25 91
76.899.464,17 82.544
Ill. Finanzanlagen
1. Anteile an verbundenen Unternehmen 79.133.783,55 76.183
2. Ausleihungen an verbundene Unternehmen 62.712.878,62 0
3. Beteiligungen 1.501.503,00 3.002
4. Wertpapiere (Wertrechte) des Anlagevermégens 305.247,09 317
143.653.412,26 79.502
231.329.764,36 169.472
B. UMLAUFVERMOGEN
I. Vorréte
1. Roh-, Hilfs- und Betriebsstoffe 48.637.311,15 34.774
2. Unfertige Erzeugnisse 108.182.017,04 94.058
abzliglich erhaltene Anzahlung -5.279.073,18 -2.059
Fertige Erzeugnisse und Waren 8.367.683,37 6.169
Geleistete Anzahlungen 2.180.553,85 2.188
162.088.492,23 135.130
Il Forderungen und sonstige Vermdgensgegensténde
1. Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen 50.934.533,26 59.548
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr EUR 247.943,58 (2021 TEUR 496)
2. Forderungen gegeniiber verbundenen Unternehmen 147.761.666,82 99.896
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr EUR 14.434.539,82 (2021 TEUR 61.667)
3. Forderungen gegeniiber Unternehmen, mit denen ein Beteiligungsverhéltnis besteht 0,00 2.246
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr EUR 0,00 (2020 TEUR 0)
4. Sonstige Forderungen und Vermogensgegenstande 7.770.331,16 9.875
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr EUR 0,00 (2020 TEUR 0)
206.466.531,24 171.565
Ill. Kassenbestand, Guthaben bei Kreditinstituten 3.504.134,61 43.389
372.059.158,08 350.084
C. RECHNUNGSABGRENZUNGSPOSTEN 3.745.188,76 3.528
D. AKTIVE LATENTE STEUERN 10.785.118,11 9.434

617.919.229,31 532.518
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Stand Stand
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
PASSIVA EUR EUR TEUR
A. EIGENKAPITAL
I, Eingefordertes und eingezahltes Grundkapital 13.600.000,00 13.600
Ubernommenes Grundkapital EUR 13.600.000,00 (2021 TEUR 13.600)
IIl.  Kapitalriicklagen (gebundene) 23.703.398,02 23.703
Ill.  Gewinnriicklagen (freie Ricklagen) 138.071.955,77 138.072
IV.  Bilanzverlust /-gewinn
davon Gewinnvortrag EUR 151.043,34 (2021 TEUR 150) -35.391.325,28 6.271
139.984.028,51 181.646
B. RUCKSTELLUNGEN
1. Riickstellungen fiir Abfertigungen 16.930.179,00 17.085
2. Riickstellungen fiir Pensionen 638.785,00 746
3. Steuerriickstellung 7.553.788,72 6.079
4. Sonstige Riickstellungen 40.297.765,26 35.225
65.420.517,98 59.135
C. VERBINDLICHKEITEN
1. Verbindlichkeiten gegeniiber Kreditinstituten 272.521.732,71 206.741
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von bis zu einem Jahr EUR 71.596.172,28 (2021 TEUR 51.441)
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr EUR 200.925.560,43 (2021 TEUR 155.300)
2. Erhaltene Anzahlungen auf Bestellungen 16.566.138,26 6.972
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von bis zu einem Jahr EUR 16.566.138,26 (2021 TEUR 6.972)
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr EUR 0,00 (2021 TEUR 0)
3. Verbindlichkeiten aus Lieferungen und Leistungen 47.500.969,75 37.128
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von bis zu einem Jahr EUR 47.500.969,75 (2021 TEUR 37.128)
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr EUR 0,00 (2021 TEUR 0)
4. Verbindlichkeiten gegeniiber verbundenen Unternehmen 57.376.087,23 21.240
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von bis zu einem Jahr EUR 57.376.087,23 (2021 TEUR 21.240)
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr EUR 0,00 (2021 TEUR 0)
5. Verbindlichkeiten gegeniiber Unternehmen, mit denen ein Beteiligungsverhaltnis besteht 38.507,38 0
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von bis zu einem Jahr EUR 38.507,38 (2021 TEUR 0)
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr EUR 0,00 (2021 TEUR 0)
6. Sonstige Verbindlichkeiten
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von bis zu einem Jahr EUR 8.355.608,00 (2021 TEUR 7.384) 8.355.608,00 7.384
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr EUR 0,00 (2021 TEUR 0)
davon aus Steuern EUR 203.288,82 (2021 TEUR 184)
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von bis zu einem Jahr EUR 203.288,82 (2021 TEUR 184)
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr EUR 0,00 (2021 TEUR 0)
davon im Rahmen der sozialen Sicherheit EUR 2.471.592,63 (2021 TEUR 2.279)
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von bis zu einem Jahr EUR 2.471.592,63 (2021 TEUR 2.279)
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr EUR 0,00 (2021 TEUR 0)
Summe Verbindlichkeiten 402.359.043,33 279.465
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von bis zu einem Jahr EUR 201.433.482,90 (2021 TEUR 124.165)
davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr EUR 200.925.560,43 (2021 TEUR 155.300)
D. RECHNUNGSABGRENZUNGSPOSTEN 10.155.639,49 12.272

617.919.229,31 532.518
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Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung

2022 2021
EUR EUR TEUR TEUR
1. Umsatzerlose 443.779.702,68 444.264
2. Veranderung des Bestands an fertigen und unfertigen Erzeugnissen 14.123.610,22 -20.943
3. Andere aktivierte Eigenleistungen 85.105,62 428
4. Sonstige betriebliche Ertrage
a) Ertrage aus dem Abgang vom und der Zuschreibung zum Anlagevermdgen mit Ausnahme der Finanzanlagen 1.073.980,52 522
b) Ertrdge aus der Auflésung von Riickstellungen 154.990,15 366
c) Ubrige 2.056.899,72 3.285.870,39 5.255 6.143
5. Aufwendungen fiir Material und sonstige bezogene Herstellungsleistungen
a) Materialaufwand -301.588.369,39 -259.481
b) Aufwendungen fiir bezogene Leistungen -7.272.847,80 -308.861.217,19 -8.067 -267.548
6. Personalaufwand
a) Loéhne -39.364.314,97 -43.194
b) Gehélter -51.289.903,06 -48.758
c) Soziale Aufwendungen -27.561.382,45 -26.296
davon Aufwendungen fiir Altersversorgung EUR -312.264,54 (2021 TEUR -736)
aa) Aufwendungen flr Abfertigungen und Leistungen an betriebliche Mitarbeitervorsorgekassen EUR -8.129.271,02 (2021 TEUR -2.786)
bb) Aufwendungen fiir gesetzlich vorgeschriebene Sozialabgaben sowie vom Entgelt abhédngige Abgaben und Pflichtbeitradge EUR -23.553.495,45 (2021 TEUR -22.669) -118.215.600,48 -118.248
7. Abschreibungen auf immaterielle Gegenstande des Anlagevermdgens und Sachanlagen -9.740.067,66 -9.849
davon auBerplanméBige Abschreibungen EUR 0,00 (2018 TEUR 0)
8. Sonstige betriebliche Aufwendungen
a) Steuern, soweit sie nicht unter Z 18 fallen -9.485,60 -70
b) Ubrige -55.062.821,86 -55.072.307,46 -46.856 -46.926
9. Zwischensumme aus Z 1 bis 8 (Betriebserfolg) -30.614.903,88 -12.679
10. Ertrége aus Beteiligungen 3.627.644,51 6.425
davon aus verbundenen Unternehmen EUR 3.627.644,51 (2021 TEUR 6.388)
11. Ertrége aus anderen Wertpapieren und Ausleihungen des Finanzanlagevermégens 348,82 2
davon aus verbundenen Unternehmen EUR 0,00 (2021 TEUR 0)
12. Sonstige Zinsen und &hnliche Ertrage 5.308.690,00 2.282
davon aus verbundenen Unternehmen EUR 4.967.268,54 (2021 TEUR 2.221)
13. Ertrdge aus dem Abgang von Finanzanlagen 0,00 3
14. Aufwendungen aus Finanzanlagen
aus Wertpapieren des Umlaufvermogens -1.511.710,79 -1
davon Abschreibungen EUR -1.511.710,79 (2021 TEUR -1)
davon aus beteiligten Unternehmen EUR -1.500.137,79 (2021 TEUR 0)
15. Zinsen und &hnliche Aufwendungen -13.309.753,35 -4.300
davon betreffend verbundene Unternehmen EUR -124.394,39 (2021 TEUR -89)
16. Zwischensumme aus Z 10 bis 15 (Finanzerfolg) -5.884.780,81 4.411
17. Ergebnis vor Steuern (Zwischensumme aus Z 9 und Z 16) -36.499.684,69 -8.268
18. Steuern vom Einkommen und vom Ertrag 957.316,07 3.489
davon latente Steuern EUR 1.350.854,00 (2021 TEUR 4.004)
19. Ergebnis nach Steuern = Jahresfehlbetrag -35.542.368,62 -4.779
20. Auflésung von Gewinnriicklagen 0,00 10.900
Jahresverlust/-gewinn -35.542.368,62 6.121
21. Gewinnvortrag aus dem Vorjahr 151.043,34 150
22. Bilanzverlust/-gewinn -35.391.325,28 6.271

*Kleinbetrag
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Aufgliederung der Erlose

Aufgliederung nach Inlands- und Auslandserlésen

in€

2022
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2021

Osterreich

70.487.000,00

46.843.000,00

Europédische Union

97.509.000,00

91.605.000,00

Asien /Ozeanien

52.722.000,00

76.916.000,00

Osteuropa 31.843.000,00 16.129.000,00
Naher Osten 69.955.000,00 106.407.000,00
Sonstige 121.263.702,68 106.363.534,01

Umsatzerlose

443.779.702,68

444.263.534,01

Umsiétze nach Tatigkeitsbereichen

in € 2022 2021
Fahrzeuge 270.431.352,23 288.599.052,01
Komponenten 61.443.726,97 49.237.682,42
Ausristung 65.353.574,71 66.546.976,39

Ersatzteile, Reparatur und Service

25.664.586,30

21.623.862,71

Sonstige

20.886.462,47

18.255.960,48

Umsatzerlose

443.779.702,68

444.263.534,01

Gewinnrucklagen

in€

Stand 1.1.2022

Auflosung /
Verbrauch

Stand 31.12.2022

Gewinnriicklagen

Andere (freie) Riicklagen

138.071.955,77

0,00

138.071.955,77
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Buchwert Buchwert
Anschaffungs - bzw. Herstellungskosten kumulierte Abschreibungen 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Vortrag Investitions- Stand Vortrag Zuschrei- Umbu- Stand
in€ 01.01.2022 Zugénge Umbuchungen Abginge Zuschiisse 31.12.2022 01.01.2022 Zuginge bung chungen Abginge 31.12.2022
ANLAGEVERMOGEN
I.  Immaterielle
Vermdgensgegenstande
1. Konzessionen, Rechte 8.440.833,40 405.115,59 1.408.803,77 317.010,02 0,00 9.937.742,74 6.345.229,40 1.480.015,36 0,00 0,00 316.990,02 7.508.254,74 2.429.488,00 2.095.604,00
2. Geleistete Anzahlungen 5.329.935,44 4.426.268,26 -1.408.803,77 0,00 0,00 8.347.399,93 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 8.347.399,93 5.329.935,44
13.770.768,84 4.831.383,85 0,00 317.010,02 0,00 18.285.142,67 6.345.229,40 1.480.015,36 0,00 0,00 316.990,02 7.508.254,74 10.776.887,93 7.425.539,44
Il. Sachanlagen
1. Grundstiicke, grundstiicks-
gleiche Rechte und Bauten,
einschlieBlich der Bauten auf
fremdem Grund
a) Bebaute Grundstiicke
aa)mit Geschafts- oder
Fabriksgebauden oder
anderen Baulichkeiten
Grundwert 11.317.133,33 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 11.317.133,33 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 11.317.133,33 11.317.133,33
Gebaudewert 63.327.975,38 15.810,55 0,00 128.179,15 0,00 63.215.606,78 26.971.737,38 1.935.499,55 0,00 0,00 59.336,15 28.847.900,78 34.367.706,00 36.356.238,00
AuBenanlagen 8.431.881,74 1.252,00 0,00 10.125,63 0,00 8.423.008,11 5.408.846,74 411.660,00 0,00 0,00 7.087,63 5.813.419,11 2.609.589,00 3.023.035,00
b) Unbebaute Grundstiicke 7.449.031,59 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 7.449.031,59 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 7.449.031,59 7.449.031,59
90.526.022,04 17.062,55 0,00 138.304,78 0,00 90.404.779,81 32.380.584,12 2.347.159,55 0,00 0,00 66.423,78 34.661.319,89 55.743.459,92 58.145.437,92
2. Investitionen in fremden
Gebéauden 236.302,06 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 236.302,06 86.166,06 23.575,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 109.741,06 126.561,00 150.136,00
3. Technische Anlagen und
Maschinen 31.900.240,18 254.040,50 0,00 1.310.063,50 0,00 30.844.217,18 19.755.094,18 2.094.955,50 0,00 0,00 752.089,50 21.097.960,18 9.746.257,00 12.145.146,00
4. Andere Anlagen, Betriebs-
und Geschéftsausstattung 52.975.499,64 2.560.743,31 27.088,94 1.132.960,80 0,00 54.430.371,09 40.962.848,64 3.794.362,25 0,00 0,00 1.121.340,80 43.635.870,09 10.794.501,00 12.012.651,00
5. Geleistete Anzahlungen und
Anlagen in Bau 91.379,60 424.394,59 -27.088,94 0,00 0,00 488.685,25 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 488.685,25 91.379,60
175.729.443,52 3.256.240,95 0,00 2.581.329,08 0,00 176.404.355,39 93.184.693,00 8.260.052,30 0,00 0,00 1.939.854,08 99.504.891,22 76.899.464,17 82.544.750,52
lll. Finanzanlagen
1. Anteile an verbundenen
Unternehmen 84.668.040,58 2.950.975,92 0,00 0,00 0,00 87.619.016,50 8.485.232,95 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 8.485.232,95 79.133.783,55 76.182.807,63
2. Ausleihungen an
verbundene Unternehmen 0,00 62.712.878,62 0,00 0,00 62.712.878,62 0,00 0,00 0,00 62.712.878,62 0,00
3. Beteiligungen 3.001.640,79 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 3.001.640,79 0,00 1.500.137,79 0,00 0,00 0,00 1.500.137,79 1.501.503,00 3.001.640,79
4. Wertpapiere (Wertrechte)
des Anlagevermdgens 327.617,79 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 327.617,79 10.797,70 11.573,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 22.370,70 305.247,09 316.820,09
87.997.299,16  65.663.854,54 0,00 0,00 0,00 153.661.153,70 8.496.030,65 11.573,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 10.007.741,44  143.653.412,26 79.501.268,51
277.497.511,52  73.751.479,34 0,00 2.898.339,10 0,00 348.350.651,76 108.025.953,05 9.751.640,66 0,00 0,00 2.256.844,10 117.020.887,40 231.329.764,36 169.471.558,47
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Investitionszuschusse

Anschaffungs - bzw. Herstellungskosten
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Stand Stand
in€ 01.01.2022 Zugénge Abgang Auflosung Umbuchung 31.12.2022
ANLAGEVERMOGEN
l.Immaterielle Vermégensgegenstande
1.Konzessionen, Rechte 86.561,00 0,00 83.826,00 0,00 210.000,00 212.735,00
2.Geleistete Anzahlungen 269.780,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 -249.200,00 20.580,00
356.341,00 0,00 83.826,00 0,00 -39.200,00 233.315,00
Il.Sachanlagen
1.Grundstlcke, grundstiicksgleiche Rechte und Bauten, einschlieBlich der Bauten auf fremdem Grund
a) Bebaute Grundstiicke mit Geschéfts- oder Fabriksgebduden oder anderen Baulichkeiten
Geb&udewert 312.178,00 0,00 11.853,00 0,00 0,00 300.325,00
AuBenanlagen 50.890,00 0,00 4.074,00 0,00 0,00 46.816,00
363.068,00 0,00 15.927,00 0,00 0,00 347.141,00
2.Investitionen in fremden Gebauden 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
3.Technische Anlagen und Maschinen 100.148,00 0,00 13.388,00 0,00 0,00 86.760,00
4.Andere Anlagen, Betriebs- und Geschéftsausstattung 111.493,00 0,00 32.680,00 0,00 0,00 78.813,00
5.Geleistete Anzahlungen und Anlagen in Bau 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00
574.709,00 0,00 61.995,00 0,00 0,00 512.714,00
931.050,00 0,00 145.821,00 0,00 -39.200,00 746.029,00
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Beteiligungsunternehmen s o s

Wahrungs- Beteil. Beteil. Konsolidie-

(in 1.000) einheit Anteil " % Eigenkapital Ergebnis? Anteil " % Eigenkapital Ergebnis ? rungsart
Stand 2021 31.12.2021 2021 Stand 2022 31.12.2022 2022

Rosenbauer Osterreich GmbH,
Osterreich, Leonding EUR 100 8.076.863 3.060.696 100 11.541 3.046 KV
Rosenbauer Brandschutz GmbH,
Osterreich, Leonding EUR 100 2.737.421 -229.990 100 3.749 -255 KV
Rosenbauer E-Technology Development GmbH,
Osterreich, Leonding EUR 100 12.847.846 634.130 100 11.671 -1.210 KV
Rosenbauer E-=Commerce GmbH, Leonding 3) EUR 100 24.975 -10.025 100 -102 -127 KV
Rosenbauer APAC Holding GmbH, Leonding 3) EUR 100 32.696 -2.304 100 26 -7 KV
Rosenbauer Fire Fighting Technology,
VR China, Kunming 3) EUR 100 229.763 13.704 100 402 -19 KV
Rosenbauer Deutschland GmbH,
Deutschland, Luckenwalde EUR 100 24.496.100 5.075.489 100 25.574 2.878 KV
Rosenbauer Karlsruhe GmbH /
vormals Rosenbauer Management GmbH 4) EUR 100 21.469.766 243.753 100 21.066 -1.215 KV
Rosenbauer Karlsruhe GmbH & Co. KG,
Deutschland, Karlsruhe 4) EUR 0 0
Rosenbauer France SARL,
Frankreich, Meyzieu EUR 100 1.055.361 -43.461 100 1.338 283 KV
Rosenbauer Finanzierung GmbH,
Deutschland, Passau EUR 100 11.421 -3.334 100 8 -3 KV
Rosenbauer Brandschutz Deutschland GmbH,
Deutschland, Mogendorf EUR 100 2.322 -4.366 100 6.958 3.385 KV
Rosenbauer d.o.o0.,
Slowenien, Radgona EUR 90 11.340.085 1.120.838 100 12.701 1.333 KV
Rosenbauer Schweiz AG,
Schweiz, Oberglatt EUR 100 8.574.432 740.748 100 9.217 846 KV
Rosenbauer Espanola S.A.,
Spanien, Madrid EUR 62 3.605.509 -127.416 80 3.785 180 KV
Rosenbauer Ciansa S.L.,
Linares, Spanien EUR 50 -229 3.163 50 4.149 -137 AE
Rosenbauer Minnesota, LLC., 5)
USA, Minnesota EUR 50 12.746.275 5.918.193 100 -1.476 -5.162 KV
Rosenbauer South Dakota, LLC., 5)
USA, South Dakota EUR 50 41.771.142 11.123.948 100 43.834 10.617 KV

Rosenbauer Holdings Inc.,
USA, South Dakota EUR 100 30.316.700 4.761.813 100 26.828 -6.136 KV
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Wahrungs- Beteil. Beteil. Konsolidie-

(in 1.000) einheit Anteil " % Eigenkapital Ergebnis ? Anteil " % Eigenkapital Ergebnis? rungsart
Stand 2021 31.12.2021 2021 Stand 2022 31.12.2022 2022

Rosenbauer America, LLC., 5)
USA, South Dakota EUR 50 67.263.242 14.287.846 100 57.591 -7.684 KV
Rosenbauer Aerials, LLC., 5)
USA, Nebraska EUR 25 8.454.211 1.206.111 50 10.461 3.364 KV
Rosenbauer Motors, LLC.,5)
USA, Minnesota EUR 50 917.697 901.731 100 -1.536 -2.318 KV
S.K. Rosenbauer Pte. Ltd.,
Singapur EUR 100 14.231.544 2.978.957 100 17.218 2.589 KV
Eskay Rosenbauer Sdn Bhd,
Brunei EUR 80 -229.043 52.884 80 -288 -39 KV
Rosenbauer Australia Pty. Ltd.,
Brisbane, Australien EUR 100 1.433.692 426.978 100 1.804 377 KV
Rosenbauer South Africa (Pty.) Ltd.,
Siidafrika, Halfway House EUR 75 314.046 -60.982 75 551 248 KV
Rosenbauer Saudi Arabia,
Saudi Arabien, Riad EUR 75 4.218.345 167.415 75 4.919 295 KV
Rosenbauer UK plc,
United Kingdom, Holmfirth EUR 100 2.772.104 4.710 100 2.625 -2 KV
Rosenbauer Rovereto Srl,
Italien, Rovereto EUR 100 2.650.744 326.430 100 2.771 121 KV
Rosenbauer ltalia S.r.l.,
Italien, Andrian EUR 100 446.173 -8.630 100 399 -48 KV
Rosenbauer Polska Sp.z. o0.0.,
Polen, Warschau EUR 100 160.592 150.047 100 477 362 KV
Rosenbauer Mena Trading - FZE,
Vereinige Arabische Emirate, Dubai EUR 100 3.208.301 1.293.257 100 4.721 1.730 KV
PA "Fire-fighting special technics" LLC.,
Russland, Moskau EUR 49 4.520.546 -204 49 EK

' Mittelbarer Beteiligungsanteil
? Jahresgewinn nach Riicklagenbewegung
3 Griindung in 2021

* Einbringung 2021 Rosenbauer Karlsruhe GmbH & Co.KG in Rosenbauer Management GmbH, Umfirmierung in Rosenbauer Karlsruhe

° Dirimierungsrecht fiir die Rosenbauer International AG
KV Vollkonsolidierte Gesellschaften

AE At equity-bewertete Gesellschaften

EK Entkonsolidierte Gesellschaften

Die in der obigen Tabelle angefiihrten Werte wurden nach internationalen Rechnungslegungsvorschriften ermittelt.
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Erlauternde Angaben

1. Anwendungen der unternehmensrechtlichen Vorschriften

Die Rosenbauer International AG mit Sitz in Leonding/Linz, Paschinger StraBe 90, ist ein konzernabschluss-
erstellendes Mutterunternehmen, das an der Wiener Borse im Prime Market gelistet ist. Das Unternehmen
entwickelt und produziert Fahrzeuge, Loschtechnik, Ausriistung und Telematiklosungen flr Berufs-, Betriebs-,
Werk- und freiwillige Feuerwehren sowie Anlagen fiir den vorbeugenden Brandschutz.

Die Bilanzierung, die Bewertung und der Ausweis der einzelnen Positionen des Jahresabschlusses wurde nach
den allgemeinen Bestimmungen der §§ 189 bis 211 UGB in der geltenden Fassung unter Beriicksichtigung der
Sondervorschriften fiir Kapitalgesellschaften der §§ 222 bis 243 UGB vorgenommen.

2, Bilanzierungs- und Bewertungsgrundsitze

Der Jahresabschluss wurde unter Beachtung der Grundsétze ordnungsmaBiger Buchflihrung sowie der Gene-
ralnorm des § 222 Abs. 2, ein mdglichst getreues Bild der Vermdgens-, Finanz- und Ertragslage des Unterneh-
mens zu vermitteln, aufgestellt.

Das Geschéftsjahr 2022 war durch massive Lieferkettenstérungen gepragt. Zusammen mit der anhaltenden
Corona-Krise flihrte dies zunéchst zu einem weiteren Anstieg der Rohstoffpreise. Eine sich zum Anfang des
Kalenderjahres abzeichnende Entspannung wurde durch den im Februar 2022 begonnen Krieg in der Ukraine
beendet. Im Geschéftsjahr mussten signifikante Preissteigerungen akzeptiert werden. Neben den Material-
preiserhéhungen kam es insbesondere durch Lieferverzégerungen bei den Fahrgestellen wiederholt zu Pro-
duktionsstérungen. Durch die Materialpreiserhdhungen sowie die genannten Produktionsstérungen blieb die
Ertragssituation deutlich unter den Erwartungen. Nach zwei angespannten Jahren auf dem Beschaffungsmarkt
gibt es aber erste vorsichtige Zeichen fiir Besserungen im weiteren Verlauf des Jahres 2023. Erste Preisriick-
génge auf den Rohstoffméarkten sowie ein verlangsamtes Wirtschaftswachstum schaffen neue Méglichkeiten
die Beschaffungssituation spirbar zu verbessern. Die Nachwirkungen und Rickstande aus 2022 etwa bei den
Fahrgestellen und bestimmten Elektronikbauteilen werden aber noch sichtbar bleiben.Es wird allerdings von
einer zumindest mittelfristigen Erholung des Geschaftsmodells ausgegangen und insbesondere kann Rosen-
bauer mit der fortschrittlichen Technik einen positiven Beitrag zur Bewéltigung der anhaltenden Krisen leisten.

Bei Vermdgensgegenstéanden und Schulden wurde grundsatzlich der Grundsatz der Einzelbewertung ange-
wandt. Sofern einzelne Vermdgensgegenstéande und Schulden Bestandteil einer Bewertungseinheit sind, wur-
den diese abweichend vom Grundsatz der Einzelbewertung zusammen mit dem zugehdrigen Sicherungsinstru-
ment bewertet.

Bei der Erstellung des Jahresabschlusses wurden Annahmen getroffen und Schatzungen vorgenommen, wel-
che die H6he und den Ausweis der Vermdgenswerte und Schulden sowie der Ertrage und Aufwendungen des
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Berichtszeitraums beeinflussen. Schéatzungen beruhen auf einer umsichtigen Beurteilung. Soweit statistisch
ermittelbare Erfahrungen aus gleich gelagerten Sachverhalten vorhanden sind, hat das Unternehmen diese
bei Schatzungen beriicksichtigt. Die bisher angewandten Bilanzierungs- und Bewertungsmethoden wurden
beibehalten. Dem Vorsichtsgrundsatz wurde Rechnung getragen, indem insbesondere nur die am Abschluss-
stichtag verwirklichten Gewinne ausgewiesen werden. Alle erkennbaren Risken und drohenden Verluste, die
im Geschéftsjahr 2022 oder in einem friiheren Geschaftsjahr entstanden sind, wurden beriicksichtigt.

Immaterielle Vermégensgegenstande werden zu Anschaffungskosten aktiviert und in langstens 4 Jahren ab-
geschrieben.

Sachanlagen werden zu Anschaffungs- oder Herstellungskosten abziiglich planmaBiger Abschreibungen be-
wertet. Die Nutzungsdauer betragt bei Gebduden, Gebédudeteilen, Umbauten und Zubauten zwischen 15 und
50 Jahren, bei Technische Anlagen und Maschinen zwischen 8 und 15 Jahren und bei andere Anlagen, Betriebs-
und Geschaftsausstattung von 5 bis 10 Jahren. Geringwertige Vermdgensgegenstdnde werden im Jahr der
Anschaffung voll abgeschrieben. Es wurden keine Fremdkapitalzinsen bei den Herstellungskosten aktiviert.

AuBerplanméaBige Abschreibungen werden vorgenommen, soweit der Ansatz mit einem niedrigeren Wert er-
forderlich ist.

Anteile an verbundenen Unternehmen und Beteiligungen werden zum Bilanzstichtag mit den Anschaffungskos-
ten, im Falle einer voraussichtlich dauernder Wertminderung mit dem niedrigeren beizulegenden Wert ange-
setzt. Zur Beurteilung der Werthaltigkeit von Beteiligungen wird bei Vorliegen von Anhaltspunkten (Triggering
Event) fur eine Wertminderung grundsétzlich das Discounted Cash-Flow-Verfahren gemaB dem Fachgutachten
zur Unternehmensbewertung KFS/BW 1 der Kammer der Wirtschaftstreuhénder herangezogen. Der beizule-
gende Wert beziehungsweise der Nutzungswert wird aus in diesem Fall mit den gewichteten Kapitalkosten dis-
kontierten geschéatzten kiinftigen Cashflows aufgrund der Daten einer mittelfristigen Unternehmensplanung
abgeleitet. Nach einem Detailplanungszeitraum von 3 Jahren werden anfallende Cashflows unter Verwendung
einer nachhaltigen Wachstumsrate extrapoliert. Als Abzinsungssatz (WACC) wird ein individuell nach dem
Capital Asset Pricing Model ermittelter Mischsatz aus der Fremdkapitalverzinsung und der Verzinsung des
eingesetzten Eigenkapitals herangezogen. Dieser Abzinsungssatz spiegelt die gegenwértigen Markteinschat-
zungen und die speziellen Risiken der betroffenen Beteiligungen wider.

Forderungen mit einer Laufzeit von mindestens fiinf Jahren werden unter den Finanzanlagen als Ausleihungen
ausgewiesen. Diese werden mit dem Nominalwert, bei Unverzinslichkeit mit dem Barwert bzw. bei voraus-
sichtlich dauernder Wertminderung mit dem niedrigeren beizulegenden Wert zum Bilanzstichtag angesetzt.

Wertpapiere (Wertrechte) des Anlagevermdgens werden mit den Anschaffungskosten oder dem niedrigeren
Kurswert zum Bilanzstichtag bewertet.
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Die Bewertung der Vorrate erfolgt zu Anschaffungs- bzw. Herstellungskosten unter Beachtung des Niederst-
wertprinzips.

Roh-, Hilfs- und Betriebsstoffe und Waren sind zu Anschaffungskosten, die aufgrund des gleitenden Durch-
schnittspreisverfahrens (§ 209 Abs. 2 UGB) ermittelt werden, angesetzt.

Die fertigen und unfertigen Erzeugnisse werden zu Herstellungskosten angesetzt. Die Herstellungskosten um-
fassen die Material- und Fertigungseinzelkosten sowie angemessene Teile der Materialgemeinkosten und der
Fertigungsgemeinkosten. Aufwendungen der allgemeinen Verwaltung werden nicht aktiviert.

Sind die Herstellungskosten héher als die zu Vertragspreisen errechnete Leistung, so wird zu Vertragspreisen
abziiglich der bis zum Verkauf noch anfallenden Kosten bewertet. Erkennbaren Risken im weiteren Ablauf bis
zur Fertigstellung wird durch gesonderte Rickstellungen Rechnung getragen.

Unter Beachtung des Niederstwertprinzips wurden entsprechende Abwertungen wegen UbermaBiger Lager-
dauer und zur verlustfreien Bewertung durchgefiihrt.

Erhaltene Anzahlungen auf Bestellungen werden offen vom Posten ,Vorrédte“ abgesetzt, soweit diesen bereits
Anschaffungs- bzw. Herstellkosten gegeniiberstehen. Es wurden keine Fremdkapitalzinsen bei den Herstel-
lungskosten aktiviert.

Forderungen und sonstige Vermdgensgegensténde sind mit dem Nennbetrag angesetzt. Fremdwahrungsfor-
derungen werden grundséatzlich mit dem Devisenmittelkurs zum Bilanzstichtag bewertet. Abweichend dazu
werden Fremdwéahrungsforderungen, die Bestandteil einer Bewertungseinheit sind, gemeinsam mit dem Si-
cherungsinstrument am Bilanzstichtag zum vereinbarten Terminkurs bewertet. Fiir erkennbare Risken werden
Einzelwertberichtigungen gebildet.

Bei der Bemessung der Rickstellungen ist entsprechend den gesetzlichen Erfordernissen allen erkennbaren
Risken und ungewissen Verbindlichkeiten ausreichend Rechnung getragen worden.

Die Abfertigungsrickstellungen werden gemaB den Bestimmungen des § 211 Abs. 2 UGB gebildet. Die Riick-
stellung wird seit 2016 nach versicherungsmathematischen Grundsatzen berechnet. Dabei wird nach dem
Ansammlungsverfahren die Verteilung des Dienstzeitaufwandes Uber die gesamte Laufzeit vom Eintritt in das
Unternehmen bis zum Erreichen des gesetzlichen Pensionsalters berechnet. Die Bildung der Abfertigungs-
riickstellung beginnt mit Antritt eines Arbeitsverhéltnisses, das einen Abfertigungsanspruch begriindet. Der
Zinssatz betragt 1,24 % (2021: 1,12 %) und entspricht einem marktiiblichen 7-Jahresdurchschnitt bei einer
Restlaufzeit von 11 Jahren (2021: 11 Jahre). Das Pensionsantrittsalter betrégt 65 Jahre bei Frauen und Méan-
nern (2021: 65 Jahre bei Frauen und Mannern). Der Fluktuationsabschlag betragt 0%.

Die Jubildumsgeldriickstellung wird nach IFRS (IAS 19) gebildet. Als Zinssatz wurde 4,2 % (2021: 1,3%) ver-
wendet und von einem Pensionsalter von 65 Jahren (2021: 65 Jahren) bei Frauen und 65 Jahren (2021: 65
Jahren) bei Mé@nnern ausgegangen. Der Fluktuationsabschlag betrug abhéngig von der Dienstzeit zwischen 0%
und 6,53%.
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Fir einige Mitarbeiter wird in ein Pensionssystem eingezahlt, welches einen beitragsorientierten Versorgungs-
plan darstellt.

Ab dem Geschéftsjahr 2016 wurden Wertrechte mit Pensionsverpflichtungen saldiert ausgewiesen. Im Jahr
2022 ergibt sich somit ein Passiviiberhang in Hohe von EUR 638.783,97 (202 1: TEUR 746).

Verbindlichkeiten sind mit ihrem Erflllungsbetrag angesetzt. Fremdwahrungsverbindlichkeiten werden mit
dem Devisenmittelkurs zum Bilanzstichtag bewertet.

Vereinnahmte Finanzierungskosten, die sich auf kiinftige Leistungen beziehen, werden in den passiven Rech-
nungsabgrenzungen ausgewiesen (2022: EUR 1.584.903,03; 2021: TEUR 1.501).

Latente Steuern werden geméB § 198 Abs 9 und 10 UGB nach dem bilanzorientierten Konzept und ohne
Abzinsung auf Basis des zukinftigen Korperschaftsteuersatz von 23 % gebildet. Dabei werden auch latente
Steuern auf steuerliche Verlustvortrdge in dem Ausmal beriicksichtigt, soweit liberzeugende substantielle
Hinweise vorliegen, dass ein ausreichendes zu versteuerndes Ergebnis in Zukunft zur Verfligung stehen wird.
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3. Anlagevermogen

Die Aufgliederung des Anlagevermdgens und seine Entwicklung im Berichtsjahr sind im Anlagenspiegel ange-
fuhrt (vergleiche Anlage 1 zum Anhang).

Wertrechte werden mit den Pensionsverpflichtungen saldiert ausgewiesen. Die Bewertung der saldierten An-
spriiche aus einer Pensionsriickdeckungsversicherung stellt sich zum 31.12.2022 wie folgt dar.:

2022 2021

Buchwert Wertrecht
Marktwert Wertrecht

3.805.091,41  EUR
3.805.091,41  EUR
4.443.87538  EUR
444387538  EUR
-638.783,97 EUR

3.358.174,21 EUR
3.358.174,21 EUR
4.104.220,59 EUR
4.104.220,59 EUR
-746.046,38 EUR

Buchwert Pensionsverpfl.

Marktwert Pensionsverpfl.

Saldierung

Die Bewertung der Wertpapiere zum 31.12.2022
stellt sich wie folgt dar.

Buchwert
Marktwert

305.247,09 EUR
544.611,17 EUR

316.820,09 EUR
505.590,37 EUR

Aus der Nutzung von in der Bilanz nicht ausgewiesenen Sachanlagen besteht aufgrund von langfristigen Miet-,
Pacht- und Leasingvertragen fiir das folgende Geschéaftsjahr eine Verpflichtung von EUR 1.320.654,97 (2021:
TEUR 2.144). Der Gesamtbetrag der Verpflichtungen fiir die nachsten 5 Jahre betragt EUR 6.603.274,85
(2021: TEUR 10.672).

Die Aufgliederung der Beteiligungen ist der Beteiligungsliste (Anlage 2 zum Anhang) zu entnehmen.

Im Geschéftsjahr wurde eine auBerplanméBige Abschreibung der Beteiligung an der PA ,Fire-fighting special
technics®“ LLC., Russland, Moskau in Hohe von EUR 1.500.137,79 vorgenommen.

4. Forderungen und sonstige Vermogensgegenstande

Die Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen setzen sich wie folgt zusammen:
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31.12.2022 31.12.2021

EUR EUR

Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen 58.152.886,27 70.517.577,97
Einzelwertberichtigungen -1.895.182,85 -1.508.919,06

Forderungsankauf 25.966.844,39

41.807.773,09

Forderungsverkauf -31.290.014,55

-51.267.888,49

50.934.533,26

59.548.543,51

Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen wurden im Jahr 2022 i.H. von EUR 6.174.873,12 (Vorjahr:
TEUR 22.308) mittels Dokumentenakkreditiv und i.H. von EUR 0,00 (Vorjahr: TEUR 16.052) {iber die OEKB
abgesichert.

Im Geschaftsjahr 2022 wurden neue Factoring-Vereinbarungen abgeschlossen. Dabei wurden zum Bilanzstich-
tag ausgewahlte Forderungen an Kreditinstitute in Héhe von EUR 31.290.014,55 (Vorjahr: TEUR 51.268)
verkauft. Die verkauften Forderungen werden aufgrund des Ubergangs der Verfligungsmacht vollstindig aus-
gebucht. Dabei wurden EUR 25.966.844,39 (Vorjahr: TEUR 41.808) von verbundenen Unternehmen angekauft.

Die Forderungen gegeniiber den verbundenen Unternehmen setzen sich wie folgt zusammen:

31.12.2022

31.12.2021

EUR

EUR

Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen 35.612.039,58

19.754.664,86

Finanzierungsforderungen 112.149.627,24

80.140.952,01

147.761.666,82

99.895.616,87

Die sonstigen Forderungen und Vermdgensgegenstande gliedern sich wie folgt auf:

31.12.2022 31.12.2021

EUR EUR

diverse auslandische Vorsteuern 3.830.643,75 4.611.851,62
Gebiihren aus der Einfuhrabwicklung Saudi-Arabien 0,00 1.151.172,32
sonstige Forderungen 3.939.687,41 4.111.789,39
7.770.331,16 9.874.813,33

In den sonstigen Forderungen sind Forderungen in Hohe von EUR 1.345.891,05 enthalten welche nach dem

Abschlussstichtag zahlungswirksam werden.

Es erfolgte weder eine wechselseitige Verbriefung noch eine Pauschalwertberichtigung von Forderungen.
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5. Rechnungsabgrenzungsposten

Die Aktivseite umfasst vor dem Stichtag verzeichnete Buchungen, deren Aufwand erst nach diesem Abschluss-
stichtag zu verzeichnen ist. Die Passivseite enthélt alle Einnahmen vor dem Stichtag, deren Ertrag erst nach
dem Stichtag wirksam wird.

6. Grundkapital

Rosenbauer ist mit Stlickaktien im Prime Market der Wiener Borse gelistet. Das Grundkapital der Rosenbauer
International AG betrégt 13,6 Mio €, eingeteilt in 6.800.000 nennbetragslose Stiickaktien, die jeweils einen
anteiligen Betrag am Grundkapital von 2,0 € verbriefen. 3.665.912 Aktien lauten auf Namen und 3.134.088
sind Inhaberaktien. Jede Rosenbauer Aktie berechtigt zu einer Stimme. Es gibt keine Inhaber von Aktien mit
besonderen Kontrollrechten. Mitarbeiter, die Aktien besitzen, (iben ihre Stimmrechte direkt aus.

7. Gewinnriicklagen

Die Gewinnriicklagen haben sich wie folgt entwickelt:
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In den Ubrigen sonstigen Rickstellungen sind Rickstellungen fiir ehemalige Vorstédnde in Héhe von
4.700.000,00 EUR enthalten (Vorjahr: TEUR 0). Weiters sind in diesem Bilanzposten unter anderem Rickstel-
lungen fir drohende Verluste aus schwebenden Geschéften, Rickstellungen fir die Kosten der Wirtschafts-
prifung sowie der Erstellung des Geschéftsberichts, Riickstellungen fiir Rechts- und Beratungskosten oder
Riickstellungen flir negative Marktwerte aus derivativen Finanzinstrumenten enthalten.

Auflésung /

in € Stand 1.1.2022 Zuweisung Verbrauch Stand 31.12.2022
Gewinnriicklagen
Andere (freie) Riicklagen 138.071.955,77 0,00 0,00 138.071.955,77
8. Riickstellungen
Die sonstigen Rickstellungen bestehen insbesondere fir:

31.12.2022 31.12.2021

EUR EUR

Personalaufwendungen, Jubildumsgelder und nicht konsumierte

Urlaube 17.647.374,18 22.371.670,11
Gewabhrleistungen 3.156.000,00 3.496.000,00
Ausstehende Eingangsrechnungen 6.695.693,18 5.646.301,84
Ubrige Riickstellungen 12.798.697,90 3.711.078,86

40.297.765,26 35.225.050,81

In den Personalaufwendungen sind im laufenden Geschaftsjahr Rickstellungen fir fixe Mitarbeiterpréamien in
Hohe von 5.054.785,18 EUR enthalten (Vorjahr: TEUR 5.266).
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9. Verbindlichkeiten

Die Verbindlichkeiten gliedern sich wie folgt auf:
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mit Restlaufzeit Gesamt
per 31.12.2022 <1 Jahr 1-5 Jahre > 5 Jahre 31.12.2022
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Verbindlichkeiten
gegeniber Kreditinstituten 71.596.172,28  193.029.881,35 7.895.679,08 272.521.732,71
Erhaltene Anzahlungen
auf Bestellungen 16.566.138,26 0,00 0,00 16.566.138,26
Verbindlichkeiten aus
Lieferungen und Leistungen 47.500.969,75 0,00 0,00 47.500.969,75
Verbindlichkeiten gegeniiber
verbundenen Unternehmen
aus Finanzverbindlichkeiten 48.943.998,91 0,00 0,00 48.943.998,91
aus Lieferungen und Leistungen 8.432.088,32 0,00 0,00 8.432.088,32
Verbindlichkeiten gegeniiber
Unternehmen mit denen ein
Beteiligungsverhaltnis besteht
aus Lieferungen und Leistungen 38.507,38 0,00 0,00 38.507,38
Sonstige Verbindlichkeiten 8.355.608,00 0,00 0,00 8.355.608,00
201.433.482,90 193.029.881,35 7.895.679,08 402.359.043,33

mit Restlaufzeit Gesamt

per 31.12.2021 <1 Jahr 1-5 Jahre > 5 Jahre 31.12.2021
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Verbindlichkeiten gegeniiber
Kreditinstituten 51.441.056,78  155.300.093,66 0,00 206.741.150,44
Erhaltene Anzahlungen
auf Bestellungen 6.971.667,17 0,00 0,00 6.971.667,17
Verbindlichkeiten aus
Lieferungen und Leistungen 37.128.326,47 0,00 0,00 37.128.326,47
Verbindlichkeiten gegeniiber
verbundenen Unternehmen
aus Finanzverbindlichkeiten 14.487.199,98 0,00 0,00 14.487.199,98
aus Lieferungen und Leistungen 6.752.267,81 6.752.267,81
Sonstige Verbindlichkeiten 7.384.237,82 0,00 0,00 7.384.237,82

124.164.756,03

155.300.093,66

0,00 279.464.849,69

In den Finanzverbindlichkeiten gegeniiber den verbunden Unternehmen sind Forderungen aus Steuerumlagen
gegeniiber der Rosenbauer Osterreich GmbH i.H. von EUR 1.759.000,00 (2021: TEUR 820) enthalten.

Erhaltene Anzahlungen wurden i.H. von EUR 7.486.222,36 mittels Anzahlungsgarantien besichert.

In den sonstigen Verbindlichkeiten sind Provisionsguthaben der ausléandischen Vertretungen in der Hohe von
EUR 2.193.822,98 (2021: TEUR 3.215) sowie Sozialversicherungsabgaben des Monats Dezember in Hohe von
EUR 2.471.592,63 (2021 TEUR 2.279) enthalten. AuBerdem sind neben den bereits erwédhnten Positionen
in den sonstigen Verbindlichkeiten der Rosenbauer International AG weitere Aufwendungen in der Hohe von
EUR 3.690.192,39 (2021: TEUR 1.890) enthalten, die erst nach dem Abschlussstichtag zahlungswirksam

werden.

In den sonstigen Verbindlichkeiten sind im laufenden Geschéftsjahr Aufwendungen fiir Altersteilzeitverpflich-
tungen in Hohe von 966.318,75 EUR enthalten (202 1: TEUR 780).
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10. Haftungsverhaltnisse 12. Sonstige betriebliche Ertrage
in€ 31.12.2022 31.12.2021 in€ 2022 2021
devon df_I'Von Ertrdge aus dem Abgang vom Anlagevermdgen 1.073.980,52 521.545,00
veﬁ:f:g:::; vef:f:;:::; Ertrédge aus der Auflésung von Riickstellungen 154.990,15 366.177,93
Stand Unternehmen Stand Unternehmen  Versicherungsertrage 211.634,90 30.416,75
Biirgschaften 4.360.000,00 4.360.000,00 1.804.034,43 1.804.034,43  AMS - Kurzarbeit Covid 19 636.757,40 855.019,47
Garantien 1.625.000,00 1.625.000,00 1.531.935,00 1.531.935,00  sonstige Ertrége 1.208.507,42 4.369.955,59
Patronatserklarungen 19.000.000,00 19.000.000,00 16.000.000,00 16.000.000,00 3.285.870,39 6.143.114,74

24.985.000,00 24.985.000,00 19.335.969,43 19.335.969,43

In den sonstigen Ertrdgen sind insbesondere Forschungspréamien, Lehrlingsférderungen sowie Kursgewinne
enthalten.
11. Umsatzerlése

Die Umsatzerldse enthalten Fabrikationsumsatze aus der Fahrzeug- und Komponentenproduktion, Handels- 13. Personalaufwand

warenumsatze sowie Reparatur- und Serviceumsétze und Umsétze aus Ersatzteilverkdufen. Weiters sind unter

dieser Position Erlése aus Dienstleistungen fiir die Rosenbauer Osterreich GmbH enthalten. Die Aufgliederung  Der Posten Aufwand fiir Abfertigungen und Leistungen an betriebliche Mitarbeitervorsorgekassen enthalt:
nach Inlands- und Auslandserlésen ist in Anlage 3 zum Anhang dargestellt.

in € 2022 2021
Aufwendungen fiir Abfertigungen 2.316.310,18 1.716.548,92
Aufwendungen fiir Mitarbeitervorsorge 1.112.960,84 1.069.414,98

3.429.271,02 2.785.963,90

Der Posten Aufwendungen fiir Altersversorgung enthalt:

2022 2021

Aufwendungen aus Pensionszusagen 419.526,95 429.816,73
Ergebnis aus Riickdeckungsversicherung -107.262,41 306.207,00
312.264,54 736.023,73

Die Veranderung der Jubildums-, Abfertigungs- und Pensionsriickstellung wird zur Génze im Personalaufwand
erfasst. In der Summe der Gehélter und Lohne ist ein Ertrag in Héhe von EUR 1.699.600,00 (Ertrag 2021:
TEUR 484) aus der Verénderung der Jubildumsgeldriickstellung sowie ein Ertrag in Hohe von EUR 154.621,00
(Ertrag in 2021: TEUR 14) aus der Veranderung der Abfertigungsriickstellung enthalten.
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14. Sonstige betriebliche Aufwendungen

in€ 2022 2021
Raumaufwand 4.545.628,75 4.858.655,97
Fuhrpark 847.375,16 658.872,34
Bankspesen 1.630.720,70 1.416.318,15
Rechts- Beratungskosten 1.899.077,17 2.879.068,22
Kosten EDV 4.533.360,05 3.724.019,01
Patente und Lizenzen 3.283.819,77 1.550.545,15
Versicherungen 1.201.687,20 871.924,72
Reisekosten 3.386.614,39 2.474.384,21
Kursverluste 3.971.795,27 0,00
Fremde Lohne 2.652.256,25 3.173.970,47
Entwicklungskosten 3.489.519,44 2.719.258,90
Werbeaufwand und Messekosten 8.161.862,98 3.386.289,84
Fracht und Verpackung 7.335.941,03 7.479.172,74
Sonstige Aufwendungen 8.132.649,30 11.734.114,74

55.072.307,46

46.926.594,46

In den sonstigen Aufwendungen sind insbesondere Kosten fiir Kundenschulungen und Ubergaben, Provisions-
zahlungen an Dritte, Beitrége flir Mitgliedschaften sowie Kosten fiir interne Weiterbildungen enthalten.

15. Steuern
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GemaB § 198 Abs 9 UGB besteht fiir groBe Kapitalgesellschaften eine Aktivierungspflicht fiir aktive latente
Steuern aus Standedifferenzen. Die aktiven latenten Steuern zum Bilanzstichtag wurden auf Ebene der Rosen-
bauer International AG fiir temporére Differenzen zwischen dem steuerlichen und unternehmensrechtlichen

Wertansatz fiir folgende Positionen gebildet:

in € 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Aktivierter Verlustvortrag 30.299.618 20.134.360
Sachanlagen -233.885 -86.729
Langfristige Personalriickstellungen 9.715.817 9.612.927
Sonstige Riickstellungen 3.726.180 5.976.499
Aktivposten Geldbeschaffungskosten 54.541 0
Offene Siebentelbetrage aus Teilwertabschreibung 3.329.547 2.100.000
Betrag Gesamtdifferenzen 46.891.818 37.737.057
daraus resultierende latente Steuern per 31.12. (23 %)

(+aktiv /- passiv) 10.785.118 9.434.264
Die latenten Steuern entwickelten sich wie folgt:

in€ 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Stand am 1.1. 9.434.264 5.430.050
erfolgswirksame Veranderung 1.350.854 4.004.214
Stand am 31.12. 10.785.118 9.434.264
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Die Rosenbauer International AG als Gruppentréger bildet mit der Rosenbauer Osterreich GmbH, der Rosen-
bauer Brandschutz GmbH, der Rosenbauer E-Technology Development GmbH und der APAC Holding GmbH
als Gruppenmitglieder eine Unternehmensgruppe iSd § 9 KStG. Die Steuerumlagevereinbarung mit allen Grup-
penmitgliedern besteht grundsatzlich in der Belastungsmethode mit der Vereinbarung des Schlussausgleichs
tiber in der Gruppe noch nicht verwendete Verlustvortrége.

Der laufende Korperschaftsteuerertrag in Hohe von EUR -957.316,07 gliedert sich wie folgt:

in € 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
K&rperschaftsteuer 923.297,00 1.671.810,00
Aktivierter Verlustvortrag -1.935.323,00 -5.033.590,00
Aktive Latenz 584.469,00 1.029.377,00
Steuerumlagen -939.000,00 -820.000,00
KEST aus Zinsertrag WP 0,00 438,71
Auslandische Quellensteuern 33.594,29 58.722,86
Aperiodischer Steueraufwand /Ertrag 375.646,64 -395.564,77

-957.316,07 -3.488.806,20

Am 20. Janner 2022 wurde in Osterreich die stufenweise Senkung des Korperschaftssteuersatzes von 25 Pro-
zent auf 23 Prozent mit Wirkung ab dem 1. Janner 2023 beschlossen. Fiir die Berechnung der latenten Steuern
wurde diese Steuersatzédnderung bereits bertcksichtigt. Der verwendete Steuersatz betragt 23% (giltig ab
1.1.2024), da eine Umkehr der Steuerlatenzen im Jahr 2023 nicht zu erwarten ist.

16. Zahl der Mitarbeiter
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Es wurde ein prospektiver Effektivitatstest nach der ,.critical terms match“ Methode durchgefiihrt sowie ein re-
trospektiver Effektivitatstest nach der ,cumulative dollar-offset“ Methode, wenn die Critical Terms nicht ident
waren. Der ineffektive Teil einer wirksamen Sicherungsbeziehung wird in diesem Fall sofort erfolgswirksam
erfasst. Im Jahr 2022 betrug dieser EUR 0,00 (2021: TEUR 0) und wurde unter den Finanzierungsaufwendun-
gen ausgewiesen.

a) Devisentermingeschiéfte

Zur Absicherung von Fremdwahrungsforderungen und -verbindlichkeiten werden derivative Finanzinstrumen-
te wie Devisentermingeschéfte eingesetzt, um den Kalkulationskurs des Grundgeschéftes abzusichern. Das
Grundgeschéft besteht in der Regel aus Fahrzeuglieferungen mit einer Durchlaufzeit von bis zu 12 Monaten.
Bei groBeren Auftrédgen kann die Lieferzeit mehr als 12 Monate betragen. Dementsprechend betrégt auch hier
die Falligkeit der Derivate mehr als 12 Monate. Absicherungen erfolgen auch fiir noch nicht bilanzierte Zah-
lungseingange und Zahlungsausgéange. Bei mehrjahrigen, im Detail geplanten und von allen relevanten Stellen
bewilligten Projekten mit hinreichender Finanzierung kann der Cash Flow auch aus spater abzuschlieBenden
Vertragen resultieren, wenn dieser Cash Flow im Projektplan enthalten und die Projektdurchfiihrung so gut
wie sicher ist.

Zum Bilanzstichtag hatte die Rosenbauer International AG Mikro-Hedging-Sicherungsbeziehungen (ein Devi-
sentermingeschaft fiir genau ein Grundgeschaft) im Bestand, die in den meisten Féllen innerhalb des nachsten
Geschaftsjahres auslaufen. Terminkdufe werden nicht mit Terminverkdaufen aufgerechnet sondern im gesam-
ten Marktwert additiv dargestellt. Der Fair Value leitet sich aus den Betrégen ab, zu denen die betreffenden
Finanzgeschéfte am Bilanzstichtag gehandelt werden, ohne Beriicksichtigung gegenléaufiger Wertentwicklun-
gen aus den Grundgeschaften. Fir Derivate, die Bestandteil einer Bewertungseinheit sind, wird im Falle von
negativen beizulegenden Zeitwerten keine Riickstellung fiir Drohverluste gebildet.

in EUR

2022 2021

Bewertung Devistentermingeschéfte als Bestandteil

Jahresdurchschnitt 2022 2021  giner Bewertungseinheit
Arbeiter 772 788  Nominalbetrag 76.739.458,28 94.199.533,54
Angestellte 635 613 Ppositiver Marktwert 2.006.793,42 264.021,52
Lehrlinge 92 90 Negativer Marktwert 599.750,67 2.360.936,75
1.499 1.491
Bewertung Devistentermingeschéfte als Nicht-Bestandteil
. . . . einer Bewertungseinheit
17. Derivative Finanzinstrumente iner Bewertungseinhet
Nominalbetrag 0,00 0,00
Bei Vorliegen der Voraussetzungen werden Bewertungseinheiten gebildet. Da in diesem Fall die derivativen Fi-  Positiver Marktwert 0,00 0,00
nanzinstrumente eine Bewertungseinheit mit dem zugrundeliegenden Projekt darstellen (eine effektive Hedge- Negativer Marktwert 0,00 0,00

beziehung liegt vor), erfolgt keine Erfassung der negativen Marktwerte in Form einer Drohverlustriickstellung.
Liegen die Voraussetzungen nicht vor, werden fiir negative Marktwerte Rickstellungen fir drohende Verluste
aus schwebenden Geschéften gebildet.

Der Buchwert der Devisentermingeschafte, der im Bilanzposten ,,Sonstige Rickstellungen® enthalten ist, be-
tragt zum Stichtag EUR 0,00 (2020: TEUR 0).
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b) Zinssicherungsgeschiéfte
Zins- bzw. Zinsdnderungsrisken liegen vor allem bei Forderungen und Verbindlichkeiten mit Laufzeiten lber
einem Jahr vor.

Aktivseitig besteht ein Zinsanderungsrisiko lediglich bei den in den Finanzanlagen enthaltenen Wertpapieren.
Durch regelméBige Beobachtung der Zinsentwicklung und der daraus abzuleitenden Umschichtung der Wert-
papierbesténde, sind die Reduktion des Zinsanderungsrisikos und eine Optimierung der Ertrage moglich.

Langfristige Verbindlichkeiten gegeniiber Banken bestehen aus Krediten fiir diverse Investitionen in das ope-
rative Geschaft.

Der Buchwert der Zinssicherungsgeschéfte, der im Bilanzposten ,Sonstige Riickstellungen® enthalten ist, ist
in nachfolgender Tabelle dargestellt:

in EUR 2022 2021
Nominalbetrag 52.000.000,00 52.000.000,00
Positiver Marktwert 0,00 0,00
Negativer Marktwert 3.847.772,16 160.860,84

18. Beteiligungsunternehmen

Siehe Beilage.

19. Sonstige Angaben

Die Aufwendungen fur Abfertigungen inkl. Mitarbeitervorsorgekassen und Pensionen teilen sich wie folgt auf:

in€ 2022 2021
Vorstand und leitende Mitarbeiter 408.797,23 899.187,61
Andere Arbeitnehmer 3.332.738,33 2.622.800,02

3.741.535,56 3.521.987,63

Die Vergiitung des Vorstandes (ohne Sachbeziige) setzt sich aus einem fixen Bestandteil samt geldwerten Vor-
teilen und einem variablen Bestandteil zusammen. Die Beziige der Mitglieder des Vorstandes betrugen 2022
in Summe EUR 1.349.822,50 (2021: TEUR 1.868) und gliedern sich in einen Fixbezug von EUR 1.349.822,50
(2021: TEUR 1.286) und in einen variablen Bezug von EUR 0,00 (202 1: TEUR 581). Darliberhinaus wird jedem
Vorstandsmitglied ein marktiibliches Dienstfahrzeug zur Verfiigung gestellt, das auch privat genutzt werden
kann.
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20. Honorar des Wirtschaftspriifers

Betreffend die auf das Geschéftsjahr entfallenen Aufwendungen fiir den Abschlusspriifer wird von der Befrei-
ungsbestimmung gemaB § 238 Abs 1 Z18 UGB Gebrauch gemacht.
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21. Gewinnverwendungsvorschlag

Das Geschéftsjahr 2022 schlieBt mit einem Bilanzverlust von EUR -35.391.325,28. Der Bilanzverlust wird auf
neue Rechnung vorgetragen.

22. Nahestehende Unternehmen und Personen

Im Geschaftsjahr 2022 wurden von keiner nahestehenden Person des Aufsichtsrates sowie des Vorstandes
Leistungen bezogen (202 1: TEUR 0).

23. Ereignisse nach dem Bilanzstichtag

Im Februar 2023 wurde die Rosenbauer Gruppe Ziel eines Cyber-Angriffs. Eine sofort eingerichtete Task Force
arbeitete mit externen Cybersecurity-Experten und Datenforensikern zusammen und konnte den Systembe-
trieb sicher und schnellstmdglich wieder herstellen. Dariiberhinaus sind nach dem Bilanzstichtag keine weite-
ren wesentlichen Ereignisse eingetreten.

24. Organe der Gesellschaft und des Konzerns

Aufsichtsrat
Christian Reisinger
Vorsitzender des Aufsichtsrates

Rainer Siegel
Stellvertretender Vorsitzender des Aufsichtsrates

Bernhard Matzner
Mitglied des Aufsichtsrates

Martin Zehnder
Mitglied des Aufsichtsrates

Dem Aufsichtsrat wurden im Geschaftsjahr 2022 Vergilitungen in der Hohe von TEUR 127,0 (2021: TEUR 169,0)
gewahrt.

Vom Betriebsrat in den Aufsichtsrat delegiert
Wolfgang Untersberger
Rudolf Aichinger
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Vorstand
Sebastian Wolf
Vorsitzender des Vorstandes seit 01.08.2022

Dieter Siegel
Vorsitzender des Vorstandes bis 31.07.2022

Andreas Zeller
Stellvertretender Vorsitzender des Vorstandes

Daniel Tomaschko
Mitglied des Vorstandes

Markus Richter
Mitglied des Vorstandes seit 01.12.2022

25. Beziehungen zu verbundenen Unternehmen

Das den Konzernabschluss erstellende Mutterunternehmen ist die Rosenbauer International AG mit Sitz in
Leonding/Linz, Paschinger Str. 90. Der Konzernabschluss liegt beim Landesgericht Linz (FN 7854 3f) auf.

Zwischen der Rosenbauer International AG und dem GroBteil lhrer verbundenen Unternehmen bestehen Liefer-
und Leistungsbeziehungen aus der ordentlichen Geschéftstatigkeit. Die Rosenbauer International AG als Grup-
pentrager bildet mit der Rosenbauer Osterreich GmbH, der Rosenbauer Brandschutz GmbH, der Rosenbauer
E-Technology Development GmbH und der APAC Holding GmbH als Gruppenmitglieder eine Unternehmens-
gruppe iSd § 9 KStG. Die Steuerumlagevereinbarung mit allen Gruppenmitgliedern besteht grundsétzlich in der
Belastungsmethode mit der Vereinbarung des Schlussausgleichs uber in der Gruppe noch nicht verwendete
Verlustvortréage.

Bei den immateriellen Vermogenswerten erfolgte im Jahr 2022 ein Verkauf von Entwicklungsleistungen der
Rosenbauer Karlsruhe GmbH an die Rosenbauer International AG in Héhe von 1.383.656,71 Euro (2021:
TEUR 1.402).

Leonding, am 6. April 2023

Der Vorstand:

Slf ChaE oot \i X

Sebastian Wolf Andreas Zeller Daniel Tomaschko Markus Richter



Rosenbauer Annual Financial Report 2022

Bestatigungsvermerk

Bericht zum Jahresabschluss

Priifungsurteil

Wir haben den Jahresabschluss der Rosenbauer International AG, Leonding, bestehend aus der Bilanz zum
31. Dezember 2022, der Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung fiir das an diesem Stichtag endende Geschéftsjahr und
dem Anhang, gepriift.

Nach unserer Beurteilung entspricht der Jahresabschluss den gesetzlichen Vorschriften und vermittelt ein
moglichst getreues Bild der Vermdgens- und Finanzlage zum 31. Dezember 2022 sowie der Ertragslage der
Gesellschaft fiir das an diesem Stichtag endende Geschéftsjahr in Ubereinstimmung mit den dsterreichischen
unternehmensrechtlichen Vorschriften.

Grundlage fiir das Priifungsurteil

Wir haben unsere Abschlusspriifung in Ubereinstimmung mit der EU-Verordnung Nr 537,/2014 (im Folgenden
AP-VO) und mit den Osterreichischen Grundsétzen ordnungsgemaBer Abschlusspriifung durchgefiihrt. Diese
Grundsétze erfordern die Anwendung der International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Unsere Verantwortlich-
keiten nach diesen Vorschriften und Standards sind im Abschnitt ,Verantwortlichkeiten des Abschlusspriifers
fur die Prifung des Jahresabschlusses® unseres Bestatigungsvermerks weitergehend beschrieben. Wir sind
von der Gesellschaft unabhzngig in Ubereinstimmung mit den dsterreichischen unternehmens- und berufs-
rechtlichen Vorschriften und wir haben unsere sonstigen beruflichen Pflichten in Ubereinstimmung mit diesen
Anforderungen erfiillt. Wir sind der Auffassung, dass die von uns erlangten Priifungsnachweise bis zum Datum
dieses Bestatigungsvermerkes ausreichend und geeignet sind, um als Grundlage fiir unser Prifungsurteil zu
diesem Datum zu dienen.

Besonders wichtige Priifungssachverhalte

Besonders wichtige Priifungssachverhalte sind solche Sachverhalte, die nach unserem pflichtgeméBen Ermes-
sen am bedeutsamsten flir unsere Priifung des Jahresabschlusses des Geschéaftsjahres waren. Diese Sachver-
halte wurden im Zusammenhang mit unserer Priifung des Jahresabschlusses als Ganzes und bei der Bildung
unseres Priifungsurteils hierzu beriicksichtigt und wir geben kein gesondertes Priifungsurteil zu diesen Sach-
verhalten ab.
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Wir haben folgende besonders wichtige Priifungssachverhalte identifiziert:

Werthaltigkeit der Anteile an verbundenen Unternehmen, Ausleihungen an verbundene Unternehmen sowie
Forderungen gegeniiber verbundenen Unternehmen

Werthaltigkeit der Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen

Umsatzrealisierung (Cut-Off)

Drohverlustriickstellung

Werthaltigkeit der Anteile an verbundenen Unternehmen, Ausleihungen an verbundene Unter-
nehmen sowie Forderungen gegeniiber verbundenen Unternehmen

Siehe Anhang Bilanzierungs- und Bewertungsgrundséatze zu Finanzanlagen und zu Forderungen und sonstigen
Vermdgensgegenstanden sowie in den Erlduterungen zur Bilanz und im Anlagespiegel zum 31. Dezember 2022.

Das Risiko fiir den Abschluss

Im Jahresabschluss der Rosenbauer International AG zum 3 1. Dezember 2022 sind die Anteile an verbundenen
Unternehmen (79,1 Mio €), die Ausleihungen an verbundene Unternehmen (62,7 Mio €) und Forderungen
gegeniber verbundenen Unternehmen (147,8 Mio €) ausgewiesen.

Fiir sdmtliche bedeutsame Anteile an verbundenen Unternehmen beurteilt die Rosenbauer International AG,
ob Anhaltspunkte fiir einen wesentlich gesunkenen beizulegenden Wert vorliegen. Liegen solche Anhaltspunk-
te vor, wird fiir das betroffene verbundene Unternehmen eine Unternehmensbewertung durchgefiihrt und
gegebenenfalls der Buchwert der Anteile auf das Ergebnis der Unternehmensbewertung abgeschrieben.

Die Beurteilung, ob Anhaltspunkte fiir einen wesentlich gesunkenen beizulegenden Wert vorliegen, sowie der
Werthaltigkeit von Anteilen an verbundenen Unternehmen, Ausleihungen an verbundene Unternehmen und
Forderungen gegeniiber verbundenen Unternehmen erfordert Schatzungen und Ermessensentscheidungen
der gesetzlichen Vertreter.

Fir den Abschluss besteht das Risiko, dass die Anteile und Ausleihungen an und Forderungen gegeniiber
verbundenen Unternehmen nicht ordnungsgemé&B bewertet sind und folglich im Jahresiiberschuss nicht zu-
treffend dargestellt sind. Das wesentliche Risiko besteht dabei insbesondere in der Schatzung der zukiinftigen
Cash-Flows, welche zur Feststellung der Werthaltigkeit herangezogen werden. Diese Cash-Flow Schatzungen
beinhalten Annahmen, die von zukiinftigen Markt- und Wirtschaftsentwicklungen beeinflusst werden.

Unsere Vorgehensweise in der Priifung

Bei der Priifung der Werthaltigkeit der Anteile an verbundenen Unternehmen, Ausleihungen an
verbundene Unternehmen sowie der Forderungen gegenlber verbundenen Unternehmen haben
wir folgende Priifungshandlungen durchgefiihrt:
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m Wir haben die vom Unternehmen durchgefiihrte Analyse der Anhaltspunkte fiir einen wesentlich gesunke-
nen beizulegenden Wert (einschlieBlich der Deckung des Beteiligungsansatzes durch das anteilige Eigen-
kapital) der Anteile an verbundenen Unternehmen nachvollzogen. Zudem haben wir in Gespréachen mit den
gesetzlichen Vertretern erdrtert, ob dartberhinausgehende Anhaltspunkte flir einen wesentlich gesunke-
nen beizulegenden Wert der Anteile an verbundenen Unternehmen vorliegen.

®m Zur Beurteilung der Angemessenheit der zugrunde gelegten internen Planungen, haben wir uns ein Ver-
standnis Uber den Planungsprozess und der Gestaltung und Einrichtung der diesbeziiglichen internen Kont-
rollen verschafft und die der Bewertung zugrunde gelegten Planungsdaten mit den aktuellen vom Aufsichts-
rat bzw Gesellschaftern genehmigten Budgetzahlen sowie der Mittelfristplanung abgeglichen.

m Die wesentlichen wertbestimmenden Annahmen haben wir mit den verantwortlichen Mitarbeitern einge-
hend besprochen und Erwartungen Uber die kiinftigen Entwicklungen mit den vom Unternehmen verwen-
deten externen Markteinschatzungen abgeglichen.

m Die Planungsgenauigkeit haben wir durch Vergleich der in den Vorjahren erfolgten Planungen mit den tat-
sachlich eingetretenen Werten beurteilt.

®m Die Methodik zur Durchfiihrung des Wertminderungstests sowie zur Ermittlung der Kapitalkostensétze ha-
ben wir unter Einbindung unseres Bewertungsspezialisten nachvollzogen und beurteilt, ob sie den entspre-
chenden Standards entsprechen. Die zur Festlegung der Kapitalkostensétze herangezogenen Annahmen
haben wir durch einen Abgleich mit markt- und branchenspezifischen Richtwerten hinsichtlich ihrer Ange-
messenheit beurteilt und die rechnerische Richtigkeit des Berechnungsschemas Gberpriift.

®  Bei Ausleihungen an verbundene Unternehmen und Forderungen gegentber verbundenen Unternehmen,
die nicht bereits durch die Bewertung der Anteile an verbundenen Unternehmen abgedeckt waren, haben
wir weiters mittels Uberfalligkeitsanalysen (iberpriift, ob Wertberichtigungsbedarf bei diesen Positionen
gegeben ist. Dabei haben wir auch die finanzielle Situation der verbundenen Unternehmen gewdirdigt.

m  AbschlieBend haben wir untersucht, ob die Erlduterungen der Rosenbauer International AG zu Finanzanla-
gen und Forderungen gegeniiber verbundenen Unternehmen im Anhang vollstandig und sachgerecht sind.

Werthaltigkeit der Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen
Siehe Anhang Bilanzierungs- und Bewertungsgrundsatze zu Forderungen und sonstigen Vermdgensgegenstan-
den, sowie in den Erlduterungen zur Bilanz zum 31. Dezember 2022.

Das Risiko fiir den Abschluss

Im Jahresabschluss der Rosenbauer International AG zum 31. Dezember 2022 sind Forderungen
aus Lieferungen und Leistungen in Hohe von 50,9 Mio € ausgewiesen.

Die Werthaltigkeit der Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen basiert auf der Einschatzung der Bonitat
der Kunden durch das Management. Diese wird jéhrlich im Rahmen der Abschlusserstellung durchgefihrt.

Fir den Abschluss besteht das Risiko, dass die Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen nicht ordnungs-
gemaB bewertet sind und folglich im Jahresabschluss nicht zutreffend dargestellt sind. Das wesentliche Risiko
besteht dabei in der Einschédtzung der Zahlungswilligkeit und Zahlungsfahigkeit von Kunden die vertraglich
vereinbarte Gegenleistung in voller Hohe zu leisten - insbesondere jene mit liberfélligen Forderungen.
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Unsere Vorgehensweise in der Priifung
Bei der Prifung der Werthaltigkeit der Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen haben wir folgende we-
sentliche Prifungshandlungen durchgefiihrt:

®  Wir haben ein Verstindnis iiber den Prozessablauf und die darin implementierten Kontrollen zur Uber-
wachung der Risikovorsorge von Kundenforderungen erlangt und kritisch analysiert, ob diese Prozesse
geeignet sind, Kreditausfélle zu identifizieren und die Werthaltigkeit der Kundenforderungen angemessen
abzubilden.

m  Weiters haben wir auf Basis einer Stichprobe untersucht, ob Indikatoren fiir Kreditausfalle bestehen und Ri-
sikovorsorgen ausreichend gebildet wurden. Die Auswahl der Stichprobe erfolgte risikoorientiert auf Basis
einer Analyse der Uberfalligkeitsstruktur der Kundenforderungen zum 31. Dezember 2022.

®  Wir haben zudem bei Positionen, denen Ermessensentscheidungen zu Grunde liegen, Besprechungen mit
dem Management durchgeflihrt. Dabei haben wir besonderes Augenmerk auf die ermessensbehafteten
Elemente in den vertraglichen Grundlagen, den erhaltenen Dokumentationen und sonstigen internen und
externen Informationen gelegt.

m AbschlieBend haben wir eine Abstattungsprifung der Kundenforderungen zum Prifungszeitpunkt durch-
gefiihrt, indem wir Uberprift haben, fiir welche Kunden bereits Zahlungseingdnge nachgewiesen werden
konnten und somit die Werthaltigkeit der Forderungen nachgewiesen wurde.

Umsatzrealisierung (Cut-Off)
Siehe Anhang Bilanzierungs- und Bewertungsgrundsatze zu Forderungen und sonstigen Vermdgensgegenstan-
den sowie Umsatzerlésen zum 31. Dezember 2022.

Das Risiko fiir den Abschluss

Im Jahresabschluss der Rosenbauer International AG zum 31. Dezember 2022 sind Umsatzerlése in Hohe
von 443,8 Mio € ausgewiesen. Die periodengerechte Erfassung der Umsatzerldse erfolgt in der Rosenbauer
International AG auf Basis des Ubergangs der Chancen und Risiken.

Die Umsatzerlse stellen fiir (potentielle) Investoren und Abschlussadressaten ein wesentliches Entschei-
dungskriterium dar, um die Markterfolge und die Entwicklung der Gesellschaft zu beurteilen.

Fir den Abschluss besteht das Risiko, dass die Umsatzerldse aufgrund einer fehlerhaften Beurteilung des
Chancen- und Risiko-Ubergangs nicht korrekt erfasst wurden. Zudem besteht das Risiko, dass Sonderfille in
der Umsatzrealisierung (zB Bill- and Hold Vereinbarungen) nicht angemessen beurteilt werden.

Unsere Vorgehensweise in der Priifung
Bei der Priifung der Umsatzrealisierung haben wir folgende wesentliche Prifungshandlungen durchgefiihrt:

®m Wir haben uns ein Prozessversténdnis uber die Umsatzrealisierung verschafft und Design und Implementie-
rung von Kontrollen in Zusammenhang mit der periodengerechten Erfassung von Umsatzerldsen beurteilt.

m Mittels aussagebezogener Priifungshandlungen (Cut-Off-Testing) haben wir gepriift, ob eine periodenge-
rechte Umsatzabgrenzung erfolgt ist. Dabei haben wir Stichproben von Umsatzstornos nach dem Stichtag
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sowie Verkaufstransaktionen kurz vor dem Stichtag gewiirdigt, um die periodenrichtige Erfassung von Um-
satztransaktionen zu gewéhrleisten.
m Weiters haben wir eine Saldenbestatigungsaktion basierend auf einer statistischen Auswahl durchgefiihrt.

Drohverlustriickstellungen
Siehe Anhang Bilanzierungs- und Bewertungsgrundsatze zu Rickstellungen zum 31. Dezember 2022.

Das Risiko fiir den Abschluss

m Jahresabschluss der Rosenbauer International AG zum 31. Dezember 2022 sind Drohverlustriickstellungen
in Hohe von 0,5 Mio € ausgewiesen. Diese beziehen sich vor allem auf Fertigungsauftrdge am Projektbeginn,
wenn der groBte Einfluss aus Marktvolatilitdten besteht und noch nicht im Rahmen der Vorratsbewertung
bertiicksichtigt werden kann.

Aufgrund der im Geschéftsjahr 2022 vorhandenen hohen Inflation sowie des schwierigen Marktumfelds, be-
steht fiir den Abschluss das Risiko, dass eine zu geringe Drohverlustriickstellung erfasst wurde.

Unsere Vorgehensweise in der Priifung
Bei der Priifung der Drohverlustriickstellungen haben wir folgende wesentliche Priifungshandlungen durchge-
fihrt:

® Wir haben uns ein Prozessversténdnis tber die Ermittlung und Berechnung der Drohverlustriickstellungen
verschafft und Design und Implementierung von Kontrollen in Zusammenhang mit der vollstédndigen und
richtigen Erfassung dieser beurteilt.

m Wir haben bei Inputparametern, denen Ermessensentscheidungen zu Grunde liegen, Besprechungen mit
dem Management durchgefiihrt und diese kritisch auf Nachvollziehbarkeit und Plausibilitat gewdrdigt. Da-
bei haben wir besonderes Augenmerk auf die ermessensbehafteten Elemente in den erhaltenen Dokumen-
tationen und sonstigen internen und externen Informationen gelegt.

m Wir haben die Ableitung der Berechnung zur Drohverlustriickstellung auf die korrekte Rechenweise des
Bewertungsmodells, sowie der zugrunde liegenden Basisdaten {iberpriift.

Sonstige Informationen
Die gesetzlichen Vertreter sind fiir die sonstigen Informationen verantwortlich. Die sonstigen Informationen
umfassen alle Informationen im Jahresfinanzbericht, ausgenommen den Jahresabschluss, den Lagebericht

und den Bestéatigungsvermerk.

Unser Prifungsurteil zum Jahresabschluss erstreckt sich nicht auf diese sonstigen Informationen, und wir
geben keine Art der Zusicherung darauf.

Im Zusammenhang mit unserer Priifung des Jahresabschlusses haben wir die Verantwortlichkeit, diese sons-
tigen Informationen zu lesen und dabei zu wiirdigen, ob die sonstigen Informationen wesentliche Unstimmig-
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keiten zum Jahresabschluss oder unseren bei der Abschlusspriifung erlangten Kenntnissen aufweisen oder
anderweitig falsch dargestellt erscheinen.

Falls wir auf der Grundlage der von uns zu den vor dem Datum des Bestétigungsvermerks des Abschlusspri-
fers erlangten sonstigen Informationen durchgefiihrten Arbeiten den Schluss ziehen, dass eine wesentliche
falsche Darstellung dieser sonstigen Informationen vorliegt, sind wir verpflichtet, lber diese Tatsache zu be-
richten. Wir haben in diesem Zusammenhang nichts zu berichten.

Verantwortlichkeiten der gesetzlichen Vertreter und
des Priifungsausschusses fiir den Jahresabschluss

Die gesetzlichen Vertreter sind verantwortlich flr die Aufstellung des Jahresabschlusses und dafiir, dass dieser
in Ubereinstimmung mit den dsterreichischen unternehmensrechtlichen Vorschriften ein méglichst getreues
Bild der Vermdgens , Finanz- und Ertragslage der Gesellschaft vermittelt. Ferner sind die gesetzlichen Ver-
treter verantwortlich fiir die internen Kontrollen, die sie als notwendig erachten, um die Aufstellung eines
Jahresabschlusses zu ermdglichen, der frei von wesentlichen falschen Darstellungen aufgrund von dolosen
Handlungen oder Irrtimern ist.

Bei der Aufstellung des Jahresabschlusses sind die gesetzlichen Vertreter dafiir verantwortlich, die Fahigkeit
der Gesellschaft zur Fortfiihrung der Unternehmenstétigkeit zu beurteilen, Sachverhalte im Zusammenhang
mit der Fortfiihrung der Unternehmenstatigkeit - sofern einschlégig - anzugeben, sowie dafiir, den Rech-
nungslegungsgrundsatz der Fortfiihrung der Unternehmenstétigkeit anzuwenden, es sei denn, die gesetzli-
chen Vertreter beabsichtigen, entweder die Gesellschaft zu liquidieren oder die Unternehmenstétigkeit einzu-
stellen oder haben keine realistische Alternative dazu.

Der Priifungsausschuss ist verantwortlich fiir die Uberwachung des Rechnungslegungsprozesses der Gesell-
schaft.

Verantwortlichkeiten des Abschlusspriifers
fiir die Prifung des Jahresabschlusses

Unsere Ziele sind hinreichende Sicherheit dariiber zu erlangen, ob der Jahresabschluss als Ganzes frei von
wesentlichen falschen Darstellungen aufgrund von dolosen Handlungen oder Irrtiimern ist und einen Bestéti-
gungsvermerk zu erteilen, der unser Priifungsurteil beinhaltet. Hinreichende Sicherheit ist ein hohes MaB an
Sicherheit, aber keine Garantie dafiir, dass eine in Ubereinstimmung mit der AP-VO und mit den ésterreichi-
schen Grundsétzen ordnungsgemaBer Abschlusspriifung, die die Anwendung der ISA erfordern, durchgefiihr-
te Abschlusspriifung eine wesentliche falsche Darstellung, falls eine solche vorliegt, stets aufdeckt. Falsche
Darstellungen kénnen aus dolosen Handlungen oder Irrtimern resultieren und werden als wesentlich angese-
hen, wenn von ihnen einzeln oder insgesamt verniinftigerweise erwartet werden konnte, dass sie die auf der
Grundlage dieses Jahresabschlusses getroffenen wirtschaftlichen Entscheidungen von Nutzern beeinflussen.

Als Teil einer Abschlusspriifung in Ubereinstimmung mit der AP-VO und mit den &sterreichischen Grundsétzen
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ordnungsgemaBer Abschlusspriifung, die die Anwendung der ISA erfordern, (iben wir wahrend der gesamten
Abschlusspriifung pflichtgemaBes Ermessen aus und bewahren eine kritische Grundhaltung.

Dariiber hinaus gilt:

m Wir identifizieren und beurteilen die Risiken wesentlicher falscher Darstellungen aufgrund von dolosen
Handlungen oder Irrtiimern im Abschluss, planen Priifungshandlungen als Reaktion auf diese Risiken, fiih-
ren sie durch und erlangen Priifungsnachweise, die ausreichend und geeignet sind, um als Grundlage fiir
unser Prifungsurteil zu dienen. Das Risiko, dass aus dolosen Handlungen resultierende wesentliche falsche
Darstellungen nicht aufgedeckt werden, ist hdher als ein aus Irrtimern resultierendes, da dolose Handlun-
gen kollusives Zusammenwirken, Félschungen, beabsichtigte Unvollstandigkeiten, irrefiihrende Darstellun-
gen oder das AuBerkraftsetzen interner Kontrollen beinhalten kénnen.

m Wir gewinnen ein Verstandnis von dem fiir die Abschlusspriifung relevanten internen Kontrollsystem, um
Priifungshandlungen zu planen, die unter den gegebenen Umstdnden angemessen sind, jedoch nicht mit
dem Ziel, ein Prifungsurteil zur Wirksamkeit des internen Kontrollsystems der Gesellschaft abzugeben.

m Wir beurteilen die Angemessenheit der von den gesetzlichen Vertretern angewandten Rechnungslegungs-
methoden sowie die Vertretbarkeit der von den gesetzlichen Vertretern dargestellten geschatzten Werte in
der Rechnungslegung und damit zusammenhéngende Angaben.

m Wir ziehen Schlussfolgerungen iiber die Angemessenheit der Anwendung des Rechnungslegungsgrundsat-
zes der Fortfiihrung der Unternehmenstatigkeit durch die gesetzlichen Vertreter sowie, auf der Grundlage
der erlangten Priifungsnachweise, ob eine wesentliche Unsicherheit im Zusammenhang mit Ereignissen
oder Gegebenheiten besteht, die erhebliche Zweifel an der Fahigkeit der Gesellschaft zur Fortfiihrung der
Unternehmenstétigkeit aufwerfen kénnen. Falls wir die Schlussfolgerung ziehen, dass eine wesentliche
Unsicherheit besteht, sind wir verpflichtet, in unserem Bestétigungsvermerk auf die dazugehdrigen An-
gaben im Jahresabschluss aufmerksam zu machen oder, falls diese Angaben unangemessen sind, unser
Priifungsurteil zu modifizieren. Wir ziehen unsere Schlussfolgerungen auf der Grundlage der bis zum Datum
unseres Bestéatigungsvermerks erlangten Prifungsnachweise. Zukiinftige Ereignisse oder Gegebenheiten
kénnen jedoch die Abkehr der Gesellschaft von der Fortfiihrung der Unternehmenstatigkeit zur Folge haben.

m Wir beurteilen die Gesamtdarstellung, den Aufbau und den Inhalt des Jahresabschlusses einschlieBlich der
Angaben sowie ob der Jahresabschluss die zugrunde liegenden Geschéftsvorfélle und Ereignisse in einer
Weise wiedergibt, dass ein mdglichst getreues Bild erreicht wird.

® Wir tauschen uns mit dem Priifungsausschuss unter anderem iber den geplanten Umfang und die geplante
zeitliche Einteilung der Abschlusspriifung sowie iber bedeutsame Priifungsfeststellungen, einschlieBlich
etwaiger bedeutsamer Mangel im internen Kontrollsystem, die wir wahrend unserer Abschlusspriifung er-
kennen, aus.

m Wir geben dem Priifungsausschuss auch eine Erklarung ab, dass wir die relevanten beruflichen Verhal-
tensanforderungen zur Unabhéngigkeit eingehalten haben und uns mit ihm UGber alle Beziehungen und
sonstigen Sachverhalte austauschen, von denen verniinftigerweise angenommen werden kann, dass sie
sich auf unsere Unabhéngigkeit und - sofern einschlagig - damit zusammenhangende SchutzmaBnahmen
auswirken.

®m Wir bestimmen von den Sachverhalten, liber die wir uns mit dem Priifungsausschuss ausgetauscht haben,
diejenigen Sachverhalte, die am bedeutsamsten fiir die Priifung des Jahresabschlusses des Geschaftsjah-
res waren und daher die besonders wichtigen Priifungssachverhalte sind. Wir beschreiben diese Sachver-
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halte in unserem Bestatigungsvermerk, es sei denn, Gesetze oder andere Rechtsvorschriften schlieBen die
offentliche Angabe des Sachverhalts aus oder wir bestimmen in duBerst seltenen Féllen, dass ein Sachver-
halt nicht in unserem Bestatigungsvermerk mitgeteilt werden sollte, weil verniinftigerweise erwartet wird,
dass die negativen Folgen einer solchen Mitteilung deren Vorteile fiir das 6ffentliche Interesse iibersteigen
wirden.

Sonstige gesetzliche und andere rechtliche Anforderungen

Bericht zum Lagebericht

Der Lagebericht ist aufgrund der dsterreichischen unternehmensrechtlichen Vorschriften darauf zu prifen,
ob er mit dem Jahresabschluss in Einklang steht und ob er nach den geltenden rechtlichen Anforderungen
aufgestellt wurde.

Die gesetzlichen Vertreter sind verantwortlich fiir die Aufstellung des Lageberichts in Ubereinstimmung mit
den 6sterreichischen unternehmensrechtlichen Vorschriften.

Wir haben unsere Priifung in Ubereinstimmung mit den Berufsgrundsatzen zur Priifung des Lageberichts
durchgefiihrt.

Urteil
Nach unserer Beurteilung ist der Lagebericht nach den geltenden rechtlichen Anforderungen aufgestellt wor-
den, enthalt die nach § 243a UGB zutreffenden Angaben, und steht in Einklang mit dem Jahres-abschluss.

Erklarung

Angesichts der bei der Priifung des Jahresabschlusses gewonnenen Erkenntnisse und des gewonnenen Ver-
standnisses Uber die Gesellschaft und ihr Umfeld haben wir keine wesentlichen fehlerhaften Angaben im
Lagebericht festgestellt.

Zusatzliche Angaben nach Artikel 10 AP-VO
Wir wurden von der Hauptversammlung am 13. Mai 2022 als Abschlusspriifer gewahlt und am 21. Oktober
2022 vom Aufsichtsrat mit der Abschlusspriifung der Gesellschaft fiir das am 31. Dezember 2022 endende

Geschéaftsjahr beauftragt.

Wir sind ohne Unterbrechung seit dem Jahresabschluss zum 31. Dezember 2020 Abschlusspriifer der Gesell-
schaft.
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Wir erkléren, dass das Priifungsurteil im Abschnitt ,Bericht zum Jahresabschluss® mit dem zusétzlichen Be-
richt an den Priifungsausschuss nach Artikel 11 der AP-VO in Einklang steht.

Wir erklaren, dass wir keine verbotenen Nichtpriifungsleistungen (Artikel 5 Abs 1 der AP-VO) erbracht haben

und dass wir bei der Durchfiihrung der Abschlusspriifung unsere Unabhéngigkeit von der gepriften Gesell-
schaft gewahrt haben.

Auftragsverantwortlicher Wirtschaftsprifer
Der fiir die Abschlusspriifung auftragsverantwortliche Wirtschaftsprifer ist Herr Mag. Christoph Karer.

Linz, 13. April 2023

KPMG Austria GmbH

Wirtschaftspriifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft

Mag. Christoph Karer

Wirtschaftspriifer

Dieses Dokument wurde qualifiziert elektronisch signiert und ist nur in dieser Fassung giltig. Die Verdffentlichung oder Weitergabe des Jahresabschlusses mit unserem Bestétigungsvermerk darf nur in der von uns bestétigten Fassung erfolgen. Dieser Bestatigungsvermerk bezieht sich
ausschlieBlich auf den deutschsprachigen und vollstandigen Jahresabschluss samt Lagebericht. Fiir abweichende Fassungen sind die Vorschriften des § 281 Abs 2 UGB zu beachten.
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Erklarung der gesetzlichen Vertreter

Wir bestatigen nach bestem Wissen, dass der im Einklang mit den maBgebenden Rechnungslegungsstan-
dards aufgestellte Konzernabschluss ein mdoglichst getreues Bild der Vermdgens-, Finanz- und Ertragslage des
Konzerns vermittelt, dass der Konzernlagebericht den Geschaftsverlauf, das Geschéaftsergebnis und die Lage
des Konzerns so darstellt, dass ein moglichst getreues Bild der Vermdgens-, Finanz- und Ertragslage des
Konzerns entsteht, und dass der Konzernlagebericht die wesentlichen Risiken und Ungewissheiten beschreibt,
denen der Konzern ausgesetzt ist.

Wir bestatigen nach bestem Wissen, dass der im Einklang mit den maBgebenden Rechnungslegungsstandards
aufgestellte Jahresabschluss des Mutterunternehmens ein moglichst getreues Bild der Vermdgens-, Finanz-
und Ertragslage des Unternehmens vermittelt, dass der Lagebericht den Geschaftsverlauf, das Geschaftser-
gebnis und die Lage des Unternehmens so darstellt, dass ein mdglichst getreues Bild der Vermdégens-, Finanz-
und Ertragslage entsteht, und dass der Lagebericht die wesentlichen Risiken und Ungewissheiten beschreibt,
denen das Unternehmen ausgesetzt ist.

Leonding, am 6. April 2023

Sebastian Wolf Andreas Zeller Daniel Tomaschko Markus Richter
CEO CSo CTO CFO
Konzernfunktionen: Konzernfunktionen: Konzernfunktionen: Konzernfunktionen:
Global Marketing, Global Area Oragnisation Produktion Units, Preventive Group Controlling,
Produkt Management & APAC, CEEU, MENA, Fire Protection und Order Group Accounting & Tax,
Innovation, Group NISA und NOMA, Centers, Supply Chain Group IT, Group Legal &
Communication, Investor Customer Service & Management, Quality Compliance, Group
Relations & CSR, Human Digital Solutions, Management, Audit, Group Treasury &
Resources, Fire & Saftey Sales Administration Central Technics Insurance

Equipment
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